
Use these links to rapidly review the document
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
PART IV 
ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

Commission file number: 0-24786

Aspen Technology, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

 04-2739697
(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)

200 Wheeler Road
Burlington, Massachusetts

(Address of principal executive
offices)

 

01803
(Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: 781-221-6400

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
Common stock, $0.10 par value per share

         Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes o    No ☒

         Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes o    No ☒

         Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the
past 90 days. Yes ☒    No o

         Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required
to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes o    No o

         Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will
not be contained, to the best of the registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or
any amendment to this Form 10-K. ☒

(Mark One)   

☒  ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

or

o  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                                 to                                



         Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the
definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

         Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes o    No ☒

         As of December 31, 2009, the aggregate market value of common stock (the only outstanding class of common equity of the registrant) held by nonaffiliates
of the registrant was $608,793,072 based on a total of 62,121,742 shares of common stock held by nonaffiliates and on a closing price of $9.80 on December 31,
2009 for the common stock as reported on The NASDAQ Global Market.

         There were 92,891,514 shares of common stock outstanding as of August 16, 2010.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

         Portions of the registrant's definitive Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K are incorporated by reference in
Part III, Items 10-14 of this Form 10-K.

Large accelerated filer o  Accelerated filer ☒  Non-accelerated filer o
(Do not check if a

smaller reporting company)

 Smaller reporting company o



Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

        ASPENONE, ASPENTECH, the AspenTech logo, DMCPLUS, HTFS, HYSYS and INFOPLUS.21 are our registered trademarks, and ASPEN BASIC
ENGINEERING, ASPEN COLLABORATIVE DEMAND MANAGER, ASPEN ECONOMIC EVALUATION, ASPEN EXCHANGER DESIGN AND
RATING, ASPEN FLEET OPTIMIZER, ASPEN INVENTORY MANAGEMENT & OPERATIONS SCHEDULING, ASPEN PETROLEUM SCHEDULER,
ASPEN PETROLEUM SUPPLY CHAIN PLANNER, ASPEN PIMS, ASPEN PLANNING & SCHEDULING FOR OLEFINS ASPEN PLANT SCHEDULER,
ASPEN PLUS and ASPEN SUPPLY CHAIN PLANNER are our trademarks. All other trademarks, trade names and service marks appearing in this Form 10-K
are the property of their respective owners.

1

    Page  
PART I  

Item 1.  Business   3 
Item 1A.  Risk Factors   17 
Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments   29 
Item 2.  Properties   30 
Item 3.  Legal Proceedings   30 
Item 4.  [Removed and Reserved]   32 

PART II
 

Item 5.  Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

 
 33 

Item 6.  Selected Financial Data   36 
Item 7.  Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations   39 
Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk   74 
Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data   75 
Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure   75 
Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures   76 
Item 9B.  Other Information   81 

PART III
 

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance   82 
Item 11.  Executive Compensation   87 
Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters   111 
Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence   113 
Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services   115 

PART IV
 

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules   116 

Signatures
 

 127 



Table of Contents

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INDUSTRY DATA 

        This Form 10-K contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements relate to future events or our future financial performance. We generally identify forward-looking statements
by terminology such as "anticipate," "believe," "could," "estimate," "expect," "intend," "may," "potential," "should," "target," or the negative of these terms or
other similar words. These statements are only predictions. The outcome of the events described in these forward-looking statements is subject to known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our, our customers' or our industry's actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements, to differ. "Item 1. Business," "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and "Item 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" as well as other sections in this Form 10-K, discuss some of the factors that could contribute to these
differences. The forward-looking statements made in this Form 10-K relate only to events as of the date on which the statements are made. We undertake no
obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of
unanticipated events. Our forward-looking statements do not reflect the potential impact of any future acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joint ventures or
investments we may make.

        This Form 10-K also contains estimates and other information concerning our industry, including market size and growth rates, that are based on industry
publications, surveys and forecasts, including those generated by ARC Advisory Group. This information involves a number of assumptions and limitations, and
you are cautioned not to give undue weight to these estimates. Although we believe the information in these industry publications, surveys and forecasts is
reliable, we have not independently verified the accuracy or completeness of the information. The industry in which we operate is subject to a high degree of
uncertainty and risk due to variety of factors, including those described in "Item 1A. Risk Factors."
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PART I 

Item 1.    Business. 

Overview

        We are a leading global provider of mission-critical process optimization software solutions, which are designed to manage and optimize plant and process
design, operational performance, and supply chain planning. Our aspenONE software and related services have been developed specifically for companies in the
process industries, including the energy, chemicals, pharmaceuticals, and engineering and construction industries. Customers use our solutions to improve their
competitiveness and profitability by increasing throughput and productivity, reducing operating costs, enhancing capital efficiency, and decreasing working
capital requirements.

        Our software incorporates our proprietary empirical models of manufacturing and planning processes and reflects the deep domain expertise we have
amassed from focusing on solutions for the process industries for nearly 30 years. We have developed our applications to design and optimize processes across
three principal business areas: engineering, manufacturing and supply chain. We are a recognized market and technology leader in providing process optimization
software for each of these business areas.

        We have more than 1,500 customers globally. Our customers include manufacturers in process industries such as energy, chemicals, pharmaceuticals,
consumer packaged goods, power, metals and mining, pulp and paper, and biofuels, as well as engineering and construction firms that help design process
manufacturing plants. As of June 30, 2010, our installed base included 19 of the 20 largest petroleum companies, all of the 20 largest chemical companies, and 15
of the 20 largest pharmaceutical companies. Customers outside the United States accounted for a majority of our total revenue in each of fiscal 2010, 2009 and
2008, and no single customer represented 10% or more of our total revenue in fiscal 2010, 2009 or 2008.

        We have established sustainable competitive advantages based on the breadth, flexibility and return on investment associated with our software offerings, as
well as our market leadership position, our extensive process industry expertise and our established, diversified customer base. We consult and collaborate with
customers to identify new applications, which leads to innovative, targeted solutions and fosters long-term customer relationships. This approach has helped us
develop software solutions that are embedded in our customers' operations and integrated with their core business processes.

        In July 2009 we introduced our aspenONE licensing model under which license revenue is recognized over the term of a license contract. Our new licensing
model provides customers with increased access to our applications, and we believe this flexibility will lead to increased usage and revenue over time. Because
we previously recognized a substantial majority of our license revenue upon shipment of software, our revenue for fiscal 2010 was significantly less than in the
preceding fiscal years. We expect that our revenue will increase as customers renew their licensing arrangements under our new licensing model. We do not
expect to recognize levels of revenue comparable to prior fiscal years unless and until a significant majority of our existing license agreements have been renewed
under our new licensing model.

Industry Background

        The process industries consist of companies that typically manufacture finished products by applying a controlled chemical process either to a raw material
that is fed continuously through the plant or to a specific batch of raw material. The process industries include energy, chemicals, pharmaceuticals, consumer
packaged goods, power, metals and mining, pulp and paper, and biofuels as well as engineering and construction firms that design process manufacturing plants.
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        Process manufacturing is often complex because small changes in the feedstocks used, or to the chemical process applied, can have a significant impact on
the efficiency and cost-effectiveness of manufacturing operations. As a result, process manufacturers, as well as the engineering and construction firms that
partner with these manufacturers, have extensive technical requirements and need a combination of software, services and domain expertise to help design,
operate and manage manufacturing environments. The unique characteristics associated with process manufacturing create special demands for business
applications that frequently exceed the capabilities of generic software applications or non-process manufacturing software packages. The process industries
require sophisticated, integrated software applications capable of designing and optimizing their complex, interconnected manufacturing and business processes.

    Industry-Specific Challenges Facing the Process Industries

        Companies in different process industries face specific challenges that are driving the need for solutions that design, operate and manage their manufacturing
environments more effectively:

• Energy.  The energy industry encompasses refineries as well as oil and gas exploration and production companies: 

• The refining sector is characterized by high volumes and low operating margins. Refineries are under pressure to optimize product mix,
minimize inventory, and lower operating costs to improve margins in the face of volatile market conditions. 

• Exploration and production companies are targeting reserves in increasingly diverse geographic areas. They face the challenge of
designing production platform processes effectively and managing both interconnected assets and complex supply chains, all while
optimizing production and ensuring regulatory compliance. 

• Chemicals.  The chemicals industry includes both bulk and specialty chemical companies: 

• Bulk chemical producers, which compete primarily on price, are seeking to achieve economies of scale and manage operating margin
pressure by building larger, more complex plants located near feedstock sources. 

• Specialty chemical manufacturers, which primarily manufacture highly differentiated customer-specific products, face challenges in
managing their diverse product lines, multiple plants and complex supply chains. They must, for example, identify where and when to
manufacture a product to drive maximum profitability while ensuring high quality and quick turnaround times. 

• Pharmaceuticals.  The increasing prevalence of generic drugs and expansion of regulatory requirements are driving pharmaceutical companies to
improve their operational performance. They are seeking to optimize their manufacturing and distribution operations to help them meet demanding
regulatory requirements, bring new products to market faster during their initial patent protection period and decrease production costs. 

• Engineering and construction.  Engineering and construction firms must compete on a global basis in bidding on and executing complex, large-
scale projects. They need a digital environment in which plant designs can be produced quickly and efficiently using highly accurate cost
estimation technology. This, in turn, requires significant collaboration not only internally but also with the manufacturer and, in some cases, other
engineering and construction firms.

        Similarly, companies in the consumer packaged goods, power, metals and mining, pulp and paper, and biofuels industries are seeking process optimization
solutions to address their varied process manufacturing challenges.
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    Increasing Complexity of the Process Industries

        In addition to the technical requirements associated with the process industries, several industry trends are driving the growing complexity of these
industries:

• Globalization of markets.  Process manufacturers are expanding their operations beyond mature geographic markets in order to take advantage of
growing demand and available feedstocks in emerging markets such as China, India, Russia, Latin America and the Middle East. Process
manufacturers must be able to design, build and operate an emerging-market plant efficiently and economically. They also need to improve
efficiency and reduce costs at their existing plants in mature markets in order to compete with new plants in emerging markets. 

• Volatile markets.  Process manufacturers must react quickly to frequent changes in feedstock prices, temporary or longer-term feedstock shortages,
and rapid changes in finished product prices. Unpredictable commodity markets strain the manufacturing and supply chain operations of process
manufacturers, which must consider, and when appropriate implement, changes in inventory levels, feedstock inputs, equipment usage and
operational processes in order to remain competitive. 

• Increased margin pressure.  As the result of the increasingly competitive global environment, process manufacturers are seeking to design more
efficient new plants and, at the same time, increase throughput and reduce costs at existing plants. These companies must optimize manufacturing
operations and supply chain management, because even a relatively small change in feedstock, labor or energy costs, or in throughput, can have a
significant impact on profitability. 

• Shrinking engineering workforce.  In mature geographic markets the number of chemical engineers is decreasing, as more engineers are retiring
than are entering the process industries. Process companies are seeking information technology solutions by which they can capture and manage
the knowledge acquired by their engineers through years of experience and can automate tasks traditionally performed by engineers. 

• Environmental and safety regulations.  Process companies must comply with an expanding array of data maintenance and reporting requirements
under governmental and regulatory mandates, and the global nature of their operations can subject them to numerous regulatory regimes. These
companies often face heightened scrutiny and oversight because of the environmental, safety and other implications of their products and
manufacturing processes. These companies increasingly are relying upon software applications to model potential outcomes, store operating data
and develop reporting capabilities.

    Market Opportunity

        Technology solutions historically have played a major role in helping companies in the process industries improve their manufacturing productivity. In the
1980s process manufacturers implemented distributed control systems, or DCS, to automate the management of plant hardware. DCS use computer hardware,
communication networks and industrial instruments to measure, record and automatically control process variables. In the 1990s these manufacturers adopted
enterprise resource planning, or ERP, systems to streamline back office functions and interact with DCS. This allowed process manufacturers to track, monitor
and report the performance of each plant, rather than relying on traditional paper and generic word processing spreadsheets.

        Many process manufacturers have implemented both DCS and ERP systems but have realized that their investments in hardware and back-office systems are
inadequate. DCS are only able to control and monitor processes based on fixed sets of parameters and cannot dynamically react to changes in the manufacturing
process unless instructed by end-users. ERP systems can only record what is
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produced in operations. Although DCS and ERP systems help manage manufacturing performance, neither of these systems can optimize what is produced, how
it is produced or where it is produced. Moreover, neither can help a process manufacturer understand how to improve its processes or how to identify
opportunities to decrease operating expenses.

        Process optimization software addresses the gap between DCS and ERP systems. This software focuses on optimizing the manufacturing process itself: how
the process is run and the economics of that process. By connecting DCS and ERP systems with intelligent, dynamic applications, process optimization software
allows a manufacturer to make better, faster economic decisions. This software can optimize a manufacturing environment by, for example, incorporating process
manufacturing domain knowledge, supporting real-time decision making, and providing the ability to forecast and simulate potential actions. Furthermore, these
solutions can optimize the supply chain by helping a manufacturer to understand the operating conditions in each plant, which enables a manufacturer to decide
where best to manufacture products.

        The market for engineering, manufacturing and supply chain process optimization software and services for the energy, chemicals and pharmaceuticals
industries was $2.4 billion in 2008, based on information from reports issued in 2009 by ARC Advisory Group. More specifically, based on this information, it is
estimated that:

• the engineering market was $443 million in 2008 and will grow 8% annually through 2013; 

• the manufacturing market was $1.7 billion in 2008 and will grow 12% annually through 2013; and 

• the supply chain market was $279 million in 2008 and will grow 5% annually through 2013.

        The market for process optimization software and services is growing even more rapidly in emerging markets, as process manufacturers extend their
operations to take advantage of growing demand and available feedstocks in those markets. According to the ARC reports, the market for engineering,
manufacturing and supply chain software and services in all process industries in the Asia Pacific and Latin American regions is expected to grow from
$1.2 billion in 2008 to $2.2 billion in 2013, representing a compound annual growth rate of 12%.

aspenONE Solutions

        We provide integrated process optimization software solutions designed and developed specifically for the process industries. Customers use our solutions to
improve their competitiveness and profitability by increasing throughput and productivity, reducing operating costs, enhancing capital efficiency, and decreasing
working capital requirements. Our aspenONE software applications are organized into two suites, which are centered on our principal business areas of
engineering, manufacturing and supply chain:

• aspenONE Engineering.  Our engineering software is used on an engineer's desktop to design new plants, re-design existing plants, and simulate
and optimize plant processes. 

• aspenONE Manufacturing and Supply Chain.  Our manufacturing software is designed to optimize day-to-day processing activities, enabling
process manufacturers to make better, more profitable decisions and to improve plant performance. Our supply chain management software is
designed to enable process manufacturers to reduce inventory levels, increase asset efficiency and optimize supply chain decisions.

        While a significant number of our customers have already migrated to our new aspenONE licensing model, we continue to offer customers the ability to
purchase our applications as point products. By offering point products, we can acquire, retain and potentially up-sell any customer that does not want to migrate
to our new licensing model.
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        We offer customer support, professional services and training services to our customers. Professional services are offered as a means to further customize
and integrate our technology based on specific customer requirements.

        The key benefits of our aspenONE solutions include:

        Broad and comprehensive software suites.    We believe we are the only software provider that has developed comprehensive suites of software applications
addressing the engineering, manufacturing and supply chain requirements of process manufacturers. While some competitors offer solutions in one or two
principal business areas, no other vendor can match the breadth of our aspenONE offerings. In addition, we have developed an extensive array of software
applications that address extremely specific and complex industry and end-user challenges, such as production scheduling for petroleum companies and solubility
modeling for solvent screening.

        Mission-critical, integrated software solutions.    aspenONE provides a standards-based framework that integrates applications, data and models within each
of our software suites. Process manufacturers seeking to improve their mission-critical business operations can use the integrated software applications in the
aspenONE Manufacturing and Supply Chain suite to support real-time decision-making both for individual production facilities and across multiple sites. In
addition, the common data models underlying an aspenONE suite improve collaboration and productivity by enabling data to be entered once and then
maintained in a centralized repository accessible across a customer's enterprise.

        Flexible commercial model.    Our new aspenONE licensing model provides a customer with access to all of the applications within the aspenONE suite or
suites the customer licenses. The customer can change or alternate the use of multiple applications in a licensed suite through the use of exchangeable units of
measurement, or tokens, licensed in quantities determined by the customer. This enables the customer to use those applications whenever required and to
experiment with different applications to best solve whatever critical business challenges the customer faces. The customer can easily increase its usage of our
software as its business requirements evolve, without disrupting its business processes.

        Hardware-independent technology.    Our software can be easily integrated and used with equipment manufactured by any major process manufacturing
hardware vendor. Because of our hardware-independent approach, customers can use our software solutions to create a unified view of their operations, even if
their plants use hardware from different vendors.

Our Competitive Strengths

        We believe our key competitive advantages include, in addition to the comprehensive breadth of our integrated software solutions and the flexibility of our
new aspenONE licensing model, the following:

        Market leadership.    We are a leader in each of the markets addressed by our software. Based on information presented in reports issued in 2009 by ARC
Advisory Group relating to performance in 2008, in our core process manufacturing industries of energy, chemicals and pharmaceuticals we ranked:

• #1 in the market addressed by our engineering software; 

• #2 in the market addressed by our manufacturing software; and 

• #1 in the market addressed by our supply chain software.

        Industry-leading innovation based on substantial process expertise.    Over the past 30 years, we have designed a number of major process engineering
advances considered to be industry-standard applications. Since our founding, we have built a highly specialized development organization

7



Table of Contents

comprised of not only traditional software engineers but also chemical engineers. As of June 30, 2010, approximately 50% of our software development
personnel had degrees in chemical engineering or a similar discipline. This approach provides us with substantial process industry expertise, as our developers
have critical know-how that allows us to address the specific challenges of our customers.

        Rapid, high return on investment.    Many customers purchase our software because they believe it will provide rapid, demonstrable and significant returns
on their investment. For some customers, cost reductions in the first year following installation have exceeded the total cost of our software. For many customers,
even a relatively small improvement in productivity can generate substantial recurring benefits due to the large production volumes and limited profit margins
typical in process industries. In addition, our solutions can generate organizational efficiencies and operational improvements that can further increase a process
company's return on investment.

        Established, diversified customer base.    We view our installed customer base of more than 1,500 customers as an important strategic asset and as evidence
of our leadership position. As of June 30, 2010, our installed base included 19 of the 20 largest petroleum companies, all of the 20 largest chemical companies,
and 15 of the 20 largest pharmaceutical companies. We consult and collaborate with customers to identify new applications, which leads to innovative, targeted
solutions and fosters long-term customer relationships.

Growth Strategy

        Our objective is to further establish and extend our position as a leading global provider of process optimization software and related services to the process
industries. We intend to build upon our market and technology leadership position by pursuing the following:

        Continue to provide innovative, market-leading solutions.    We have pioneered a number of industry standard and award-winning software applications. For
example, AspenPlus, our process modeling tool for the chemicals industry, has won the Chemical Processing magazine Readers' Choice Award for "Process
Simulation Software" for the last seven years. We have been recognized by R&D Magazine for innovation in out of the box modeling capabilities that we
developed with the National Institute of Standards and Technology. Our recent innovations include applications for electrolyte and biofuel characterizations and
methodologies for carbon management. We intend to continue to invest in research and development in order to develop and offer new and enhanced solutions for
our aspenONE suites.

        Further penetrate existing customer base.    We have an installed base of over 1,500 customers, but many customers do not use all of our products and
services. We intend to target customers that use only one of our aspenONE suites or that do not extensively utilize our professional services and training
capabilities. In addition, we believe that many of our customers do not take full advantage of the applications in the aspenONE suite they currently license. As we
transition these customers to our new aspenONE licensing model, we will seek to identify ways in which they can improve their business processes by using the
entire licensed suite of aspenONE applications, both at an individual user level and across all of their plant locations.

        Expand presence in emerging markets.    Companies in the process industries are expanding their operations to take advantage of growing demand and
available feedstocks in less mature markets such as China, India, Russia, Latin America and the Middle East. Additionally, process manufacturers with existing
plants in these markets are beginning to recognize the value of upgrading their operations to take advantage of process optimization solutions. We historically
have derived a significant portion of our total revenue from outside of North America, and we believe we can further extend our international presence by
penetrating emerging markets. We have, for example, recently established a direct sales force and customer support capabilities for Russia and the Middle East.
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        Extend vertical reach and indirect sales channel.    We historically focused on the energy, chemicals, and engineering and construction industries and in
recent years have increasingly targeted the pharmaceutical industry. We intend to expand beyond our core vertical industries, in part by further developing our
indirect channel. We are seeking to develop relationships with third-party resellers that have a presence in certain non-core verticals such as power, consumer
package goods, pulp and paper, minerals and mining, and biofuels. We believe these relationships will enable us to reach companies in additional process
industries cost effectively and to leverage our indirect channel partners' market experience and domain expertise in those industries.

Products

        Our integrated process optimization software solutions are designed and developed specifically for the process industries. Customers use our solutions to
improve their competitiveness and profitability by increasing throughput and productivity, reducing operating costs, enhancing capital efficiency, and decreasing
working capital requirements.

        We have designed and developed our software applications across three principal business areas:

• Engineering.  Process manufacturers must address a variety of challenges related to strategic planning, collaborative engineering, economic
evaluation, debottlenecking and operational improvement. They must, for example, determine where they should locate facilities, how they can
lower manufacturing costs, what they should produce and how they can maximize plant efficiency. Our engineering software applications are used
during both the design and the ongoing operation of plant facilities to model and improve the way engineers develop and deploy manufacturing
assets. In the design phase, for example, our software supports proposal generation, develops highly accurate cost estimates, generates detailed
implementation schedules and manages change orders. Our engineering solutions include desktop and server applications that typically do not
require substantial professional services, although services may be provided for customized model designs and process synthesis. 

• Manufacturing.  Process manufacturers must address a wide range of manufacturing challenges such as optimizing execution efficiency, reducing
costs, selecting the right raw materials, scheduling and coordinating production processes, and identifying an appropriate balance between
turnaround times, delivery schedules, cost and inventory. Our manufacturing software products focus on optimizing day-to-day processing
activities, enabling customers to make better, faster decisions that lead to improved plant performance and operating results. These solutions
include desktop and server applications that help customers make real-time decisions, which can reduce fixed and variable costs and improve
product yields. 

• Supply chain management.  Process manufacturers must address numerous challenges as they strive to effectively and efficiently manage raw
materials inventory, production schedules and feedstock purchasing decisions. Supply chain managers face these challenges in an environment of
ever-changing market prices, supply constraints and customer demands. Our supply chain management solutions include desktop and server
applications that help customers optimize critical supply chain decisions in order to reduce inventory, increase asset efficiency, and respond more
quickly to changing market conditions.

        Our software products can be linked with a customer's DCS and ERP systems to further improve the customer's ability to gather, analyze and use the
resulting information across the customer's business processes. By integrating our solutions with their DCS and ERP systems, customers can utilize historical data
and develop new models to project and simulate future operational behavior, throughput performance, economic value and profitability.
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        Our software applications are organized into two suites: aspenONE Engineering and aspenONE Manufacturing and Supply Chain. These suites are
integrated applications that allow end-users to utilize common data models to design process manufacturing environments, forecast and simulate potential actions,
monitor operational performance, and manage planning and scheduling activities. The two suites are designed around core modules and applications that allow
customers to design, manage and operate their process manufacturing environments, as shown below:

aspenONE Engineering 
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Business Area  aspenONE Module  Major Products  Product Descriptions
Engineering  Engineering  Aspen Plus  Process modeling software for conceptual design, optimization and performance monitoring for the chemicals

industry

  
 

 
Aspen HYSYS

 
Process modeling software for conceptual design, optimization and performance monitoring for the energy industry

  
 

 
Aspen Basic Engineering

 
Workflow tool that allows engineers to build, re-use and share process models and data

  
 

 
Aspen Economic Evaluation

 
Economic evaluation software for estimating costs of conceptual process designs

  
 

 
Aspen Exchanger Design
and Rating

 
Software used to design, simulate and optimize the performance of heat exchangers



Table of Contents

aspenONE Manufacturing and Supply Chain 

        Our product development activities are currently focused on strengthening the integration of our applications and adding new capabilities that address
specific mission-critical operational business processes in each industry. As of June 30, 2010, we had a total of 400 employees in our research and development
group, which is comprised of software development and quality assurance personnel. As of June 30, 2010, approximately 50% of our research and development
group had degrees in chemical engineering or a similar discipline. We incurred research and development expense of $48.2 million in fiscal 2010, $46.4 million
in fiscal 2009 and $49.9 million in fiscal 2008.

Maintenance and Training

        Maintenance consists primarily of providing customer technical support and access to software fixes and upgrades. Under our new aspenONE licensing
model, maintenance is bundled with our licenses and is required for all customers who purchase our aspenONE suites. Customer technical support services are
provided throughout the world by our three global call centers as well as via email and through our support website.

        We offer a variety of training solutions ranging from standardized training, which can be delivered in a public forum, on-site at a customer's location or over
the Internet, to customized training sessions,
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Business Area  aspenONE Module  Major Products  Product Descriptions
Manufacturing  Production Management &

Execution
 Aspen InfoPlus.21  Data historian software that collects and stores large volumes of data for analysis and reporting

  
Advanced Process Control

 
Aspen DMCplus

 
Multi-variable controller software capable of processing multiple constraints simultaneously

Supply Chain  
Planning & Scheduling

 
Aspen Collaborative Demand Manager

 
Enterprise solution for forecasting market demand

  
 

 
aspenONE Planning & Scheduling for Olefins

 
Software that enables olefins producers to optimize the purchase, management and processing of
feedstocks

  
 

 
Aspen Petroleum Scheduler

 
Integrated system that supports comprehensive scheduling and optimization of refinery activities

  
 

 
Aspen PIMS

 
Enterprise planning software that optimizes feedstock evaluation, product slate and operational
execution

  
 

 
Aspen Plant Scheduler

 
Plant scheduling software that optimizes production scheduling

  
 

 
Aspen Supply Chain Planner

 
Software for determining what to produce given product demands, inventory, and manufacturing and
distribution constraints

  
Supply & Distribution

 
Aspen Inventory Management & Operations
Scheduling

 
Enterprise solution that allows users to manage their supply and demand balancing, inventory and
scheduling

  
 

 
Aspen Petroleum Supply Chain Planner

 
Economic planning tool that solves multi-commodity, multi-period transportation optimization problems

  
 

 
Aspen Fleet Optimizer

 
Enterprise solution for inventory management and truck transportation optimization
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which can be tailored to fit customer needs. As of June 30, 2010, we had a total of 147 employees in our customer support and training group.

Professional Services

        We offer professional services focused on implementation of our solution. Our professional services team primarily consists of project engineers with
degrees in chemical engineering or a similar discipline, or who have significant relevant industry experience. Our employees include experts in fields such as
thermophysical properties, distillation, adsorption processes, polymer processes, industrial reactor modeling, the identification of empirical models for process
control or analysis, large-scale optimization, supply distribution systems modeling and scheduling methods. The services provided by our professional services
team include implementing and integrating our software applications for customers that are seeking to integrate our technology with their existing systems in
order to further improve their plant performance and gain better operational data. We offer our services on either a time-and-material or fixed-price basis. As of
June 30, 2010, we had a total of 181 employees in our professional services group.

Customers

        Our software solutions are installed at the facilities of more than 1,500 customers worldwide. These customers include process manufacturers and the
engineering and construction firms that provide services to them. Our customers include:

        No customer accounted for 10% or more of our total revenue in fiscal 2010, 2009 or 2008.

Sales and Marketing

        We employ a value-based sales approach, offering our customers a comprehensive suite of software and services that enhance the efficiency and productivity
of their engineering, manufacturing and supply chain operations. We have increasingly focused on selling our products as a strategic investment for our customers
and therefore devote an increasing portion of our sales efforts at senior management levels, including senior decision makers in manufacturing, operations and
technology. Our aspenONE solution strategy supports this value-based approach by broadening the scope of optimization across the entire enterprise and
expanding the use of process models in the operations environment. In particular, we offer a variety of training programs focused on illustrating the capabilities of
our applications and
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intend to implement compensatory programs for our sales force that will reward efforts that increase customer usage of currently licensed products.

        Historically, most of our license sales have been generated through our direct sales force. Because the complexity and cost of our products often result in
extended sales cycles, we believe that the development of long-term, consultative relationships with our customers is essential to a successful sales strategy. To
develop these relationships, we focus our worldwide sales force on a defined set of strategic accounts. In North America we have organized our sales force around
specific vertical markets. In the rest of the world the sales force is organized around specific countries or regions.

        In July 2009 we introduced our aspenONE licensing model under which customers receive access to all of the applications within the aspenONE suite or
suites they license. This affords customers the ability to use our software whenever required and to experiment with different applications to best solve whatever
critical business challenges they face. Customers can easily increase their usage of our software as their business requirements evolve, without disrupting their
business processes. We believe our new licensing model will further enable our sales force to develop consultative sales relationships with our customers.

        In order to market the specific functionality and other complex technical features of our software, our account managers work with specialized teams of
technical sales engineers and product specialists organized for each sales and marketing effort. Our technical sales engineers typically have advanced degrees in
chemical engineering or related disciplines and actively consult with a customer's plant engineers. Product specialists share their detailed knowledge of the
specific features of our software solutions as they apply to the unique business processes of different vertical industries. In addition, we have a limited number of
global account managers, each of whom is focused on a specific global account. Our overall sales force, which consists of quota-carrying sales account managers,
sales services personnel, business support engineers, partner organization personnel, industry business unit professionals, marketing personnel and support staff,
consisted of 333 employees as of June 30, 2010.

        We supplement our direct sales efforts with a variety of marketing initiatives, including industry analyst and public relations activities, campaigns to promote
awareness, user group meetings and customer relationship programs. We have established reseller relationships with select companies that we believe can help us
increase sales in specific regions and non-core target markets.

        We also license our software products to universities that agree to use our products in teaching and research. We believe that students' familiarity with our
products will stimulate future demand once the students enter the workplace.

Competition

        Our markets in general are highly competitive, and we expect the intensity of competition in our markets to increase as existing competitors enhance and
expand their product and service offerings and as new participants enter the market. Increased competition may result in price reductions, reduced profitability
and loss of market share. We cannot ensure that we will be able to compete successfully against existing or future competitors. Some of our customers and
companies with which we have strategic relationships also are, or may become, competitors.

        Many of our current and potential competitors have greater financial, technical, marketing, service and other resources than we have. As a result, these
companies may be able to offer lower prices, additional products or services, or other incentives that we cannot match or offer. These competitors may be in a
stronger position to respond more quickly to new technologies and may be able to undertake more extensive marketing campaigns. We believe they also have
adopted and may continue to pursue more aggressive pricing policies and make more attractive offers to potential customers, employees and strategic partners.
For example, some competitors may be able to initiate relationships through sales and installations of hardware and then seek to expand their customer
relationships by offering process optimization software at a discount.

        In addition, many of our competitors have established, and may in the future continue to establish, cooperative relationships with third parties to improve
their product offerings and to increase the availability of their products in the marketplace. Competitors with greater financial resources may make strategic
acquisitions to increase their ability to gain market share or improve the quality or marketability of their products.
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        Our primary competitors differ among our principal product areas:

• Our engineering software competes with products of businesses such as ABB Ltd., Chemstations, Inc., Honeywell International, Inc.,
Invensys plc, KBC Advanced Technologies plc, and Shell Global Solutions International BV. 

• Our manufacturing software competes with products of companies such as ABB Ltd., Honeywell International, Inc., Invensys plc, OSIsoft, Inc.,
Rockwell Automation, Inc., Siemens AG and Yokogawa Electric Corporation. 

• Our supply chain management software competes with products of companies such as JDA Software Group, Inc., Oracle Corporation and SAP
AG.

        In addition, we face challenges in selling our solutions to large companies in the process industries that have internally developed their own proprietary
software solutions.

        We believe the key competitive differentiator in our industry is the value, or return on investment, that our software and services provide. We seek to develop
and offer integrated suites of targeted, high-value vertical industry solutions that can be implemented with relatively limited service requirements. We believe this
approach provides us with an advantage over many of our competitors that offer software products that are point solutions or are more service-based. The
principal competitive factors in our industry also include:

• breadth, depth and integration of software offerings; 

• domain expertise of sales and service personnel; 

• consistent global support; 

• performance and reliability; 

• price; and 

• time to market.

Key License Agreements

    Massachusetts Institute of Technology

        In March 1982 we entered into a System License Agreement with the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, or MIT, under which we received a worldwide,
perpetual non-exclusive license (with the right to sublicense) to use, reproduce, distribute and create derivative works of the computer programs known as
"ASPEN" and the related documentation. The ASPEN program licensed from MIT provides a framework for simulating the steady-state behavior of chemical
processes that we utilize in the simulation engine for our Aspen Plus product. MIT has agreed that we would own any derivative works and enhancements of
ASPEN that we may create during the term of the agreement. A one-time license fee of $30,000 has been paid in full. MIT has the right to terminate the
agreement upon the occurrence of any of the following events: if we breach the agreement and do not cure the breach within 90 days after receiving a written
notice from MIT; if we cease to carry on our business; if proceedings under any bankruptcy or insolvency law are commenced by or against us and not dismissed
within 90 days; if we make an assignment for the benefit of our creditors and such assignment is not discontinued within 90 days; or if a receiver is appointed for
us and is not discharged within 90 days. In the event of such termination, our license to ASPEN will terminate but the sublicenses granted to our customers prior
to termination will remain in effect.
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    Honeywell

        In December 2004 we entered into a consent decree with the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, with respect to a civil administrative complaint filed by the
FTC in August 2003 alleging that our acquisition of Hyprotech Ltd. and related subsidiaries of AEA Technology plc, which we refer to collectively as Hyprotech,
in May 2002 was anticompetitive in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act and Section 7 of the Clayton Act. In connection with the consent
decree, we and our subsidiaries Hyprotech Company, AspenTech Canada Ltd., AspenTech Ltd. and Hyprotech UK Ltd. entered into a purchase and sale
agreement with Honeywell International Inc. and its subsidiaries Honeywell Control Systems Limited and Honeywell Limited-Honeywell Limitee, which we
refer to collectively as Honeywell. Pursuant to that agreement and the related ancillary agreements, we sold to Honeywell assets, including intellectual property
rights, relating to our operator training business and our Hyprotech engineering software products. Under the terms of the transactions:

• we retained a perpetual, irrevocable, worldwide, royalty-free non-exclusive license (with the limited rights to sublicense) to the Hyprotech
engineering software and have the right to continue to develop and sell the Hyprotech engineering products; and 

• we retained certain agreements with third parties other than customers or distributors for HYSYS and related products.

        We are subject to ongoing compliance obligations under the FTC consent decree. In July 2009, we announced that the FTC closed an investigation relating to
the alleged violations of the decree, and issued an order modifying the consent decree, which became final in August 2009. The modification requires that we
continue to provide the ability for users to save input variable case data for Aspen HYSYS and Aspen HYSYS Dynamics software in a standard "portable"
format, which will make it easier for users to transfer case data from later versions of the products to earlier versions. We also must provide documentation to
Honeywell of the Aspen HYSYS and Aspen HYSYS Dynamics input variables, as well as documentation of the covered heat exchange products. These
requirements will apply to all existing and future versions of the covered products released prior to December 31, 2014 or December 31, 2016, at the option of
Honeywell. In addition, we are required to provide to Honeywell a license to modify and distribute (in object code form) certain versions of our flare system
analyzer software.

        There is no assurance that the actions required by the FTC's modified order and related settlement with Honeywell will not provide Honeywell with
additional competitive advantages that could materially adversely affect our results of operations.

Intellectual Property

        We regard our software as proprietary. Our strategy is to rely on a combination of copyright, patent, trademark and trade secret laws in the United States and
other jurisdictions, and to rely on license and confidentiality agreements, and software security measures to further protect our proprietary technology and brand.
The laws of many countries in which our products are licensed may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States.

        We have obtained or applied for patent protection with respect to some of our intellectual property, but generally do not rely on patents as a principal means
of protecting intellectual property. As of June 30, 2010 we owned twenty-five patents issued in the United States, four patent applications pending in the United
States, and foreign counterparts to several of these cases.

        We conduct business under our trademarks and use trademarks on some of our products. We believe that having distinctive marks may be an important factor
in marketing our products. We have registered or applied to register some of our significant trademarks in the United States and in selected other countries.
Although we have a foreign trademark registration program for selected marks, the
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laws of many countries protect trademarks solely on the basis of registration and we may not be able to register or use such marks in each foreign country in
which we seek registration. We actively monitor use of our trademarks and have and will enforce our rights to our trademarks.

        We rely on trade secrets to protect certain of our technology. We generally seek to protect these trade secrets by entering into non-disclosure agreements with
our employees and customers, and historically have restricted access to our software source code and licenses, which we regard as proprietary information. In
certain cases, we have provided copies of source code to customers for the purpose of special product customization or have deposited copies of the source code
in third-party escrow accounts as security for ongoing service and license obligations. In these cases, we rely on non-disclosure and other contractual provisions
to protect our proprietary rights. Trade secrets may be difficult to protect, and it is possible that parties may breach their confidentiality agreements with us.

        The steps we have taken to protect our proprietary rights may not be adequate to deter misappropriation of our technology or independent development by
others of technologies that are substantially equivalent or superior to our technology. Any misappropriation of our technology or development of competitive
technologies could harm our business. We could incur substantial costs in protecting and enforcing our intellectual property rights.

        Third parties have asserted, and may assert in the future, claims that our products infringe patents or patent applications under which we do not hold licenses
or other rights. Third parties may own or control these patents and patent applications in the United States and abroad. These third parties have brought, and could
in the future bring, claims against us that would cause us to incur substantial expenses and, if successfully asserted against us, could cause us to pay substantial
damages. Further, if a patent infringement suit were brought against us, we could be forced to stop or delay manufacturing or sales of the product that is the
subject of the suit before or after the suit is decided on the merits. In addition, we could be forced to redesign a product that uses an allegedly infringing
technology. The cost to us of any patent litigation or other proceeding, even if resolved in our favor, could be substantial and may require significant
commitments of time by our management.

        We believe that the success of our business depends more on the quality of our proprietary software products, technology, processes and know-how than on
trademarks, copyrights or patents. While we consider our intellectual property rights to be valuable, we do not believe that our competitive position in the
industry is dependent simply on obtaining legal protection for our software products and technology. Instead, we believe that the success of our business depends
primarily on our ability to maintain a leadership position by developing proprietary software products, technology, information, processes and know-how.
Nevertheless, we attempt to protect our intellectual property rights with respect to our products and development processes through trademark, copyright and
patent registrations, both foreign and domestic, whenever appropriate as part of our ongoing research and development activities.

Employees

        As of June 30, 2010, we had a total of 1,289 full-time employees, of whom approximately 700 were located in the United States. None of our employees is
represented by a labor union, except for 9 employees of our subsidiary Hyprotech UK Limited who belong to the Prospect union for professionals. We have
experienced no work stoppages and believe that our employee relations are satisfactory.

Corporate Information

        Aspen Technology, Inc. was formed in Massachusetts in 1981 and reincorporated in Delaware in 1998. Our principal executive offices are at 200 Wheeler
Road, Burlington, MA 01803, and our telephone number at that address is (781) 221-6400. Our website address is http://www.aspentech.com. The information on
our website is not part of this Form 10-K.
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Available Information

        Our website address is http://www.aspentech.com. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K unless
expressly noted. We file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, which we make available on our website free of charge. These reports
include annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to such reports, each of which is provided
on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such materials with or furnish them to the SEC. You can also read and copy any
materials we file with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. You can obtain additional information about
the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains a website (http://www.sec.gov) that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC, including us.

Item 1A.    Risk Factors. 

        Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below before purchasing
our common stock. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing our company. Additional risks and uncertainties may also impair our
business operations. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows would likely suffer. In that
case, the trading price of our common stock could fall, and you may lose all or part of your investment in our common stock.

Risks Related to Our Business

We depend on our aspenONE software for a substantial portion of our revenue, and our business will suffer if demand for, or usage of, our software declines
for any reason or if existing customers do not renew under our new aspenONE licensing model.

        Our aspenONE suites account for a significant majority of our license revenue and will continue to do so for the foreseeable future. If demand for, or usage
of, our software declines for any reason or if existing customers do not renew under our new aspenONE licensing model, our revenue would decline and our
operating results would suffer. As a result, our revenue could be adversely affected by:

• any decline in demand for or usage of our aspenONE suites; 

• the failure of our aspenONE suites to achieve continued market acceptance; 

• the introduction of products and technologies that serve as a replacement or substitute for, or represent an improvement over, our aspenONE
suites; 

• technological innovations that our aspenONE suites do not address; and 

• our inability to release enhanced versions of our aspenONE suites on a timely basis.

        In July 2009 we introduced our aspenONE licensing model under which we recognize license revenue over the term of a license contract. Our future success
depends substantially on our customers' acceptance of our new licensing model. We are not able to predict the rate at which customers will renew under our new
licensing model and therefore cannot predict the timing or amount of our future revenue or profitability. If customers fail to renew under our new licensing model,
we may lose customers, which would negatively impact our financial performance. We intend to expend significant resources to continue to improve our
aspenONE solutions and to train our customers in using our solutions, but the successful development of our new licensing model cannot be predicted and we
cannot guarantee we will succeed in these goals. Furthermore, customers may elect to continue to purchase our applications on a point product basis, which could
limit our ability to grow our business successfully.
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Our revenue and net income for fiscal 2010 were, and for the foreseeable future will be, adversely affected by the transition to our new aspenONE licensing
model.

        Our new aspenONE licensing model, which we introduced in July 2009, provides customers with access to all of the applications within the aspenONE suite
or suites they license and includes software maintenance and support, or SMS, for the term of the license contract. Prior to July 2009 we primarily recognized
license revenue "upfront," upon shipment of software, on a net present value basis in the period in which a license contract was signed, not over the license term.

        As a result of the transition to our new aspenONE licensing model, our revenue for 2010 was significantly less than the level achieved in the preceding years
and we expect our license revenue will remain below that level for several more years. Our new licensing model makes it difficult for us to increase our license
revenue rapidly through additional bookings in a period, as license revenue from new customers will be recognized over the applicable license term. Similarly, the
full effect of a decline in bookings in any period would not be fully recognized in our revenue for that period, but would negatively affect revenue in subsequent
quarters. Moreover, the marked decrease in revenue levels following our introduction of our new licensing model will not result in, or be accompanied by, a
corresponding reduction in operating expenses. As a result, the change to our new licensing model will result in our reporting not only significantly lower revenue
but also large operating losses for at least the near term and potentially several years. A number of the measures of financial performance calculated in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles or GAAP and typically considered by investors for technology companies like ours will be of limited value in
assessing our performance, growth and financial condition for the foreseeable future. Our announcement of GAAP-based operating results, as well as our lack of
visibility into future operating results, may have a significant adverse effect on the price of our common stock.

In preparing our consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2010, our management identified two material weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting, and our failure to remedy these or other material weaknesses could result in material misstatements in our financial statements and the loss of
investor confidence in our reported financial information.

        Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under
the Securities Exchange Act. Our management identified two material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2010. A material
weakness is defined as a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

        The material weaknesses identified by management as of June 30, 2010 consisted of inadequate and ineffective controls over income tax accounting and
disclosure and controls over the recognition of professional services revenue. As a result of these material weaknesses, our management concluded as of June 30,
2010 that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective based on criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in Internal Control—An Integrated Framework (September 1992).

        We have been implementing and continue to implement remedial measures designed to address these material weaknesses. We cannot be certain that the
measures we have taken are effective or will ensure that restatements will not occur in the future. If these remedial measures are insufficient to address these
material weaknesses, or if additional material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal control are discovered or occur in the future, our consolidated
financial statements may contain material misstatements and we could be required to restate our financial results. We restated our consolidated financial
statements for each of the fiscal years from fiscal 2002 to fiscal 2007 and for
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the first quarter of fiscal 2008. Any future restatement of consolidated financial statements could place a significant strain on our internal resources and harm our
operating results. Further, any additional or unremedied material weakness may preclude us from meeting our reporting obligations on a timely basis. We have
previously not been in compliance with SEC reporting requirements and NASDAQ listing requirements. As a result of the restatements of our consolidated
financial statements, we did not maintain our status as a timely filer with the SEC during the period from September 2007 to November 9, 2009 and from
November 16, 2009 to December 21, 2009, and as a result our common stock was delisted from The NASDAQ Global Select Market in February 2008 and not
relisted until February 2010. If we again fail to remain in compliance with SEC reporting requirements and NASDAQ continued listing requirements, there may
be a material adverse effect on our business and the market for our common stock. If we were required to restate our consolidated financial statements, we could
be subject to class action litigation and SEC proceedings and could incur monetary judgments, penalties or other sanctions that could adversely affect our
financial condition and could cause our stock price to decline.

        Any failure to address the identified material weaknesses or any additional material weaknesses in our internal control could also adversely affect the results
of the periodic management evaluations regarding the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting that are required to be included in our annual
reports on Form 10-K. Internal control deficiencies could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information. We can give no assurance
that the measures we have taken and plan to take in the future will remediate the material weaknesses identified or that any additional material weaknesses or
additional restatements of financial results will not arise in the future due to a failure to implement and maintain adequate internal control over financial reporting
or circumvention of these controls. In addition, even if we are successful in strengthening our controls and procedures, in the future those controls and procedures
may not be adequate to prevent or identify irregularities or errors or to facilitate the fair presentation of our consolidated financial statements.

Arbitration and litigation involving a former reseller in the Middle East may subject us to substantial damages and expenses.

        Prior to October 6, 2009, we had an exclusive reseller relationship covering certain countries in the Middle East with AspenTech Middle East W.L.L., a
Kuwaiti corporation (now known as Advanced Technology Middle East W.L.L.) that we refer to below as ATME. Under the reseller agreement, we had the right
to terminate for, among other things, a material breach in the event of ATME's willful misconduct or fraud. Effective October 6, 2009, we terminated the reseller
relationship for material breach by ATME, based on certain actions of ATME.

        On November 2, 2009, ATME commenced an action in the Queen's Bench Division (Commercial Court) of the High Court of Justice (England & Wales)
captioned In The Matter Of An Intended Arbitration Between AspenTech Middle East W.L.L. and Aspen Technology, Inc., 2009 Folio 1436, seeking preliminary
injunctive relief restraining us from taking any steps to impede ATME from serving as our exclusive reseller in the countries covered by the reseller agreement
with ATME. We filed evidence in opposition to that request for relief on November 12, 2009. At a hearing on November 13, 2009, the court dismissed ATME's
application for preliminary injunctive relief. The court sealed an Order to this effect on November 23, 2009, and further ordered that ATME pay our costs of
claim.

        Relatedly, on November 11, 2009, we filed a request for arbitration against ATME in the International Court of Arbitration of the International Chamber of
Commerce, captioned Aspen Technology, Inc. v. AspenTech Middle East W.L.L., Case No. 16732/VRO. Our request for arbitration asserted claims against
ATME seeking a declaration that ATME committed a material breach of our agreement and that our termination of our agreement was lawful, and seeking
damages for ATME's willful misconduct in connection with the reseller relationship. On November 18, 2009, ATME filed its answer to that request for arbitration
and asserted counterclaims against us seeking a declaratory
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judgment that we unlawfully terminated our agreement with ATME and seeking damages for breach of contract by reason of our purported unlawful termination
of our agreement. Our reply to those counterclaims was filed on December 18, 2009.

        We expect a determination to be made in the second half of fiscal 2011 with respect to the pending arbitration. However, we can provide no assurance as to
the actual timing or outcome of the arbitration. In general, neither party will have the ability to appeal the determination reached. Regardless of the outcome, the
proceedings may result in significant legal expenses and may require significant attention and resources of management, all of which could result in losses and
damages that have a material adverse effect on our business. The reseller agreement with ATME contained a provision whereby we could be liable for a
termination fee if the agreement were terminated other than for material breach. This fee is to be calculated based on a formula contained in the reseller agreement
that we believe was originally developed based on certain assumptions about the future financial performance of ATME, as well as ATME's actual financial
performance. Based on the formula and the financial information provided to us by ATME, which we have not yet verified independently, a recent calculation
based on the formula would result in a termination fee of between $60 million and $77 million. Under the terminated reseller agreement, no termination fee is
owed on termination for material breach. If we are found to have breached the terms of our agreement with ATME, we could be found liable for the termination
fee, the amount of which may be greater or less than the number indicated above. If we are found liable, we would incur damages that could have a material
adverse effect on our cash flow and cash position.

        On March 11, 2010, a Kuwaiti entity (known as ATME Group and affiliated with ATME) filed a lawsuit in a Kuwaiti court naming as defendants ATME, us
and a reseller newly appointed by us in Kuwait. In this lawsuit, ATME Group claims that it was an exclusive reseller for ATME in Kuwait and that it therefore is
entitled to damages resulting from purported customer contracts in Kuwait.

Our operating results may suffer if customers in the energy, chemicals, engineering and construction, or pharmaceuticals industries experience an economic
downturn or other adverse events.

        We derive a majority of our revenue from companies in the energy, chemicals, engineering and construction, and pharmaceutical industries. Accordingly, our
future success depends upon the continued demand for process optimization software and related services by companies in these process industries. These
industries are highly cyclical and highly reactive to the price of oil, as well as general economic conditions. Adverse changes in these industries could and have
caused delays and reductions in information technology spending by our customers, which could lead to reductions, delays, postponements or cancellations of
customer purchases of our products and services, particularly the aspenONE Manufacturing and Supply Chain suite, and in turn could negatively impact our
operating results.

        Because of the nature of their products and manufacturing processes, companies in these process industries are subject to heightened risk of adverse or even
catastrophic environmental, safety and health accidents or incidents, such as the recent oil spill in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. Further, our customers are often
subject to ever-changing standards and regulations, and the global nature of their operations can subject them to numerous regulatory regimes. Legislation or
regulations regarding these areas may require us to make rapid changes in our products and services, and our inability to effect those changes could adversely
impact our revenue, operating margins and other operating results. Any of the foregoing types of events that affects our customers may adversely impact their
operations and information technology spending, which could have an adverse effect on our operating results.

        In addition, in the past, worldwide economic downturns and pricing pressures experienced by energy, chemical, pharmaceutical and other process industries
have led to consolidations and reorganizations. These downturns, pricing pressures and reorganizations have caused delays and
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reductions in capital and operating expenditures by many of these companies. These delays and reductions have reduced demand for products and services like
ours.

        In addition, as the global economy deteriorated in 2009, some of our customers elected to change from paying for term licenses upfront to paying in
installments over the contract term, which deferred our receipt of cash from those customers. A recurrence of these industry patterns, including any recurrence
that may occur in connection with current global economic events, as well as general domestic and foreign economic conditions and other factors that reduce
spending by companies in these industries, could harm our operating results in the future. There is no assurance that customers may not seek bankruptcy or other
similar relief from creditors, fail to pay amounts due to us, or pay those amounts more slowly, any of which could adversely affect our results of operations.

Unfavorable economic and market conditions or a lessening demand in the market for process optimization software could adversely affect our operating
results.

        Our business is influenced by a range of factors that are beyond our control and difficult or impossible to predict. If the market for process optimization
software grows more slowly than we anticipate, demand for our products and services could decline and our operating results could be impaired. Further, the state
of the economy, which deteriorated in the recent broad recession, may deteriorate further in the future. Our operating results may be adversely affected by
unfavorable global economic and market conditions as well as a lessening demand for process optimization software generally. Customer demand for our
products is intrinsically linked to the strength of the economy. If weakness in the economies of the United States and other countries persists, many customers
may delay or reduce technology purchases. This could result in reductions in sales of our products, longer sales cycles, slower adoption of new technologies,
increased price competition or reduced use of our products by our customers. We will lose revenue if demand for our products is reduced because potential
customers experience weak or deteriorating economic conditions, catastrophic environmental or other events and our business, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flow from operations would likely be adversely affected.

The majority of our revenue and an increasing percentage of our operations are attributable to operations outside the United States, and our operating
results therefore may be materially affected by the economic, political, regulatory and other risks of foreign operations.

        As of June 30, 2010, we had 26 offices in 22 countries. We sell our products primarily through a direct sales force located throughout the world. In the event
that we are unable to adequately staff and maintain our foreign operations, we could face difficulties managing our international operations.

        Customers outside the United States accounted for a significant amount of our total revenue in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008. We anticipate that revenue from
customers outside the United States will continue to account for a significant portion of our total revenue for the foreseeable future. Our operations outside the
United States are subject to additional risks, including:

• unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, exchange rates, tariffs and other barriers; 

• political and economic instability and possible nationalization of property by governments without compensation to the owners; 

• less effective protection of intellectual property; 

• requirements of foreign laws and other governmental controls; 

• difficulties and delays in translating products and product documentation into foreign languages; 

• difficulties and delays in negotiating software licenses compliant with accounting revenue recognition requirements in the United States;
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• difficulties in collecting trade accounts receivable in other countries; 

• adverse tax consequences; and 

• the challenges of handling legal disputes in foreign jurisdictions.

Competition from software offered by current competitors and new market entrants, as well as from internally developed solutions by our customers, could
adversely affect our ability to sell our software products and related services and could result in pressure to price our products in a manner that reduces our
margins.

        Our markets in general are highly competitive and differ among our principal product areas: engineering, manufacturing, and supply chain management. Our
engineering software competes with products of businesses such as ABB Ltd., Chemstations, Inc., Honeywell International, Inc., Invensys plc, KBC Advanced
Technologies plc, and Shell Global Solutions International BV. Our manufacturing software competes with products of companies such as ABB Ltd., Honeywell
International, Inc., Invensys plc, OSIsoft, Inc., Rockwell Automation, Inc., Siemens AG and Yokogawa Electric Corporation. Our supply chain management
software competes with products of companies such as JDA Software Group, Inc., Oracle Corporation and SAP AG. In addition, we face challenges in selling our
solutions to large companies in the process industries that have internally developed their own proprietary software solutions.

        Many of our current and potential competitors have greater financial, technical, marketing, service and other resources than we have. As a result, these
companies may be able to offer lower prices, additional products or services, or other incentives that we cannot match or offer. These competitors may be in a
stronger position to respond more quickly to new technologies and may be able to undertake more extensive marketing campaigns. We believe they also have
adopted and may continue to pursue more aggressive pricing policies and make more attractive offers to potential customers, employees and strategic partners.
For example, some competitors may be able to initiate relationships through sales and installations of hardware and then seek to expand their customer
relationships by offering process optimization software at a discount. In addition, many of our competitors have established, and may in the future continue to
establish, cooperative relationships with third parties to improve their product offerings and to increase the availability of their products in the marketplace.
Competitors with greater financial resources may make strategic acquisitions to increase their ability to gain market share or improve the quality or marketability
of their products.

        Competition could seriously impede our ability to sell additional software products and related services on terms favorable to us. Businesses may continue to
enhance their internally developed solutions, rather than investing in commercial software such as ours. Our current and potential commercial competitors may
develop and market new technologies that render our existing or future products obsolete, unmarketable or less competitive. In addition, if these competitors
develop products with similar or superior functionality to our products, we may need to decrease the prices for our products in order to remain competitive. If we
are unable to maintain our current pricing due to competitive pressures, our margins will be reduced and our operating results will be negatively affected. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to compete successfully against current or future competitors or that competitive pressures will not materially adversely
affect our business, financial condition and operating results.
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If we fail to develop new software products, enhance existing products and services, or penetrate new vertical markets, we will be unable to implement our
growth strategy successfully and our business could be seriously harmed.

        The maintenance and extension of our market leadership and our future growth is largely dependent upon our ability to develop new software products that
achieve market acceptance with acceptable operating margins. Enterprises are requiring their application software vendors to provide greater levels of
functionality and broader product offerings. Moreover, our industry is characterized by rapidly changing technologies and evolving industry standards and
operating platforms. Competitors continue to make rapid technological advances in computer hardware and software technology and frequently introduce new
products, services and enhancements. We must continue to enhance our current product line and develop and introduce new products and services that keep pace
with increasingly sophisticated customer requirements and the technological developments of our competitors. Our business and operating results could suffer if
we cannot successfully respond to the technological advances of competitors, or if our new products or product enhancements and services do not achieve market
acceptance.

        Under our business plan, we are implementing a product strategy that unifies our software solutions under the aspenONE brand with differentiated
aspenONE vertical solutions targeted at specific process industry segments. We cannot assure you that our product strategy will result in products that will meet
market needs and achieve significant market acceptance. If we fail to introduce new products that meet the demands of our customers or our target markets, or if
we fail to penetrate new vertical markets in the process industries, our revenue will likely grow at a slower rate than we anticipate and our financial condition
could suffer.

Defects or errors in our software products could harm our reputation, impair our ability to sell our products and result in significant costs to us.

        Our software products are complex and may contain undetected defects or errors. We have not suffered significant harm from any defects or errors to date,
but we have from time to time found defects in our products and we may discover additional defects in the future. We may not be able to detect and correct
defects or errors before releasing products. Consequently, we or our customers may discover defects or errors after our products have been implemented. We have
in the past issued, and may in the future need to issue, corrective releases of our products to remedy defects or errors. The occurrence of any defects or errors
could result in:

• lost or delayed market acceptance and sales of our products; 

• delays in payment to us by customers; 

• product returns; 

• injury to our reputation; 

• diversion of our resources; 

• legal claims, including product liability claims, against us; 

• increased service and warranty expenses or financial concessions; and 

• increased insurance costs.

Defects and errors in our software products could result in claims for substantial damages against us.
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We are subject to a number of lawsuits and disputes arising out of the conduct of our business.

        We are subject to a number of lawsuits and disputes arising out of the conduct of our business. Resolution of these matters can be prolonged and costly, and
the ultimate results or judgments are uncertain due to the inherent uncertainty in litigation and other proceedings. Moreover, our potential liabilities are subject to
change over time due to new developments, changes in settlement strategy or the impact of evidentiary requirements, and we may be required to pay damage
awards or settlements that could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

        In March 2006, we settled class action litigation, including related derivative claims, arising out of our originally filed consolidated financial statements for
fiscal 2000 through 2004, the accounting for which we restated in March 2005. Certain members of the class (representing 1,457,969 shares of common stock, or
less than 1% of the shares putatively purchased during the class action period) opted out of the settlement and had the right to bring their own state or federal law
claims against us, referred to as "opt-out" claims. Opt-out claims were filed on behalf of the holders of approximately 1.1 million of such shares. One of these
actions was settled and three were dismissed. The claims in the remaining actions (described below) include claims against us and one or more of our former
officers alleging securities and common law fraud, breach of contract, deceptive practices and/or rescissory damages liability, based on the restated results of one
or more fiscal periods included in our restated consolidated financial statements referenced in the class action.

• Herbert G. and Eunice E. Blecker, et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed in June 2006 in the Business Litigation Session of the
Massachusetts Superior Court for Suffolk County and docketed as Civ. A. No. 06-2357-BLS1, was an opt-out claim asserted by persons who
received 248,411 shares of our common stock in an acquisition. Fact discovery in this action closed in July 2008, and a non-jury trial was
conducted in November 2009. In January 2010, the court issued its order granting judgment in our favor and dismissing the case. In February
2010, the plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal of the judgment. 

• 380544 Canada, Inc., et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., filed on February 15, 2007 in the federal district court for the Southern District of New
York and docketed as Civ. A. No. 1:07-cv-01204-JFK in that court, is a claim asserted by persons who purchased 566,665 shares of our common
stock in a private placement. Certain motions to dismiss filed by other defendants were resolved on May 5, 2009, and discovery is in process. The
claims in the 380544 Canada action are for damages totaling at least $4.0 million, not including claims for attorneys' fees. We plan to defend the
380544 Canada action vigorously.

        We can provide no assurance as to the outcome of these cases or the likelihood of the filing of additional opt-out claims, and these claims may result in
judgments against us for significant damages. Regardless of the outcome, such litigation has resulted in the past, and may continue to result in the future, in
significant legal expenses and may require significant attention and resources of management, all of which could result in losses and damages that have a material
adverse effect on our business.

We may be subject to significant expenses and damages because of pending liability claims and other claims related to our products and services.

        The sale and implementation of certain of our software products and services, particularly in the areas of advanced process control and supply chain
management, entail the risk of product liability claims and associated damages. Our software products and services are often integrated with our customers'
networks and software applications and are used in the design, operation and management of manufacturing and supply chain processes at large facilities, often
for mission critical applications.
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        Any errors, defects, performance problems or other failures of our software could result in significant liability to us for damages or for violations of
environmental, safety and other laws and regulations. Our software products and implementation services could give rise to warranty and other claims. We are
unable to determine whether resolution of any of these matters will have a material adverse impact on our financial position, cash flows or results of operations,
or, in many cases, reasonably estimate the amount of the loss, if any, that may result from the resolution of these matters.

        Our agreements with customers generally contain provisions designed to limit our exposure to potential product liability claims. It is possible, however, that
the limitation of liability provisions in our agreements may not be effective as a result of federal, foreign, state or local laws or ordinances or unfavorable judicial
decisions. A substantial product liability judgment against us could materially and adversely harm our operating results and financial condition. Even if our
software is not at fault, a product liability claim brought against us could be time-consuming, costly to defend and harmful to our operations.

Implementation of some of our products can be difficult and time-consuming, and customers may be unable to implement those products successfully or
otherwise achieve all of the potential benefits of the products.

        Some of our scheduling, production management and execution, and supply chain products must integrate with the existing computer systems and software
programs of our customers. This process can be complex, time-consuming and expensive. As a result, some customers may have difficulty in implementing those
products or be unable to implement them successfully or otherwise achieve the products' potential benefits. Delayed or ineffective implementation of those
software products or related services may limit our revenue or may result in customer dissatisfaction, harm to our reputation and customer unwillingness to pay
the fees associated with these products.

We may suffer losses on fixed-price professional service engagements.

        We undertake a portion of our professional service engagements on a fixed-price basis. Under these types of engagements, we bear the risk of cost overruns
and inflation. In the past we have experienced cost overruns, which on occasion have been significant. Should the number of our fixed-price engagements
increase in the future, we may experience additional cost overruns that could have a pronounced impact on our operating results.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates could result in declines in our reported revenue and operating results.

        In fiscal 2010, 24% of our total revenue was denominated in a currency other than the U.S. dollar. In addition, certain of our operating expenses incurred
outside the United States are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Our reported revenue and operating results are subject to fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises primarily from the net difference between non-U.S. dollar receipts from customers outside the United States and non-
U.S. dollar operating expenses for subsidiaries in foreign countries. Currently, our largest exposures to foreign exchange rates exist primarily with the Euro,
Pound Sterling, Canadian dollar and Japanese Yen against the U.S. dollar. Over recent months, the value of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar has
fluctuated dramatically. Since late fiscal 2008, we have not entered into derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency exchange contracts, intended to
manage the volatility of these market risks. We cannot predict the impact of foreign currency fluctuations, and foreign currency fluctuations in the future may
adversely affect our revenue and operating results. Any hedging policies we may implement in the future may not be successful, and the cost of those hedging
techniques may have a significant negative impact on our operating results.
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If we fail to comply or are deemed to have failed to comply, with our ongoing Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, consent decree, our business may suffer.

        In December 2004, we entered into a consent decree with the FTC with respect to a civil administrative complaint filed by the FTC in August 2003 alleging
that our acquisition of Hyprotech in May 2002 was anticompetitive in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act and Section 7 of the Clayton
Act. In July 2009, we announced that the FTC closed an investigation relating to the alleged violations of the decree, and issued an order modifying the consent
decree, which became final in August 2009. We are subject to ongoing compliance obligations under the FTC consent decree. There is no assurance that the
actions required by the FTC's modified order and related settlement with Honeywell will not require significant attention and resources of management, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business. Further, if we fail to comply, or are deemed to have failed to comply, with such consent decree, our business
may suffer.

We may not be able to protect our intellectual property rights, which could make us less competitive and cause us to lose market share.

        We regard our software as proprietary. Our strategy is to rely on a combination of copyright, patent, trademark and trade secret laws in the United States and
other jurisdictions, and to rely on license and confidentiality agreements and software security measures to further protect our proprietary technology and brand.
We have obtained or applied for patent protection with respect to some of our intellectual property, but generally do not rely on patents as a principal means of
protecting our intellectual property. We have registered or applied to register some of our trademarks in the United States and in selected other countries. We
generally enter into non-disclosure agreements with our employees and customers, and historically have restricted third-party access to our software source code
and licenses, which we regard as proprietary information. In certain cases, we have provided copies of source code to customers for the purpose of special product
customization or have deposited copies of the source code in third-party escrow accounts as security for ongoing service and license obligations. In these cases,
we rely on non-disclosure and other contractual provisions to protect our proprietary rights.

        The steps we have taken to protect our proprietary rights may not be adequate to deter misappropriation of our technology or independent development by
others of technologies that are substantially equivalent or superior to our technology. Our intellectual property rights may expire or be challenged, invalidated or
infringed upon by third parties or we may be unable to maintain, renew or enter into new licenses on commercially reasonable terms. Any misappropriation of our
technology or development of competitive technologies could harm our business and could diminish or cause us to lose the competitive advantages associated
with our proprietary technology, and could subject us to substantial costs in protecting and enforcing our intellectual property rights and/or temporarily or
permanently disrupt our sales and marketing of the affected products or services. The laws of some countries in which our products are licensed do not protect our
intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States. Moreover, in some non-U.S. countries, laws affecting intellectual property rights
are uncertain in their application, which can affect the scope of enforceability of our intellectual property rights.

Third-party claims that we infringe the intellectual property rights of others may be costly to defend or settle and could damage our business.

        We cannot be certain that our software and services do not infringe issued patents, copyrights, trademarks or other intellectual property rights of third parties.
Litigation regarding intellectual property rights is common in the software industry, and we may be subject to legal proceedings and claims from time to time,
including claims of alleged infringement of intellectual property rights of third parties by us or our licensees concerning their use of our software products and
integration
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technologies and services. Third parties may bring claims of infringement against us. Because our software is integrated with our customers' networks and
business processes, as well as other software applications, third parties may bring claims of infringement against us, as well as our customers and other software
suppliers, if the cause of the alleged infringement cannot easily be determined.

        Claims of alleged infringement may have a material adverse effect on our business and may discourage potential customers from doing business with us on
acceptable terms, if at all. Defending against claims of infringement may be time-consuming and may result in substantial costs and diversion of resources,
including our management's attention to our business. Furthermore, a party making an infringement claim could secure a judgment that requires us to pay
substantial damages. A judgment could also include an injunction or other court order that could prevent us from selling our software or require that we re-
engineer some or all of our products. Claims of intellectual property infringement also might require us to enter costly royalty or license agreements. We may be
unable to obtain royalty or license agreements on terms acceptable to us or at all. Our business, operating results and financial condition could be harmed
significantly if any of these events occurred, and the price of our common stock could be adversely affected. Furthermore, former employers of our current and
future employees may assert that our employees have improperly disclosed confidential or proprietary information to us. In addition, we have agreed, and may
agree in the future, to indemnify certain of our customers against claims that our software infringes upon the intellectual property rights of others. Although we
carry general liability insurance, our current insurance coverage may not apply to, and likely would not protect us from, liability that may be imposed under any
of the types of claims described above.

If we are not successful in attracting, integrating and retaining highly qualified personnel, we may not be able to successfully implement our business
strategy.

        Our ability to establish and maintain a position of technology leadership in the highly competitive software market depends in large part upon our ability to
attract, integrate and retain highly qualified managerial, sales, technical and accounting personnel. Competition for qualified personnel in the software industry is
intense. We have from time to time in the past experienced, and we expect to continue to experience in the future, difficulty in hiring and retaining highly skilled
employees with appropriate qualifications. Our future success will depend in large part on our ability to attract, integrate and retain a sufficient number of highly
qualified personnel, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so.

Our ability to raise capital in the future may be limited, and our failure to raise capital when needed could prevent us from executing our business plan.

        We expect that our current cash and cash equivalents and cash flows from operations will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for at least the next
twelve months. We may need to obtain additional financing thereafter or earlier, however, if our current plans and projections prove to be inaccurate or our
expected cash flows prove to be insufficient to fund our operations because of lower-than-expected revenue, fewer sales of installment receivable contracts,
unanticipated expenses or other unforeseen difficulties.

        Our ability to obtain additional financing will depend on a number of factors, including market conditions, our operating performance, the quality of our
receivables, and the availability of capital in the credit markets. These factors may make the timing, amount, terms and conditions of any financing unattractive. If
adequate funds are not available, or are not available on acceptable terms, we may have to forego strategic acquisitions or investments, reduce or defer our
development activities or delay our introduction of new products and services.

        Any additional capital raised through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities may dilute the existing stockholder percentage ownership of our
common stock. Furthermore, any new securities
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we issue may have rights, preferences and privileges superior to our common stock. Capital raised through debt financings may require us to make periodic
interest and principal payments and may impose potentially restrictive covenants on the conduct of our business.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our stock price may be adversely affected as more shares of our common stock become available for resale upon, or following, our currently proposed
secondary public offering.

        On July 30, 2010, we filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-1 for a proposed offering of 15,000,000 shares of our common stock by several
funds managed by Advent International Corporation, which we refer to collectively as the Advent-managed funds. The Form S-1 also registered 2,250,000 shares
that would be subject to an over-allotment option to be granted by the Advent-managed funds to the underwriters of the offering. The number of shares offered
could be increased or decreased at the election of the Advent-managed funds. In any event, we would not receive any proceeds from the secondary offering. If the
secondary offering is completed, there may be negative pressure on our stock price as more shares of our common stock become available for resale.

        In addition, other shares of our common stock held by the Advent-managed funds and not included in the offering will be eligible for resale in the public
market, subject to volume limitations pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act, although each of the Advent-managed funds has agreed to certain restrictions
on transfers of our common stock during the 90-day period following the date of the final prospectus for the proposed offering, except with the prior written
consent of the lead managing underwriters of the offering. We previously granted to the the Advent-managed funds rights to require that we register up to all of
those shares under the Securities Act, although the Advent-managed funds will not be able to request a registration in connection with an additional underwritten
public offering for a period of 18 months following completion of the offering. Sales by the Advent-managed funds, or other holders of a large number of our
shares, of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market after the completion of the offering, or the perception that those sales could occur, could
adversely affect the market price of our common stock and could materially impair our future ability to raise capital through offerings of our common stock.
Further, if a large number of shares of our common stock are sold in the public market after they become eligible for sale as a result of the offering, these sales
could reduce the trading price of our common stock.

Regardless of whether our currently proposed secondary public offering is completed, funds managed by Advent International Corporation will own a
substantial portion of our capital stock and may have significant influence over our affairs.

        As of August 16, 2010, the Advent-managed funds collectively owned 29,512,336 shares, or 31.8%, of our outstanding common stock. If the proposed
secondary offering of our common stock is completed pursuant to the registration statement on Form S-1 we filed with the SEC on July 30, 2010, the Advent-
managed funds would continue to own 14,512,336 shares, or 15.6%, of our outstanding common stock, based upon shares outstanding as of August 16, 2010 and
assuming no exercise of the over-allotment option to be granted to the underwriters of the offering. In addition, two of our seven current directors previously were
elected by the Advent-managed funds in their prior capacities as holders of shares of our Series D-1 convertible preferred stock. As a result, the Advent-managed
funds may exercise significant influence over corporate actions requiring stockholder approval, irrespective of how our other stockholders may vote, including:

• any amendment of our charter or bylaws; 

• the approval of some mergers and other significant corporate transactions, including a sale of substantially all of our assets; or
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• the defeat of any non-negotiated takeover attempt that might otherwise benefit the other stockholders.

Our common stock may experience substantial price and volume fluctuations.

        The equity markets have from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations, particularly in the high technology sector, and those
fluctuations often have been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. In addition, factors such our new aspenONE licensing model, our
financial performance, announcements of technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors, and market conditions in the computer software or
hardware industries, may have a significant impact on the market price of our common stock.

        In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a public company's securities, securities class action litigation has often been instituted
against that company. This type of litigation against us could result in substantial liability and costs and divert management's attention and resources.

Our corporate documents and provisions of Delaware law may prevent a change in control or management that stockholders may consider desirable.

        Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, our charter and our by-laws contain provisions that might enable our management to resist a takeover
of our company. These provisions include:

• limitations on the removal of directors; 

• a classified board of directors, so that not all members of the board are elected at one time; 

• advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and nominations; 

• the inability of stockholders to act by written consent or to call special meetings; 

• the ability of the board to make, alter or repeal our by-laws; and 

• the ability of the board to designate the terms of and issue new series of preferred stock without stockholder approval.

        These provisions could:

• have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of our company or a change in our management that stockholders may
consider favorable or beneficial; 

• discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for stockholders to elect directors and take other corporate actions; and 

• limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

Item 1B.    Unresolved Staff Comments. 

        None.
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Item 2.    Properties. 

        Our principal executive offices are located in leased facilities in Burlington, Massachusetts, consisting of approximately 75,000 square feet of office space.
Our lease expires in February 2015. These facilities accommodate our product development, sales, marketing, operations and finance and administrative
activities. Subject to the terms and conditions of the lease, we may extend the term of the lease for two successive terms of five years each at 95% of the then-
current market rate. As of June 30, 2010, under the lease, we had total non-cancelable lease obligations of $9.4 million. We also will pay additional rent for our
proportionate share of operating costs and taxes.

        Prior to September 1, 2007, our principal offices occupied 110,843 square feet of office space in Cambridge, Massachusetts. The lease of this office space
expires on September 30, 2012. As of June 30, 2010, we had multiple agreements, which expire through 2012, to sublease 95,093 square feet of this former office
space. We also lease space for our Houston, Texas facilities. This lease encompasses 76,315 square feet and expires in July 2016. We have an agreement, which
expires in 2016, to sublease approximately 8,000 square feet of this space. In addition to these two facilities, we also lease office space in Shanghai, China;
Reading, England; and other locations.

        We do not own any real property. We believe that our leased facilities are adequate for our anticipated future needs.

Item 3.    Legal Proceedings. 

ATME Arbitration and Litigation

        Prior to October 6, 2009, we had an exclusive reseller relationship covering certain countries in the Middle East with AspenTech Middle East W.L.L., a
Kuwaiti corporation (now known as Advanced Technology Middle East W.L.L.) that we refer to below as ATME. Under the reseller agreement, we had the right
to terminate for, among other things, a material breach in the event of ATME's willful misconduct or fraud. Effective October 6, 2009, we terminated the reseller
relationship for material breach by ATME based on certain actions of ATME.

        On November 2, 2009, ATME commenced an action in the Queen's Bench Division (Commercial Court) of the High Court of Justice (England & Wales)
captioned In The Matter Of An Intended Arbitration Between AspenTech Middle East W.L.L. and Aspen Technology, Inc., 2009 Folio 1436, seeking preliminary
injunctive relief restraining us from taking any steps to impede ATME from serving as our exclusive reseller in the countries covered by the reseller agreement
with ATME. We filed evidence in opposition to that request for relief on November 12, 2009. At a hearing on November 13, 2009, the court dismissed ATME's
application for preliminary injunctive relief. The court sealed an Order to this effect on November 23, 2009, and further ordered that ATME pay our costs of
claim.

        Relatedly, on November 11, 2009, we filed a request for arbitration against ATME in the International Court of Arbitration of the International Chamber of
Commerce, captioned Aspen Technology, Inc. v. AspenTech Middle East W.L.L., Case No. 16732/VRO. Our request for arbitration asserted claims against
ATME seeking a declaration that ATME committed a material breach of our agreement and that our termination of our agreement was lawful, and seeking
damages for ATME's willful misconduct in connection with the reseller relationship. On November 18, 2009, ATME filed its answer to that request for arbitration
and asserted counterclaims against us seeking a declaratory judgment that we unlawfully terminated our agreement with ATME and seeking damages for breach
of contract by reason of our purported unlawful termination of our agreement. Our reply to those counterclaims was filed on December 18, 2009.

        We expect a determination to be made in the second half of fiscal 2011 with respect to the pending arbitration. However, we can provide no assurance as to
the actual timing or outcome of the arbitration. In general, neither party will have the ability to appeal the determination reached.

30



Table of Contents

Regardless of the outcome, the proceedings may result in significant legal expenses and may require significant attention and resources of management, all of
which could result in losses and damages that have a material adverse effect on our business. The reseller agreement with ATME contained a provision whereby
we could be liable for a termination fee if the agreement were terminated other than for material breach. This fee is to be calculated based on a formula contained
in the reseller agreement that we believe was originally developed based on certain assumptions about the future financial performance of ATME, as well as
ATME's actual financial performance. Based on the formula and the financial information provided to us by ATME, which we have not yet verified
independently, a recent calculation based on the formula would result in a termination fee of between $60 million and $77 million. Under the terminated reseller
agreement, no termination fee is owed on termination for material breach. If we are found to have breached the terms of our agreement with ATME, we could be
liable for the termination fee, the amount of which may be greater or less than the number indicated above. If we are found liable, we would incur damages that
could have a material adverse effect on our cash flow and cash position. We intend to pursue our claims against ATME, and to defend the counterclaim by ATME,
vigorously.

        On March 11, 2010, a Kuwaiti entity (known as ATME Group and affiliated with ATME) filed a lawsuit in a Kuwaiti court naming as defendants ATME, us
and a reseller newly appointed by us in Kuwait. In this lawsuit, ATME Group claims that it was an exclusive reseller for ATME in Kuwait and that it therefore is
entitled to damages resulting from purported customer contracts in Kuwait. We intend to defend this action vigorously.

Class Action and Opt-out Claims

        In March 2006, we settled class action litigation, including related derivative claims, arising out of our originally filed consolidated financial statements for
fiscal 2000 through 2004, the accounting for which we restated in March 2005. Certain members of the class (representing 1,457,969 shares of common stock (or
less than 1% of the shares putatively purchased during the class action period)) opted out of the settlement and had the right to bring their own state or federal law
claims against us, referred to as "opt-out" claims. Opt-out claims were filed on behalf of the holders of approximately 1.1 million of such shares. One of these
actions was settled and three were dismissed. The claims in the remaining actions (described below) include claims against us and one or more of our former
officers alleging securities and common law fraud, breach of contract, deceptive practices and/or rescissory damages liability, based on the restated results of one
or more fiscal periods included in our restated consolidated financial statements referenced in the class action.

• Herbert G. and Eunice E. Blecker, et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed in June 2006 in the Business Litigation Session of the
Massachusetts Superior Court for Suffolk County and docketed as Civ. A. No. 06-2357-BLS1, was an opt-out claim asserted by persons who
received 248,411 shares of our common stock in an acquisition. Fact discovery in this action closed in July 2008, and a non-jury trial was
conducted in November 2009. In January 2010, the court issued its order granting judgment in our favor and dismissing the case. In February
2010, the plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal of the judgment. We intend to continue to defend this action vigorously. 

• 380544 Canada, Inc., et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., filed on February 15, 2007 in the federal district court for the Southern District of New
York and docketed as Civ. A. No. 1:07-cv-01204-JFK in that court, is a claim asserted by persons who purchased 566,665 shares of our common
stock in a private placement. Certain motions to dismiss filed by other defendants were resolved on May 5, 2009, and discovery is in process. The
claims in the 380544 Canada action are for damages totaling at least $4.0 million, not including claims for attorneys' fees. We plan to defend the
380544 Canada action vigorously.
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        We can provide no assurance as to the outcome of these cases or the likelihood of the filing of additional opt-out claims, and these claims may result in
judgments against us for significant damages. Regardless of the outcome, such litigation has resulted in the past, and may continue to result in the future, in
significant legal expenses and may require significant attention and resources of management, all of which could result in losses and damages that have a material
adverse effect on our business.

Other Proceedings

        In the ordinary course of business, we are also from time to time involved in lawsuits, claims, investigations, proceedings, and threats of litigation consisting
of intellectual property, commercial and other matters. The results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, and unfavorable resolutions are
possible and could materially affect our results of operations, cash flows or financial position. In addition, regardless of the outcome, litigation could have an
adverse impact on us because of defense costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

        While the outcome of these proceedings and claims identified above cannot be predicted with certainty, there are no other matters, as of June 30, 2010, that,
in the opinion of management, might have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4.    [Removed and Reserved.] 
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PART II 

Item 5.    Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities. 

Market Information

        Our common stock currently trades on The NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol "AZPN." Our common stock was traded on The NASDAQ
Global Select Market (and its predecessors, the NASDAQ National Market and NASDAQ Global Market) from our initial public offering in 1994 through
February 18, 2008, and then was quoted on the over the counter Pink OTC Markets under the symbol "AZPN.PK" until being relisted on The NASDAQ Global
Select Market on February 10, 2010. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices per share of our common stock as
reported by The NASDAQ Global Select Market or the Pink OTC Markets, as applicable:

Holders

        On August 16, 2010, there were 784 holders of record of our common stock. The number of record holders does not include persons who held our common
stock in nominee or "street name" accounts through brokers.

Dividends

        We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain all earnings, if any, to finance the development and
growth of our business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Any future determination relating to our
dividend policy will be made at the discretion of the board of directors and will depend on a number of factors, including our future earnings, capital
requirements, financial condition and future prospects and such other factors as the board of directors may deem relevant. In addition, under the terms of our
credit facility, we may not declare or pay any cash dividends on our common stock without the prior approval of our lender, Silicon Valley Bank.
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  Low  High  
Fiscal 2010        
Quarter ended June 30, 2010  $ 9.52 $ 12.01 
Quarter ended March 31, 2010   8.32  10.59 
Quarter ended December 31, 2009   9.20  10.89 
Quarter ended September 30, 2009   8.55  10.75 

Fiscal 2009        
Quarter ended June 30, 2009  $ 6.00 $ 9.60 
Quarter ended March 31, 2009   5.50  8.25 
Quarter ended December 31, 2008   5.10  13.00 
Quarter ended September 30, 2008   11.45  15.10 
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

        The following table provides information about the securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans as of June 30, 2010:

        Equity compensation plans approved by security holders consist of our 2001 stock option plan, our 2005 stock incentive plan and our 2010 equity incentive
plan.

        The securities remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans approved by our security holders as of June 30, 2010 consisted of:

• 321,425 shares of common stock issuable under our 2001 stock option plan; 

• 1,027,378 shares of common stock issuable under our 2005 stock incentive plan; and 

• 7,000,000 shares of common stock issuable under our 2010 equity incentive plan.

        Each of the options issuable under the 2001 stock option plan has a term of ten years. Options issuable under the 2005 stock incentive plan have a maximum
term of seven years. Options issuable under the 2010 equity incentive plan have a maximum term of ten years.
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  Equity Compensation Plan Information  
  (A)  (B)  (C)  

Plan category  

Number of securities to
be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,

warrants and rights  

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights  

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance
under equity compensation
plans (excluding securities

reflected in column (A))  
Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders   7,538,773 $ 7.34  8,348,803 
Equity compensation plans not approved by

security holders   —  —  — 
        

Total   7,538,773 $ 7.34  8,348,803 
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Stockholder Return Comparison

        The information included in this section is not deemed to be "soliciting material" or to be "filed" with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the
Securities Exchange Act or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act, and will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing
under the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act, except to the extent we specifically incorporate it by reference into such a filing.

        The graph below compares the total stockholder return on our common stock for the last five fiscal years with the total return on the NASDAQ Composite
Index and the NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing Index for the same period, in each case assuming the investment of $100 on June 30, 2005 through
June 30, 2010 and the reinvestment of all dividends.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Aspen Technology, Inc., the NASDAQ Composite Index

and the NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing Index 

* $100 invested on 6/30/05 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending June 30.

        The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.
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  June 30,  
  2005  2006  2007  2008  2009  2010  
Aspen Technology, Inc.  $ 100.00 $ 252.31 $ 269.23 $ 255.77 $ 164.04 $ 209.42 
NASDAQ Composite   100.00  107.08  130.99  114.02  90.79  105.54 
NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing   100.00  103.51  129.01  120.59  104.61  112.36 
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Item 6.    Selected Financial Data. 

        The following table presents selected consolidated financial and other data for Aspen Technology, Inc. The consolidated statement of operations data set
forth below for fiscal 2010, 2009, and 2008, and the consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30, 2010, and 2009, are derived from our consolidated financial
statements included beginning on page F-1 of this Form 10-K. The consolidated statement of operations data for fiscal 2007 and 2006 and the consolidated
balance sheet data as of June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 are derived from our consolidated financial statements that are not included in this Form 10-K. The data
presented below should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes beginning on page F-1 and "Item 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  2007  2006  
  (In thousands, except per share data)  
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data                 
Revenue:                 
 Subscription  $ 11,071 $ — $ — $ — $ — 
 Software   42,920  179,591  168,404  199,761  153,730 
            

  Total subscription and software(1)   53,991  179,591  168,404  199,761  153,730 
 Services and other   112,353  131,989  143,209  141,268  140,686 
            

  Total revenue   166,344  311,580  311,613  341,029  294,416 
            

Cost of revenue:                 
 Subscription and software   6,437  12,409  15,916  21,134  25,364 
 Services and other   59,673  63,411  69,077  72,426  72,690 
            

  Total cost of revenue   66,110  75,820  84,993  93,560  98,054 
            

  Gross profit   100,234  235,760  226,620  247,469  196,362 
            

Operating expenses:                 
 Selling and marketing(2)   97,002  84,126  94,965  88,694  79,283 
 Research and development(2)   48,228  46,375  49,899  47,396  49,544 
 General and administrative(2)   63,246  58,256  54,496  51,342  44,708 
 Restructuring charges   1,128  2,446  8,623  4,634  3,993 
 Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets   —  623  —  —  — 
            

  Total operating expenses   209,604  191,826  207,983  192,066  177,528 
            

 (Loss) income from operations   (109,370)  43,934  18,637  55,403  18,834 
            

 Interest income   19,324  22,698  23,784  21,909  19,978 
 Interest expense   (8,455)  (10,516)  (17,783)  (18,613)  (19,532)
 Other (expense) income, net   (2,407)  (1,824)  3,386  (734)  (2,874)
            

  (Loss) income before income taxes   (100,908)  54,292  28,024  57,965  16,406 
 Provision for income taxes   (6,537)  (1,368)  (3,078)  (12,447)  (9,941)
            

  Net (loss) income   (107,445)  52,924  24,946  45,518  6,465 
 Accretion of preferred stock discount and dividends   —  —  —  (7,290)  (15,383)
            

  Net (loss) income  $ (107,445) $ 52,924 $ 24,946 $ 38,228 $ (8,918)
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(Loss) earnings per common share:                 
 Basic  $ (1.18) $ 0.59 $ 0.28 $ 0.54 $ (0.20)
 Diluted  $ (1.18) $ 0.57 $ 0.27 $ 0.50 $ (0.20)
Weighted average shares outstanding:                 
 Basic   91,247  90,053  89,640  70,879  44,627 
 Diluted   91,247  92,578  94,092  91,869  44,627 

(1) In July 2009 we introduced our aspenONE licensing model under which license revenue is recognized over the term of a license contract. We previously recognized a substantial
majority of our license revenue upfront, upon shipment of software. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis and Results of Operations—Transition to New aspenONE
Licensing Model." 

(2) Certain costs previously recorded as selling and marketing expense in fiscal 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006 have been reclassified to research and development expense and general
and administrative expense, as described in note 2(y) to the consolidated financial statements beginning on page F-1.
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        Following the introduction of our new aspenONE licensing model, management focuses on certain metrics, including the key metrics set forth below, to
assist in operating and assessing our business. We believe these metrics are useful to investors in evaluating our operating performance following the introduction
of our new licensing model. None of these metrics should be considered as an alternative to any measure of financial performance calculated in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles or GAAP, including net cash provided by operating activities, which is the GAAP financial measure most directly
comparable to free cash flow. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Key Business Metrics."

(1) Software maintenance and support, or SMS, was not included as part of our term license arrangements prior to fiscal 2010, and no SMS was included in estimated TCV as of June 30, 2009. For
comparability purposes, we estimated "license-only" TCV growth for fiscal 2010 by removing the SMS portion of TCV as of June 30, 2010. On this comparable "license-only" basis, we estimate that
TCV grew by approximately 10% during fiscal 2010. Overall, we estimate that TCV, with SMS included as of June 30, 2010, increased by approximately 17% during fiscal 2010.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  2007  2006  
  (In thousands)  
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data                 
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 124,945 $ 122,213 $ 134,048 $ 132,267 $ 86,272 
Working capital   94,466  97,914  116,307  53,019  10,440 
Accounts receivable, net   31,738  49,882  86,870  47,200  48,332 
Installments receivable, net   128,598  177,921  134,290  42,827  47,410 
Collateralized receivables, net   51,430  96,366  135,349  245,076  211,262 
Total deferred revenue   87,279  78,871  106,905  67,106  60,141 
Total secured borrowings   76,135  112,096  147,207  206,150  182,404 
Redeemable convertible preferred stock   —  —  —  —  125,475 
Total stockholders' equity (deficit)   140,970  229,410  172,813  137,206  (22,602)

  June 30,  
  2010  2009  
  (In billions)  
Total Term Contract Value Data(1)        
Total term contract value (TCV)  $ 1.2 $ 1.0 

    Three Months Ended  

  

Year ended
June 30,

2010  
June 30,

2010  
March 31,

2010  
December 31,

2009  
September 30,

2009  
  (In thousands)  
Bookings Data                 
Bookings  $ 365,948 $ 137,750 $ 93,916 $ 95,255 $ 39,027 

  
June 30,

2010  
March 31,

2010  
December 31,

2009  
September 30,

2009  
June 30,

2009  
  (In thousands)  
Future Cash Collections and Billings Backlog Data                 
Billings backlog  $ 389,354 $ 270,293 $ 206,499 $ 128,252 $ 100,499 
Accounts receivable, net   31,738  28,612  35,507  36,568  49,882 
Installments receivable, undiscounted (non-GAAP)(1)   147,315  167,643  180,671  197,053  208,204 
Collateralized receivables, undiscounted (non-GAAP)(1)   56,461  70,068  88,722  103,072  107,750 
            

 Future cash collections  $ 624,868 $ 536,616 $ 511,399 $ 464,945 $ 466,335 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(1) Excludes unamortized discount. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Key Business Metrics—Future Cash
Collections and Billings Backlog."
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For these purposes:

• Total term contract value, or TCV, is an estimate of the renewal value, as of a specific date, of our active portfolio of term license agreements.
TCV is calculated by multiplying the terminal annual payment for each active term license agreement by the original length of the existing license
term, and then aggregating this amount for all active term license agreements. TCV includes the value of SMS for license agreements under our
new aspenONE licensing model, in which SMS is committed for the entire license term. TCV does not include any amounts for perpetual licenses,
professional services, training or standalone renewal SMS. 

• Bookings represent the amount of contractually committed subscription and software fees, including any bundled software maintenance and
support or SMS. Bookings do not include (a) the amount of fees for professional services, training and standalone renewal SMS or (b) the amount
of subscription and software fees remaining under existing license agreements that are replaced prior to the scheduled expiration date. 

• Billings backlog represents the aggregate value of uninvoiced bookings from prior and current periods. Billings backlog is not reflected on our
consolidated balance sheets.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
  (In thousands)  
Adjusted Total Costs Data           
Total cost of revenue  $ 66,110 $ 75,820 $ 84,993 
Total operating expenses   209,604  191,826  207,983 
        

Total expenses   275,714  267,646  292,976 
Less:           
 Stock-based compensation   (15,260)  (4,670)  (10,600)
        

Adjusted total costs (non-GAAP)  $ 260,454 $ 262,976 $ 282,376 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
  (In thousands)  
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and Free Cash Flow Data           
Net cash provided by operating activities  $ 38,622 $ 33,032 $ 71,464 
Purchase of property, equipment and leasehold improvements   (2,652)  (2,972)  (9,424)
Capitalized computer software development costs   (699)  (2,382)  (780)
        

 Free cash flow (non-GAAP)  $ 35,271 $ 27,678 $ 61,260 
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Item 7.    Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. 

        You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes beginning on page F-1. In addition to
historical information, this discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should read "Item 1A. Risk Factors" for a
discussion of important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from our expectations.

        Our fiscal year ends on June 30, and references to a specific fiscal year are the twelve months ended June 30 of such year (for example, "fiscal 2010" refers
to the year ended June 30, 2010).

Business Overview

        We are a leading global provider of mission-critical process optimization software solutions, which are designed to manage and optimize plant and process
design, operational performance, and supply chain planning. Our aspenONE software and related services have been developed specifically for companies in the
process industries. Customers use our solutions to improve their competitiveness and profitability by increasing throughput and productivity, reducing operating
costs, enhancing capital efficiency, and decreasing working capital requirements.

        We have more than 1,500 customers globally. Our customers include manufacturers in process industries such as energy, chemicals, pharmaceuticals,
consumer packaged goods, power, metals and mining, pulp and paper, and biofuels, as well as engineering and construction firms that help design process
manufacturing plants. As of June 30, 2010, our installed base included 19 of the 20 largest petroleum companies, all of the 20 largest chemical companies, and 15
of the 20 largest pharmaceutical companies. Customers outside the United States accounted for a majority of our total revenue in each of fiscal 2010, 2009 and
2008, and no single customer represented 10% or more of our total revenue in fiscal 2010, 2009 or 2008.

Transition to New aspenONE Licensing Model

        Prior to fiscal 2010, we offered term or perpetual licenses to specific aspenONE products or specifically defined sets of aspenONE products, which we refer
to as point products. The majority of our license revenue was recognized under an "upfront revenue model," in which the net present value of the aggregate
license fees was recognized as revenue upon shipment of the point products. We typically invoiced customers annually and recorded the net present value of
uninvoiced payments as installments receivable. Customers typically received one year of SMS bundled with their license agreements and then could elect to
renew SMS annually. Revenue from SMS was recognized ratably over the period during which the SMS was delivered.

        On July 1, 2009, we began offering our aspenONE software under a new term licensing model, under which a customer can access all products within a
licensed suite (aspenONE Engineering or aspenONE Manufacturing and Supply Chain). During the license term, a customer is entitled to receive SMS as well as
any software products and upgrades introduced into the licensed suite. Revenue is recognized over the term of a license agreement on a subscription basis. We
typically issue invoices annually, and we record each invoiced payment as deferred revenue and then recognize revenue from that payment over the applicable
period. We also continue to offer our customers the ability to license point products, which in July 2009, we began licensing with SMS bundled for the entire
term. Revenue is recognized on these arrangements over the contract term, as payments become due. Uninvoiced payments are not recorded on our consolidated
balance sheet.

        Our new aspenONE licensing model has not changed the method or timing of our customer billing or cash collections. Consequently, we do not expect any
material change to net cash provided by
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operating activities as a result of the transition to our new licensing model. The principal accounting implications of the change in our licensing model are as
follows:

• The majority of our license revenue is no longer recognized on an upfront basis. As the result of the transition to our new aspenONE licensing
model, our license revenue for fiscal 2010 was significantly less than the level achieved in the preceding fiscal years. We expect that our license
revenue will increase as customers renew their licensing arrangements under our new licensing model. We do not expect to recognize levels of
revenue comparable to prior fiscal years unless and until a significant majority of our existing license agreements have been renewed under our
new licensing model. Because the timing of our incurrence of operating costs has not changed, the lower levels of revenue expected over the next
few years will result in significant operating and net losses. 

• The amount of our installments receivable will decrease over time, as license agreements executed under our upfront revenue model reach the end
of their terms. 

• The amount of our deferred revenue will increase over time, as installments for license transactions executed under our new licensing model are
deferred and recognized on a subscription basis. We will not, however, realize a significant increase in deferred revenue until a substantial portion
of the license agreements previously executed under our upfront revenue model has been renewed under our new licensing model.

        For additional information about the recognition of revenue under the upfront revenue model and our new aspenONE licensing model, see "—Revenue."
Because of the accounting implications of our new aspenONE licensing model, we believe that, for the next several years, a number of performance indicators
based on U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, will be of limited value in assessing our performance, growth and financial condition.
Accordingly, we are focusing on a number of other business metrics, including those described under "—Key Business Metrics."

Revenue

        We generate revenue primarily from the following sources:

• Software licenses.  We provide integrated process optimization software solutions designed specifically for the process industries. We license our
software products on a term or perpetual basis, and we offer extended payment options for our term license agreements that generally require
annual payments. 

• SMS.  Our SMS business consists primarily of providing customer technical support and access to software fixes and upgrades. We provide
customer technical support services throughout the world by our three global call centers as well as via email and through our support website. 

• Professional services.  We offer professional services that include implementing and integrating our software applications. Customers who use our
professional services typically engage us to provide those services over periods of up to 24 months. We charge customers for professional services
on a time-and-materials or fixed-price basis.

        Before we can recognize revenue, the following four basic criteria generally must be met:

• Persuasive evidence of an arrangement—As evidence of the existence of an arrangement, we use a contract signed by the customer for software
licenses and SMS and we use a signed contract and a statement of work for professional services. 

• Delivery of product—Software and the corresponding access keys are generally delivered to customers via disk media with standard shipping
terms of free carrier, our warehouse. Our software license agreements do not contain conditions for acceptance.
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• Fee is fixed or determinable—We assess whether a fee is fixed or determinable at the outset of the arrangement. In addition, we assess whether
contract modifications to an existing term arrangement constitute a concession. Our software license agreements do not include a right of return or
exchange. 

• Collection of fee is probable—We assess the probability of collecting from each customer at the outset of the arrangement based on a number of
factors, including the customer's payment history, its current creditworthiness, economic conditions in the customer's industry and geographic
location, and general economic conditions. If in our judgment collection of a fee is not probable, revenue is recognized as cash is collected,
provided all other conditions for revenue recognition have been met.

        We have established vendor-specific objective evidence, or VSOE, of fair value for SMS and professional services, but not for our software products. Our
VSOE determination is based upon the price charged to similarly situated customers when the elements are sold separately. We allocate the arrangement
consideration among the elements included in our multi-element arrangements using the residual method. Under the residual method, the VSOE of the
undelivered elements is deferred and the remaining portion of the arrangement fee for perpetual and term licenses is recognized as revenue upon delivery of the
software, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria are met. If VSOE does not exist for an undelivered element in an arrangement, revenue is deferred until
such evidence does exist for the undelivered elements, or until all elements are delivered, whichever is earlier.

Software License Revenue

Upfront Revenue Model

        Prior to fiscal 2010, we generally licensed point products pursuant to term or perpetual license agreements with contractual provisions intended to result in
the "upfront" recognition of license revenue upon delivery of the point products, regardless of whether payment was made in period installments or at the outset
of the arrangement. Under our upfront revenue model, we typically were able to demonstrate that the license fees were fixed or determinable for all arrangements,
including those for term licenses containing extended payment terms, and we had an established history of collecting under the terms of these agreements without
providing concessions to customers. A portion of the license fees generally was recorded as deferred revenue due to the inclusion of an undelivered element,
SMS, and the amount of revenue allocated to SMS was based on the VSOE of fair value for SMS using the residual method. The net present value of the residual
license fees typically was recognized upon delivery of the software.

        License revenue recognized under the upfront revenue model upon the delivery of the licensed software (that is, both term and perpetual license agreements)
typically is reported as software revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

New aspenONE Licensing Model

        In July 2009, we began offering our new aspenONE licensing model, which provides customers with access to all products within the aspenONE suite or
suites they license rather than to only those point products the customers license. During the term of a license agreement, a customer is entitled to receive SMS as
well as any software products and upgrades that may be introduced into the licensed suite. For purposes of recognizing revenue, the license fees under these
agreements are not fixed or determinable, because the agreements provide rights to future unspecified software products for no additional fee and therefore the
economics of the arrangements are not comparable to our historical transactions with customers under the upfront revenue model. As a result, the amount of
revenue recognized is limited to the amount of customer payments currently due, which generally results in
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license revenue being recognized over the term of the agreement on a subscription basis, beginning when the first payment is due, which typically is 30 days after
execution of the agreement.

        We also offer our customers the ability to license point products. In July 2009 we began licensing point products on a term basis with SMS included for the
full license term. Under these arrangements, license revenue cannot be recognized under the upfront revenue model, as the aggregate fees are not considered fixed
or determinable because the agreements include SMS for the full term of the license and therefore the economics of the arrangements are not comparable to our
historical transactions with customers under the upfront revenue model. License revenue for these arrangements generally will be recognized as payments become
due over the term of the agreement.

        We generally do not intend to enter into new or renewal term contracts that will qualify for revenue recognition upfront, upon delivery of the licensed
software. We may, however, do so on a limited basis, as follows:

• The incremental revenue associated with amendments to existing term license agreements that was recognized under the upfront revenue model
will continue to be accounted for on an upfront basis, provided all other revenue recognition requirements have been met. As customers
increasingly transition to our new aspenONE licensing model, we expect that there will come a time at which we will be unable to support VSOE
of fair value of SMS in our new point product arrangements based on our legacy term license SMS renewals and we therefore will be required to
recognize all revenue related to the license component on our point product arrangements ratably, on a subscription basis. 

• We expect that occasionally a customer will prefer to license point products under terms providing for payment in full at the outset of the
arrangement. In this case, all of the license revenue generally will be recognized upon delivery of the software products using the residual method.

• We also anticipate that occasionally a customer may wish to license point products on a perpetual basis. If we agree to enter into a perpetual
license agreement, the customer will not be entitled to receive software products that may be introduced and will receive SMS for only one year,
subject to annual renewal at the election of the customer. Accordingly, we expect that the license fees for perpetual license agreements typically
will continue to be recognized upon delivery of the software products using the residual method.

We do not anticipate that any of the foregoing arrangements will generate a significant portion of our license revenue in the future.

        License and SMS revenue for arrangements sold under our new aspenONE licensing model are combined and presented together as subscription revenue in
the consolidated statements of operations. License revenue from point product licenses with SMS bundled for the entire license term is reported as software
revenue in the consolidated statements of operations. The revenue related to the SMS component of point product licenses for which we have established VSOE
is reported in services and other revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

SMS

Upfront Revenue Model

        Prior to fiscal 2010, SMS typically was bundled with the license agreement for the initial year of the license term and then could be renewed, typically on an
annual basis, at the election of the customer. The fair value of SMS was deferred and subsequently recognized over the term of the SMS arrangement.
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        Revenue recognized with respect to SMS sold under the upfront model is reported as services and other revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

New aspenONE Licensing Model

        Since July 2009, license agreements executed under our new aspenONE licensing model or for point products include SMS bundled for the entire license
term. The SMS revenue is recognized over the license term.

        For arrangements sold under the new aspenONE licensing model, SMS revenue is combined with license revenue and reported as subscription revenue in the
consolidated statements of operations. The revenue related to the SMS component of point product licenses for which we have established VSOE is reported in
services and other revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

Professional Services

        We provide professional services on a time-and-materials or fixed-price basis. We recognize professional services fees for time-and-materials contracts based
upon hours worked and contractually agreed-upon hourly rates. We recognize revenue from fixed-price engagements using the proportional performance method,
based on the ratio of costs incurred, substantially all of which are labor-related, to the total estimated project costs. Project costs are based on standard rates,
which vary by the consultant's professional level, plus all direct expenses incurred to complete the engagement that are not reimbursed by the client. All project
costs are expensed as incurred. Reimbursable amounts received from customers for out-of-pocket expenses are recorded as revenue.

Upfront Revenue Model

        We generally recognize revenue from professional services as the services are performed, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met.
Under the upfront model, professional services arrangements sold as a single arrangement with, or in contemplation of, a new license agreement were generally
recognized as revenue as the services were performed.

        Revenue recognized with respect to professional services is reported as services and other revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

New aspenONE Licensing Model

        Our practices and revenue recognition policies for professional services generally have not changed following our transition to our new aspenONE licensing
model. In those circumstances in which committed professional services arrangements are sold as a single arrangement with, or in contemplation of, a new license
agreement, revenue is deferred and recognized on a ratable basis over the license term.

        Revenue recognized with respect to professional services is reported as services and other revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

Key Components of Operations

    Revenue

        Subscription Revenue.    Subscription revenue relates to the licensing of our products under our new aspenONE licensing model, where SMS is included for
the entire term of the arrangement and the customer receives the right to unspecified future software products that may be introduced during the term of the
arrangement for no additional fee. License and SMS revenue for arrangements sold under
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our new aspenONE licensing model are combined and presented together as subscription revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

        Software Revenue.    Software revenue consists of all license transactions that do not contain rights to future unspecified software products for no additional
fee. Specifically, software revenue includes:

• license revenue recognized under the upfront revenue model upon the delivery of the licensed software (that is, both perpetual and term license
agreements); 

• license revenue recognized over the term of the license agreements for term agreements, including point product licenses with SMS bundled for
the entire license term, but excluding license revenue from license agreements executed under our new aspenONE licensing model, which is
recorded as subscription revenue; and 

• other license revenue derived from transactions that are being recognized over time as the result of not previously meeting one or more of the
requirements for recognition under the upfront revenue model.

        Services and Other Revenue.    Our services and other revenue consists primarily of revenue related to professional services, SMS (other than SMS bundled
with license agreements executed under our new aspenONE licensing model, which is recorded as subscription revenue) and training. The amount and timing of
this revenue depend on a number of factors, including:

• the number, value and rate per hour of service transactions booked during the current and preceding periods; 

• the number and availability of service resources actively engaged on billable projects; 

• the timing of milestone acceptance for engagements contractually requiring customer sign-off; 

• the timing of negotiating and signing maintenance renewals; 

• the timing of collection of cash payments when collectability is uncertain; and 

• the size of the installed base of license contracts.

    Cost of Revenue

        Cost of Subscription and Software.    The cost of subscription and software revenue consists of royalties, amortization of capitalized software costs,
distributor fees, the costs of providing SMS related to our new aspenONE licensing model and costs related to delivery of software.

        Cost of Services and Other.    Our cost of services and other revenue consists primarily of personnel-related and external consultant costs associated with
providing professional services, SMS on arrangements not licensed on a subscription basis and training to customers. The costs of providing SMS for our new
aspenONE licensing model are included in cost of subscription and software.

    Operating Expenses

        Selling and Marketing Expense.    Selling expenses consist primarily of the personnel and travel expenses related to the effort expended to license our
products and services to current and potential customers, as well as for overall management of customer relationships. Marketing expenses include expenses
needed to promote our company and our products and to acquire market research and measure customer opinions to help us better understand our customers and
their business needs.

        Research and Development Expense.    Research and development expenses primarily consist of personnel and external consultant expenses related to the
creation of new products and to enhancements and engineering changes to existing products.
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        General and Adminstrative Expense.    General and administrative expenses include the costs of corporate and support functions, such as executive
leadership and administration groups, finance, legal, human resources and corporate communications, and other costs such as outside professional and consultant
fees and provision for bad debts.

        Restructuring Charges.    Restructuring charges result from the closure or consolidation of our facilities, or from qualifying reductions in headcount.

    Other Income and Expenses

        Interest Income.    Interest income is recorded for the accretion of interest on the installment payments of our term software license contracts when revenue is
recognized upfront at net present value, and to a lesser extent from the investment of cash balances in short-term instruments.

        Interest Expense.    Interest expense consists of charges primarily related to our secured borrowings. Secured borrowings are derived from our borrowing
arrangements with unrelated financial institutions.

        Other Income (Expense), Net.    Other income (expense), net is comprised primarily of foreign currency exchange gains (losses) generated from the
settlement and remeasurement of transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of our operating units. We may enter into foreign
currency forward contracts to attempt to minimize the adverse impact related to unfavorable exchange rate movements, although we have not done so since fiscal
2008. Our foreign currency forward contracts have not been designated as hedging instruments and, therefore, do not qualify for fair value or cash flow hedge
treatment under the criteria of Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. Therefore, any unrealized gains and losses on
the foreign currency forward contracts, as well as the underlying transactions we are attempting to shield from exchange rate movements, are recognized as a
component of other income (expense), net.

        Provision for Income Taxes.    Provision for income taxes is comprised of the taxes currently payable as a result of domestic and foreign operations and the
net tax effects of book to tax timing differences. We record interest and penalties related to income tax matters as income tax expense. We expect the amount of
income tax expense, if any, to vary each reporting period depending upon fluctuations in our taxable income and our availability of tax benefits from net loss
carryforwards.

Key Business Metrics

    Background

        With the adoption of our new aspenONE licensing model, our revenue for fiscal 2010 was significantly less than in the preceding fiscal years. We expect that
our revenue will increase as customers renew their licensing arrangements under our new licensing model. We do not expect to recognize levels of revenue
comparable to prior fiscal years unless and until a significant majority of our existing license agreements have been renewed under our new licensing model. As a
result, we believe that, for the next few years, a number of our performance indicators based on U.S. generally accepted accounting principles or GAAP, including
revenue, gross profit, operating income (loss) and net income (loss), will be of limited value in assessing our performance, growth and financial condition.
Accordingly, we instead are focusing on certain non-GAAP and other business metrics, including the key metrics set forth below, to track our business
performance. None of these metrics should be considered as an alternative to any measure of financial performance calculated in accordance with GAAP.

        To supplement our statements of cash flows presented on a GAAP basis, we use the non-GAAP measure of free cash flow to analyze cash flows generated
from our operations. Management believes that this financial measure is useful to investors because it permits investors to view our performance
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using the same tools that management uses to gauge progress in achieving our goals. We believe this measure is also useful to investors because it is an indication
of cash flow that may be available to fund further investments in future growth initiatives and it is also useful as the basis for comparing our performance with
that of our competitors. To supplement our presentation of total cost of revenue and total operating costs presented on a GAAP basis, we use a non-GAAP
measure of adjusted total costs, which excludes certain non-cash and non-recurring expenses. Management believes that this financial measure is useful to
investors because it demonstrates our commitment to cost containment. The presentation of these non-GAAP measures is not meant to be considered in isolation
or as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity or as an alternative to total cost of revenue and total operating costs as a
measure of our total costs.

    Total Term Contract Value

        Total term contract value, or TCV, is an estimate of the renewal value, as of a specific date, of our active portfolio of term license agreements. TCV is
calculated by multiplying the terminal annual payment for each active term license agreement by the original length of the existing license term, and then
aggregating this amount for all active term license agreements. Accordingly, TCV represents the full renewal value of all of our term license agreements under the
hypothetical assumption that all of those agreements are simultaneously renewed for the identical license terms and at the same terminal annual payment amounts
as the terminal payment of the original contract.

        TCV includes the value of SMS for any multi-year license agreements for which SMS is committed for the entire license term. TCV does not include any
amounts for perpetual licenses, professional services, training or standalone renewal SMS. TCV is calculated using constant currency assumptions for agreements
denominated in currencies other than U.S. dollars in order to remove the impact of currency fluctuations between comparison dates.

        We believe TCV is a useful metric for analyzing our business performance, particularly while we are transitioning to our new aspenONE licensing model
and revenue comparisons between fiscal periods do not reflect the actual growth rate of our business. Comparing TCV for different dates provides insight into the
growth and retention rate of our business during the period between those dates. TCV increases as the result of:

• new term license agreements with new or existing customers; 

• renewals or modifications of existing license agreements that result in higher license fees due to price escalation or an increase in the number of
tokens or products licensed; and 

• renewals of existing license agreements that increase the length of the license term.

The renewal of an existing license agreement will not increase TCV unless the renewal results in higher license fees or a longer license term. TCV is adversely
affected by customer non-renewals and by renewals that result in lower license fees or a shorter license term. Our standard license term historically has been
between five and six years, and we do not expect this standard term to change in the future. Many of our contracts have escalating annual payments throughout
the term of the arrangement. By calculating TCV based on the terminal year annual payment, we are typically using the highest annual fee from the existing
arrangement to calculate the hypothetical renewal value of our portfolio of term arrangements.

        We estimate that TCV was $1.2 billion as of June 30, 2010. Our portfolio of active license agreements as of June 30, 2010 reflected a mix of (a) license
agreements that included SMS for the entire license term and (b) legacy license agreements that did not include SMS. We estimate that TCV was $1.0 billion as
of June 30, 2009. SMS was not included as part of our term license arrangements prior to fiscal 2010, and no SMS was included in estimated TCV as of June 30,
2009. For comparability purposes, we estimated "license-only" TCV growth for fiscal 2010 by removing the SMS portion of
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TCV as of June 30, 2010, using our established VSOE rate of fair value for SMS. On this comparable "license-only" basis, we estimate that TCV grew by
approximately 10% during fiscal 2010, principally as the result of an increase in the number of tokens or products licensed. Overall, we estimate that TCV, with
SMS included as of June 30, 2010, increased by approximately 17% during fiscal 2010.

    Bookings

        Bookings represent the amount of contractually committed subscription and software fees, including any bundled SMS. Bookings do not include (a) the
amount of fees for professional services, training or standalone renewal SMS or (b) the amount of subscription and software fees remaining under pre-existing
license agreements that were replaced prior to the scheduled expiration date.

        Bookings are a measure of the business closed during a period. The contractual arrangements that contribute to bookings represent binding payment
commitments by customers over periods that typically range from five to six years, although individual customer commitments can be for longer or shorter
periods. The amount of bookings in a period is affected by the volume, duration and value of contracts renewed during that period. The timing and value of
contract renewals can have a significant impact on quarter-over-quarter and year-over-year comparisons of bookings. Therefore, short-term bookings trends may
not be indicative of the growth of the business. Accordingly, we also focus on bookings' contribution to growth in TCV and to growth in billings backlog and
future cash collections.

        The following table presents our bookings for the four quarters of fiscal 2010, following the introduction of our new aspenONE licensing model:

        We have experienced favorable customer adoption of our new aspenONE licensing model since its introduction. Our bookings historically have been
stronger in our second and fourth fiscal quarters and lowest in our first fiscal quarter, although there can be significant variation in this pattern. During the first
quarter of fiscal 2010, we experienced lower-than-normal bookings due to the sales cycle start-up time associated with the introduction of our new licensing
model. As customers became more familiar with our new licensing model and our sales team had additional time to educate customers and complete licensing
transactions, we experienced significantly higher bookings in the second half of fiscal 2010.

        Fiscal 2010 bookings benefited principally from (a) early renewals by customers that elected to adopt our new aspenONE licensing model prior to the
expiration of their existing license agreements and (b) growth driven by customers increasing the number of tokens or products licensed, which accounted for a
significant portion of the growth in TCV during fiscal 2010 (as described above under "—Total Term Contract Value").

    Future Cash Collections and Billings Backlog

        Future cash collections is the sum of billings backlog, accounts receivable, undiscounted installments receivable and undiscounted collateralized receivables.
Billings backlog represents the aggregate value of uninvoiced bookings from prior and current periods.

        Prior to the introduction of our new aspenONE licensing model, the majority of bookings was recognized as revenue in the period booked and reflected on
our balance sheet as installments receivable, or if sold, as collateralized receivables. Installments receivable and collateralized receivables were discounted to net
present value at prevailing market rates at the time of the transaction. Amounts
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 Three months ended

 
 

 

Year
ended

June 30,
2010

 

  
June 30,

2010  
March 31,

2010  
December 31,

2009  
September 30,

2009  
  (In thousands)  
Bookings  $ 365,948 $ 137,750 $ 93,916 $ 95,255 $ 39,027 
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collected for collateralized receivables are applied to pay the related secured borrowings and are not available for any other expenditures.

        Under our new aspenONE licensing model, extended contractual payments are not considered fixed or determinable and, as a result, are not included in
installments receivable or collateralized receivables. These future payments are included in billings backlog, which is not reflected on our consolidated balance
sheets. We believe future cash collections is a useful metric because it provides insight into the cash generation capability of our business. Under the upfront
revenue model, we did not previously monitor billings backlog or future cash collections since we believe that accounts receivable, installments receivable,
collateralized receivables and certain other measures were appropriate indicators of estimated cash generation.

        Because a substantial majority of our future bookings will reflect arrangements under our new aspenONE licensing model, we expect billings backlog to
grow over time and expect installments receivable and collateralized receivables to decline. When our transition to the new aspenONE licensing model is
complete, the only sources of cash excluded from future cash collections will be amounts attributable to professional services, training and any remaining
standalone SMS renewals.

        The following table provides our future cash collections as of the dates presented:

        The growth in billings backlog and future cash collections in fiscal 2010 reflected our customers' adoption of our new aspenONE licensing model. We expect
that billings backlog and future cash collections will continue to grow steadily as we convert and renew existing customers to multi-year contracts, which now
include SMS for the full term of the arrangement. In addition, we are actively engaged in transitioning customers from perpetual license arrangements to our new
licensing model. Prior to fiscal 2008, we licensed our aspenONE Manufacturing and Supply Chain suite primarily on a perpetual basis, and as we convert these
customers to our new licensing model, their licensing fees and SMS will become part of billings backlog and future cash collections.

        Installments and collateralized receivables are shown at net present value on our consolidated balance sheets. Future cash collections excludes the
unamortized discount on installment and collateralized receivables. Amounts collected for collateralized receivables are applied to pay the related secured
borrowings and are not available for any other expenditures. We are providing the following reconciliation for the periods presented to reconcile to undiscounted
installment and
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June 30,

2010  
March 31,

2010  
December 31,

2009  
September 30,

2009  
June 30,

2009  
  (In thousands)  
Billings backlog  $ 389,354 $ 270,293 $ 206,499 $ 128,252 $ 100,499 
Accounts receivable, net   31,738  28,612  35,507  36,568  49,882 
Installments receivable, undiscounted (non-GAAP) (1)   147,315  167,643  180,671  197,053  208,204 
Collateralized receivables, undiscounted (non-GAAP)

(1)   56,461  70,068  88,722  103,072  107,750 
            

 Future cash collections  $ 624,868 $ 536,616 $ 511,399 $ 464,945 $ 466,335 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(1) Excludes unamortized discount.
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collateralized receivables, as included in our future cash collections metric, with GAAP installment receivables, net and GAAP collateralized receivables, net:

    Adjusted Total Costs

        The following table presents our total cost of revenue and total operating expenses, as adjusted for stock-based compensation expense, for the indicated
periods:

        In fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, we incurred significant expenses in conjunction with our efforts to become current in our SEC filings. Our external financial
consultant and audit expenses totaled $16.6 million in fiscal 2010, $24.7 million in fiscal 2009, and $14.3 million in fiscal 2008. We significantly reduced our
external financial consultant and audit expenses in the latter portion of fiscal 2010. We expect to maintain this lower level of financial consultant and audit
expense into fiscal 2011. In addition, we expect the transition to our new aspenONE licensing model will provide us with a significant opportunity to standardize
and further improve our sales and administrative processes. Overall, we expect costs to remain relatively flat for fiscal 2011.

    Free Cash Flow

        Free cash flow is calculated as net cash provided by operating activities less the sum of (a) purchase of property, equipment, and leasehold improvements
and (b) capitalized computer software development costs.

        Customer collections and, consequently, cash flow from operating activities and free cash flow are primarily driven by license and services billings, rather
than recognized revenue. As a result, the transition to our new aspenONE licensing model will not have an adverse impact on cash receipts. Until existing license
contracts are renewed and license-related revenue returns to prior year levels, we believe free cash flow is a more relevant measure of our financial performance
than income statement profitability measures such as total revenue, gross profit, operating profit and net income. Additionally, we also believe that free cash flow
is often used by security analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of software companies.
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June 30,

2010  
March 31,

2010  
December 31,

2009  
September 30,

2009  
June 30,

2009  
  (In thousands)  
Installments receivable, undiscounted (non-GAAP)  $ 147,315 $ 167,643 $ 180,671 $ 197,053 $ 208,204 
Unamortized discount   (18,717)  (21,304)  (24,122)  (27,320)  (30,283)
            

 Installments receivable, net  $ 128,598 $ 146,339 $ 156,549 $ 169,733 $ 177,921 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Collateralized receivables, undiscounted (non-GAAP)  $ 56,461 $ 70,068 $ 88,722 $ 103,072 $ 107,750 
Unamortized discount   (5,031)  (6,562)  (8,241)  (10,092)  (11,384)
            

 Collateralized receivables, net  $ 51,430 $ 63,506 $ 80,481 $ 92,980 $ 96,366 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
  (In thousands)  
Total cost of revenue  $ 66,110 $ 75,820 $ 84,993 
Total operating expenses   209,604  191,826  207,983 
        

Total expenses   275,714  267,646  292,976 
Less:           
 Stock-based compensation   (15,260)  (4,670)  (10,600)
        

Adjusted total costs (non-GAAP)  $ 260,454 $ 262,976 $ 282,376 
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        The following table provides a reconciliation of net cash flow to free cash flow provided by operating activities for the periods presented:

        The lower levels of net cash provided by operating activities since fiscal 2008 are primarily attributable to decreases in cash received for prepaid license
transactions. As part of our historical contract arrangements, customers could elect to pay for their term licenses upfront rather than over the contract term. The
upfront payment would normally be equal to the net present value of the annual cash payments, typically discounted at an 8% rate. As the global economy
deteriorated in 2009, some of our customers changed from paying upfront to paying in installments. Additionally, during this period we started selling our
aspenONE for Manufacturing and Supply Chain suite predominantly on a term basis rather than on a perpetual basis, enabling our customers to pay in annual
installments rather than upfront. Going forward, we expect free cash flow to increase as the impact of prior period license prepayments moderates and customers
renew contracts that were previously paid upfront. In addition, we believe we will realize improved free cash flow as we benefit from the continued growth of our
portfolio of term license contracts and our focused cost structure management.

        Although we received less cash from customer prepayments in fiscal 2010 and 2009, we continued to reduce our secured borrowings while maintaining our
cash balance:
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
  (In thousands)  
Net cash provided by operating activities  $ 38,622 $ 33,032 $ 71,464 
Purchase of property, equipment and leasehold improvements   (2,652)  (2,972)  (9,424)
Capitalized computer software development costs   (699)  (2,382)  (780)
        

 Free cash flow (non-GAAP)  $ 35,271 $ 27,678 $ 61,260 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
  (In thousands)  
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data           
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 124,945 $ 122,213 $ 134,048 
Secured borrowings   76,135  112,096  147,207 
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Results of Operations

    Comparison of Fiscal 2010 to Fiscal 2009

        The following table sets forth the results of operations, percentage of net revenue and the period-to-period percentage change in certain financial data for
fiscal 2010 and 2009:

Revenue

        Total revenue in fiscal 2010 decreased primarily due to our transition to the new aspenONE licensing model. Total revenue from customers outside the
United States was $102.8 million, or 61.8%
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  Year Ended June 30,    
  2010  2009  % Change  
  (Dollars in thousands)    
Revenue:                 
 Subscription  $ 11,071  6.7% $ —  —%  *%
 Software   42,920  25.8  179,591  57.6  (76.1)
             

  Total subscription and software(1)   53,991  32.5  179,591  57.6  (69.9)
 Service and other   112,353  67.5  131,989  42.4  (14.9)
             

  Total revenue   166,344  100.0  311,580  100.0  (46.6)
             

Cost of revenue:                 
 Subscription and software   6,437  3.9  12,409  4.0  (48.1)
 Services and other   59,673  35.9  63,411  20.4  (5.9)
             

  Total cost of revenue   66,110  39.7  75,820  24.3  (12.8)
             

  Gross profit   100,234  60.3  235,760  75.7  (57.5)
             

Operating expenses:                 
 Selling and marketing(2)   97,002  58.3  84,126  27.0  15.3 
 Research and development(2)   48,228  29.0  46,375  14.9  4.0 
 General and administrative(2)   63,246  38.0  58,256  18.7  8.6 
 Restructuring charges   1,128  0.7  2,446  0.8  (53.9)
 Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets   —  —  623  0.2  * 
             

  Total operating expenses   209,604  126.0  191,826  61.6  9.3 
             

 (Loss) income from operations   (109,370)  (65.7)  43,934  14.1  (348.9)
             

 Interest income   19,324  11.6  22,698  7.3  (14.9)
 Interest expense   (8,455)  (5.1)  (10,516)  (3.4)  (19.6)
 Other (expense) income, net   (2,407)  (1.4)  (1,824)  (0.6)  32.0 
             

  (Loss) income before provision for taxes   (100,908)  (60.7)  54,292  17.4  (285.9)
 Provision for income taxes   (6,537)  (3.9)  (1,368)  (0.4)  * 
             

  Net (loss) income  $ (107,445)  (64.6)%$ 52,924  17.0%  (313.6)%
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

*Not meaningful.

(1) In July 2009 we introduced our aspenONE licensing model under which license revenue is recognized over the term of a license contract. We previously recognized a substantial
majority of our license revenue upfront, upon shipment of software. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis and Results of Operations—Transition to New aspenONE
Licensing Model." 

(2) Certain costs previously recorded as selling and marketing expense in fiscal 2009 and 2008 have been reclassified to research and development expense and general and
administrative expense, as described in note 2(y) to the consolidated financial statements beginning on page F-1.
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of total revenue, and $213.9 million, or 68.7% of total revenue, for fiscal 2010 and 2009, respectively. The geographical mix of revenue can vary from period to
period.

    Subscription Revenue

        Subscription agreements were not offered prior to fiscal 2010. The relatively small amount of subscription revenue recognized in the current year is a
reflection of both the ratable recognition of these arrangements and the short time span that the new aspenONE licensing model has been available. We expect
subscription revenue to increase as customers renew existing contracts under our new aspenONE licensing model and subscription contracts become a more
significant portion of our term license portfolio.

    Software Revenue

        The decrease in software revenue was primarily attributable to the changes to our business model described above. Prior to July 2009, the substantial
majority of our license revenue was recognized on an upfront basis. Going forward, we expect that most of our software revenue will be recognized over the
contract term, either on a subscription basis or as payments become due. Of the total software revenue recorded in fiscal 2010, $6.9 million related to legacy
arrangements that were both booked and recognized in fiscal 2010; $24.5 million related to legacy arrangements that had previously been deferred; $9.6 million
related to point product arrangements under our new aspenONE licensing model; and, $1.9 million related to perpetual arrangements.

    Services and Other Revenue
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  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Subscription revenue  $ 11,071 $ — $ 11,071  * 
As a percent of revenue   6.7% *       

*Not meaningful.

  Year Ended June 30,  Period-to-period Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Software revenue  $ 42,920 $ 179,591 $ (136,671)  (76.1)%
As a percent of revenue   25.8%  57.6%       

  Year Ended June 30,  Period-to-period Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Services and other revenue  $ 112,353 $ 131,989 $ (19,636)  (14.9)%
As a percent of revenue   67.5%  42.4%       
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                Professional Services Revenue

        Customer demand for professional services began to decline in the second quarter of fiscal 2009, coincident with the downturn in the global economic
environment, and continued throughout fiscal 2010. We often compete with a number of qualified competitors when bidding for professional service contracts,
particularly in developed markets where our products are well established. Having a robust network of providers that can provide professional services to support
the deployment and utilization of our software is beneficial to our licensing and SMS businesses. However, this competitive environment can have an unfavorable
impact on our professional services revenue. Although there were signs of increased customer demand in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, we cannot be certain
that this higher level of activity will continue throughout fiscal 2011 or beyond. We expect to realize growth opportunities in developing markets, in particular the
Middle East.

        Under the new aspenONE licensing model, revenue from committed professional service arrangements that are sold as a single arrangement with, or in
contemplation of, a new aspenONE licensing transaction is deferred and recognized on a ratable basis over the longer of (a) the period the services are performed
and (b) the term of the related software arrangement. We expect professional services deferred revenue related to new aspenONE licensing transactions to grow in
fiscal 2011.

                SMS and Training Revenue

        The decrease in SMS and training revenue was primarily due to lower SMS revenue associated with customers transitioning to the new aspenONE licensing
model and the continued trend of customers electing to replace perpetual license agreements with new term contracts. Under the new aspenONE licensing model,
SMS revenue is included in subscription revenue, whereas it was included in services and other revenue under the prior licensing model. Additionally, the trend of
moving customers from perpetual license agreements to term-based contracts has resulted in decreased SMS revenue for fiscal 2010. While the transition from
perpetual to term-based contracts generally results in larger combined software license and SMS revenue for the business over the term of the arrangement, it
results in decreased SMS revenue, because the SMS fee is calculated as a percentage of the license fee. Perpetual license arrangements typically have a larger
initial license fee than term arrangements. We expect SMS and training revenue to continue to decrease as we transition our business to a predominantly
subscription-based model.
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  Year Ended June 30,  Period-to-period Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Professional services revenue  $ 37,491 $ 48,352 $ (10,861)  (22.5)%
As a percent of revenue   22.5%  15.5%       

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
SMS and training revenue(1)  $ 74,862 $ 83,637 $ (8,775)  (10.5)%
As a percent of revenue   45.0%  26.8%       

(1) Includes other revenue of $647 and $1,047 in fiscal 2010 and 2009, respectively, related to miscellaneous revenue.
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Expenses

    Overview

        The increase in total expenses, which consist of the cost of revenue and total operating expenses, was primarily the result of higher stock-based
compensation in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. During the period from mid-September 2007 until November 9, 2009 and from November 16, 2009 to
December 21, 2009, we did not maintain our status as a timely filer with the SEC and we were unable to issue stock-based compensation to our directors and
employees. On November 9, 2009, we were current with our filings and we issued 2.7 million restricted stock units and 0.3 million stock options to our directors
and employees. A portion of these awards were vested upon issuance in consideration of the fact that we were unable to issue equity grants for the past two years.
The stock-based compensation cost recognized during the second quarter of fiscal 2010 associated with the November grants represented $9.2 million of the total
$15.3 million of expense recorded for fiscal 2010. These expenses are included in the cost of revenue and each of the respective operating expense lines of our
consolidated statements of operations and materially impact the comparative analysis of the year-to-date amounts.

        The decrease in comparative total expenses, adjusted to exclude stock-based compensation, principally consists of lower expenses for consultants and
contractors of $9.1 million, royalties of $5.0 million, payroll and benefits of $3.1 million, and third-party commissions of $1.2 million. These expense decreases
were partially offset by increased expenses for sales commissions of $6.9 million, legal and related expenses of $4.9 million and bonuses of $5.0 million. During
fiscal 2010 we met all of our bonus criteria and accrued 100% of our bonus plan, as compared to 50% in fiscal 2009. Additionally, the current year bonus expense
includes an additional 28% discretionary bonus for certain executives, which was granted in consideration for significantly exceeding current year bonus plan
targets.

    Cost of Subscription and Software Revenue
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  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Total cost of revenue  $ 66,110 $ 75,820 $ (9,710)  (12.8)%
Total operating expenses   209,604  191,826  17,778  9.3 
           

Total expenses   275,714  267,646  8,068  3.0 
Less:              
 Stock-based compensation   15,260  4,670  10,590  226.8 
           

Total expenses, excluding stock-based compensation  $ 260,454 $ 262,976 $ (2,522)  (1.0)%
  

 
 

 
 

 
    

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Cost of subscription and software revenue  $ 6,437 $ 12,409 $ (5,972)  (48.1)%
Gross margin   88.1%  93.1%       
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        The period-over-period reduction in cost of subscription and software revenue was primarily due to decreases of $4.9 million in royalty costs during the
period related to our license products and lower capitalized software amortization charges of $1.7 million. Previously our royalty expense was correlated to the
mix of products sold and was typically recognized in the period in which revenue for those products was recorded. As a result of the change to the new
aspenONE licensing model, royalty expense is incurred evenly over the contractual term, consistent with the revenue recognition on the related customer
arrangement. Amortization of capitalized software costs for fiscal 2010 decreased $1.7 million compared to fiscal 2009 as a result of reduced cost capitalization
in the current period and previously capitalized items reaching the end of their useful life in fiscal 2010. The decrease in cost of subscription and software revenue
was partially offset by $0.7 million of costs associated with providing SMS for the aspenONE suite of products. These costs were not included in the cost of
subscription and software prior to the transition to the new aspenONE licensing model in fiscal 2010.

    Cost of Services and Other Revenue

                Professional Services Revenue

        The largest component of the reduction in cost of services and other revenue in fiscal 2010 pertained to our professional services business, which accounted
for $4.4 million of the year-over-year decrease. The decrease was primarily related to our reduction of staffing levels by approximately 16% over the course of
fiscal 2010 to better align our cost structure with the decreased demand for professional services.

                SMS and Training Revenue

        Costs associated with SMS and training revenue increased $0.1 million in fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009. As the subscription business grows, we
expect the cost of SMS revenue to migrate from cost of services and other revenue to cost of subscription and software revenue. Currently it is not possible to
predict the rate at which this migration will occur, because that rate will be a function of adoption of our new aspenONE licensing model. We do not have
sufficient experience with the rate of adoption to provide a meaningful forecast of this change. Eventually, we expect the majority of our cost of SMS revenue to
be accounted for in cost of subscription and software revenue.

        Stock-based compensation expense related to cost of services and other revenue was $0.9 million higher in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. We expect
the reported gross profit margin of services and other revenue to continue to decline over the next several years, as SMS revenue is reclassified to subscription
revenue, since SMS revenue has a high gross profit margin relative to the other revenue streams included in services and other revenue.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Cost of services and other revenue  $ 59,673 $ 63,411 $ (3,738)  (5.9)%
Gross margin   46.9%  52.0%       
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    Selling and Marketing Expense

        The increase in selling and marketing expense was predominantly the result of higher commissions of $6.9 million, stock-based compensation costs of
$4.8 million and payroll and benefits expenses of $2.3 million. Commissions increased during fiscal 2010 as a result of increased bookings on a worldwide basis,
as well as a greater number of sales personnel exceeding their sales targets as compared to fiscal 2009. Additionally, in fiscal 2010, bookings eligible for
commissions included multi-year contractually committed SMS fees under the new aspenONE licensing model. Selling and marketing payroll and benefit
expenses increased in fiscal 2010 due to increased headcount compared to fiscal 2009. These expense increases were partially offset by $1.2 million of reductions
in third-party commissions. Previously, we accrued the entire amount of third-party commission costs related to a sale in the period in which revenue for those
products was recorded. Since the introduction of our new product offerings, we expense the costs over the life of the agreement, on a basis consistent with the
revenue recognized.

    Research and Development Expense

        The increase in research and development expense was primarily the result of increased bonuses of $1.6 million, higher stock-based compensation expense
of $1.4 million and increased expense related to a reduction in internal capitalized development costs of $1.4 million. In fiscal 2009, we capitalized significant
costs related to the development and release of the aspenONE v7.1 product; we did not have similar levels of capitalizable costs in fiscal 2010. These cost
increases were partially offset by reduced payroll and benefit expenses of $1.8 million and lower facility and IT-related costs of $1.1 million.

    General and Administrative Expense

        The increase in general and administrative expense is primarily attributable to $4.9 million of higher legal and related costs, $3.5 million of stock-based
compensation, $2.1 million of payroll and benefit expenses, $1.7 million of increased bonus and $1.4 million of bad debt expense, partially offset by $8.5 million
in cost reductions related to financial consultants and contractors and decreases in recruiting and related expenses of $0.7 million. The increase in legal fees in
fiscal 2010 as compared to
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  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Selling and marketing expense  $ 97,002 $ 84,126 $ 12,876  15.3%
As a percent of revenue   58.3%  27.0%       

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Research and development expense  $ 48,228 $ 46,375 $ 1,853  4.0%
As a percent of revenue   29.0%  14.9%       

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
General and administrative expense  $ 63,246 $ 58,256 $ 4,990  8.6%
As a percent of revenue   38.0%  18.7%       
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fiscal 2009 was due to our increased use of external legal services during the fiscal year, as well as the impact of us reaching the maximum reimbursable limit of
an insurance policy in the second quarter of fiscal 2010 under which certain legal costs were previously covered. During the second quarter of fiscal 2010, we
reached the maximum reimbursable limit for the policy and as a result, our expenses increased in fiscal 2010. The $2.1 million increase in payroll and benefit
expenses is related to increased average headcount, primarily within the finance organization. We hired full-time finance personnel throughout fiscal 2010 to
replace and further reduce our reliance on more costly external consultants.

    Restructuring Charges

        The activity in restructuring charges was the result of accretion and adjustments to existing facilities-related restructuring plans for changes in estimates and
sub-lease assumptions.

    Interest Income

        The $3.4 million decrease in interest income consists of a $2.2 million decline in interest income from our collateralized and installment receivables
portfolios and a $1.2 million decrease from lower interest earnings on our cash and cash equivalent balances. Under the new aspenONE licensing model,
receivables are recorded when the payments become due and payable and we no longer record installment receivables. We expect interest income to decrease
going forward.

    Interest Expense

        The $2.1 million decrease in interest expense was primarily attributable to lower average secured borrowing balances, resulting from the continued pay-
down of our existing arrangements. We expect interest expense to decrease going forward.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Restructuring charges  $ 1,128 $ 2,446 $ (1,318)  (53.9)%
As a percent of revenue   0.7%  0.8%       

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Interest income  $ 19,324 $ 22,698 $ (3,374)  (14.9)%
As a percent of revenue   11.6%  7.3%       

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Interest expense  $ (8,455) $ (10,516) $ 2,061  (19.6)%
As a percent of revenue   (5.1)%  (3.4)%       
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    Other (Expense) Income, Net

        The change in other (expense) income, net was primarily due to foreign currency losses due to the further weakening of the Pound Sterling and Euro, offset
by gains recognized from the strengthening of the Canadian dollar. The losses recorded in the prior fiscal year were primarily the result of the weakening of
Pound Sterling and the Euro throughout the period.

    Provision for Income Taxes

        The increase in provision for income taxes was primarily due to an increase in foreign income tax offset by a release of certain tax contingencies in Canada.
Cash payments, net of refunds for income taxes, totaled $2.5 million in fiscal 2010.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Other (expense) income, net  $ (2,407) $ (1,824) $ (583)  32.0%
As a percent of revenue   (1.4)%  (0.6)%       

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2010  2009  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Provision for income taxes  $ (6,537) $ (1,368) $ (5,169)  * 
As a percent of revenue   (3.9)%  (0.4)%       

*Not meaningful.
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    Comparison of Fiscal 2009 to Fiscal 2008

        The following table sets forth the results of operations, percentage of net revenue and the period-to-period percentage change in certain financial data for
fiscal 2009 and 2008:

Revenue

        Total revenue in fiscal 2009 remained fairly consistent with fiscal 2008. Total revenue from customers outside the United States was $213.9 million, or
68.7% of total revenue, for fiscal 2009 and $198.1 million, or 63.6% of total revenue, for fiscal 2008. The geographical mix of revenue can vary from period to
period.
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  Year Ended June 30,    
  2009  2008  % Change  
  (Dollars in thousands)    
Revenue:                 
 Subscription  $ —  —% $ —  —%  —%
 Software   179,591  57.6  168,404  54.0  6.6 
            

  Total subscription and software(1)   179,591  57.6  168,404  54.0  6.6 
 Service and other   131,989  42.4  143,209  46.0  (7.8)
            

  Total revenue   311,580  100.0  311,613  100.0  (0.0)
            

Cost of revenue:                 
 Subscription and software   12,409  4.0  15,916  5.1  (22.0)
 Services and other   63,411  20.4  69,077  22.2  (8.2)
            

  Total cost of revenue   75,820  24.3  84,993  27.3  (10.8)
            

  Gross profit   235,760  75.7  226,620  72.7  4.0 
            

Operating expenses:                 
 Selling and marketing(2)   84,126  27.0  94,965  30.5  (11.4)
 Research and development(2)   46,375  14.9  49,899  16.0  (7.1)
 General and administrative(2)   58,256  18.7  54,496  17.5  6.9 
 Restructuring charges   2,446  0.8  8,623  2.8  (71.6)
 Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets   623  0.2  —  —  — 
            

  Total operating expenses   191,826  61.6  207,983  66.7  (7.8)
            

 Income from operations   43,934  14.1  18,637  6.0  135.7 
            

 Interest income   22,698  7.3  23,784  7.6  (4.6)
 Interest expense   (10,516)  (3.4)  (17,783)  (5.7)  (40.9)
 Other (expense) income, net   (1,824)  (0.6)  3,386  1.1  (153.9)
            

  Income before provision for taxes   54,292  17.4  28,024  9.0  93.7 
 Provision for income taxes   (1,368)  (0.4)  (3,078)  (1.0)  (55.6)
            

  Net income  $ 52,924  17.0% $ 24,946  8.0%  112.2%
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(1) In July 2009 we introduced our aspenONE licensing model under which license revenue is recognized over the term of a license contract. We previously recognized a substantial
majority of our license revenue upfront, upon shipment of software. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis and Results of Operations—Transition to New aspenONE
Licensing Model." 

(2) Certain costs previously recorded as selling and marketing expense in fiscal 2009 and 2008 have been reclassified to research and development expense and general and
administrative expense, as described in note 2(y) to the consolidated financial statements beginning on page F-1.
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    Software Revenue

        Software revenue in fiscal 2009 and 2008 was generated primarily from term license contracts and, to a lesser degree, from perpetual arrangements. Since
we have relationships with many leading companies in the process industries, growth in our software revenue is derived from the expansion of existing customer
relationships, either through licensing for incremental users or by licensing additional software products in our aspenONE suite. The addition of new customers
has traditionally represented a smaller component of our revenue growth.

        During each of fiscal 2009 and 2008, a significant portion of our bookings was not recorded as revenue in the same fiscal period due to certain revenue
recognition criteria not being met. The year-over-year increase in software revenue was primarily driven by the timing of revenue recognition under GAAP as
opposed to an indication of actual business activity.

        Bookings during fiscal 2009 were $37.0 million lower than fiscal 2008, which reflected the impact of the global economic downturn. Bookings associated
with a number of large contracts totaling $52.1 million in fiscal 2009 and $57.5 million in fiscal 2008 did not meet the criteria for revenue recognition as of the
end of the fiscal year. However, during fiscal 2009, $31.6 million of revenue was recognized from business booked in fiscal 2008. This level of license revenue
deferral represented a significant divergence from prior fiscal years.

    Services and Other Revenue

                Professional Services Revenue

        The decrease in services and other revenue was due to lower professional services revenue in fiscal 2009. The global economic environment during fiscal
2009 generally impacted our customers' ability to commit to more discretionary spending initiatives, which affected our professional services business.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Software revenue  $ 179,591 $ 168,404 $ 11,187  6.6%
As a percent of revenue   57.6% 54.0%      

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Services and other revenue  $ 131,989 $ 143,209 $ (11,220)  (7.8)%
As a percent of revenue   42.4% 46.0%      

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Professional services revenue  $ 48,352 $ 59,708 $ (11,356)  (19.0)%
As a percent of revenue   15.5% 19.2%      
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                SMS and Training Revenue

        SMS and training revenue was consistent with fiscal 2008.

Expenses

    Cost of Subscription and Software Revenue

        The reduction in cost of subscription and software revenue was primarily due to lower capitalized software amortization charges, reduced royalty expenses;
and third-party fees. Royalty expenses and third-party fees were lower as a result of a change in the mix of license products sold.

    Cost of Services and Other Revenue

        Cost of services and other revenue decreased primarily due to lower staffing needs as a result of decreased demand for our professional services. Stock-based
compensation expense decreased because we were unable to issue new equity-based compensation awards because during the period from mid-September 2007
until November 9, 2009 and from November 16, 2009 to December 21, 2009, we did not maintain our status as a timely filer with the SEC. Finally, the cost to
deliver maintenance support was reduced by consolidating work and bringing in-house services that were formerly outsourced, which carried a higher cost to us.

    Selling and Marketing Expense
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  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
SMS and training revenue(1)  $ 83,637 $ 83,501 $ 136  0.2%
As a percent of revenue   26.8% 26.8%      

(1) Includes other revenue of $1,047 and $1,209 in fiscal 2009 and 2008, respectively, related to miscellaneous revenue.

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Cost of subscription and software revenue  $ 12,409 $ 15,916 $ (3,507)  (22.0)%
Gross margin   93.1% 90.5%      

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Cost of services and other revenue  $ 63,411 $ 69,077 $ (5,666)  (8.2)%
Gross margin   52.0% 51.8%      

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Selling and marketing expense  $ 84,126 $ 94,965 $ (10,839)  (11.4)%
As a percent of revenue   27.0% 30.5%      
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        The decrease in selling and marketing expense was largely the result of lower personnel-related costs including salaries, commissions, bonuses, and stock-
based compensation. Stock-based compensation expense decreased because we were unable to issue new equity-based compensation awards because we were not
timely in our filings with the SEC. Additionally, there were other decreases in costs related to travel, external consultants and marketing events.

    Research and Development Expense

        The decrease in research and development expense related primarily to a reduction in incentive bonuses for employees and decreases in stock-based
compensation. Stock-based compensation expense decreased because we were unable to issue new equity-based compensation awards as a result of our not being
timely in our filings with the SEC. Additionally, we capitalized a higher portion of our research and development expenses during fiscal 2009 as compared to
fiscal 2008, which contributed to a year-over-year decrease in research and development expenses.

    General and Administrative Expense

        The increase in general and administrative expense was primarily attributable to the extended time and effort to complete the fiscal 2008 audit. These higher
costs were significant and included extensive use of external financial consultants, higher audit fees, and to a lesser extent, an increase in personnel costs. These
finance cost increases were partially offset by lower legal costs. Stock-based compensation expense also decreased because we were unable to issue new equity-
based compensation awards as a result of our not being timely in our filings with the SEC.

    Restructuring Charges

        During fiscal 2009, we initiated a plan to reduce operating expense that resulted in the reduction of our workforce. We recorded a restructuring charge of
$2.4 million during fiscal 2009 primarily associated with this program. This charge was significantly lower than the restructuring charge that was incurred in the
prior year associated with the relocation of our corporate headquarters.

    Interest Income

        Interest income decreased primarily due to lower average receivables balances for both installment and collateralized receivables.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Research and development expense  $ 46,375 $ 49,899 $ (3,524)  (7.1)%
As a percent of revenue   14.9% 16.0%      

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
General and administrative expense  $ 58,256 $ 54,496 $ 3,760  6.9%
As a percent of revenue   18.7% 17.5%      

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Restructuring charges  $ 2,446 $ 8,623 $ (6,177)  (71.6)%
As a percent of revenue   0.8% 2.8%      

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Interest income  $ 22,698 $ 23,784 $ (1,086)  (4.6)%
As a percent of revenue   7.3% 7.6%      
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    Interest Expense

        The decrease in interest expense was attributable to lower average secured borrowing balances, principally due to the payoff of three significant
securitizations during fiscal 2008.

    Other (Expense) Income, Net

        Other (expense) income, net decreased, primarily due to the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the Pound Sterling and Euro.

    Provision for Income Taxes

        We recorded a provision for income taxes of $1.4 million for fiscal 2009, primarily related to our income in foreign jurisdictions, withholding taxes imposed
on license fees paid to us from customers outside the United States, and changes in estimates under Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions (currently included as provisions of ASC Topic 740), or FIN 48. The income tax provision also included state income
taxes. We did not record a federal income tax provision on our domestic income, since we are able to utilize our net operating loss carryforwards. We have
available net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards and foreign tax credits that expire at various dates from 2010 through 2025.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

    Resources

        We historically have financed our operations through cash generated from operating activities, public offerings of our convertible debentures and common
stock, private offerings of our preferred stock and common stock, borrowings secured by our installment receivable contracts and borrowings under bank credit
facilities. As of June 30, 2010, our principal sources of liquidity consisted of $124.9 million in cash and cash equivalents and up to $16.4 million of borrowing
capacity under our credit facility. The amount of borrowing capacity available under the credit facility varies in accordance with the terms of the agreement. We
are not currently dependent upon short-term funding.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Interest expense  $ (10,516) $ (17,783) $ 7,267  (40.9)%
As a percent of revenue   (3.4)%  (5.7)%       

  Year Ended June 30,  Period-to-period Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Other (expense) income, net  $ (1,824) $ 3,386 $ (5,210)  (153.9)%
As a percent of revenue   (0.6)%  1.1%       

  Year Ended June 30,  
Period-to-period

Change  
  2009  2008  $  %  
  (Dollars in thousands)  
Provision for income taxes  $ (1,368) $ (3,078) $ 1,710  (55.6)%
As a percent of revenue   (0.4)%  (1.0)%       
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        We believe our existing cash and cash equivalents and our cash flow from operating activities will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for at least
the next twelve months. To the extent our cash and cash equivalents, cash flow from operating activities, and credit facility borrowing are insufficient to fund our
future activities, we may need to raise additional funds through the financing of additional receivables or from public or private equity or debt financings. We also
may need to raise additional funds in the event we determine in the future to effect one or more acquisitions of businesses, technologies and products. If
additional funding is required, we may not be able to effect a receivable, equity or debt financing on terms acceptable to us or at all.

        The following table summarizes our cash flow activities for the years indicated:

Operating Activities

        Cash generated by operating activities is our primary source of liquidity. Cash from operating activities provided $38.6 million during fiscal 2010. This
amount resulted from net loss of $107.4 million, adjusted for non-cash charges of $23.5 million, and a net $122.5 million source of cash due to decreases in
operating assets and increases in operating liabilities.

        Non-cash items within net loss consisted primarily of $15.3 million of stock-based compensation, $6.6 million of depreciation and amortization and
$3.2 million of net unrealized foreign currency losses driven by the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the Pound Sterling and Euro, and were offset by
$2.2 million of deferred income taxes.

        Our cash balance increased in part due to a $122.5 million decrease in operating assets and increase in operating liabilities. The cash generated from this
change consisted primarily of (a) decreases in installment and collateralized receivables totaling $92.5 million, (b) a decrease in accounts receivable of
$16.5 million, (c) a decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets of $8.9 million, and (d) an increase in deferred revenue of $8.7 million. These sources of cash
were partially offset by decreases in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities totaling $1.6 million, a decrease in income taxes payable of
$0.8 million, and an increase in unbilled services of $1.6 million.

        The decreased levels of net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2010 and 2009 as compared to fiscal 2008 was primarily related to decreases in
cash received for prepaid license transactions and the change to licensing our MSC suite on a term basis, rather than perpetual. Going forward, we expect cash
from operating activities to increase as the impact of prior period license prepayments moderates and customers renew contracts that were previously paid
upfront.

        Looking ahead, we expect to continue to generate positive cash flow from operations. We do not expect the adoption of our new licensing model to have a
negative impact on our operating cash flows because most of our existing contracts are already on an installment term basis. We anticipate that existing cash
balances, together with funds generated from operations, will be sufficient to finance our operations and meet our cash requirements for the foreseeable future.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
  (In thousands)  
Cash flow provided by (used in):           
 Operating activities  $ 38,622 $ 33,032 $ 71,464 
 Investing activities   (3,351)  (5,354)  (10,391)
 Financing activities   (31,700)  (38,419)  (59,761)
 Effect of exchange rates on cash balances   (839)  (1,094)  469 
        

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  $ 2,732 $ (11,835) $ 1,781 
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Investing Activities

        During fiscal 2010, we used $2.7 million of cash for capital expenditures, primarily to upgrade our financial reporting and management information systems.
We have ongoing efforts to enhance our information system and implement internal control enhancements, which have been designed in part to remediate our
deficiencies in internal controls over financial reporting. A portion of the remediation costs are expected to be incurred to upgrade our existing financial
applications. We do not expect the costs we are investing in our financial reporting and management systems to be materially different from our IT investment
costs in prior fiscal years.

        Capitalized software development costs decreased $1.7 million in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. In fiscal 2009, we capitalized costs related to the
development and release of the aspenONE version 7.1 product; we did not have similar levels of capitalized costs in fiscal 2010. We are not currently party to any
material purchase contracts related to future capital expenditures.

Financing Activities

        During fiscal 2010, we used $31.7 million of cash for financing activities. We reduced our secured borrowings balances by $34.8 million and paid
withholding taxes of $4.0 million on vested restricted stock units. We did not finance any receivables to fund operations in fiscal 2010. However, we did swap
$9.5 million of previously financed receivables for purposes of simplifying the administration of the program. This exchange was shown as both a use and source
of funds related to secured borrowings on our statement of cash flows. Additionally, we received proceeds of $7.2 million from the exercise of employee stock
options during fiscal 2010. We expect the existing secured borrowings balances included in our consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2010 to continue to decline
during fiscal 2011 and thereafter, as we continue the trend of not replacing securitized borrowings as they are paid down.

Credit Facility

        We are party to a credit facility arrangement with Silicon Valley Bank that we originally entered into in January 2003 and have amended several times
subsequently. This arrangement provides a line of credit of up to the lesser of (i) $25.0 million or (ii) 50% to 80% of certain eligible receivables. The line of credit
bears interest at the greater of (i) the bank's prime rate (4.0% at June 30, 2010) plus 0.5%, or (ii) 4.75%. If we maintain a $10.0 million compensating cash
balance with the bank, our unused line of credit fee will be 0.1875% per annum; otherwise it will be 0.375% per annum. The line of credit is collateralized by
substantially all of our assets, and we are required to meet certain financial covenants, including minimum tangible net worth, minimum cash balances and an
adjusted quick ratio. The terms of the loan arrangement restrict our ability to pay dividends in cash.

        We were in compliance with the terms of the credit facility as of June 30, 2010. As of June 30, 2009, we were not in compliance with certain financial
reporting requirements under the terms of the credit facility. We obtained waivers for that non-compliance and on November 3, 2009, we executed an amendment
to the loan arrangement that adjusted certain terms of covenants, including modifying the date we must provide quarterly unaudited and annual audited financial
statements to the bank. In June 2010, we executed an amendment to the loan arrangement that extended the maturity date of the credit facility to November 15,
2010.

        As of June 30, 2010, there were $4.4 million in letters of credit outstanding under the line of credit and no outstanding debt under the line of credit and
$16.4 million was available for future borrowing. Our total borrowing through Silicon Valley Bank is limited to $95 million. In the event that we utilize the full
$85 million available through the Traditional Programs, as described below, with Silicon Valley Bank, our total credit line could not exceed $10 million.
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Borrowings Collateralized by Receivable Contracts

    Traditional Programs

        We historically have maintained arrangements, which we refer to as our Traditional Programs, with General Electric Capital Corporation, Bank of America
and Silicon Valley Bank providing for borrowings that are secured by our installment and other receivable contracts, and for which limited recourse exists against
us. Under the Traditional Programs, we and the financial institution must agree to enter into each transaction and negotiate the amount borrowed and interest rate
secured by each receivable. The customers' payments of the underlying receivables fund the repayment of the related amounts borrowed. The weighted average
interest rate on the secured borrowings was 8.3% at June 30, 2010 and 8.1% at June 30, 2009.

        The collateralized receivables earn interest income, and the secured borrowings accrue borrowing costs at approximately the same interest rate. When we
receive cash from a customer, the collateralized receivable balance is reduced and the related secured borrowing is reclassified to an accrued liability for amounts
we must remit to the financial institution. The accrued liability is reduced when payment is remitted to the financial institution. The terms of the customer
receivables range from amounts due within 30 days to receivables due within four years.

        Under the Traditional Programs, we received aggregate cash proceeds of $9.5 million, $30.2 million and $74.1 million during fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Since December 2007, we have not sold any receivables for the purpose of raising cash, but we have sold some large dollar receivables in order to
fund the repurchase of several large groups of smaller receivables previously sold to the banks, for the purpose of simplifying our administration of the
Traditional Programs. In June 2008, we repurchased the outstanding invoices under the Bank of America program at their carrying value of $2.7 million inclusive
of a one percent pre-payment penalty. As of June 30, 2010, we had outstanding secured borrowings of $76.1 million under the Traditional Programs that were
secured by collateralized receivables totaling $51.4 million.

        We estimate that there was approximately $49.3 million available under the Silicon Valley Bank program at June 30, 2010. As the collection of the
collateralized receivables and resulting payment of the borrowing obligation reduces the outstanding balance, the availability under the arrangement can be
increased. We expect to maintain our access to cash under this arrangement, and to transfer installments receivable as business requirements dictate. Our ongoing
ability to access the available capacity will depend upon a number of factors, including the generation of additional customer receivables and the financial
institution's willingness to continue to enter into these transactions.

        Under the terms of the Traditional Programs, we have transferred the receivables to the financial institutions with limited financial recourse to us. We can be
required to repurchase the receivables under certain circumstances in case of specific defaults by us as set forth in the program terms. Potential recourse
obligations are primarily related to the Silicon Valley Bank arrangement, which requires us to pay interest to Silicon Valley Bank when the underlying customer
has not paid by the receivable due date. This recourse is limited to a maximum period of 90 days after the due date. A total of $32.2 million of outstanding
receivables had this potential recourse obligation as of June 30, 2010. This 90-day recourse obligation is recognized as interest expense as incurred and totaled
less than $0.1 million, $0.1 million, and $0.4 million for fiscal 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. Otherwise, recourse generally results from circumstances in
which we failed to perform requirements related to contracts with the customer. Other than the specific items noted above, the financial institution bears the credit
risk of the customers associated with the receivables the institution purchased.

        In the ordinary course of us acting as a servicing agent for receivables transferred to Silicon Valley Bank, we regularly receive funds from customers that are
processed and remitted onward to Silicon Valley Bank. While in our possession, these cash receipts are contractually owned by Silicon Valley
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Bank, are held by us on behalf of Silicon Valley Bank until remitted, and are restricted from our use. There were no cash receipts held for the benefit of Silicon
Valley Bank and recorded in our cash balances and current liabilities as of June 30, 2010 or June 30, 2009.

        The terms of the asset purchase agreement for one of the Traditional Programs requires the timely reporting of financial information. As of June 30, 2009,
we were not in compliance with that requirement. We obtained waivers for such non-compliance that extended the deadlines for delivering financial information
for fiscal 2009 and the first quarter of fiscal 2010. As a result of the uncertainty as to when we would meet this covenant, we were required to reclassify the
obligation to a current liability in the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2009. We are now in compliance with the timely filing requirement of the
agreement. Accordingly, we have classified the long-term portion of the related obligation as non-current in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of
June 30, 2010.

    Securitization of Accounts Receivable

        During fiscal 2005 and 2007 we entered into two securitization arrangements where we securitized and transferred receivables with a net carrying value of
$71.9 million and $32.1 million, respectively, and received cash proceeds of $43.8 million and $20.0 million, respectively. These borrowings were secured by the
transferred receivables, and the debt and borrowing costs were repaid as the receivables were collected. Neither arrangement met the criteria for a sale, and as
such was accounted for as a secured borrowing. We received and retained collections on these receivables after all borrowing and related costs were paid to the
financial institution. The financial institutions' rights to repayment were limited to the payments received from the receivables. Both securitizations were paid off
during fiscal 2008 at their respective carrying values of $4.2 million and $12.2 million. The payments resulted in a reclassification to accounts receivable of
$9.8 million and to current installments receivable of $17.8 million from the current portion of collateralized receivables, and $23.9 million from non-current
collateralized receivables to non-current installment receivables.

    Contractual Obligations and Requirements

        Our contractual obligations at June 30, 2010 primarily consisted of operating leases for our headquarters and other facilities, purchase commitments, and
other debt obligations. Other than these, there were no other commitments for capital or other expenditures. Our obligations related to these items at June 30,
2010 were as follows:

        As of June 30, 2010, we had multiple agreements, which expire through 2012, to sublease approximately 95,093 square feet of our former office space in
Cambridge, Massachusetts. The above table does not reflect contractual future sublease rental income, which totaled $6.2 million at June 30,
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  Payments due by Period  

  Total  
Less than

1 Year  
1 to 3
Years  

3 to 5
Years  

More than
5 Years  

  (In thousands)  
Contractual Cash Obligations:                 
 Operating leases  $ 31,812 $ 10,832 $ 12,440 $ 6,737 $ 1,803 
 Fixed fee royalty obligations   9,531  3,503  3,722  2,002  304 
 Contractual royalty obligations   8,525  3,118  3,929  1,478  — 
            

  Total contractual cash obligations  $ 49,868 $ 17,453 $ 20,091 $ 10,217 $ 2,107 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Other Commercial Commitments:                 
 Standby letters of credit  $ 4,429 $ 2,030 $ 684 $ — $ 1,715 
            

  Total commercial commitments  $ 4,429 $ 2,030 $ 684 $ — $ 1,715 
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2010. See note 11 to the consolidated financial statements beginning at page F-1 for additional information about our operating leases.

        The standby letters of credit were issued by Silicon Valley Bank in the United States and National Westminster Bank in the United Kingdom, and secure
performance on professional services contracts and rental agreements.

        The above table does not reflect any amounts relating to past transfers of certain receivables under our receivable sale facilities. Repayments of borrowings
under these facilities are funded by the payments made by the customer either to the applicable financial institution directly or to us as agent, with no financial
recourse to us. Because we do not have any contractual obligation to fund these payments and there are no financial guarantees issued in relation to these
transactions, we do not have any contractual payment obligations relating to these transactions.

Effects of Inflation

        Inflation and changing prices have not had a material effect on our business, and we do not expect that they will materially affect our business in the
foreseeable future. However, the impact of inflation on replacement costs of equipment, cost of revenue and operating costs, especially employee compensation
costs, may not be readily recoverable in the price of our software and service offerings.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

        As of June 30, 2010, we did not have any significant off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K of the SEC.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

        Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of our financial statements requires management to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and related disclosures. We base our estimates on historical
experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

        We believe that the assumptions and estimates associated with the following critical accounting policies have the greatest potential impact on our
consolidated financial statements:

• revenue recognition; 

• impairment of long-lived assets, goodwill, and intangible assets; 

• computer software development costs; 

• loss contingencies; and 

• accounting for income taxes.

        For further information on our significant accounting policies, see note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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    Revenue Recognition

        Four basic criteria must be satisfied before license revenue can be recognized: persuasive evidence of an arrangement between us and an end user; delivery
of our product has occurred; the fee for the product is fixed or determinable; and collection of the fee is probable. Our management uses its judgment concerning
the satisfaction of these four basic criteria, particularly the criteria relating to the determination of whether the arrangement fees are fixed or determinable and to
the collectability of the arrangement fees, during evaluation of each revenue transaction.

        Fee is fixed or determinable—We assess whether a fee is fixed or determinable at the outset of the arrangement. Significant judgment is involved in making
this assessment. Under our upfront revenue model, we are able to demonstrate that the fees are fixed or determinable for all arrangements, including those for our
term licenses that contain extended payment terms. We have an established history of collecting under the terms of these contracts without providing concessions
to customers. In addition, we also assess whether contract modifications to an existing term arrangement constitute a concession. In making this assessment,
significant analysis is performed to ensure that no concessions are given. Our software license agreements do not include right of return or exchange.

        With the introduction of our aspenONE licensing model and the changes to the licensing terms for point products licensed on a fixed-term basis, we cannot
assert that the fees in these new arrangements are fixed or determinable because the rights provided to customers and the economics of the arrangements are not
comparable to our historical transactions with other customers under the upfront revenue model. As a result, the amount of revenue recognized for these new
arrangements will be limited by the amount of customer payments currently due. For our new aspenONE licenses this generally results in the fees being
recognized ratably over the term of the contracts. For our point product licenses with bundled SMS, this generally results in the license fee being recognized as
each payment comes due, while the allocated portion of the SMS revenue is recognized ratably over its annual term.

        Collection of fee is probable—We assess the probability of collecting from each customer at the outset of the arrangement based on a number of factors,
including the customer's payment history, its current creditworthiness, economic conditions in the customer's industry and geographic location, and general
economic conditions. If in our judgment collection of a fee is not probable, revenue is recognized as cash is collected, provided all other conditions for revenue
recognition have been met.

VSOE of Fair Value for SMS and Professional Services

        We have established VSOE for SMS and professional services, but not for our software products. We assess VSOE of fair value for SMS based on an
analysis of standalone SMS renewals using the bell-shaped curve approach. We use the optional renewals of SMS on our legacy term license arrangements to
support VSOE of fair value for SMS bundled in our new fixed-term point product arrangements. The license product offerings and the SMS in the legacy term
arrangements and the new point product arrangements are the same.

        As we are increasingly transitioning our legacy term license customers to new point product arrangements with bundled SMS for the entire term of the
arrangement and we no longer market legacy term license arrangements, we expect our population of standalone annual renewals to decrease over time. As a
result, there will come a point in time where we will be unable to support VSOE of fair value of SMS in our new point product arrangements based on our legacy
term license SMS renewals. When this occurs, we will be required to recognize revenue related to the license component on our point product arrangements
ratably, on a subscription basis. Additionally, SMS revenue will be included as subscription revenue, in a manner similar to the current recognition of subscription
arrangements under our new aspenONE licensing model. We expect the impact of a loss of VSOE of
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fair value for SMS to be immaterial to our results of operations, since we currently recognize license revenue on point product arrangements over the term of the
arrangement, as payments become due.

Professional Services Revenue

        The use of the proportional performance method depends upon our ability to reliably estimate the direct costs to complete a project. We use historical
experience as a basis for future estimates to complete current projects. Additionally, management believes that costs are the best available measure of
performance. Reimbursable amounts received from customers for out-of-pocket expenses are recorded as revenue. If the costs to complete a project are not
estimable or the completion is uncertain, the revenue is recognized upon completion of the services.

        In the past, we have occasionally been required to commit unanticipated additional resources to complete projects, which have resulted in lower than
anticipated income or losses on those contracts. We may experience similar situations in the future. Provisions for estimated losses on contracts are made during
the period in which such losses become probable and can be reasonably estimated. To date, such losses have not been significant.

    Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, Goodwill and Intangible Assets

        In accordance with ASC Topic 360, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, we review the carrying value of long-lived assets
when circumstances dictate that they should be reevaluated, based upon the expected future operating cash flows of our business or other factors that trigger an
evaluation for potential impairment. The evaluation of the undiscounted results of any impairment evaluation is based upon our expected future cash flows. These
future undiscounted cash flow estimates are based on historical results, adjusted to reflect our best estimate of future markets and operating conditions, and are
updated based on actual operating trends. Historically, actual results have occasionally differed from our estimated future cash flow estimates. In the future, actual
results may differ materially from these estimates and accordingly cause impairment of our long-lived assets.

        In accordance with ASC Topic 360, we conduct an assessment of the carrying value of goodwill as of December 31 of each year, based on weighting
estimates of future cash flows from the reporting units or estimates of the market value of the reporting units, based on comparable companies. We also perform
impairment analyses whenever events or circumstances indicate that goodwill or certain intangibles may be impaired. Currently our reporting units are the same
as our operating segments. These estimates of future discounted cash flows are based upon historical results, adjusted to reflect our best estimate of future market
and operating conditions. Historically, actual results have occasionally differed from our estimated future cash flow estimates. In the future, actual results may
differ materially from these estimates. In addition, the comparable companies used to establish market value for our reporting units is based on management's
judgment. As discussed above, we expect to experience a significant reduction in revenue for the next several years. However, we do not expect a material change
in cash flows, and as a result, do not expect to recognize an impairment of our recorded goodwill.

        The timing and size of any future impairment charges involves the application of our estimates and judgment and could result in the impairment of all, or
substantially all, of our goodwill, intangible assets or other long-lived assets.

    Computer Software Development Costs

        Certain computer software development costs are capitalized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Capitalization of computer software
development costs begins upon the establishment of technological feasibility. In accordance with ASC 985-20, "Costs of Software to Be Sold, Leased, or
Marketed," we define the establishment of technological feasibility as the completion of a detail
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program design. Amortization of capitalized computer software development costs is provided on a product-by-product basis using (a) the greater of the amount
computed using the ratio that current gross revenue for a product bears to total of current and anticipated future gross revenue for that product or (b) the straight-
line method, beginning upon commercial release of the product, and continuing over the remaining estimated economic life of the product, not to exceed three
years. Software for internal use is capitalized in accordance with ASC 350-40, "Intangibles Goodwill and Other—Internal Use Software." At each balance sheet
date, we evaluate the unamortized capitalized software costs for potential impairment by assessing our ability to recover the remaining capitalized costs in light of
past and future product revenue.

    Loss Contingencies

        The outcomes of legal proceedings and claims brought against us are subject to significant uncertainty. We accrue estimated liabilities for loss contingencies
arising from claims, assessments, litigation and other sources when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the claim, assessment or
damages can be reasonably estimated. Disclosure of a contingency is required if there is at least a reasonable possibility that a loss has been incurred. In
determining whether a loss should be accrued we evaluate, among other factors, the degree of probability of an unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a
reasonable estimate of the amount of loss. Change in these factors could materially impact our consolidated financial statements.

        Under the terms of substantially all of our license agreements, we have agreed to indemnify customers for costs and damages arising from claims against
such customers based on, among other things, allegations that our software products infringe the intellectual property rights of a third party. In most cases, in the
event of an infringement claim, we retain the right to procure for the customer the right to continue using the software product or to replace or modify the
software product to eliminate the infringement while providing substantially equivalent functionality. If neither of those actions can be reasonably achieved, we
may terminate the license agreement and provide a refund to the customer. These indemnification provisions are accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic
460. The likelihood that we will be required to make refunds to customers under these indemnification provisions is considered remote. In most cases, and where
legally enforceable, the indemnification refund is limited to the amount of the license fees paid by the customer.

    Accounting for Income Taxes

        We utilize the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Accounting for Income Taxes. Under this
method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates and statutes that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets
can result from unused operating losses, and research and development and foreign tax credit carryforwards and deductions recorded for financial statement
purposes prior to them being deductable on a tax return. Valuation allowances are provided against net deferred tax assets if, based upon the available evidence, it
is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income and the reversal of taxable temporary differences. We consider, among other available information, scheduled reversals of
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, limitations on the availability of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, and other evidence
assessing the potential realization of deferred tax assets. Adjustments to the valuation allowance are included in the tax provision in our consolidated statements
of operations in the period they become known or can be estimated.

        Significant management judgment is required in determining any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets and liabilities. The valuation
allowance is based on our estimates of taxable
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income for jurisdictions in which we operate and the period over which our deferred tax assets may be recoverable. Historically, our U.S. taxable income has been
unpredictable and highly dependent upon closing a small number of large license transactions, the loss of which would result in a pre-tax loss.

        With the adoption of our new aspenONE licensing model, we expect to recognize significantly lower revenue over the near term, which will result in
substantial pre-tax losses. Consequently, we have concluded that it is appropriate to maintain our U.S. valuation allowance. When our U.S. tax profitability
becomes more predictable we may reverse some or all of the valuation allowance of $63.5 million related to our U.S. net deferred tax assets. Any such reversal
would be recorded as an income tax benefit in the consolidated statements of operations in the period when the utilization of deferred tax assets is determined to
be more likely than not.

        For fiscal 2010, our income tax provision included amounts determined under the provisions of FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions (currently
included as provisions of ASC Topic 740), which was adopted as of July 1, 2007 and is intended to satisfy additional income tax assessments, including interest
and penalties, that could result from any tax return positions for which the likelihood of sustaining the position on audit does not meet a threshold of "more likely
than not." The tax accrual included penalties and interest, which were recorded as a component of our income tax expense. Tax liabilities under FIN 48 were
recorded as a component of our income taxes payable and other non-current liabilities balance and totaled $23.4 million as of June 30, 2010. The ultimate amount
of taxes due will not be known until examinations are completed and settled or the audit periods are closed by statute.

        Our U.S. and foreign tax returns are subject to periodic compliance examinations by various local and national tax authorities through periods defined by the
tax code in the applicable jurisdiction. The years prior to 2007 are closed in the United States, although the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards and tax
credits generated in earlier periods will keep these periods open for examination. Similarly, the years prior to 2008 are closed in the United Kingdom, although
the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards generated in earlier periods will keep the periods open for examination. Our Canadian subsidiaries are subject to
audit from 2007 forward, and certain other of our international subsidiaries are subject to audit from 2003 forward. In connection with examinations of tax filings,
tax contingencies can arise from differing interpretations of applicable tax laws and regulations relative to the amount, timing or proper inclusion or exclusion of
revenue and expenses in taxable income or loss. For periods that remain subject to audit, we have asserted and unasserted potential assessments that are subject to
final tax settlements.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

        In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which enhances
existing guidance for measuring assets and liabilities at fair value. ASC Topic 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and
expands disclosure about fair value measurements. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB
permitted companies to partially defer the effective date of ASC Topic 820 for one year for nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at
fair value in the financial statements on a nonrecurring basis. We adopted ASC Topic 820 on July 1, 2008. The adoption of ASC Topic 820 did not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements. In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update, or ASU, No. 2010-06, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820): Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements. This ASU requires new disclosures including significant
transfers into and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and a reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements including purchases, sales,
issuances, and settlements on a gross basis. It also clarifies existing disclosures regarding the level of disaggregation, inputs and valuation techniques. We adopted
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ASU No. 2010-06 during the third quarter of fiscal 2010 and it did not have a material impact on our financial operations, results of operations or cash flows.

        In May 2009, the FASB issued ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events. ASC Topic 855 establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events
that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. ASC Topic 855 is effective for interim and annual
periods ending after June 15, 2009. We adopted ASC Topic 855 on April 1, 2009. The adoption of ASC Topic 855 did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements. In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-09, Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disclosure Requirements. As a
result of ASU No. 2010-09, ASC Topic 855 no longer requires entities to disclose the date through which subsequent events have occurred. We adopted ASU
No. 2010-09 during the third quarter of fiscal 2010. The adoption of ASU No. 2010-09 did not have a material impact on our financial operations, results of
operations or cash flows.

        In December 2007, the FASB issued ASC Topic 810, Consolidation, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in
subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest, changes in a
parent's ownership interest and the valuation of retained noncontrolling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. The authoritative guidance also
establishes reporting requirements that provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of
the noncontrolling owners. ASC Topic 810 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. We adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 810 as of
July 1, 2009. The adoption of ASC Topic 810 did not have a material impact on our financial operations, results of operations or cash flows as there were no
minority interests reported as of June 30, 2010.

        In April 2008, the FASB issued additional authoritative guidance to ASC Topic 350-30, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—General Intangibles Other Than
Goodwill. The guidance amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under ASC Topic 350. The updated guidance was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. We adopted the
provisions of our new guidance as of July 1, 2009. The adoption of our new provisions did not have a material impact on our financial operations, results of
operations or cash flows, due to the immaterial value of intangibles as of June 30, 2010 and 2009.

        In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles—a replacement of FASB Statement No. 162. SFAS No. 168 stipulates the FASB Accounting Standards Codification is the source of authoritative
GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities. SFAS No. 168 is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual
periods ending after September 15, 2009. We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 168 on July 1, 2009. The implementation of this standard did not have a
material impact on our financial operations, results of operations or cash flows.

        In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets. SFAS No. 166 removes the concept of a qualifying special
purpose entity from ASC Topic 860 and removes the exception from applying FASB Interpretation No. 46(R). This statement also clarifies the requirements for
isolation and limitations on portions of financial assets that are eligible for sale accounting. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2009. We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 166 on July 1, 2010. The adoption of SFAS No. 166 did not have a material impact on our financial
operations, results of operations or cash flows.

        In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R). SFAS No. 167 amends the consolidation guidance applicable
to variable interest entities and affects the overall consolidation analysis under FASB Interpretation No. 46(R). SFAS No. 167 is effective for fiscal
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years beginning after November 15, 2009. We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 167 on July 1, 2010. The adoption of SFAS No. 167 did not have a material
impact on our financial operations, results of operations or cash flows.

        In September 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-13 (previously Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 08-1, Revenue Arrangements with
Multiple Deliverables). ASU No. 2009-13 superseded EITF 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables, to eliminate the requirement that all
undelivered elements have VSOE or third-party evidence before an entity can recognize the portion of an overall arrangement fee that is attributable to items that
already have been delivered. In the absence of VSOE or third-party evidence of the standalone selling price for one or more delivered or undelivered elements in
a multiple-element arrangement, entities will be required to estimate the selling prices of those elements. The overall arrangement fee will be allocated to each
element (both delivered and undelivered items) based on their relative selling prices, regardless of whether those selling prices are evidenced by VSOE or third-
party evidence or are based on the entity's estimated selling price. Application of the "residual method" of allocating an overall arrangement fee between
delivered and undelivered elements will no longer be permitted upon adoption of ASU 2009-13. Additionally, the new guidance will require entities to disclose
more information about their multiple-element revenue arrangements. ASU No. 2009-13 is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or
materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted. We adopted ASU No. 2009-13 on July 1, 2010. We do not
expect the adoption of ASU No. 2009-13 to have a material effect on our financial operations, results of operations or cash flows.

        In September 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-14 (previously EITF 09-3, Certain Revenue Arrangements that Include Software Elements). ASU
No. 2009-14 amends the scope of software revenue recognition to exclude tangible products that contain both software and non-software components that
function together to deliver a product's essential functionality. ASU No. 2009-14 is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially
modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted. We adopted ASU No. 2009-14 on July 1, 2010. The adoption of ASU
No. 2009-14 did not have a material effect on our financial operations, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 7A.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. 

        In the ordinary course of conducting business, we are exposed to certain risks associated with potential changes in market conditions. These market risks
include changes in currency exchange rates and interest rates. In order to manage the volatility of our more significant market risks, we may enter into derivative
financial instruments such as forward currency exchange contracts.

Foreign Currency Exposure

        In fiscal 2010, 24% of our total revenue was denominated in a currency other than the U.S. dollar. In addition, certain of our operating costs incurred outside
the United States are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar.

        Foreign currency risk arises primarily from the net difference between (a) non-U.S. dollar receipts from customers outside the United States and (b) non-U.S.
dollar operating costs for subsidiaries in foreign countries. Although it was our historical practice to hedge the majority of our non-U.S. dollar receipts, beginning
in late fiscal 2008 we revised this practice to evaluate the need for hedges based on only the net exposure to foreign currencies. We measure our net exposure to
each currency for which we have either cash inflows or outflows.

        During fiscal 2010 and 2009, our largest exposures to foreign exchange rates existed primarily with the Euro, Pound Sterling, Canadian dollar, and Japanese
Yen against the U.S. dollar. Based on the anticipated net exposures to these currencies, we believe that our foreign currency risk is not large
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enough to warrant hedging, and we therefore had no foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding at June 30, 2010 or 2009.

        During fiscal 2010 and 2009, we recorded $2.6 million and $1.8 million, respectively, of net foreign currency exchange losses related to the settlement and
remeasurement of transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of our operating units. Our analysis of operating results transacted in
various foreign currencies indicated that a hypothetical 10% change in the foreign currency exchange rates could have increased or decreased the consolidated
results of operations by $1.5 million for fiscal 2010 and by $4.7 million for fiscal 2009.

    Investment Portfolio

        We do not use derivative financial instruments in our investment portfolio. We place our investments in instruments that meet high credit quality standards,
as specified in our investment policy guidelines. We do not expect any material loss with respect to our investment portfolio from changes in market interest rates
or credit losses, as our investments consist primarily of money market accounts. At June 30, 2010, all of the instruments in our investment portfolio were included
in cash and cash equivalents.

Item 8.    Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 

        The following consolidated financial statements specified by this Item, together with the reports thereon of KPMG LLP, are presented following Item 15 of
this Form 10-K:

Item 9.    Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. 

        None.
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Item 9A.    Controls and Procedures. 

a)    Disclosure Controls and Procedures

        Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of June 30, 2010. The term "disclosure controls and procedures," as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act,
means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or
submits under the Securities Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms.
Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a
company in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company's management, including its
principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management recognizes that any
controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives, and management
necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls
and procedures as of June 30, 2010, and due to the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting described in our accompanying
Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that, as of such date, our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective.

b)    Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

        Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for our company. Internal control over
financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act, as a process designed by, or under the supervision
of, a company's principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by the company's board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and includes those policies and procedures that:

• pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; 

• provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and 

• provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

        Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

        Our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
as of June 30, 2010. In connection with this assessment, we identified the following material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting as of June 30,
2010. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
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control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. In making this assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission in Internal Control—An Integrated Framework (September 1992). Because of the material weaknesses described below, management
concluded that, as of June 30, 2010, our internal control over financial reporting was not effective.

    •    Inadequate and ineffective controls over income tax accounting and disclosure

        We did not have adequate design or operation of controls that provide reasonable assurance that the accounting for income taxes and related disclosures were
prepared in accordance with GAAP. Specifically, we did not have sufficient staffing and technical expertise in the tax function to provide adequate review and
control with respect to the (a) foreign subsidiary tax provisions and related accruals; (b) complete and accurate recording of deferred tax assets and liabilities due
to differences in accounting treatment for book and tax purposes; and (c) complete and accurate recording of income tax accounting entries and corresponding tax
provisions and accruals.

        This material weakness contributed to material post-closing adjustments which have been reflected in the financial statements for fiscal 2010. These
adjustments resulted in changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, accrued tax liability, income tax expense, retained earnings and related disclosures.

    •    Inadequate and ineffective controls over the recognition of professional services revenue

        We did not have adequate controls that provided reasonable assurance that professional services revenue was recorded in accordance with GAAP.
Specifically, we did not have: (a) appropriately documented policies and procedures, and adequately designed or effectively operating review controls to ensure
that professional services revenue would be recorded consistently in accordance with GAAP; (b) effective controls over communications between professional
services project management and corporate finance regarding matters that may have consequences to revenue recognition of professional services;
(c) appropriately designed or effectively operating review controls to ensure that professional services-related bundling arrangements were accounted for
properly, primarily concerning professional services bundled with licenses and professional services bundled with other professional services; and
(d) appropriately designed system configuration controls to ensure that data and reports generated from the system can be relied upon for the purpose of
accurately and timely recording professional services revenue in accordance with GAAP.

        KPMG LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements and the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2010. Its report appears below.

c)    Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

        As previously reported in Item 9A of our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2009, we reported material weaknesses in our internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act). As a result of those material weaknesses in our
internal control over financial reporting, our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, concluded that our internal controls
over financial reporting were not effective as of June 30, 2009. Those material weaknesses included the following:

• Inadequate and ineffective monitoring controls; 

• Inadequate and ineffective controls over the periodic financial close process; 

• Inadequate and ineffective controls over income tax accounting and disclosure; and
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• Inadequate and ineffective controls over the recognition of revenue.

        During the quarter ended June 30, 2010, no changes other than those in conjunction with certain remediation efforts described below, were identified to our
internal control over financial reporting that materially affected, or were reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

d)    Remediation Efforts

        We determined that the following material weaknesses (reported in our Form 10-K for fiscal 2009) were remediated as of June 30, 2010:

• Inadequate and ineffective monitoring controls; 

• Inadequate and ineffective controls over the periodic financial close process; and 

• Inadequate and ineffective controls over the recognition of license, maintenance and training revenue.

        The remediation efforts in fiscal 2010 that were evidenced in the fourth quarter included the following:

• Enhanced people management to recruit and retain qualified finance professionals to help ensure the effective implementation of the key controls
and remedial actions designed to address the areas where material weaknesses were previously identified, and to help maintain the control
environment and renewed sense of accountability on an ongoing basis; 

• Enhanced monitoring and review controls to help ensure that proper accounting for all complex, non-routine transactions is researched, detailed in
memoranda and reviewed by senior management prior to recording; 

• Implemented detailed period-end closing and reporting schedules to ensure that all closing activities were properly monitored and completed in a
timely manner, including timely review of period-end account reconciliations; 

• Enhanced information technology general controls including configuration and user access review to help provide a reliable information
infrastructure and reduce the level of inefficient manual reviews and reconciliations; 

• Enhanced procedures and implemented system configuration controls to help ensure that cash flows used or provided from operating, investing
and financing activities used to compile the cash flow statement are calculated accurately; and 

• Introduced a new subscription-based license offering for our aspenONE software suite that was available as of July 9, 2009. The introduction of
this new product offering brought about a change from the upfront revenue recognition to the subscription basis revenue recognition model. This
change simplified certain business processes, decreased the complexities of our license revenue recognition, reduced the risk of license revenue
being misstated in our periodic financial reports and allowed us to successfully implement the following enhancements: 

• Integrated and automated certain order processing methods and procedures including order entry, billing and revenue recognition, to help
management maintain the level of quality and timely review of license revenue transactions; and 

• Improved system configuration to automate some critical financial reports to provide management with reliable data to record license
revenue accurately and completely.
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        In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2010, we hired senior financial management with subject matter expertise in the tax and professional services
departments. In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2010, we also started implementing the following measures to improve our internal controls over income tax
accounting and disclosure and recognition of professional services revenue. We plan to further enhance these measures in fiscal 2011.

• Redesigned our tax accounting function, process and related controls to ensure that our accounting for income taxes and related disclosures can be
completed accurately and in a timely manner; and 

• Reviewed our professional services business processes, redesigned and documented critical procedures and controls, in order to: 

• Enhance presale review to help ensure that reliable revenue accounting determinations are provided in a timely manner; 

• Enhance management monitoring of project status to ensure that all data that has revenue recognition impact are available and reviewed
for the purpose of recording professional services revenue completely, accurately and in a timely manner; 

• Ensure that multiple-element arrangements where services are bundled with a license or other services arrangements are properly
accounted for; and 

• Automate project accounting to have appropriately designed system configuration controls to ensure that data and reports generated from
the system can be relied upon for the purpose of accurately and timely recording revenue in accordance with GAAP.

e)    Remediation Plans

        Management, in coordination with the input, oversight and support of the audit committee of our board of directors, has identified the above-mentioned
measures to strengthen our internal control over financial reporting and to address the material weaknesses described above. We began implementing these
measures in the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2010. We expect these remedial actions to be effectively implemented in fiscal 2011 and to successfully
remediate material weaknesses that are reported within this Form 10-K by the end of fiscal 2011.

        If the remedial measures described above are insufficient to address any of the identified material weaknesses or are not implemented effectively, or if
additional deficiencies arise in the future, material misstatements in our interim or annual financial statements may occur in the future. Among other things, any
unremediated material weaknesses could result in material post-closing adjustments in future financial statements. Furthermore, any such unremediated material
weaknesses could have the effects described above in "Item 1A. Risk Factors—In preparing our consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2010, our
management identified two material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, and our failure to effectively remedy these or other material
weaknesses could result in material misstatements in our financial statements and the loss of investors' confidence in our reported financial information."
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Aspen Technology, Inc.:

        We have audited Aspen Technology, Inc.'s and subsidiaries (the "Company") internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2010, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting (Item 9A). Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

        We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

        A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

        Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

        A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Material weaknesses have
been identified and included in management's assessment related to the following:

• Inadequate and ineffective controls over income tax accounting and disclosure 

• Inadequate and ineffective controls over the recognition of professional services revenue

        We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet
of the Company as of June 30, 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity (deficit) and comprehensive income (loss), and
cash flows for the year then ended. These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of
the 2010 consolidated

80



Table of Contents

financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated September 1, 2010, which expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements.

        In our opinion, because of the effect of the aforementioned material weaknesses on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company
has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
September 1, 2010

Item 9B.    Other Information. 

        None.
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PART III 

Item 10.    Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance. 

Executive Officers and Directors

    Biographical Information

        The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers and directors, including their ages, as of August 16, 2010:

        Mark E. Fusco has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since January 2005 and as one of our directors since 2003. Mr. Fusco served as
president and chief operating officer of Ajilon Consulting, an IT consulting firm, from May 2002 to January 2005, and as executive vice president of Ajilon
Consulting from 1999 to 2002. Mr. Fusco was a co-founder of Software Quality Partners, an IT consulting firm specializing in software quality assurance and
testing that was acquired by Ajilon Consulting in 1999, and served as president of Software Quality Partners from 1994 to 1999. From 1994 to 1999, Mr. Fusco
also served as president of Analysis and Computer Systems, Inc., a producer of simulation and test equipment for digital communications in the defense industry.
Mr. Fusco was a professional ice hockey player for the Hartford Whalers of the National Hockey League, and was a member of the 1984 U.S. Olympic ice
hockey team. He holds a B.A. in Economics from Harvard College and an M.B.A. from the Harvard Graduate School of Business Administration. We believe
Mr. Fusco's qualifications to serve on our board of directors include his extensive knowledge of our business, his experience in founding and building technology
companies as well as his corporate vision and operational knowledge, which provide strategic guidance to the board of directors. As our President and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Fusco provides essential insight and guidance to our board of directors from an insider perspective of our day-to-day operations. In
addition, Mr. Fusco's experience in senior management positions at various other companies brings beneficial leadership and operational experience to our board
of directors.

        Mark P. Sullivan has served as our Executive Vice President since August 2010 and Chief Financial Officer since July 2009. Mr. Sullivan previously served
as our Senior Vice President from July 2009 to July 2010. He served as a financial consultant to our company from March 2009 through June 2009. From 1994 to
December 2008, Mr. Sullivan served in various financial executive positions at Fidelity Investments, a diversified financial services company. From 1987 to
1993, he served as Chief Operating Officer and Principal Finance and Accounting Officer at Westerbeke Corporation, a manufacturer of generators, diesel
propulsion engines and other power solutions for commercial and recreational marine applications. During 1987, he served as Consulting Manager in the
Business Investigatory Services group of Coopers & Lybrand Company, a public accounting and professional services firm which merged with Price Waterhouse
in 1998 to form PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. From 1980 to 1987, he held a number of financial leadership roles with Analog Devices, Inc., a manufacturer of
analog,
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Name  Age  Position
Mark E. Fusco   49 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Mark P. Sullivan   54 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Antonio J. Pietri   45 Executive Vice President, Field Operations
Manolis E. Kotzabasakis   51 Executive Vice President, Sales and Strategy
Frederic G. Hammond   50 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Donald P. Casey   64 Director
Gary E. Haroian   58 Director
Stephen M. Jennings   49 Director
Joan C. McArdle   58 Director
David M. McKenna   43 Director
Michael Pehl   49 Director
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mixed-signal and digital signal processing integrated circuits used in industrial, communication, computer and consumer applications. He holds a B.A. from
Middlebury College and an M.S. in Management from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

        Antonio J. Pietri has served as our Executive Vice President, Field Operations since July 2007. Mr. Pietri served as our Senior Vice President and Managing
Director for our Asia-Pacific region from 2002 to June 2007 and held various other positions with our company from 1996 until 2002. From 1992 to 1996, he was
at Setpoint Systems, Inc., which we acquired, and before that he worked at ABB Simcon and AECTRA Refining and Marketing, Inc. He holds an M.B.A. from
the University of Houston and a B.S. in Chemical Engineering from the University of Tulsa.

        Manolis E. Kotzabasakis has served as our Executive Vice President, Sales and Strategy since August 2010. Mr. Kotzabasakis served as our Senior Vice
President, Sales and Strategy from July 2007 to July 2010; our Senior Vice President, Worldwide Sales and Business Development from January 2005 to June
2007; our Senior Vice President, Marketing and Strategy from July 2004 to December 2004; our Senior Vice President, Engineering Business Unit from
September 2002 to June 2004; Vice President of our Aspen Engineering Suite of Products, Research and Development from 1998 to 2002; and Director of our
Advanced Process Design Group from 1997 to 1998. He holds a B.Sc. in Chemical Engineering from the National Technical University of Athens and an M.Sc.
and Ph.D. in Chemical Engineering from the University of Manchester Institute of Science and Technology.

        Frederic G. Hammond has served as our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since July 2005. From February to June 2005, Mr. Hammond
was a partner at the law firm of Hinckley, Allen & Snyder LLP in Boston, Massachusetts. From 1999 through August 2004, Mr. Hammond served as vice
president, business affairs and general counsel of Gomez Advisors, Inc., a performance management and benchmarking technology services firm. From 1992 to
1999, Mr. Hammond served as general counsel of Avid Technology, Inc., a provider of digital media creation, management and distribution solutions. Prior to
1992, Mr. Hammond was an attorney with the law firm of Ropes & Gray LLP in Boston, Massachusetts. He holds a B.A. from Yale College and a J.D. from
Boston College Law School.

        Donald P. Casey has served as one of our directors since 2004. Since 2001, Mr. Casey has been an information strategy and operations consultant to
technology and financial services companies. From 2000 to 2001, Mr. Casey served as president and chief operating officer of Exodus Communications, Inc., an
Internet infrastructure services provider. From 1991 to 1999, Mr. Casey served as chief technology officer and president of Wang Global, Inc. Mr. Casey
previously held executive management positions at Lotus Development Corporation, Apple Computer, Inc. and International Business Machines Corporation. He
holds a B.S. in Mathematics from St. Francis College. We believe Mr. Casey's qualifications to serve on our board of directors include his many years of
experience in the software industry, much of it with business software companies. His experience includes executive management and development roles. We
believe Mr. Casey's extensive industry knowledge and industry perspective are beneficial for the board of directors.

        Gary E. Haroian has served as one of our directors since 2003. From 2000 to 2002, Mr. Haroian served in various positions, including as chief financial
officer, chief operating officer and chief executive officer, at Bowstreet, Inc., a provider of software application tools. From 1997 to 2000, Mr. Haroian served as
senior vice president of finance and administration and chief financial officer of Concord Communications, Inc., a network management software company. From
1983 to 1996, Mr. Haroian served in various positions, including chief financial officer, president, chief operating officer and chief executive officer, at Stratus
Computer, Inc., a provider of continuous availability solutions. Mr. Haroian currently serves as a director of A123 Systems, a company that designs, develops,
manufactures and sells advanced, rechargeable lithium-ion batteries and battery systems. He also serves as a director of Network Engines, Inc., a provider of
server appliance solutions, Phase
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Forward Incorporated, a provider of clinical trials and drug safety software, and Unica Corporation, a global provider of enterprise marketing management
software. Mr. Haroian previously served on the board of directors of AuthorizeNet. Holdings (formerly known as Lightbridge, Inc.), a provider of transaction and
payment processing services from 2005 to 2007, and Embarcadero Technologies, Inc., a provider of database management solutions from 2004 to 2006. Prior to
1983, Mr. Haroian was a Certified Public Accountant. He holds a B.A. in Economics and a B.B.A. in Accounting from the University of Massachusetts Amherst.
We believe that Mr. Haroian's qualifications to serve on our board of directors include his extensive advisory experience to various emerging technology
companies, his service on the boards of directors of other public companies and his financial and accounting expertise.

        Stephen M. Jennings has served as our Chairman of the Board since January 2005 and as one of our directors since 2000. Mr. Jennings has been the
Managing Partner of The Monitor Group, a strategy consulting firm since 2006, and has served as a director there since 1996. He also serves as a director of LTX-
Credence Corporation, a semiconductor test equipment manufacturer. He holds a B.A. in Economics from Dartmouth College and an M.A. (Oxon) from Oxford
University, where he studied Philosophy, Politics and Economics as a Marshall Scholar. We believe Mr. Jennings's qualifications to serve on our board of
directors include his experience in building companies from earliest stages of growth to mature companies. As a consultant in the technology sector and other
industries, he brings valuable different perspectives to the board of directors.

        Joan C. McArdle has served as one of our directors since 1994. Ms. McArdle has served as a senior vice president of Massachusetts Capital Resource
Company, an investment company, since 2001, and served as a vice president of Massachusetts Capital Resource Company from 1985 to 2001. She holds an A.B.
in English from Smith College. We believe Ms. McArdle's qualifications to serve on our board of directors include her experience in building and financing
companies from earliest stages of growth to mature technology companies. In addition, Ms. McArdle's knowledge of the technology industry and venture
experience enable her to provide the board of directors with valuable strategic advice.

        David M. McKenna has served as one of our directors since 2006. Since January 2008, Mr. McKenna has been a managing Partner of Advent International
Corporation, a private equity firm. From 2003 to December 2007, Mr. McKenna was a Managing Director at the firm. From 1992 to 2000, he held various
positions with Advent International. Prior to returning to Advent International, Mr. McKenna was a principal at Bain Capital from 2000 to 2003. He holds a B.A.
in English from Dartmouth College. We believe Mr. McKenna's qualifications to serve on our board of directors include his experience in building companies
from earliest stages of growth to mature technology companies. In addition, Mr. McKenna's knowledge of software industry trends, international markets and
private equity experience enable him to provide the board of directors with valuable strategic advice.

        Michael Pehl has served as one of our directors since 2003. Mr. Pehl has been a partner of North Bridge Growth Equity, a growth equity fund, since
February 2007. Before joining North Bridge, Mr. Pehl was an operating partner of Advent International Corporation from 2001 to December 2006. From 1999 to
2000, Mr. Pehl held various positions, including president, chief operating officer and director, at Razorfish, Inc., a strategic, creative and technology solutions
provider for digital businesses. From 1996 to 1999, Mr. Pehl was chairman and chief executive officer of International Integration, Inc. (i-Cube), which was
acquired by Razorfish, Inc. Prior to joining i-Cube, Mr. Pehl was a founder of International Consulting Solutions, Inc., an SAP implementation and business
process consulting firm. We believe Mr. Pehl's qualifications to serve on our board of directors include his deep experience in building companies from the
earliest stages of growth to mature technology companies, as a seasoned investor in various technology companies, and his insight into capital formation and
operational development matters.
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    Family Relationships

        There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.

    Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

        Neither Donald Casey nor Stephen Jennings, the members of the compensation committee, is or has ever been an officer or employee of our company or any
of our subsidiaries, nor has been party to any related person transaction involving our company. None of our executive officers serves as a member of the board of
directors or compensation committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving as members of our board of directors or compensation
committee.

Board of Directors

    Composition

        The board of directors currently consists of seven members. The board is divided into three classes, with the classes serving for staggered three-year terms.
The members of the classes are as follows:

• the class I directors are Mark Fusco and Gary Haroian, and their terms will expire at the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders; 

• the class II directors are Donald Casey, Stephen Jennings and Michael Pehl, and their terms will expire at the 2010 annual meeting of
stockholders, which is expected to be held in December 2010; and 

• the class III directors are Joan McArdle and David McKenna and their terms will expire at the 2011 annual meeting of stockholders.

        Directors hold office until their successors have been elected and qualified or until the earlier of their resignation or removal.

        All of the members of the board of directors are independent as defined under the rules of The NASDAQ Global Select Market with the exception of
Mr. Fusco, who serves as our president and chief executive officer.

    Committees

        The board of directors has established an audit committee, a compensation committee, and a nominating and corporate governance committee. All of the
members of each of these standing committees are independent as defined under the rules of The NASDAQ Global Select Market and, in the case of the audit
committee, the independence requirements set forth in Rule 10A-3 under the Securities Exchange Act.

Audit Committee

        The members of the audit committee are Donald Casey, Gary Haroian and Joan McArdle. Mr. Haroian chairs the audit committee. The board of directors has
determined that all the members of the audit committee are independent directors as defined under NASDAQ rules, including the independence requirements set
forth in Rule 10A-3 under the Securities Exchange Act. The board has determined that Mr. Haroian is an "audit committee financial expert" as defined in
applicable SEC rules. The responsibilities of the audit committee include:

• appointing, approving the compensation of, and overseeing the independence of our independent registered public accounting firm;
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• oversight of our independent registered public accounting firm, including the receipt and consideration of reports from such firm; 

• reviewing and discussing our audited financial statements and related disclosures with management and our independent registered public
accounting firm; 

• coordination of the board's oversight of our internal accounting controls for financial reporting and our disclosure controls and procedures, as well
as the administration of our code of business conduct and ethics; 

• overseeing our internal audit function; 

• establishing policies for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints and concerns regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or
auditing matters; 

• meeting independently with members of our internal auditing staff and our independent registered public accounting firm; 

• receiving and reviewing the written disclosures and the letter from the independent registered public accounting firm required by the applicable
requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent registered public accounting firm's communication
with the Audit Committee concerning independence and discussing with the independent registered public accounting firm any disclosed
relationships between them and our company; and 

• preparing the audit committee report for our annual proxy statement required by SEC rules.

Compensation Committee

        The members of the compensation committee are Donald Casey and Stephen Jennings. Mr. Casey chairs the compensation committee. The board of directors
has determined that all the members of the compensation committee are independent directors as defined under NASDAQ rules. The purpose of the compensation
committee is to discharge the responsibilities of the board of directors relating to compensation of executive officers. Specific responsibilities of the compensation
committee include:

• annually reviewing and approving, or making recommendations to the independent members of the board with respect to, corporate goals and
objectives relevant to chief executive officer and other executive officer compensation; 

• making recommendations to the independent members of the board with respect to, the compensation of our chief executive officer and chief
financial officer and reviewing and approving the compensation of our other executive officers; 

• overseeing an evaluation of executive officers; 

• overseeing and administering cash and equity incentive plans; 

• reviewing and making recommendations to the board with respect to director compensation; 

• reviewing and discussing annually with management our "Compensation Discussion and Analysis"; and 

• preparing the compensation committee report required by SEC rules.

86



Table of Contents

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

        The members of our nominating and corporate governance committee are Donald Casey, Gary Haroian, Stephen Jennings and Joan McArdle. Mr. Jennings
chairs this committee. Our nominating and corporate governance committee's responsibilities include:

• identifying individuals qualified to become members of the board of directors; 

• recommending to the board the persons to be nominated for election as directors and to each of the board committees; 

• developing and recommending to the board corporate governance principles; and 

• overseeing an annual evaluation of the board.

    Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

        We have adopted a written code of business conduct and ethics that applies to our directors, officers and employees, including our principal executive officer,
principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, and persons performing similar functions. We have posted a copy of the code of business
conduct and ethics in the corporate governance section of our website, www.aspentech.com. We intend to satisfy disclosure requirements regarding amendments
to, or waivers from, our code by posting such information on our website.

Incorporation by Reference

        Certain information required under this Item 10 will be incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement for our 2010 annual meeting of
stockholders under the section entitled "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance."

Item 11.    Executive Compensation. 

Director Compensation

        The following table provides information regarding the compensation paid to our non-employee members of the board of directors in fiscal 2010.
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Name  

Fees
Earned or

Paid in
Cash ($)  

Stock
Awards
($)(1)  Total($)  

Donald P. Casey  $ 201,638 $ 93,113 $ 294,751 
Gary E. Haroian   174,638  93,113  267,751 
Stephen M. Jennings   216,638  93,113  309,751 
Joan C. McArdle   164,638  93,113  257,751 
David M. McKenna   102,638  93,113  195,751 
Michael Pehl   100,138  93,113  193,251 

(1) The amounts shown represent grant date fair value calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 718 with respect to restricted stock units granted to the directors.
Each restricted stock unit was fully vested on the grant date. The aggregate number of option awards outstanding held by each of our non-employee directors
as of June 30, 2010 was as follows: Mr. Casey, 48,000; Mr. Haroian, 48,000; Mr. Jennings, 75,548; Ms. McArdle, 75,548; Mr. McKenna, 24,000; and
Mr. Pehl, 60,000.



Table of Contents

        In fiscal 2010, we paid our non-employee directors an annual fee of $25,000 for their services as directors, and we paid annual retainers as set forth in the
table below. All annual retainers are payable in monthly installments.

        We also paid each director $2,500 for participation in our quarterly board meetings, and $2,000 for participation in all other board or committee meetings of
at least one hour duration. All participation fees are payable quarterly.

        In January 2008 the board determined to grant each non-employee director options to purchase 21,000 shares of our common stock on the second trading
day immediately following our becoming current in our SEC filings. Of those shares, 15,000 would vest immediately on the date of grant and the balance would
vest in two equal quarterly installments on the last business day of the two quarters following the date of grant. The options would have an exercise price equal to
the closing price of our common stock on the business day immediately preceding the date of grant and would have a term of ten years.

        In October 2009 the board determined to supersede the aforementioned January 2008 resolution and resolved instead to grant 9,750 restricted stock units to
each non-employee director contemporaneously with the next annual program grant to our employees. The restricted stock units were granted on November 9,
2009, and were fully vested on the grant date. The board further resolved that each non-employee director be paid cash in an amount equal to 5,250 times the
closing price per share of our common stock on the last trading day before the grant date, which was the date of program grants to our employees. Payment was
made no later than thirty days following date of grant.
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Position  Retainer  
Chairman of the Board  $ 75,000 
Audit Committee Chair   30,000 
Audit Committee Member   20,000 
Compensation Committee Chair   15,000 
Compensation Committee Member   7,500 
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        We require our directors to own shares of our common stock with a dollar value equal to their annual retainer, which they have a period of time to achieve.

Executive Compensation

    Compensation Discussion and Analysis

        This Compensation Discussion and Analysis provides information regarding our compensation programs and policies for fiscal 2010 for our named
executive officers, or NEOs, who consist of:

• Mark Fusco, our President and Chief Executive Officer; 

• Mark Sullivan, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; 

• Antonio Pietri, our Executive Vice President, Field Operations; 

• Manolis Kotzabasakis, our Executive Vice President, Sales and Strategy; and 

• Frederic Hammond, our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary.

Objectives and Philosophy of Our Executive Compensation Program

        Our compensation philosophy for our executive officers is based on a desire to ensure sustained financial and operating performance, and to reward and
retain talent that we believe is critical to our ongoing success. We believe that the compensation of our executive officers should align their interests with those of
our stockholders and focus behavior on the achievement of both near-term corporate targets as well as long-term business objectives and strategies.

        The primary objectives of our executive compensation program are as follows:

• attract and retain talented and experienced executives in the highly competitive technology and software industries; 

• reward and retain executives whose knowledge, skills and performance are critical to our continued success, and simultaneously align their
interests with those of our stockholders by motivating them to increase stockholder value; 

• balance retention compensation with pay-for-performance compensation by ensuring that a significant portion of total compensation is determined
by financial operating results and the creation of stockholder value; and 

• motivate our executives to manage our business to meet short-term and long-term objectives and reward them appropriately for meeting or
exceeding them.

        Our compensation is also designed to allow us to attract and retain senior executives critical to our long-term success by providing competitive compensation
packages and recognizing and rewarding individual contributions, to ensure that executive compensation is aligned with corporate strategies and business
objectives, and to promote the achievement of key strategic and financial performance measures.

    Components of Our Executive Compensation Program

        To achieve these objectives, we use a mix of compensation elements, including:

• base salary; 

• annual performance-based and discretionary cash bonuses; 

• long-term equity incentives in the form of stock options and restricted stock units;
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• employee benefits; and 

• severance and change-of-control benefits.

        In determining the amount and form of these compensation elements, we may consider a number of factors, including the following:

• compensation levels paid by companies in our peer group, with a particular focus on target levels for cash compensation based on cash
compensation targets of similarly situated officers employed by the peer companies, as we believe this approach helps us to hire and retain the best
possible talent while at the same time maintaining a reasonable and responsible cost structure; 

• corporate performance, particularly as reflected in achievement of key corporate strategic, financial and operational goals such as growth and
penetration of customer base and financial and operational performance, as we believe this encourages our NEOs to focus on achieving our
business objectives; 

• the need to motivate executives to address particular business challenges unique to a particular year; 

• internal pay equity of the compensation paid to one NEO as compared to another, as we believe this contributes to retention and a spirit of
teamwork among our executives; 

• broader economic conditions, in order to ensure that our pay strategies are effective yet responsible, particularly in the face of any unanticipated
consequences of the broader economy on our business; and 

• individual negotiations with NEOs, particularly in connection with their initial compensation package, as these executives may be leaving
meaningful compensation opportunities at prior employers—or may be declining significant compensation opportunities at other potential
employers—in order to come work for us, as well as negotiations upon their departures, as we recognize the benefit to our stockholders of
seamless transitions.

        While our compensation committee does not have a formal policy for determining the allocation between cash and non-cash compensation, or short-term and
long-term compensation, historically the compensation committee has allocated a greater percentage of an executive's total target compensation to variable
compensation and equity compensation as they assume greater responsibility in the organization. The compensation committee determines the percentage mix of
compensation they believe is appropriate for each executive taking into account specific responsibilities within the company, the talent and expertise necessary to
achieve our corporate objectives, and specific expected performance outcomes for the year.

Role of the Compensation Committee

        The compensation committee of the board of directors oversees our executive compensation program. In this role, the compensation committee is generally
responsible for reviewing, modifying, approving and otherwise overseeing the compensation policies and practices applicable to our employees, including the
administration of our equity and employee benefit plans. As part of this responsibility, the compensation committee reviews and approves (or recommends for
approval by a majority of the independent directors), the compensation structure for our NEOs. The board is responsible for establishing corporate objectives and
targets for purposes of variable cash compensation. For fiscal 2010, the board approved the corporate objectives of global license bookings and cash flow from
operations as targets for our cash bonus plan.
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        The compensation committee historically has, at its discretion, presented to the board information regarding executive compensation matters for all
executives. Compensation matters for all executives other than the chief executive officer are approved by the compensation committee and presented to the
board for informational purposes. The compensation committee presents to the board its recommendations on compensation matters for the chief executive
officer, including base salary and target bonus levels, for approval by the independent directors. In fiscal 2010, the board approved the compensation committee's
recommendations as presented.

        As part of its deliberations, in any given year, the compensation committee reviews and considers materials such as our financial reports and projections,
operational data, tax and accounting information that set forth the total compensation that may become payable to executives in various hypothetical scenarios,
executive and director stock ownership information, our stock performance data, analyses of historical executive compensation levels and current company-wide
compensation levels, industry and peer company benchmark data, and the recommendations of our chief executive officer. The compensation committee may
review materials and advice provided by an independent compensation consultant, but did not engage any compensation consultants in determining or
recommending the amount, form or any other aspect of executive compensation for fiscal 2010.

Role of Management

        For NEOs other than our chief executive officer, the compensation committee solicits and considers the performance evaluations and compensation
recommendations submitted to the compensation committee by the chief executive officer. In the case of the chief executive officer, the board of directors (other
than the chief executive officer) evaluates his performance and determines his compensation. Mark Fusco, our chief executive officer and one of our directors,
participated in the meetings of the compensation committee related to the amount of the fiscal 2010 compensation packages for each of the NEOs, other than for
Mr. Fusco.

        Our human resources, accounting and finance, and legal departments work with our chief executive officer to design and develop compensation programs
applicable to NEOs and other senior executives that the chief executive officer recommends to the compensation committee. These departments also work with
the chief executive officer to recommend changes to existing compensation programs, to recommend financial and other performance targets to be achieved under
those programs, to prepare analyses of financial data, to prepare peer group data summaries, to prepare other compensation committee briefing materials, and
ultimately to implement the decisions of the board and the compensation committee.

Compensation Benchmarking

        The compensation committee reviews relevant market and industry practices on executive compensation to balance our need to compete for talent with our
need to maintain a reasonable and responsible cost structure, as well as with the goal of aligning the interests of the NEOs with those of our stockholders. In
making compensation decisions, the compensation committee reviewed information on practices, programs and compensation levels implemented by a peer
group selected by the compensation committee and also used as a reference point the IPAS Global Technology Survey and Culpepper Global Survey, or
collectively the other global industry survey sources. The composition of the peer group is reviewed and updated by the compensation committee annually, based
in part on recommendations of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer.
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    Peer Group

                Fiscal 2010

        The peer group selected by the compensation committee for fiscal 2010 consists of companies that are U.S. publicly-traded software companies, that have
revenue within a specified range of our revenue, have a similar business model, size (or are otherwise in the same geographical location) and that the
compensation committee believes compete with us for executive talent. At the time the compensation committee reviewed peer group data for purposes of fiscal
2010, the peer group had annual revenue of between $256 million and $1.07 billion. For fiscal 2010, the 14 companies included in the peer group were:

ANSYS, Inc.
Epicor Software Corporation

i2 Technologies, Inc.
Informatica Corporation

JDA Software Group, Inc.
Lawson Software, Inc.

Manhattan Associates, Inc.
Mentor Graphics Corporation
Nuance Communications, Inc.

Parametric Technology Corporation
Progress Software Corporation

QAD Inc.
TIBCO Software Inc.

Wind River Systems, Inc.

Compensation Positioning and Compensation Allocations

        In general, the compensation committee sets cash compensation elements as follows, with compensation above this level possible for exceptional
performance:

• base salaries at or near the 50th percentile for our peer group; and 

• target cash bonus compensation ranging from the 60th to the 75th percentile for our peer group.

        The compensation committee believes targeting each element of cash compensation at these percentiles for our peer group is necessary in order to achieve
the primary objectives, described above, of our executive compensation program. The higher percentile for target cash bonuses is intended to highly motivate our
executives to achieve the corporate financial and individual objectives that underlie our performance-based bonus plans.

        Benchmarking is not the only factor the compensation committee considers in setting either element of cash compensation. The equity compensation
element is not benchmarked to a specific peer group percentile, although peer group data, including mean and distribution data for peer company officers, are
analyzed and considered by the compensation committee in the process of determining compensation levels for NEOs. A number of other factors, such as
economic conditions, performance and individual negotiations, may play an important role (or no role) with respect to the cash or equity compensation offered to
any NEO in a given year. In setting actual compensation levels for a NEO, the compensation committee, in addition to considering peer group data, also considers
the NEO's duties and responsibilities and the NEO's ability to influence corporate performance. In addition to peer group analysis, the compensation committee
also reviews global industry survey data to confirm the reasonableness of proposed compensation levels. The compensation committee believes this general
approach helps us to compete in hiring and retaining the best possible talent while at the same time maintaining a reasonable and responsible cost structure.
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        The compensation committee considers actual realized compensation received in determining if compensation programs are meeting their objectives. It does
not, however, typically reduce compensation plan targets because of compensation realized from prior awards, in order to avoid creating an inadvertent
disincentive for exceptional performance.

Reasons for Providing and Manner of Structuring the Key Compensation Elements

    Base Salary

        The compensation committee recognizes the importance of base salary as an element of compensation that helps to attract and retain our executives. We
provide base salary as a fixed source of compensation for our executives, allowing them a degree of certainty as a significant portion of their total compensation
is "at risk" and dependent upon the achievement of financial goals and individual objectives. Base salary is used to recognize the performance, skills, knowledge,
experience and responsibilities required of all our employees, including our NEOs. We target base salary levels at approximately the 50th percentile of our peer
group.

        Historically, the compensation committee has reviewed the annual salaries for each of our NEOs on an annual basis, considering whether existing base salary
levels continue to be at approximately the 50th percentile for our peer group and other global industry survey data. In addition to considering the peer group and
other global industry survey data, the compensation committee may also, but does not always, consider other factors, including the experience, tenure and
performance of a NEO, the scope of the NEO's responsibility, the salary level negotiated by a NEO in any existing employment agreement, broader economic
conditions, our financial health, and the extent to which the compensation committee is generally satisfied with the NEO's past performance and expected future
contributions.

                Fiscal 2010

        For fiscal 2010 base salaries for our NEOs other than Mr. Sullivan, the compensation committee initially consulted the peer group and other global industry
data. Due to the current economic environment, however, the compensation committee determined that, rather than perform a detailed analysis by NEO against
the peer group and other global industry data, they would keep base salaries at their fiscal 2009 levels (as was the case for all employees), irrespective of where
the NEOs' base salaries fell against the peer group data. We hired Mr. Sullivan in July 2009 and the compensation committee recommended to the board of
directors that he be given a base salary of $300,000 for fiscal 2010, which the compensation committee believed was competitive based on his prior experience
and taking into account our peer group and other global industry survey data, and the board approved that recommendation.

    Variable Cash Compensation

        In addition to base salary, executives are eligible to earn additional cash compensation through annual (that is, short-term) variable cash bonuses. These are
intended to motivate executives to work at the highest levels of their individual abilities and to achieve company-wide operating and strategic objectives as well
as individual objectives. The compensation committee recognizes the important role that variable cash compensation plays in attracting and retaining executives
and therefore generally seeks to set target levels for variable bonuses (that is, payouts for target performance achievement) so that target cash bonus compensation
ranges from the 60th to the 75th percentile for target cash bonus compensation of similarly situated executives at our peer group.

        The compensation committee generally starts the process of determining the target bonus levels, and the individual performance goals by which performance
will be measured under the bonus programs for executives (other than the chief executive officer, whose target bonus level and individual performance goals are
set by the board of directors), in the last quarter before the start of the applicable fiscal year. Typically, in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, the compensation
committee
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considers potential individual performance measures and the target bonus percentages for the next fiscal year for executives (other than the chief executive
officer). As part of this analysis, the compensation committee considers the likely bonus payouts for the ongoing fiscal year for executives (other than the chief
executive officer) and reviews its preliminary analysis with the chief executive officer, in connection with their consideration of expected financial results for the
prior year, budgets for the applicable year and the economic forecast for the applicable year. The compensation committee also considers peer group company
data provided by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer. The chief executive officer then makes a recommendation to the compensation
committee as to the target bonuses that the other executives should be eligible to earn for the applicable year, and the compensation committee reviews those
recommendations. Generally, in the first quarter of a fiscal year, after financial results for the prior year have become available, the compensation committee
reviews and finalizes its earlier discussions regarding the structure and elements of compensation for the new fiscal year. Among other things, the board of
directors approves the corporate performance goals for the year and the compensation committee determines individual performance goals (other than goals for
the chief executive officer which are set by the board of directors).

        The process of the compensation committee and, with respect to the chief executive officer, the board of directors for establishing variable cash
compensation for fiscal 2010 was completed in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. As with base salaries for fiscal 2010, the compensation committee initially
consulted the peer group and other global industry data but, due to the current economic environment, determined not to perform a detailed analysis by NEO
against the peer group and other global industry data. Instead, the compensation committee decided to keep variable compensation targets at their fiscal 2009
levels (as was the case for all employees), irrespective of where the NEOs' target bonus amounts fell against the peer group data. In September 2009 the
compensation committee and, with respect to our chief executive officer, the board of directors approved the Executive Annual Incentive Bonus Plan for fiscal
2010, or 2010 Executive Plan, an incentive bonus plan for our executives for fiscal 2010. The participants in the 2010 Executive Plan include Mark Fusco, Mark
Sullivan, Antonio Pietri, Manolis Kotzabasakis and Frederic Hammond and those other executives who report directly to our chief executive officer.

    2010 Executive Plan

        Any amounts earned under the 2010 Executive Plan are payable in cash and directly tied to achievement of corporate financial targets and individual
performance goals. Amounts payable under the 2010 Executive Plan are based and weighted as follows:

• 65% of the overall bonus is based on our corporate achievement of target global license bookings (calculated as the net present value of license
bookings) of $200 million; and 

• 35% of the overall bonus is based on our corporate achievement of target cash flow from operations of $22.9 million.

        In connection with the 2010 Executive Plan, the board of directors selected global license bookings and cash flow from operations as the primary corporate
performance goals for fiscal 2010. The board chose these goals because it expected that, particularly in light of the implementation of our new aspenONE
licensing model, those two goals would be the best indicators of the achievement of the execution of our operating plan in fiscal 2010 and would be important to
increasing the value of our common stock, therefore aligning the financial interests of executives with those of our stockholders. The goals were based upon
targets approved by the board as part of our fiscal 2010 operating plan. In order for any bonus to be payable to any executive under either the global license
bookings or operating cash flow metric, we must achieve at least 70% of the applicable target metric. Each metric is measured and funded independently.
Accordingly, the compensation committee generally sets the target performance level for the corporate financial objectives at a level that would only be achieved
if we continued to substantially improve on our past levels of performance, and if our executives performed at very high levels. As a result, the compensation
committee believed that global license bookings and cash flow from operations targets would be difficult to reach but would be attainable with significant effort,
but would not entail taking inappropriate risks.
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        An executive must also achieve individual performance objectives established in connection with the 2010 Executive Plan. The compensation committee
established, and assessed compliance with, individual performance goals for Mark Fusco, and Mr. Fusco, as chief executive officer, developed, and assessed
compliance with, individual goals for the chief financial officer and the three other NEOs covered by the 2010 Executive Plan, subject to the compensation
committee's review. The compensation committee approved the individual performance goals for Antonio Pietri, Manolis Kotzabasakis and Frederic Hammond,
and recommended to the board approval of the goals for Messrs. Fusco and Sullivan. The board subsequently approved the individual performance goals for each
of Messrs. Fusco and Sullivan. Under the 2010 Executive Plan, each executive will receive a performance achievement rating between 80% and 100%, which
will be used as a multiplier against the funded level of each financial metric to determine a final earned bonus under each financial metric. As part of the
negotiations of initial compensation for Mr. Sullivan when he joined us in July 2009, the compensation committee agreed that payment of his target bonus would
be guaranteed for fiscal 2010.

        In fiscal 2010, performance was evaluated at mid-year and at year-end, and the bonus was allocated up to 25% to mid-year and 75% to year-end.
Achievement below 25% at mid-year can be made up by the executive at the end of year based on year-end results. The year-end calculation will also weighted
by the individual performance assessment rating.

        No award is payable to an executive under the plan if the executive's employment terminates prior to the payment date under the plan; provided that in the
event the executive's employment terminates due to death, incapacity or retirement, then any award payable will be prorated.

        In addition to awards based on the performance metrics established in the plan, the compensation committee may make discretionary awards under the plan
to eligible employees in such amounts as the committee determines are appropriate and in our best interests.

        In the first half of fiscal 2010, NEOs were eligible to earn a bonus of up to 25% of their annual bonus target under the 2010 Executive Plan. Global license
bookings and cash flow from operations targets and actual results were as follows for the first half of fiscal 2010:

        As we exceeded our global license bookings target of $82.0 million, we funded that element at 100%. Since we did not achieve at least 70% of the target
cash flow from operations, we did not fund that element of the bonus. Our NEOs received 16.25% of their annual target bonuses (or 65% of their mid-year target
bonuses) with the exception of Mr. Sullivan who was paid out at 25% of his annual target bonus consistent with his first year employment agreement for
performance during the first half of fiscal 2010.

        After the completion of fiscal 2010, NEOs were eligible to earn a bonus of up to 83.75% of their annual bonus target under the 2010 Executive Plan (other
than Mr. Sullivan who was entitled to receive 75% of his annual bonus target pursuant to the terms of his first year employment agreement). Global license
bookings and cash flow from operations targets and actual results were as follows for fiscal 2010:

        As we exceeded both of our global license bookings and cash flow targets, we funded both elements at 100% for financial performance during the balance of
fiscal 2010. As a result, our NEOs
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Plan Metric  Financial Target($)  Actual Results($)  
Global license bookings  $ 82.0 million $ 91.9 million 
Cash flow from operations   14.6 million  4.6 million 

Plan Metric  Financial Target($)  Actual Results($)  
Global license bookings  $ 200.0 million $ 249.3 million 
Cash flow from operations   22.9 million  38.6 million 
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were eligible to receive up to 83.75% of their annual target bonuses, subject to reduction by up to 20% based upon each NEO's performance against individual
performance goals set at the beginning of fiscal 2010, with the exception of Mr. Sullivan whose target bonus was guaranteed for fiscal 2010. The compensation
committee then assigned a performance achievement rating to each NEO (other than Mr. Sullivan). The compensation committee determined that each NEO
(other than Mr. Sullivan) had successfully achieved his individual performance objectives for fiscal 2010 and assigned a 100% performance rating for
achievement of the following: Mr. Fusco successfully led us to becoming a timely filer under the Exchange Act and a relisting of our securities on a national
securities exchange. In addition, Mr. Fusco successfully pursued certain growth opportunities important to our long-term success. Mr. Petri improved our
professional services organization and its offerings as well as helped us grow our services bookings. In addition, Mr. Pietri was tasked with rolling out the new
AspenONE licensing model throughout the field sales organization as well as expanding certain global strategic growth opportunities, each of which he
accomplished successfully. Mr. Kotzabasakis helped facilitate the successful adoption of the new AspenONE licensing model by identifying opportunities for the
sales operations organization, as well as focused on continued development of strategic growth opportunities. Mr. Hammond successfully managed certain
strategic litigation matters and compliance initiatives and led the reorganization of our worldwide corporate structure to achieve greater operating efficiencies.
Based on the 100% performance rating ascribed to each NEO, the compensation committee awarded our NEOs the remaining 83.75% of their target bonuses
(other than Mr. Sullivan).

        In addition, the compensation committee and, in the case of Mr. Fusco, the board of directors approved a discretionary bonus pursuant to the 2010 Executive
Plan for each NEO to recognize the annual financial performance overachievement against both the global license bookings and cash flow from operations
targets.

        The table below itemizes the amounts earned under the 2010 Executive Plan.

    Equity Compensation

        We provide a portion of our executive compensation in the form of stock options and restricted stock units that vest over time. We believe that this helps to
retain our executives and aligns their interests with those of our stockholders by allowing the executives to participate in our longer-term success through stock
price appreciation.

        Our equity award program is the primary vehicle for offering long-term incentives to our executives. We believe that equity grants help to align the interests
of our executives and our stockholders, provide our executives with a strong link to our long-term performance and also create an ownership culture. Our equity
awards typically take the form of stock options and restricted stock units. Stock options typically require significant growth in stockholder value to generate long-
term value to
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Named Executive Officer  

Fiscal 2010 Annual
Target

Cash Payment($)  

Mid-Year Actual
Cash Payment

Based on
Achievement of
Target Financial

Objectives($)  

Year-End
Actual

Cash Payment
Based on

Achievement of
Target Financial
Objectives and

Individual
Performance ($)  

Discretionary
Award Received
at Year End ($)  

Total Bonus
Received for

Fiscal 2010($)  
Mark E. Fusco  $ 700,000 $ 113,750 $ 586,250 $ 196,000 $ 896,000 
Mark P. Sullivan   175,000  43,750  131,250  49,000  224,000 
Antonio J. Pietri   275,000  44,688  230,313  77,000  352,000 
Manolis E. Kotzabasakis   260,000  42,250  217,750  72,800  332,800 
Frederic G. Hammond   140,000  22,750  117,250  39,200  179,200 
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our executives which is in line with our performance-oriented culture. In addition, the vesting feature of our equity grants is intended to further our goal of
executive retention by providing an incentive to an executive to remain in our employ during the vesting period. Restricted stock units have intrinsic value which
is important in retaining our executive talent. The compensation committee carefully considers the mix of equity instruments when determining annual equity
awards to ensure that the executive's total compensation conforms to our overall philosophy and objectives.

        In determining the size and mix of equity grants to our executives, our compensation committee considers comparative share ownership of executives in our
peer group and in the global industry survey data generally between the 50th and 75th percentiles (when available) and also considers the individual executive's
performance, contributions and level of responsibility, the executive's ability to significantly influence our growth and profitability, the amount of equity
previously awarded to the executive and the vesting status of previous equity awards. In addition, the compensation committee takes into account our company-
level performance and the recommendations of the chief executive officer other than for himself.

        We have established equity ownership guidelines of three times base salary for our chief executive officer and one times base salary for our other NEOs.

        Our equity awards typically have taken the form of stock options and restricted stock units. We typically make an initial equity award of stock options and/or
restricted stock units to new executives and an annual equity program grant in August each year as part of our overall compensation program. All grants of
options and restricted stock units to our executives are approved by the compensation committee. Equity awards for our chief executive officer are determined by
the compensation committee and then recommended to the board of directors for approval.

        We set the exercise price of all stock option grants to equal the prior trading day's closing price of our common stock. Typically, the equity awards we grant
to our executives vest pro rata over the first sixteen quarters of a ten-year option term. Vesting and exercise rights cease shortly after termination of employment
except in the case of death or disability. Prior to the exercise of an option, or vesting of a restricted stock unit, the holder has no rights as a stockholder with
respect to the shares subject to such equity awards, including voting rights and the right to receive dividends or dividend equivalents.

        As part of executive compensation planning for fiscal years 2008, 2009 and 2010, the compensation committee also made recommendations, following the
closing of the applicable prior fiscal year, for annual equity grants for our NEOs to the board of directors. The compensation committee's grant recommendations
were made after consideration and discussion about each individual's prior year performance, company performance for the year in question, and a review of peer
group and global industry survey data. The compensation committee considered each of these parameters for each of our NEOs and determined both the size of
the equity awards and equity mix (the relative balance of options and restricted stock units). However, we became delinquent in our SEC filings in fiscal 2008 and
remained delinquent throughout fiscal 2009 because of certain accounting errors we had identified. Our failure to timely file reports under the Securities
Exchange Act resulted in a lack of an effective registration statement to register the common stock underlying the contemplated equity awards, so we suspended
equity grants until we became current.

Fiscal 2010 Equity Awards

        When we initially became current with our Securities Exchange Act filings on November 9, 2009, the compensation committee's prior recommendations
were reexamined. The compensation committee determined it was appropriate to recommend the same equity awards previously contemplated to the board of
directors for approval. At the time of grant, each equity award was given a separate vesting schedule that provided for upfront vesting of a portion of the grant to
offset the delay in our ability to make the equity awards in the applicable previously contemplated fiscal year. The remainder of each
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grant was scheduled to vest quarterly on the last business day of each fiscal quarter (beginning March 31, 2010) for a total vesting timeframe of 16 quarters for
each grant. On November 9, 2009, we granted stock options and restricted stock units with applicable vesting to our NEOs as follows:

        As with the other elements of compensation for fiscal 2010, the compensation committee initially consulted the peer group and other global industry data
(when available) when determining the size and mix of equity awards for the NEOs, but principally based its equity award decisions on the relative size of the
awards received by each NEO in the past and relative size of the awards received by the other NEOs.

Fiscal 2011 Compensation Actions

        In addition to the bonus payments under the 2010 Executive Plan made in July 2010, the compensation committee took the following additional actions
related to NEO compensation after the year ended June 30, 2010 through August 31, 2010:

    Base Salary

        In July 2010, our compensation committee, and in the case of Mr. Fusco, the board of directors, raised the base salaries of our NEOs as set forth in the table
below:
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Named Executive Officer  Type of Equity Award  

Number of
Shares Subject
to Award (#)  

Number of Shares
Vested on Grant

Date (#)  

Number of
Unvested Shares

on Grant
Date (#)  

Number of Fiscal
Quarters to Vest
Commencing on
March 31, 2010  

Mark E. Fusco  Stock options   128,000  80,000  48,000  6 
 Restricted stock units   100,000  62,500  37,500  6 
 Restricted stock units   166,667  62,500  104,167  10 
 Restricted stock units   167,000  20,875  146,125  14 

Mark P. Sullivan  Restricted stock units   65,000  8,125  56,875  14 

Antonio J. Pietri  Restricted stock units   67,000  41,875  25,125  6 
 Restricted stock units   30,000  11,250  18,750  10 
 Restricted stock units   30,000  3,750  26,250  14 

Manolis E. Kotzabasakis  Stock options   15,360  9,600  5,760  6 
 Restricted stock units   12,000  7,500  4,500  6 
 Restricted stock units   30,000  11,250  18,750  10 
 Restricted stock units   30,000  3,750  26,250  14 

Frederic G. Hammond  Stock options   15,360  9,600  5,760  6 
 Restricted stock units   12,000  7,500  4,500  6 
 Restricted stock units   20,000  7,500  12,500  10 
 Restricted stock units   20,000  2,500  17,500  14 

Named Executive Officer  Fiscal 2010 Base Salary ($)  Fiscal 2011 Base Salary ($)  Percentage Increase (%)  
Mark E. Fusco  $ 500,000 $ 550,000  10.0%
Mark P. Sullivan   300,000  310,000  3.3 
Antonio J. Pietri   300,000  315,000  5.0 
Manolis E. Kotzabasakis   265,000  290,000  9.4 
Frederic G. Hammond   275,000  300,000  9.1 
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    2011 Executive Plan

        In July 2010, our compensation committee approved an Executive Annual Incentive Bonus Plan FY11, or the 2011 Executive Plan, for each of our executive
officers and certain other members of senior management (other than for Mr. Fusco, whose plan was approved by the board of directors upon a recommendation
of the compensation committee). Each such plan is identical in form, except for the amount of the executive's target awards and individual performance goals.

        The purpose of these plans is to motivate and reward performance for the achievement of certain corporate and individual objectives for fiscal 2011.
Payments under each plan are based upon the achievement of certain performance metrics established by the board of directors and the executive's individual
performance. Under each plan, we must achieve target global license bookings and cash flow from operations amounts. These targets are weighted at 65% and
35%, respectively, for purposes of determining each eligible executive's bonus. In order for any bonus to be payable under a plan, we must achieve at least 70% of
the specified metrics. Each metric is measured and funded independently. The executive must also achieve individual performance objectives approved by our
chief executive officer or the compensation committee (in the case of our chief executive officer), and the executive's individual performance will be assessed by
the chief executive officer or by the compensation committee (in the case of the chief executive officer). The executive will receive a performance achievement
rating between 80% and 100%, and this rating will be used as a multiplier against the funded level of each financial metric to determine a final earned bonus
under each financial metric. The annual targets under the 2011 Executive Plan for each of the NEOs are as follows:

        In fiscal 2011, performance against the financial metrics under each plan will be evaluated at mid year and at year end, and individual performance will be
assessed at year end. There is the potential for a mid-year payment based on performance against mid-year targets, not to exceed 25% of the annual bonus target.
The year-end calculation will also be weighted by the individual performance assessment rating. If an executive's employment terminates prior to the end of the
performance period, eligibility for any payment will be subject to the retention agreement then in effect between us and the executive. In addition to awards based
on the performance metrics established under each plan, the compensation committee may make a discretionary award to the executive in such amount as the
compensation committee determines to be appropriate and in our best interests.

99

Named Executive Officer  
Fiscal 2011 Annual Target

Cash Payment($)  
Mark E. Fusco  $ 750,000 
Mark P. Sullivan   250,000 
Antonio J. Pietri   300,000 
Manolis E. Kotzabasakis   275,000 
Frederic G. Hammond   175,000 
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    Equity Awards

        The compensation committee completed its annual program grant for fiscal 2011 in July 2010. The awards issued to our NEOs in August 2010 are as
follows:

Benefits and Other Compensation

        We maintain broad-based benefits that are provided to all employees, including health and dental insurance, life and disability insurance and a 401(k) plan.
Executives are eligible to participate in all of our employee benefit plans, in each case on the same basis as other employees. Our NEOs are not entitled to
benefits that are not otherwise available to all employees.

Severance and Change-in-Control Benefits

        Pursuant to executive retention agreements we have entered into with each of our NEOs as of June 30, 2010 and to the provisions of our option agreements,
those executives are entitled to specified benefits in the event of the termination of their employment under specified circumstances, including termination
following a change in control of our company. We have provided more detailed information about these benefits, along with estimates of value under various
circumstances, in the table below under "—Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control."

        We believe these agreements assist in maintaining a competitive position in terms of attracting and retaining key executives. The agreements also support
decision-making that is in the best interests of our stockholders, and enable our executives to focus on company priorities. We believe that our severance and
change in control benefits are generally in line with prevalent peer practice with respect to severance packages offered to executives.

        Except with respect to our chief executive officer, our practice in the case of change-of-control benefits under the executive retention agreements has been to
structure these as "double trigger" benefits. In other words, the change in control does not itself trigger benefits; rather, benefits are paid only if the employment
of the executive is terminated during a specified period after the change in control and under the circumstances described in "—Employment and Change in
Control Agreements and Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control" below. We believe a "double trigger" benefit maximizes stockholder value
because it prevents an unintended windfall to executives in the event of a friendly change in control, while still providing them appropriate incentives to
cooperate in negotiating any change in control in which they believe they may lose their jobs.
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Named Executive Officer  Type of Equity Award  

Number of
Shares Subject
to Award (#)  

Mark E. Fusco  Stock options   132,000 
 Restricted stock units   107,200 

Mark P. Sullivan  Stock options   49,500 
 Restricted stock units   40,200 

Antonio J. Pietri  Stock options   49,500 
 Restricted stock units   40,200 

Manolis E. Kotzabasakis  Stock options   49,500 
 Restricted stock units   40,200 

Frederic G. Hammond  Stock options   20,625 
 Restricted stock units   16,750 
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Tax and Accounting Considerations

        The accounting and tax treatment of particular forms of compensation do not materially affect our compensation decisions. However, we evaluate the effect
of such accounting and tax treatment on an ongoing basis and will make appropriate modifications to compensation policies where appropriate. Section 162(m) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or IRC, generally disallows a tax deduction to a publicly-traded company for certain compensation in excess of $1,000,000
paid in any taxable year to the chief executive officer and the four other most highly compensated executive officers. Qualifying performance-based
compensation is not subject to the deduction limitation if specified requirements are met.

        The compensation committee periodically reviews the potential consequences of Section 162(m), and we generally intend to structure the performance-based
portion of our executive compensation, where feasible, to comply with exemptions in Section 162(m) so that the compensation remains tax-deductible to us. The
compensation committee in its judgment may, however, authorize compensation payments that do not comply with the exemptions in Section 162(m) when it
believes that such payments are appropriate to attract and retain executive talent.

Conclusion

        Through the compensation arrangements described above, a significant portion of each executive's compensation is contingent on our company-wide and his
individual performance. Therefore, the realization of benefits by the executive is closely linked to our achievements and increases in stockholder value. We
remain committed to this philosophy of paying for performance, recognizing that the competitive market for talented executives and the volatility of our business
may result in highly variable compensation in any particular time period. The compensation committee gives careful consideration to our executive compensation
program, including each element of compensation for each executive. The compensation committee believes the executive compensation program is reasonable
relative to the peer group. The compensation committee also believes that the compensation program gives each executive appropriate incentives, based on the
executive's responsibilities, achievements and ability to contribute to our performance. Finally, the compensation committee believes that our compensation
structure and practices encourage management to work for real innovation, business improvements and outstanding stockholder returns, without taking
unnecessary or excessive risks.

Risk Analysis of Compensation Policies and Programs

        The compensation committee has reviewed the compensation policies as generally applicable to our employees, and believes that these policies do not
encourage excessive and unnecessary risk-taking and that the level of risk that they do encourage is not reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our
company. The design of the compensation policies and programs encourages employees to remain focused on both our short- and long-term goals. For example,
while the cash bonus plan measures performance on an annual basis, the equity awards typically vest over a number of years, which we believe encourages
employees to focus on sustained stock price appreciation, thus limiting the potential for excessive risk-taking.
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    Summary Compensation Table

        The following table contains information regarding compensation earned during the last three fiscal years by our NEOs.
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Name and Principal Position  Year  Salary ($)  
Bonus
($)(1)  

Stock
Awards
($)(2)  

Option
Awards
($)(2)  

Non-Equity
Incentive

Plan
Compensation

($)(3)  

All Other
Compensation

($)(4)  Total ($)  
Mark E. Fusco   2010 $ 500,000 $ 196,000 $ 4,141,520 $ 506,880 $ 700,000 $ 5,716 $ 6,050,116 
 President and Chief   2009  500,000  350,000  —  —  —  5,811  855,811 
 Executive Officer   2008  500,000  —  —  —  420,000  3,305  923,305 

Mark P. Sullivan   2010  300,000  224,000  620,750  —  —  9,629  1,154,380 
 Executive Vice President and   2009  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 
 Chief Financial Officer   2008  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Antonio J. Pietri   2010  300,000  77,000  1,212,850  —  275,000  9,479  1,874,329 
 Executive Vice President,   2009  300,000  192,500  —  —  —  259,050  751,550 
 Field Operations   2008  275,000  —  —  —  275,000  302,281  852,281 

Manolis E. Kotzabasakis   2010  265,000  72,800  687,600  60,826  260,000  6,390  1,352,615 
 Executive Vice President,   2009  265,000  —  —  —  130,964  7,452  403,416 
 Sales and Strategy   2008  250,000  —  —  —  224,990  24,370  499,360 

Frederic G. Hammond   2010  275,000  39,200  496,600  60,826  140,000  8,074  1,019,699 
 Senior Vice President,   2009  275,000  70,000  —  —  —  5,937  350,397 

 
General Counsel, and

Secretary   2008  250,000  —  —  —  140,000  2,808  392,808 

(1) Amounts shown exclude performance-based incentive payments, which are included in "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation." Mr. Sullivan's includes a first year guarantee
of $175,000 and a discretionary award of $49,000. 

(2) Amounts shown represent grant date fair value computed in accordance with ASC Topic 718, with respect to restricted stock units and stock options granted to the NEOs. Pursuant
to SEC rules, the amounts shown disregard the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. Each stock option was granted with an exercise price
equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date. For a description of the assumptions relating to our valuations of the restricted stock units and stock options,
see note 8 to the consolidated financial statements beginning at page F-1. 

(3) Amounts shown consist of awards based on performance under our 2010 Executive Plan and equivalent predecessor plans for each respective fiscal year. For additional
information regarding these awards in fiscal 2010, see "Compensation Discussion and Analysis—Variable Cash Compensation." 

(4) Amounts shown include matching contributions under our 401(k) deferred savings retirement plan and the annual value associated with life and death and disability insurance. The
amount shown for Mr. Pietri in fiscal 2010 also includes (a) expatriation foreign tax of $1,000; (b) $72 for state and medical tax gross-ups; and (c) $8,414 in matching contributions
under our 401(k) deferred savings retirement plan. The amount shown for Mr. Pietri in fiscal 2009 also includes (a) $57,371 for reimbursement of his relocation and housing
expenses in connection with his move from China to Massachusetts; (b) $172,052 of expatriation foreign tax; and (c) $23,396 for applicable federal, state and medical tax gross-
ups. The amount shown for Mr. Pietri in fiscal 2008 includes payments related to his former expatriate assignment as Senior Vice President of Regional Sales and Services in China
prior to relocation to Massachusetts in July 2007, consisting of: (a) $81,885 for reimbursement of his relocation and housing expenses in connection with his move from China to
Massachusetts; (b) $1,500 for expatriate executive transition and hardship assistance payments; (c) $146,022 in related Chinese tax payments; (d) $44,260 for applicable federal,
state and medical tax gross-ups; (e) $23,549 in tax equalization payments for expatriate benefits; and (f) $786 for foreign goods and services adjustments.
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    Grants of Plan-Based Awards

        The following table shows all plan-based awards granted to the NEOs during fiscal 2010. The equity awards granted in fiscal 2010 identified in the table
below are also reported in the table entitled "Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End." For additional information regarding the non-equity incentive plan
awards, please refer to "Compensation Discussion and Analysis—Reasons for Providing and Manner of Structuring the Key Compensation Elements—Variable
Cash Compensation."
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All Other
Stock

Awards:
Number of
Shares of

Stock
or Units

(#)(3)  

All Other
Option

Awards:
Number of
Securities

Underlying
Options

(#)(4)

     

   

 

Estimated Future Payouts
Under Non-Equity

Incentive Plan Awards(1)

     

   

 

Exercise or
Base Price
of Option
Awards
($/Sh)  

Grant Date
Fair Value of

Stock and
Option

Awards ($)

 

Name  Grant Date  
Threshold

($)  
Target

($)  
Maximum

($)(2)  
Mark E. Fusco   N/A $ 280,000 $ 700,000 $ 700,000  —  —  —  — 

  11/9/2009  —  —  —  433,667  —  — $ 4,141,520 
  11/9/2009  —  —  —  —  117,529 $ 9.55  465,415 
  11/9/2009  —  —  —  —  10,471  9.55  41,456 

Mark P. Sullivan   11/9/2009  —  —  —  65,000  —  —  620,750 

Antonio J. Pietri   N/A  110,000  275,000  275,000  —  —  —  — 
  11/9/2009  —  —  —  127,000  —  —  1,212,850 

Manolis E. Kotzabasakis   N/A  104,000  260,000  260,000  —  —  —  — 
  11/9/2009  —  —  —  72,000  —  —  687,600 
  11/9/2009  —  —  —  —  9,600  9.55  38,016 
  11/9/2009  —  —  —  —  5,760  9.55  22,810 

Frederic G. Hammond   N/A  56,000  140,000  140,000  —  —  —  — 
  11/9/2009  —  —  —  52,000  —  —  496,600 
  11/9/2009  —  —  —  —  9,600  9.55  38,016 
  11/9/2009  —  —  —  —  5,760  9.55  22,810 

(1) Consists of performance-based cash incentive bonus awards under the 2010 Executive Plan. Actual amounts of awards are set forth in the summary compensation table above to
the extent they have been determined and paid as of the date of filing of this Form 10-K. 

(2) Under the 2010 Executive Plan, the compensation committee is also permitted to make discretionary bonus payments in excess of the "Maximum." Any such amounts would be
reflected under the "Bonus" column in the summary compensation table above. 

(3) Represents restricted stock units granted under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. 

(4) Represents stock options granted under the Restated 2001 Stock Option Plan.
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    Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

        The following table sets forth certain information as to unexercised options and stock awards held at the end of fiscal 2010 by our NEOs.
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  Option Awards  Stock Awards  

  

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)

Exercisable(1)  

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)

Unexercisable  

Option
Exercise

Price
($)(2)  

Option
Expiration

Date(3)  

Number
of Shares
or Units
of Stock

That Have
Not Vested

(#)  

Market Value
of Shares
or Units
of Stock

That Have
Not Vested

($)(6)  
Mark E. Fusco   24,000  — $ 8.12  12/10/2013  —  — 

  1,100,000  —  5.73  3/21/2015  —  — 
  500,000  —  5.27  9/15/2015  —  — 
  187,500  12,500  10.42  11/17/2016  —  — 
  96,000  32,000  9.55  11/8/2019  —  — 
  —  —  —  —  6,250(4) $ 68,063 
  —  —  —  —  25,000(5)  272,250 
  —  —  —  —  83,334(5)  907,507 
  —  —  —  —  125,250(5)  1,363,973 

Mark P. Sullivan   —  —  —  —  48,750(5)  530,888 

Antonio J. Pietri   6,000  —  14.05  4/9/2011  —  — 
  5,188  —  3.25  8/15/2013  —  — 
  21,994  —  6.57  10/13/2014  —  — 
  31,250  —  5.27  9/13/2015  —  — 
  18,750  1,250  10.42  11/14/2016  —  — 
  —  —  —  —  625(4)  6,806 
  —  —  —  —  22,500(5)  245,025 
  —  —  —  —  15,000(5)  163,350 
  —  —  —  —  16,750(5)  182,408 

Manolis Kotzabasakis   7,500  —  30.75  10/17/2010  —  — 
  10,000  —  14.05  4/9/2011  —  — 
  9,300  —  2.98  8/16/2012  —  — 
  93,277  —  2.75  8/15/2013  —  — 
  205,211  —  2.85  8/15/2013  —  — 
  37,500  —  6.57  10/13/2014  —  — 
  70,000  —  5.27  9/13/2015  —  — 
  22,500  1,500  10.42  11/14/2016  —  — 
  11,520  3,840  9.55  11/8/2019  —  — 
  —  —  —  —  750(4)  8,168 
  —  —  —  —  15,000(5)  163,350 
  —  —  —  —  3,000(5)  32,670 
  —  —  —  —  22,500(5)  245,025 

Frederic G. Hammond   200,000  —  5.27  9/13/2015  —  — 
  22,500  1,500  10.42  11/14/2016  —  — 
  11,520  3,840  9.55  11/8/2019  —  — 
  —  —  —  —  750(4)  8,168 
  —  —  —  —  15,000(5)  163,350 
  —  —  —  —  10,000(5)  108,900 
  —  —  —  —  3,000(5)  32,670 

(1) In connection with our failure to timely file reports under the Securities Exchange Act and consequent lack of an effective registration statement covering shares issuable in
connection with certain equity grant awards, in December 2007 the board
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        Remaining vesting dates for each outstanding option award held by the NEOs are as follows:

        Remaining vesting dates for each outstanding restricted stock unit held by the NEOs are as follows:
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of directors voted to extend the period of time within which such awards may be exercised. Certain of these awards are subject to this extension.

(2) Each option has an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common stock at the time of grant as reported on The NASDAQ Global Select Market on the date of grant. 

(3) The expiration date of each option occurs ten years after the grant of such option. 

(4) Each restricted stock unit becomes exercisable subject to the holder's continued employment with us as to 25% on achievement of specified performance goals and the balance in
twelve equal quarterly installments thereafter. 

(5) See pages 97 and 98 of this Form 10-K for information regarding the vesting terms of these awards. 

(6) The closing price of our common stock on The NASDAQ Global Select Market on June 30, 2010 was $10.89.

    Number of Shares Underlying Unvested Awards  

Vesting Date  
Exercise
Price($)  

Mark E.
Fusco  

Mark P.
Sullivan  

Antonio J.
Pietri  

Manolis E.
Kotzabasakis  

Frederic G.
Hammond  

9/30/2010  $ 10.42  12,500  —  1,250  1,500  1,500 
9/30/2010   9.55  8,000  —  —  960  960 
12/31/2010   9.55  8,000  —  —  960  960 
3/31/2011   9.55  8,000  —  —  960  960 
6/30/2011   9.55  8,000  —  —  960  960 

  Number of Shares Underlying Unvested Awards  

Vesting Date  
Mark E.

Fusco  
Mark P.
Sullivan  

Antonio J.
Pietri  

Manolis E.
Kotzabasakis  

Frederic G.
Hammond  

Fiscal 2011                 
09/30/2010   27,104  4,062  7,937  4,500  3,250 
12/31/2010   27,105  4,063  7,938  4,500  3,250 
03/31/2011   27,103  4,062  7,937  4,500  3,250 
06/30/2011   27,105  4,063  7,938  4,500  3,250 
Fiscal 2012                 
09/30/2011   20,854  4,062  3,750  3,750  2,500 
12/31/2011   20,855  4,063  3,750  3,750  2,500 
03/31/2012   20,853  4,062  3,750  3,750  2,500 
06/30/2012   20,855  4,063  3,750  3,750  2,500 
Fiscal 2013                 
09/30/2012   10,437  4,062  1,875  1,875  1,250 
12/31/2012   10,438  4,063  1,875  1,875  1,250 
03/31/2013   10,437  4,062  1,875  1,875  1,250 
06/30/2013   10,438  4,063  1,875  1,875  1,250 
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    Option Exercises and Stock Vested

        The table below details shares of common stock that vested under restricted stock units and options that were exercised by our NEOs during fiscal 2010.

    Employment and Change in Control Agreements

        On December 7, 2004, we entered into an employment agreement with Mark Fusco, pursuant to which Mr. Fusco agreed to serve as our President and Chief
Executive Officer. Under this agreement, in the event of termination of Mr. Fusco's employment (other than for the reasons set forth below), including termination
of his employment after a change in control (as defined below) or termination of employment by Mr. Fusco for "good reason" (which includes constructive
termination, relocation, or reduction in salary or benefits), Mr. Fusco will be entitled to a lump sum severance payment equal to two times the sum of:

• the amount of Mr. Fusco's annual base salary in effect immediately prior to notice of termination (or in the event of termination after a change in
control, then the amount of his annual base salary in effect immediately prior to the change in control, if higher); and 

• the amount of the average of the annual bonuses paid to Mr. Fusco for the three years (or the number of years employed, if less) immediately
preceding the notice of termination (or in the event of termination after a change in control, then the amount of the average annual bonuses paid to
Mr. Fusco for the three years (or the number of years employed, if less) immediately prior to the change in control, if higher) or the occurrence of
a change in control, as the case may be.

        In addition, in lieu of any further life, disability, and accident insurance benefits otherwise due to Mr. Fusco following his termination (other than for the
reasons set forth below), including termination after a change in control, we will pay Mr. Fusco a lump sum amount equal to the estimated cost (as determined in
good faith by us) to Mr. Fusco of providing such benefits, to the extent that Mr. Fusco is eligible to receive such benefits immediately prior to notice of
termination, for a period of two years commencing on the date of termination. We will also pay all health insurance due to Mr. Fusco for a period of two years
commencing on the date of termination.

        Mr. Fusco's employment agreement provides that the payments received by him relating to termination of his employment will be increased in the event that
these payments would subject him to excise tax as a parachute payment under IRC Section 4999. The increase would be equal to an amount necessary for
Mr. Fusco to receive, after payment of such tax, cash in an amount equal to the amount he would have received in the absence of such tax. However, the increased
payment will not be made if the total severance payment, if so increased, would not exceed 110% of the highest amount that could be paid without causing an
imposition of the excise tax. In that event, in lieu of an increased payment, the total severance payment will be reduced to such reduced amount. We have
indemnified Mr. Fusco
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      Stock Awards  

  

Number of Shares
Acquired on

Exercise  

Value
Realized on
Exercise($)  

Number of Shares
Acquired on
Vesting(1)  

Value
Realized on
Vesting($)  

Mark E. Fusco   —  —  225,083 $ 2,223,630 
Mark P. Sullivan   —  —  16,250  164,044 
Antonio J. Pietri   —  —  75,250  737,441 
Manolis E. Kotzabasakis   28,247 $ 205,956  34,500  341,085 
Frederic G. Hammond   —  —  27,000  266,735 

(1) With respect to shares acquired upon vesting of restricted stock units, each NEO elected to have shares withheld to pay associated income taxes. The number of shares reported
represents the gross number prior to withholding of such shares.
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for the amount of any penalty applicable to any payments Mr. Fusco receives from us as a result of his termination that is imposed by IRC Section 409A.

        However, in the event that Mr. Fusco's employment is terminated for one or more of the following reasons, then Mr. Fusco will not be entitled to the
severance payments described above:

• by us for "cause" (as defined below); 

• by reason of Mr. Fusco's death or disability; 

• by Mr. Fusco without good reason (unless such resignation occurs within 180 days following a change in control); or 

• after Mr. Fusco shall have attained age 70.

        Under the terms of Mr. Fusco's employment agreement, in the event of a "potential change in control" (as defined below), Mr. Fusco agrees to remain in our
employment until the earliest of:

• three months after the date of such potential change in control; 

• the date of a change in control; 

• the date of termination by Mr. Fusco of his employment for good reason or by reason of death or retirement; and 

• our termination of Mr. Fusco's employment for any reason.

        For the purposes of Mr. Fusco's employment agreement, "cause" for our terminating Mr. Fusco means:

• the willful and continued failure by Mr. Fusco to substantially perform his duties after written demand by the board; 

• willful engagement by Mr. Fusco in gross misconduct materially injurious to us; or 

• a plea by Mr. Fusco of guilty or no contest to a felony charge.

        For the purposes of Mr. Fusco's employment agreement, a "change in control" is deemed to have occurred if any of the following conditions shall have been
satisfied:

• continuing directors cease to constitute more than two-thirds of the membership of the board; 

• any person or entity acquires, directly or indirectly, beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the combined voting power of our then-outstanding
voting securities; 

• a change in control occurs of a nature that we would be required to report on a current report on Form 8-K or pursuant to Item 6(e) of
Schedule 14A of Regulation 14A or any similar item, schedule or form under the Securities Exchange Act, as in effect at the time of the change,
whether or not we are then subject to such reporting requirement, including our merger or consolidation with any other corporation, other than: 

• a merger or consolidation where (1) our voting securities outstanding immediately prior to such transaction continue to represent 51% or
more of the combined voting power of the voting securities of the surviving or resulting entity outstanding immediately after such
transaction, and (2) our directors immediately prior to such merger or consolidation continue to constitute more than two-thirds of the
membership of the board of directors of the surviving or combined entity following such transaction; or 

• a merger or consolidation effected to implement our recapitalization (or similar transaction) in which no person or entity acquires 25% or
more of the combined voting power of our then outstanding securities; or
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• our stockholders approve a plan of complete liquidation or an agreement for the sale or disposition of all or substantially all of our assets
(or any transaction having a similar effect).

        For the purposes of Mr. Fusco's employment agreement, a "potential change in control" is deemed to have occurred if any of the following conditions shall
have been satisfied:

• we enter into an agreement, the consummation of which would result in the occurrence of a change in control; 

• we or anyone else publicly announces an intention to take or to consider taking actions which, if consummated, would constitute a change in
control; 

• any person or entity becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 15% or more of the combined voting power of our then-outstanding
securities (entitled to vote generally for the election of directors); or 

• the board adopts a resolution to the effect that, for purposes of Mr. Fusco's employment agreement, a "potential change in control" has occurred.

        On October 28, 2005, we entered into an amendment to our employment agreement with Mr. Fusco. This amendment provides that in the event Mr. Fusco
becomes entitled, on the terms and conditions set forth in the employment agreement, to receive a severance payment upon termination of his employment, such a
payment must be made within 30 days after the Date of Termination (as defined in the employment agreement). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the severance
payment will constitute "nonqualified deferred compensation" subject to the provisions of IRC Section 409A, then the payment instead will be due within 15 days
after the earlier of (i) the expiration of six months and one day following the Date of Termination or (ii) Mr. Fusco's death following the Date of Termination.
Mr. Fusco's agreement was amended and restated on October 3, 2007 to comply with the applicable provisions of IRC Section 409A.

        We have executive retention agreements with the following executive officers: Mark Sullivan, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer;
Antonio Pietri, our Executive Vice President of Field Operations; Manolis Kotzabasakis, our Executive Vice President, Sales and Strategy; and Frederic
Hammond, our Senior Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary; each of whom we refer to as a specified executive.

        Pursuant to the terms of each executive retention agreement, if the specified executive's employment is terminated prior to a change in control without cause,
the specified executive will be entitled to the following:

• payment of an amount equal to the specified executive's annual base salary then in effect, payable over twelve months; 

• payment of an amount equal to the specified executive's total target bonus for the fiscal year, pro-rated for the portion of the fiscal year elapsed
prior to termination, payable in one lump sum; 

• payment of an amount equal to the cost to the specified executive of providing life, disability and accident insurance benefits, payable in one lump
sum, for a period of one year; and 

• continuation of medical, dental and vision insurance coverage to which the specified executive was entitled prior to termination for a period of one
year.

        In the event the specified executive's employment is terminated without cause within twelve months following a change in control or by the specified
executive for good reason (which includes constructive termination, relocation, a reduction in salary or benefits, or our breach of any employment
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agreement with the specified executive or a failure to pay benefits when due), then the specified executive shall be entitled to the following:

• payment of an amount equal to the sum of the specified executive's annual base salary then in effect and the specified executive's target bonus for
the then-current fiscal year, payable in a single installment; 

• payment of an amount equal to the cost to the specified executive of providing life, disability and accident insurance benefits, payable in a single
installment, for a period of one year; 

• continuation of medical, dental and vision insurance coverage to which the specified executive was entitled prior to termination for a period of one
year; and 

• full vesting of (a) all of the specified executive's options to purchase shares of our stock, which options may be exercised by the specified
executive for a period of twelve months following the date of termination and (b) all restricted stock and restricted stock units then held by the
specified executive.

        Each executive retention agreement provides that the total payments received by the specified executive relating to termination of his/her employment will
be reduced to an amount equal to the highest amount that could be paid to the specified executive without subjecting such payment to excise tax as a parachute
payment under IRC Section 409A, provided that no reduction shall be made if the amount by which these payments are reduced exceeds 110% of the value of any
additional taxes that the specified executive would incur if the total payments were not reduced.

        For the purposes of each agreement:

• "change in control" means (a) the acquisition of 50% or more of either the then-outstanding shares of our common stock or the combined voting
power of our then-outstanding securities; (b) such time as the members of the board immediately prior to the change in control do not continue to
constitute the majority of our directors following the change in control; (c) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, reorganization,
recapitalization or share exchange involving our company, unless the transaction would not result in a change in ownership of 50% or more of
both our then-outstanding common stock and the combined voting power of our then-outstanding securities; or (d) our liquidation or dissolution; 

• "cause" means (a) the willful and continued failure by a specified executive to substantially perform his/her duties for us after delivery by the
board of a written demand for performance (other than any such failure resulting from the executive's incapacity due to physical or mental illness,
or any such failure after the executive gives us notice of termination for good reason), and a failure by the specified executive to cure the
performance failure within 30 days; or (b) the willful engaging by the specified executive in gross misconduct that is demonstrably and materially
injurious to us; and 

• "good reason" means constructive termination of the specified executive, relocation, a reduction in the specified executive's salary or benefits, our
breach of any employment agreement with the specified executive or our failure to pay benefits when due.

        Each executive retention agreement terminates on the earliest to occur of (a) July 31, 2011, (b) the first anniversary of a change in control, and (c) our
payment of all amounts due to the specified executive following a change in control. Each agreement is subject to automatic renewal on August 1 of each year,
unless we give notice of termination at least seven days prior to the renewal date.
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    Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

        The following table sets forth estimated compensation that would have been payable to each of our NEOs as severance or upon a change in control of our
company under two alternative scenarios, assuming the termination triggering severance payments or a change in control took place on June 30, 2010:
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Name  

Cash
Payment

($)(1)  

Accelerated
Vesting of

Stock Options
($)(2)  

Accelerated
Vesting of
Restricted

Stock Units
($)(3)  

Welfare
Benefits

($)(4)  Total ($)  
Mark E. Fusco                 

 

Termination without cause or with good reason
prior to change in control  $ 2,081,654  —  — $ 30,250 $ 2,111,904 

 

Change in control with termination without cause
or with good reason   2,081,654 $ 48,755 $ 2,611,792  30,250  4,772,451 

Mark P. Sullivan                 

 

Termination without cause or with good reason
prior to change in control   475,827  —  —  12,056  487,883 

 

Change in control with termination without cause
or with good reason   475,827  —  530,888  12,056  1,018,771 

Antonio J. Pietri                 

 

Termination without cause or with good reason
prior to change in control   575,827  —  —  15,125  590,952 

 

Change in control with termination without cause
or with good reason   575,827  588  597,589  15,125  1,189,129 

Manolis E. Kotzabasakis                 

 

Termination without cause or with good reason
prior to change in control   525,827  —  —  15,125  540,952 

 

Change in control with termination without cause
or with good reason   525,827  5,851  449,213  15,125  996,016 

Frederic G. Hammond                 

 

Termination without cause or with good reason
prior to change in control   415,827  —  —  15,065  430,892 

 

Change in control with termination without cause
or with good reason   415,827  5,851  313,088  15,065  749,830 

(1) Amounts shown reflect payments based on salary and bonus as well as payment of estimated cost of life, disability and accident insurance benefits during the agreement period. 

(2) Amounts shown represent the value of stock options upon the applicable triggering event described in the first column. The value of stock options is based on the difference
between the exercise price of the options and $10.89, which was the closing price of the common stock on The NASDAQ Global Select Market on the last trading day of fiscal
2010, June 30, 2010. 

(3) Amounts shown represent the value of restricted stock units upon the applicable triggering event described in the first column, based on $10.89, which was the closing price of the
common stock on The NASDAQ Global Select Market on the last trading day of fiscal 2010, June 30, 2010. 

(4) Amounts shown represent the estimated cost of providing employment-related benefits during the agreement period.
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Item 12.    Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. 

        The following tables set forth certain information, as of August 16, 2010, with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock by:

• each person or group that we know to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock; 

• each of our executive officers and directors; 

• our executive officers and directors as a group; and 

• each of the selling stockholders.

        As of August 16, 2010, a total of 92,891,514 shares of common stock were outstanding. In the following table, (a) shares under "Right to Acquire" include
shares subject to options and restricted stock units that were vested as of August 16, 2010 or will vest within 60 days of August 16, 2010 and (b) unless otherwise
noted, each person identified possesses, to our knowledge, sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares listed, subject to community property laws
where applicable. Shares not outstanding but deemed beneficially owned by virtue of the right of a person to acquire those shares are treated as outstanding only
for purposes of determining the number and percent of shares of common stock owned by such person or group. The information in this table is based upon
information supplied by executive officers, directors, principal and selling stockholders and Schedules 13G filed with the SEC. The address of all of our executive
officers and directors is in care of Aspen Technology, Inc., 200 Wheeler Street, Burlington, Massachusetts 08103.
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 Total

 
 

 
Outstanding

Shares  
Right to
Acquire

 
Name of Holder  Number  %  
5% Stockholders              
Funds managed by Advent

International Corporation
 

 29,512,336  —  29,512,336  31.8%

 
75 State Street, 29th Floor
Boston, MA 02109

 
            

Waddell & Reed Financial, Inc   14,683,233  —  14,683,233  15.8 

 
6300 Lamar Avenue
Overland Park, KS 66202

 
            

Third Point LLC   5,021,000  —  5,021,000  5.4 

 
390 Park Avenue
New York, New York 10022

 
            

Cadian Capital
Management, LLC

 
 4,785,818  —  4,785,818  5.2 

 

461 Fifth Avenue,
24th Floor
New York, New York 10017

 

            
Alydar Partners, LLC   3,989,884  —  3,989,884  4.3 

 

222 Berkeley Street
17th Floor
Boston, MA 02116

 

            
Named Executive Officers and Directors              
Mark E. Fusco   201,937  1,970,054  2,171,991  2.3 
Mark. P. Sullivan   11,089  9,667  20,756  * 
Manolis E. Kotzabasakis   30,770  479,373  510,143  * 
Frederic G. Hammond   26,079  242,065  268,144  * 
Antonio J. Pietri   56,315  97,974  154,289  * 
Joan C. McArdle   186,492  78,848  265,340  * 
Stephen M. Jennings   11,492  78,848  90,340  * 
Michael Pehl   11,492  63,300  74,792  * 
Donald P. Casey   11,492  51,300  62,792  * 
Gary E. Haroian   11,492  51,300  62,792  * 
David M. McKenna   11,492  27,300  38,792  * 
All executive officers and directors as a group (11 persons)   395,142  3,150,029  3,545,171  3.7 

* Less than 1.0%. 
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        The securities attributed to Advent International Corporation, a global private equity firm, include shares held by the following funds of which it is the
general partner: (i) 208,935 shares held by Advent Partners II Limited Partnership, (ii) 109,478 shares held by Advent Partners DMC III Limited Partnership,
(iii) 182,597 shares held by Advent Partners GPE-IV Limited Partnership, (iv) 35,378 shares held by Advent Partners GPE-III Limited Partnership, and
(v) 10,513 shares held by Advent Partners (NA) GPE-III Limited Partnership. Advent International Corporation is also the general partner of Advent International
Limited Partnership and the securities attributed to Advent International Corporation also include the following shares held by funds of which Advent
International Partnership is the general partner: (i) 4,131,728 shares held by Global Private Equity III Limited Partnership, (ii) 14,426,457 shares held by Global
Private Equity IV Limited Partnership, (iii) 413,151 shares held by Advent PGGM Global Limited Partnership, (iv) 1,907,638 shares held by Digital Media &
Communications III Limited Partnership, (v) 944,435 shares held by Digital Media & Communications III-A Limited Partnership, (vi) 236,057 shares held by
Digital Media & Communications III-B Limited Partnership, (vii) 3,777,641 shares held by Digital Media & Communications III-C Limited Partnership,
(viii) 708,275 shares held by Digital Media & Communications III-D C.V., (ix) 472,218 shares held by Digital Media & Communications III-E C.V., and
(x) 1,947,835 shares held by Advent Energy II Limited Partnership. With respect to the shares of our common stock held by the Advent funds, a group of
individuals currently composed of Ernest G. Bachrach, David M. McKenna, David M. Mussafer, Michael Pehl and Steven M. Tadler exercises voting and
investment power over the shares beneficially owned by Advent International Corporation. Each of Mr. Bachrach, Mr. McKenna, Mr. Mussafer, Mr. Pehl and
Mr. Tadler disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held by the Advent funds except to the extent of their pecuniary interest therein.

        The securities attributed to Waddell & Reed Financial, Inc. are beneficially owned by one or more open-end investment companies or other managed
accounts that are advised or sub-advised by Ivy Investment Management Company, or IICO, an investment advisory subsidiary of Waddell & Reed
Financial, Inc., or WDR, or Waddell & Reed Investment Management Company, or WRIMCO, an investment advisory subsidiary of Waddell & Reed, Inc., or
WRI. WRI is a broker-dealer and underwriting subsidiary of Waddell & Reed Financial Services, Inc., a parent holding company, or WRFSI. In turn, WRFSI is a
subsidiary of WDR, a publicly traded company. The investment advisory contracts grant IICO and WRIMCO all investment and/or voting power over securities
owned by such advisory clients. The investment sub-advisory contracts grant IICO and WRIMCO investment power over securities owned by such sub-advisory
clients and, in most cases, voting power. Any investment restriction of a sub-advisory contract does not restrict investment discretion or power in a material
manner. Therefore, IICO and/or WRIMCO may be deemed the beneficial owner of these securities.

        The securities attributed to Third Point LLC are beneficially owned by Third Point LLC and Daniel S. Loeb and 3,700,900 of these securities are beneficially
owned by Third Point LLC, Daniel S. Loeb, Third Point Offshore Master Fund, L.P. and Third Point Advisors II L.L.C.

        The securities attributed to Cadian Capital Management, LLC are beneficially owed by Cadian Capital Management, LLC and Eric Bannasch.

        The securities attributed to Alydar Partners, LLC include (a) 48,112 shares held by Alydar Fund, L.P., (b) 547,109 shares held by Alydar QP Fund, L.P.,
(c) 1,765,791 shares held by Alydar Fund Limited, (d) 12,260 shares held by Alysheba Fund, L.P., (e) 304,904 shares held by Alysheba QP Fund, L.P.,
(f) 1,154,267 shares held by Alysheba Fund Limited, (g) 15,508 shares held by Alysun Fund, L.P., (h) 89,642 shares held by Alysun QP Fund, L.P., and (i) 52,291
shares held by Alysun Fund Limited. John A. Murphy, an individual, is managing member of Alydar Capital, LLC and Alydar Partners, LLC, both Delaware
limited liability companies, and may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of the shares held by these entities. Alydar Capital, LLC is the general partner of
Alydar Fund, L.P., Alydar QP Fund, L.P., Alysheba Fund, L.P., Alysheba QP Fund, L.P., Alysun Fund, L.P. and Alysun QP Fund, L.P. and may be deemed to have
beneficial ownership of the shares held by these
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entities. Alydar Partners, LLC is the investment manager of Alydar Fund, L.P., Alydar QP Fund, L.P., Alysheba Fund, L.P., Alysheba QP Fund, L.P., Alysun
Fund, L.P., Alysun QP Fund, L.P., Alydar Fund Limited, Alysun Fund Limited and Alysheba Fund Limited and may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of
the shares held by these entities. John Murphy disclaims beneficial ownership of these securities.

        The securities attributed to Ms. McArdle include 175,000 shares of common stock held by Massachusetts Capital Resource Company. Ms. McArdle serves
as a senior vice president of Massachusetts Capital Resource Company and may be deemed to have shared voting power over these shares. Ms. McArdle
disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares except to the extent of her pecuniary interest therein.

Item 13.    Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence. 

Board Determination of Independence

        The board of directors uses the definition of independence established by The NASDAQ Stock Market. Under applicable NASDAQ rules, a director
qualifies as an "independent director" if, in the opinion of the board, he or she does not have a relationship that would interfere with the exercise of independent
judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. The board has determined that Donald Casey, Gary Haroian, Stephen Jennings and Joan McArdle do
not have any relationship that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director of our company, and that
each of these directors therefore is an "independent director" as defined in NASDAQ Listing Rule 5605(a)(2).

Related-Party Transactions

        The following discussion relates to certain transactions that involve both our company and one of our executive officers, directors, director nominees or five
percent stockholders, each of whom we refer to as a "related party." For purposes of this discussion, a "related-party transaction" is a transaction, arrangement or
relationship:

• in which we participate; 

• that involves an amount in excess of $120,000; and 

• in which a related party has a direct or indirect material interest.

        Since July 1, 2009, there have been no related-party transactions, except for the executive officer and director compensation arrangements described in the
sections "Management—Director Compensation" and "—Executive Compensation."

        The board of directors has adopted written policies and procedures for the review of any related-party transaction. If a related person proposes to enter into
such a transaction, arrangement or relationship, which we refer to as a "related person transaction," the related person must report the proposed related person
transaction to our General Counsel. The policy calls for the proposed related person transaction to be reviewed and, if deemed appropriate, approved by the audit
committee. Whenever practicable, the reporting, review and approval will occur prior to entry into the transaction. If advance review and approval is not
practicable, the audit committee will review, and, in its discretion, may ratify the related person transaction. The policy also permits the chairman of the audit
committee to review and, if deemed appropriate, approve proposed related person transactions that arise between audit committee meetings, subject to ratification
by the audit committee at its next meeting. Any related person transactions that are ongoing in nature will be reviewed annually.
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        A related person transaction reviewed under the policy will be considered approved or ratified if it is authorized by the audit committee after full disclosure
of the related person's interest in the transaction. As appropriate for the circumstances, the audit committee will review and consider:

• the related person's interest in the related person transaction; 

• the approximate dollar value of the amount involved in the related person transaction; 

• the approximate dollar value of the amount of the related person's interest in the transaction without regard to the amount of any profit or loss; 

• whether the transaction was undertaken in the ordinary course of our business; 

• whether the terms of the transaction are no less favorable to us than terms that could have been reached with an unrelated third party; 

• the purpose of, and the potential benefits to us of, the transaction; and 

• any other information regarding the related person transaction or the related person in the context of the proposed transaction that would be
material to investors in light of the circumstances of the particular transaction.

        The audit committee may approve or ratify the transaction only if the audit committee determines that, under all of the circumstances, the transaction is in
our best interests. The audit committee may impose any conditions on the related person transaction that it deems appropriate.

        In addition to the transactions that are excluded by the instructions to the SEC's related person transaction disclosure rule, the board has determined that the
following transactions do not create a material direct or indirect interest on behalf of related persons and, therefore, are not related person transactions for
purposes of this policy:

• interests arising solely from the related person's position as an executive officer of another entity (whether or not the person is also a director of
such entity), that is a participant in the transaction, where (a) the related person and all other related persons own in the aggregate less than a 10%
equity interest in such entity and (b) the related person and his or her immediate family members are not involved in the negotiation of the terms
of the transaction and do not receive any special benefits as a result of the transaction, and 

• a transaction that is specifically contemplated by provisions of our charter or bylaws.

        The policy provides that transactions involving compensation of executive officers shall be reviewed and approved by the compensation committee in the
manner specified in its charter.

        Since July 1, 2009, there have been no related-party transactions that were specifically contemplated by our charter or bylaws and excepted from the
definition of related-party transactions according to the preceding exception.
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Item 14.    Principal Accounting Fees and Services. 

Accountant Fees

        The following table summarizes the fees of KPMG LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm for each of the last two fiscal years:

        "Audit fees" consist of fees for the audit of our financial statements, the review of the interim financial statements included in our quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, and other professional services provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

        "Tax fees" consist of fees for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning services.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

        The audit committee has adopted policies and procedures relating to the approval of all audit and non-audit services that are to be performed by our
independent registered public accounting firm. This policy generally provides that we will not engage our independent registered public accounting firm to render
audit or non-audit services unless the service is specifically approved in advance by the audit committee, except that de minimis non-audit services may instead be
approved in accordance with applicable SEC rules.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  
  (In thousands)  
Fee Category        
Audit fees  $ 4,115 $ 5,052 
Tax fees   69  — 
All other fees   —  — 
      

Total fees  $ 4,184 $ 5,052 
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PART IV 

Item 15.    Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules. 

(a)(1)    Financial Statements

        The consolidated financial statements appear immediately following page 126 ("Signatures").
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Description  Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008  F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2010 and 2009  F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) and Comprehensive Income for the years ended June 30, 2010,

2009 and 2008
 

F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008  F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  F-7
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(a)(2)    Financial Statement Schedules

        All schedules are omitted because they are not required or the required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(a)(3)    Exhibits
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      Incorporated by Reference  

Exhibit
Number  Description  

Filed
with this

Form 10-K  Form  
Filing Date
with SEC(1)  

Exhibit
Number  

 3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Aspen Technology, Inc., as
amended

   8-K  August 22,
2003

  4 

             
 3.2 By-laws of Aspen Technology, Inc.    8-K  March 27,

1998
  3.2 

             
 4.1 Specimen certificate for common stock, $.10 par value, of Aspen

Technology, Inc.
   8-A/A June 12, 1998   4 

             
 4.2 Rights Agreement dated March 12, 1998 between Aspen

Technology, Inc. and American Stock Transfer and Trust
Company, as Rights Agent, including form of Certificate of
Designation of Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock
and form of Rights Certificate

   8-K  March 27,
1998

  4.1 

             
 4.2a Amendment No. 1 dated October 26, 2001 to Rights Agreement

dated march 12, 1998 between Aspen Technology, Inc. and
American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, as Rights Agent

   8-A/A November 8,
2001

  4.4 

             
 4.3 Form of WD Common Stock Purchase Warrants of Aspen

Technology, Inc. dated August 14, 2003
   8-K  August 22,

2003
  99.3 

             
 10.1 Lease Agreement dated January 30, 1992 between Aspen

Technology, Inc. and Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association
of America regarding 10 Canal Park, Cambridge, Massachusetts

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.1 

             
 10.1a First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated May 5, 1997 between

Aspen Technology, Inc. and Beacon Properties, L.P., successor-in-
interest to Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of
America

   10-K  September 28,
2000

  10.2 

             
 10.1b Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated August 14, 2000

between Aspen Technology, Inc. and EOP-Ten Canal Park,
L.L.C., successor-in-interest to Beacon Properties, L.P.

   10-K  September 28,
2000

  10.3 

             
 10.1c Amendment dated September 5, 2007 to Lease Agreement dated

January 30, 1992 between Aspen Technology, Inc. and MA-Ten
Canal Park, L.L.C.

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.1c

             
 10.2 Sublease dated September 5, 2007 between Aspen

Technology, Inc. and MA-Ten Canal Park L.L.C. regarding 10
Canal Park, Cambridge, Massachusetts

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.2 

 10.3 Lease dated May 7, 2007 between Aspen Technology, Inc. and
One Wheeler Road Associates regarding 200 Wheeler Road,
Burlington Massachusetts

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.3 

             
 10.4 System License Agreement dated March 30, 1982 between Aspen

Technology, Inc. and the Massachusetts Institute of Technology
   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.4 
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      Incorporated by Reference  

Exhibit
Number  Description  

Filed
with this

Form 10-K  Form  
Filing Date

with SEC(1)  
Exhibit
Number  

             
 10.5 Amendment dated March 30, 1982 to System License

Agreement dated March 30, 1982 between Aspen
Technology, Inc. and the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.5 

             
 10.6† Purchase and Sale Agreement dated October 6, 2004 among

Aspen Technology, Inc., Hyprotech Company, AspenTech
Canada Ltd. and Hyprotech UK Ltd. and Honeywell
International Inc., Honeywell Control Systems Limited and
Honeywell Limited—Honeywell Limitee

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.1 

             
 10.6a† Amendment No. 1 dated December 23, 2004 to Purchase and

Sale Agreement dated October 6, 2004 among Aspen
Technology, Inc., Hyprotech Company, AspenTech
Canada Ltd., and Hyprotech UK Ltd. and Honeywell
International Inc., Honeywell Control Systems Limited and
Honeywell Limited—Honeywell Limitee

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.2 

             
 10.7† Hyprotech License Agreement dated December 23, 2004

between Aspen Technology, Inc. and Honeywell
International, Inc.

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.3 

             
 10.8† Hyprotech License Agreement dated December 23, 2004

between AspenTech Canada Ltd. and Honeywell Limited—
Honeywell Limitee

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.4 

             
 10.9† Hyprotech License Agreement dated December 23, 2004

between Hyprotech Company and Honeywell Limited—
Honeywell Limitee

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.5 

             
 10.10† Hyprotech License Agreement dated December 23, 2004

between AspenTech Ltd. and Honeywell Control Systems
Limited

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.6 

             
 10.11† Hyprotech License Agreement dated December 23, 2004

between Hyprotech UK Ltd. and Honeywell Control Systems
Limited

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.7 

             
 10.12 Vendor Program Agreement dated March 29, 1990 between

Aspen Technology, Inc. and General Electric Capital
Corporation

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.13 

             
 10.12a Rider No. 1 dated December 14, 1994, to Vendor Program

Agreement dated March 29, 1990 between Aspen
Technology, Inc. and General Electric Capital Corporation

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.13a

 10.12b Rider No. 2 dated September 4, 2001 to Vendor Program
Agreement dated March 29, 1990 between Aspen
Technology, Inc. and General Electric Capital Corporation

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.13b

             
 10.12c Waiver and Consent Agreement dated March 31, 2009    10-K  June 30, 2009   10.13c
             
 10.13 Non-Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated

December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  February 17, 2004   10.1 
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      Incorporated by Reference  

Exhibit
Number  Description  

Filed
with this

Form 10-K  Form  
Filing Date

with SEC(1)  
Exhibit
Number  

             
 10.13a First Amendment dated June 30, 2004 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15a

             
 10.13b Second Amendment dated September 30, 2004 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.1 

             
 10.13c Third Amendment dated December 31, 2004 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.8 

             
 10.13d Fourth Amendment dated March 8, 2005 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15d

             
 10.13e Fifth Amendment dated March 31, 2005 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  May 10, 2005   10.1 

             
 10.13f Sixth Amendment dated December 29, 2005 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15f

             
 10.13g Seventh Amendment dated July 17, 2006 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15g

             
 10.13h Eighth Amendment dated September 15, 2006 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15h

             
 10.13i Ninth Amendment dated January 12, 2007 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  May 10, 2007   10.3 

 10.13j Tenth Amendment dated April 13, 2007 to Non-Recourse
Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15j

             
 10.13k Eleventh Amendment dated June 28, 2007 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15k

             
 10.13l Twelfth Amendment dated October 16, 2007 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15l
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      Incorporated by Reference  

Exhibit
Number  Description  

Filed
with this

Form 10-K  Form  
Filing Date

with SEC(1)  
Exhibit
Number  

             
 10.13m Thirteenth Amendment dated December 12, 2007 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15m

             
 10.13n Fourteenth Amendment dated December 28, 2007 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   8-K  January 7, 2008   10.2 

             
 10.13o Fifteenth Amendment dated January 24, 2008 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.2 

             
 10.13p Sixteenth Amendment dated May 15, 2008 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.3 

             
 10.13q Seventeenth Amendment dated November 14, 2008 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.4 

             
 10.13r Eighteenth Amendment dated January 30, 2009 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.5 

             
 10.13s Nineteenth Amendment dated May 15, 2009 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  June 30, 2009   10.15s

             
 10.13t Twentieth Amendment dated November 3, 2009 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  November 9, 2009   10.15t

 10.14 Loan Agreement dated June 15, 2005 among Aspen
Technology, Inc., Aspen Technology Receivables II LLC,
Guggenheim Corporate Funding, LLC and the lenders named
therein.

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.1 

             
 10.15 Security Agreement dated June 15, 2005 between Aspen

Technology Receivables II LLC and Guggenheim Corporate
Funding, LLC

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.2 

             
 10.16 Release Letter dated December 28, 2007 relating to Loan

Agreement dated June 15, 2005 among Aspen
Technology, Inc., Aspen Technology Receivables II LLC,
Guggenheim Corporate Funding, LLC and the Lenders
named therein

   8-K  January 7, 2008   10.1 

             
 10.17 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated June 15, 2005 between

Aspen Technology, Inc. and Aspen Technology Receivables
I LLC

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.3 

             
 10.18 Purchase and Resale Agreement dated June 15, 2005

between Aspen Technology Receivables I LLC and Aspen
Technology Receivables II LLC

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.4 
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 10.19 Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among

Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 14,
2003

  10.1 

             
 10.20a Letter Agreement dated February 14, 2003 amending Loan and

Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley
Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22a

             
 10.20b First Loan Modification Agreement dated June 27, 2003 to Loan

and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon
Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   10-K  September 29,
2003

  10.22 

             
 10.20c Second Loan Modification Agreement dated September 10, 2004

to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  September 13,
2004

  10.70 

             
 10.20d Third Loan Modification Agreement dated January 28, 2005 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22d

             
 10.20e† Fourth Loan Modification Agreement dated April 1, 2005 to Loan

and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon
Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  May 10, 2005   10.2 

 10.20f Fifth Loan Modification Agreement dated May 6, 2005 to Loan
and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon
Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22f

             
 10.20g Sixth Loan Modification Agreement dated June 15, 2005 to Loan

and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon
Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.5 

             
 10.20h Seventh Loan Modification Agreement dated September 13, 2005

to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  September 13,
2005

  10.79 

             
 10.20i Eighth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dated

December 30, 2005 to Loan and Security Agreement dated
January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22i
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 10.20j Ninth Loan Modification Agreement dated July 17, 2006 to Loan

and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon
Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22j

             
 10.20k Tenth Loan Modification Agreement dated September 15, 2006 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  September 28,
2006

  10.84 

             
 10.20l Eleventh Loan Modification Agreement dated September 27,

2006 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003
among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.,
AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  November 14,
2006

  10.3 

             
 10.20m Twelfth Loan Modification Agreement dated January 12, 2007 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  May 10, 2007   10.1 

             
 10.20n Thirteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated April 13, 2007 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22n

 10.20o Fourteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated June 28, 2007 to
Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22o

             
 10.20p Fifteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated August 30, 2007 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22p

             
 10.20q Sixteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated October 16, 2007

to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22q

             
 10.20r Seventeenth Loan Modification Agreement dated December 28,

2007 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003
among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.,
AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   8-K  January 7,
2008

  10.3 

             
 10.20s Eighteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated January 24, 2008

to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19,
2009

  10.7 
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 10.20t Nineteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated April 11,

2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.8 

             
 10.20u Twentieth Loan Modification Agreement dated May 15,

2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.9 

             
 10.20v Twenty-first Loan Modification Agreement dated June 12,

2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.10 

             
 10.20w Twenty-second Loan Modification Agreement dated July 15,

2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.11 

 10.20x Twenty-third Loan Modification Agreement dated
September 30, 2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated
January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.12 

             
 10.20y Twenty-fourth Loan Modification Agreement dated

November 14, 2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated
January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.13 

             
 10.20z Twenty-fifth Loan Modification Agreement dated

January 15, 2009 to Loan and Security Agreement dated
January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.14 

             
 10.20aa Twenty-sixth Loan Modification Agreement dated May 15,

2009 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  June 30, 2009   10.22aa

             
 10.20ab Twenty-seventh Loan Modification Agreement dated

November 3, 2009 to Loan and Security Agreement dated
January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  November 9, 2009   10.22ab

             
 10.20ac Twenty-eighth Loan Modification Agreement dated June 11,

2010 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   S-1  July 30, 2010   10.20ac



Table of Contents

124

      Incorporated by Reference  

Exhibit
Number  Description  

Filed
with this

Form 10-K  Form  
Filing Date
with SEC(1)  

Exhibit
Number  

             
 10.21 Form of Negative Pledge Agreement dated January 30, 2003, in

favor of Silicon Valley Bank, executed by Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 14,
2003

  10.5 

             
 10.22 Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 between Silicon

Valley Bank and AspenTech Securities Corporation
   10-Q  February 14,

2003
  10.6 

             
 10.23 Unconditional Guaranty dated January 30, 2003, by AspenTech

Securities Corporation in favor of Silicon Valley Bank
   10-Q  February 14,

2003
  10.7 

 10.24 Pledge Agreement, effective as of June 27, 2003, by Aspen
Technology, Inc. in favor of Silicon Valley Bank

   10-K  September 29,
2003

  10.23 

             
 10.25 Partial Release and Acknowledgement Agreement dated June 15,

2005 among Aspen Technology, Inc., Aspentech, Inc. and Silicon
Valley Bank

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.7 

 10.26 Partial Release and Acknowledgement Agreement dated
September 27, 2006 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  November 14,
2006

  10.6 

             
 10.27 Investor Rights Agreement dated August 14, 2003 among Aspen

Technology, Inc. and the Stockholders named therein
   8-K  August 22,

2003
  99.1 

             
 10.28 Management Rights Letter dated August 14, 2003 among Aspen

Technology, Inc. and the entities named therein.
   8-K  August 22,

2003
  99.2 

             
 10.29 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated

March 19, 2002 between Aspen Technology, Inc. and the
Purchasers named therein.

   8-K  March 20,
2002

  99.2 

             
 10.30^ Aspen Technology, Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan    S-8  September 9,

1996
  4.5 

             
 10.31^ Aspen Technology, Inc. Amended and Restated 1995 Directors

Stock Option Plan
   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.37 

             
 10.32^ Aspen Technology, Inc. 1996 Special Stock Option Plan    10-K  September 29,

1997
  10.23 

             
 10.33^ PetrolSoft Corporation 1998 Stock Option Plan    S-8  July 28, 2000   4 
             
 10.34^ Aspen Technology, Inc. Restated 2001 Stock Option Plan    10-K  September 28,

2006
  10.54 

             
 10.35^ Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Option Agreement

Granted under Aspen Technology, Inc. 2001 Restated Stock
Option Plan

   10-Q  November 14,
2006

  10.7 

             
 10.36^ Aspen Technology, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (as amended)    10-K  November 9,

2009
  10.39 

             
 10.37^ Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Option Agreement

Granted under Aspen Technology, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
   10-Q  November 14,

2006
  10.8 

             
 10.38^ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Granted under Aspen

Technology, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
   10-Q  November 14,

2006
  10.9 
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 10.39^ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-G Granted under Aspen

Technology, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
   10-Q  November 14,

2006
  10.10 

             
 10.40^ Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement

Granted under 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
   10-K  November 9,

2009
  10.43 

             
 10.41^ Aspen Technology, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan    8-K  April 21,

2010
  10.1 

             
 10.42^ Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Option Agreement

Granted under Aspen Technology, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan
 X  10-K       

 10.43^ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Granted under Aspen
Technology, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan

 X  10-K       

             
 10.44^ Form of Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement of

Aspen Technology, Inc.
   10-K  April 11,

2008
  10.45 

             
 10.45^ Aspen Technology, Inc. Director Compensation Policy    S-1  July 30, 2010   10.43 
             
 10.46^ Form of Aspen Technology, Inc. Executive Annual Incentive

Bonus Plan for Fiscal 2009
   8-K  June 30, 2008   99.1 

             
 10.47^ Form of Aspen Technology, Inc. Operations Executives Plan

Fiscal 2009
   8-K  June 30, 2008   99.2 

             
 10.48^ Aspen Technology, Inc. Executive Annual Incentive Bonus Plan

for Fiscal 2010
   8-K  September 11,

2009
  99.1 

             
 10.49^ From of Aspen Technology, Inc. Executive Annual Incentive

Bonus Plan for Fiscal 2011
   8-K  August 4,

2010
  10.1 

             
 10.50^ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effective

October 3, 2007, between Aspen Technology, Inc. and Mark
Fusco

   10-K  April 11,
2008

  10.50 

             
 10.51^ Form of Executive Retention Agreement entered into by Aspen

Technology, Inc. and each executive officer of Aspen
Technology, Inc. (other than Mark E. Fusco)

   10-Q  February 9,
2010

  10.1 

             
 10.52^ Amendment Number 1 dated December 29, 2006 to Stock Option

Agreement granted to Manolis E. Kotzabasakis on or about
August 18, 2003 under Aspen Technology, Inc. 1995 Stock Option
Plan, as amended (Award Identification No. P040380)

   8-K  January 5,
2007

  10.1 

             
 10.53^ Amendment Number 1 dated December 29, 2006 to Stock Option

Agreement granted to Manolis E. Kotzabasakis on or about
August 18, 2003 under Aspen Technology, Inc. 2001 Stock Option
Plan, as amended (Award Identification No. P040002)

   8-K  January 5,
2007

  10.2 

             
 10.54^ Amendment Number 1 dated December 29, 2006 to the Stock

Option Agreement granted to Manolis E. Kotzabasakis on or about
August 18, 2003 under Aspen Technology, Inc. 2001 Stock Option
Plan, as amended (Award Identification No. P0405621)

   8-K  January 5,
2007

  10.3 
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 10.55^ Offer letter dated June 24, 2009 by and between Aspen

Technology, Inc. and Mark P. Sullivan
   S-1  July 30, 2010   10.52 

 21.1 Subsidiaries of Aspen Technology, Inc.    S-1  July 30, 2010   21.1 
             
 23.2 Consent of KPMG LLP  X         
 31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
          

             
 31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
          

 32.1* Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

          

(1) The SEC File No. is 000-24786, other than Exhibit 10.30 (SEC File No. 333-11651), Exhibit 10.33 (SEC File No. 333-42536) and
Exhibit 10.41 (001-34630). 

† Confidential treatment requested as to certain portions 

^ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement 

* The certification attached as Exhibit 32.1 that accompanies this Form 10-K is not deemed filed with the SEC and is not to be incorporated
by reference into any filing of Aspen Technology, Inc. under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, whether
made before or after the date of this Form 10-K, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES 

        Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities on the dates indicated.
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  ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Date: September 1, 2010  By:  /s/ MARK E. FUSCO

Mark E. Fusco
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: September 1, 2010  By:  /s/ MARK P. SULLIVAN

Mark P. Sullivan
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Signature  Title  Date

     
/s/ MARK E. FUSCO

Mark E. Fusco

 President and Chief Executive Officer and
Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

 September 1, 2010

/s/ MARK P. SULLIVAN

Mark P. Sullivan

 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

 September 1, 2010

/s/ STEPHEN M. JENNINGS

Stephen M. Jennings

 Chairman of the Board of Directors  September 1, 2010

/s/ DONALD P. CASEY

Donald P. Casey  Director  August 30, 2010

/s/ GARY E. HAROIAN

Gary E. Haroian

 Director  September 1, 2010

/s/ JOAN C. MCARDLE

Joan C. McArdle

 Director  September 1, 2010

/s/ DAVID M. MCKENNA

David M. McKenna

 Director  September 1, 2010

/s/ MICHAEL PEHL

Michael Pehl

 Director  September 1, 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Aspen Technology, Inc.:

        We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Aspen Technology, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity (deficit) and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended June 30, 2010. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

        We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

        In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2010, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

        We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company's internal control
over financial reporting as of June 30, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated September 1, 2010 expressed an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
September 1, 2010

F-2
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ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.

F-3

  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
  (In thousands, except per share data)  
Revenue:           
 Subscription  $ 11,071 $ — $ — 
 Software   42,920  179,591  168,404 
        

  Total subscription and software(1)   53,991  179,591  168,404 
 Services and other   112,353  131,989  143,209 
        

  Total revenue   166,344  311,580  311,613 
        

Cost of revenue:           
 Subscription and software   6,437  12,409  15,916 
 Services and other   59,673  63,411  69,077 
        

  Total cost of revenue   66,110  75,820  84,993 
        

  Gross profit   100,234  235,760  226,620 
        

Operating expenses:           
 Selling and marketing(2)   97,002  84,126  94,965 
 Research and development(2)   48,228  46,375  49,899 
 General and administrative(2)   63,246  58,256  54,496 
 Restructuring charges   1,128  2,446  8,623 
 Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets   —  623  — 
        

  Total operating expenses   209,604  191,826  207,983 
        

 (Loss) income from operations   (109,370)  43,934  18,637 
        

 Interest income   19,324  22,698  23,784 
 Interest expense   (8,455)  (10,516)  (17,783)
 Other (expense) income, net   (2,407)  (1,824)  3,386 
        

  (Loss) income before provision for taxes   (100,908)  54,292  28,024 
 Provision for income taxes   (6,537)  (1,368)  (3,078)
        

  Net (loss) income  $ (107,445) $ 52,924 $ 24,946 
(Loss) earnings per common share:           
 Basic  $ (1.18) $ 0.59 $ 0.28 
 Diluted  $ (1.18) $ 0.57 $ 0.27 
Weighted average shares outstanding:           
 Basic   91,247  90,053  89,640 
 Diluted   91,247  92,578  94,092 

(1) In July 2009 we introduced our aspenONE licensing model under which license revenue is recognized over the term of a license contract. We previously recognized a substantial
majority of our license revenue upfront, upon shipment of software. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis and Results of Operations—New aspenONE Licensing
Model." 

(2) Certain costs previously recorded as selling and marketing expense in fiscal 2009 and 2008 have been reclassified to research and development expense and general and
administrative expense, as described in note 2(y) to these consolidated financial statements.
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ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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  June 30,  
  2010  2009  

  
(In thousands, except

share data)  
ASSETS        

Current assets:        
 Cash and cash equivalents  $ 124,945 $ 122,213 
 Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,685 and $5,809   31,738  49,882 

 

Current portion of installments receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,119 and
$1,015   51,729  64,531 

 Current portion of collateralized receivables   25,675  38,695 
 Unbilled services   1,860  298 
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets   5,236  9,413 
 Prepaid income taxes   7,468  13,159 
 Deferred tax assets   1,632  3,795 
      

  Total current assets   250,283  301,986 
 Non-current installments receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,196 and $1,663   76,869  113,390 
 Non-current collateralized receivables   25,755  57,671 

 

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, net of accumulated depreciation of $29,769 and
$27,438   8,057  9,604 

 Computer software development costs, net of accumulated amortization of $67,251 and $65,094   2,367  3,918 
 Goodwill   17,361  16,686 
 Non-current deferred tax assets   11,597  10,788 
 Other non-current assets   2,424  1,933 
      

  Total assets  $ 394,713 $ 515,976 
  

 
 

 
 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY        
Current liabilities:        
 Current portion of secured borrowing  $ 30,424 $ 83,885 
 Accounts payable   6,092  5,135 
 Accrued expenses and other current liabilities   49,890  47,882 
 Income taxes payable   1,161  1,888 
 Deferred revenue   67,852  62,801 
 Current deferred tax liability   398  2,481 
      

  Total current liabilities   155,817  204,072 
 Long-term secured borrowing   45,711  28,211 
 Long-term deferred revenue   19,427  16,070 
 Non-current deferred tax liability   956  2,354 
 Other non-current liabilities   31,832  35,859 
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11, 12 and 13)        

 

Series D redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.10 par value—Authorized—3,636 shares in
2010 and 2009
Issued and outstanding—none in 2010 or 2009   —  — 

Stockholders' equity:        

 

Common stock, $0.10 par value—Authorized—210,000,000 shares
Issued—92,668,280 shares in 2010 and 90,326,513 shares in 2009
Outstanding—92,434,816 shares in 2010 and 90,093,049 shares in 2009   9,267  9,033 

 Additional paid-in capital   515,729  497,478 
 Accumulated deficit   (391,038)  (283,593)
 Accumulated other comprehensive income   7,525  7,005 
 Treasury stock, at cost—233,464 shares of common stock in 2010 and 2009   (513)  (513)
      

  Total stockholders' equity   140,970  229,410 
      

  Total liabilities and stockholders' equity  $ 394,713 $ 515,976 
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ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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 Common Stock

      
 Treasury Stock

     
     

 

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

     

  
Number of

Shares  
$0.10 Par

Value  

Additional
Paid-in
Capital  

Accumulated
Deficit  

Number of
Shares  Cost  

Stockholders'
Equity

(Deficit)  

Total
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)  

  (In thousands, except share data)  
Balance June 30,

2007   89,133,494 $ 8,913 $ 480,671 $ (361,463) $ 9,598  233,464 $ (513) $ 137,206    

 

Issuance of
common stock
under employee
stock purchase
plans   51,311  5  462  —  —  —  —  467    

 
Exercise of stock

options   362,605  37  2,765  —  —  —  —  2,802    

 
Conversion of

warrants   500,203  50  (50)  —  —  —  —  —    

 

Issuance of
restricted stock
units   187,913  19  (1,185)  —  —  —  —  (1,166)    

 
Stock-based

compensation   —  —  10,425  —  —  —  —  10,425    

 
Translation

adjustment   —  —  —  —  (1,867)  —  —  (1,867) $ (1,867)
 Net income   —  —  —  24,946  —  —  —  24,946  24,946 
                    

Balance June 30,
2008   90,235,526  9,024  493,088  (336,517)  7,731  233,464  (513)  172,813 $ 23,079 

 

Issuance of
restricted stock
units   90,987  9  (369)  —  —  —  —  (360)    

 
Stock-based

compensation   —  —  4,759  —  —  —  —  4,759    

 
Translation

adjustment   —  —  —  —  (726)  —  —  (726) $ (726)
 Net income   —  —  —  52,924  —  —  —  52,924  52,924 
                    

Balance June 30,
2009   90,326,513  9,033  497,478  (283,593)  7,005  233,464  (513)  229,410 $ 52,198 

 
Exercise of stock

options   1,416,794  142  7,039  —  —  —  —  7,181    

 

Issuance of
restricted stock
units   924,973  92  (4,132)  —  —  —  —  (4,040)    

 
Stock-based

compensation   —  —  15,344  —  —  —  —  15,344    

 
Translation

adjustment   —  —  —  —  520  —  —  520 $ 520 
 Net loss   —  —  —  (107,445)  —  —  —  (107,445)  (107,445)
                    

Balance June 30,
2010   92,668,280 $ 9,267 $ 515,729 $ (391,038) $ 7,525  233,464 $ (513) $ 140,970 $ (106,925)
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ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
  (In thousands)  
Cash flows from operating activities:           
Net (loss) income  $ (107,445) $ 52,924 $ 24,946 
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating

activities:           
 Depreciation and amortization   6,551  8,712  10,917 
 Net foreign currency loss (gain)   3,227  3,828  (2,791)
 Stock-based compensation   15,260  4,670  10,600 
 Amortization of debt costs   —  —  960 
 Loss on the disposal of property, equipment and leasehold improvements   53  466  43 
 Deferred income taxes   (2,167)  (911)  (9,375)
 Provision for bad debts   585  (314)  (189)
 Loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets   —  623  — 
Changes in assets and liabilities:           
 Accounts receivable   16,493  34,552  (38,264)
 Unbilled services   (1,573)  2,842  7,188 
 Prepaid expenses, other assets and prepaid income taxes   8,905  (11,589)  (1,175)
 Installments and collateralized receivable   92,450  (8,042)  18,889 
 Income taxes payable   (773)  (10,243)  (6,066)
 Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities   (1,612)  (16,784)  15,997 
 Deferred revenue   8,668  (27,702)  39,784 
        

 Net cash provided by operating activities   38,622  33,032  71,464 
        

Cash flows from investing activities:           
 Purchase of property, equipment and leasehold improvements   (2,652)  (2,972)  (9,424)
 Capitalized computer software development costs   (699)  (2,382)  (780)
 Purchase price adjustments on previous acquisitions   —  —  (187)
        

 Net cash used in investing activities   (3,351)  (5,354)  (10,391)
        

Cash flows from financing activities:           
 Proceeds from secured borrowings   9,501  30,153  74,129 
 Repayment of secured borrowings   (44,342)  (68,212)  (135,800)
 Exercise of stock options and warrants   7,181  —  2,802 
 Payment of tax withholding obligations related to restricted stock   (4,040)  (360)  (1,166)
 Issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plans   —  —  467 
 Payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations   —  —  (193)
        

 Net cash used in financing activities   (31,700)  (38,419)  (59,761)
        

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents   (839)  (1,094)  469 
        

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   2,732  (11,835)  1,781 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year   122,213  134,048  132,267 
        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  $ 124,945 $ 122,213 $ 134,048 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:           
 Income taxes paid  $ 2,541 $ 28,921 $ 5,726 
 Interest paid   8,057  10,550  16,782 
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ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Operations

        Aspen Technology, Inc., together with its subsidiaries, is a leading global provider of mission-critical process optimization software solutions, which are
designed to manage and optimize plant and process design, operational performance, and supply chain planning. Our aspenONE software and related services
have been developed specifically for companies in the process industries, which consist of energy, chemicals, engineering and construction, pharmaceuticals,
consumer packaged goods, power metals and mining, pulp and paper, and biofuels. We operate globally through 26 offices in 22 countries as of June 30, 2010.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies

(a)   Principles of Consolidation

        The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and our wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(b)   Management Estimates

        The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

(c)   Cash and Cash Equivalents

        Cash and cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments with remaining maturities of three months or less when purchased.

(d)   Derivative Instruments and Hedging

        We record all derivatives, which consist of foreign currency exchange contracts, on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives that are not accounting hedges
must be adjusted to fair value through earnings. If a derivative is a hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative are either offset against the change in fair
value of assets, liabilities or firm commitments through earnings or included in accumulated other comprehensive income depending on the nature of the hedge.
The ineffective portion of a derivative's change in fair value is immediately recognized in earnings. We do not meet the requirements of Accounting Standards
Codification 815, "Derivatives and Hedging," in order to account for any derivatives using hedge accounting treatment during the periods presented. Therefore,
the changes in fair value of all derivatives are recognized in earnings.

        Historically, it was our practice to enter into foreign currency forward contracts to offset currency risk of foreign denominated receivables. Beginning in late
fiscal 2008 we revised this practice to more comprehensively assess our net exposure to foreign currencies. This net exposure arises primarily from the net
difference between (a) non-U.S. dollar receipts and (b) non-U.S. dollar operating costs for subsidiaries in foreign countries.

        We record our foreign currency exchange contracts at fair value in our consolidated balance sheet and the related realized or unrealized gains or losses on
these contracts are recognized in earnings as a
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ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

component of other income (expense), net. During fiscal 2009 and 2008 the gains on these contracts were $0.2 million and $0.4 million, respectively. We had no
such contracts during fiscal 2010.

        There were no foreign currency derivative financial instruments outstanding as of June 30, 2010.

(e)   Depreciation and Amortization

        We provide for depreciation and amortization, primarily computed using the straight-line method, by charges to operations in amounts estimated to allocate
the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

        Depreciation expense was $4.1 million, $4.6 million and $4.1 million for fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(f)    Revenue Recognition

        We generate revenue from the following sources: (1) licensing software products; (2) providing post contract support (referred to as SMS); and (3) providing
professional services including consulting and training. We sell our software products to end users under fixed-term and perpetual licenses. As a standard business
practice, we offer extended payment term options for our fixed-term license contracts, which are generally payable on an annual basis. Certain of our fixed-term
license agreements include product mixing rights that allow customers the flexibility to change or alternate the use of multiple products included in the license
arrangement after those products are delivered to the customer. We refer to these arrangements as token arrangements. Tokens are fixed units of measure. The
amount of software usage is limited by the value of the tokens purchased by the customer.

        Historically, we executed software license arrangements with contractual provisions that resulted in the "upfront" recognition of license revenue upon
delivery of the software products, provided all other revenue recognition requirements were met. In July 2009, we began offering our new aspenONE licensing
model, which provides customers with access to all products within the aspenONE suite or suites they license. As part of our new licensing model, customers
receive, for no additional fee, SMS for the term of the license and the right to unspecified future software products and upgrades that may be introduced into the
licensed suite during the term of the arrangement. Under this new licensing model, we recognize revenue over the term of the agreement on a subscription basis,
beginning when the first payment is due, typically 30 days after signing the agreement, provided all other revenue recognition requirements are met. In July 2009,
we also began bundling SMS for the full contract term on our point product license arrangements. Previously, SMS on our multi-year term contracts was offered
for an initial one-year period, and then renewed annually thereafter at the customers' option ("legacy term license arrangements").

        Over the next several years, we expect to transition substantially all of our customers to our new aspenONE licensing model or to point product
arrangements with SMS bundled for the contract term.
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Asset Classification  Estimated Useful Life
Computer equipment  3 years
Purchased software  3 - 5 years
Furniture and fixtures  3 - 10 years
Leasehold improvements  Life of lease or asset, whichever is shorter
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

However, during this transition period we expect to execute some license contracts under the upfront revenue model, including perpetual licenses, which will
continue to be recognized on an upfront basis.

        Four basic criteria must be satisfied before software license revenue can be recognized: persuasive evidence of an arrangement between us and an end user;
delivery of our product has occurred; the fee for the product is fixed or determinable; and collection of the fee is probable.

        Persuasive evidence of an arrangement—We use a contract signed by the customer as evidence of an arrangement for software licenses and SMS. For
professional services we use a signed contract and a statement of work to evidence an arrangement. In cases where both a signed contract and a purchase order are
required by the customer, we consider both taken together as evidence of the arrangement.

        Delivery of our product—Software and the corresponding access keys are generally delivered to customers via disk media with standard shipping terms of
Free Carrier, Aspen Technology's warehouse (i.e., FCA, named place). Our software license agreements do not contain conditions for acceptance.

        Fee is fixed or determinable—We assess whether a fee is fixed or determinable at the outset of the arrangement. Significant judgment is involved in making
this assessment.

        Under our upfront revenue model, we are able to demonstrate that the fees are fixed or determinable for all arrangements, including those for our term
licenses that contain extended payment terms. We have an established history of collecting under the terms of these contracts without providing concessions to
customers. In addition, we also assess whether contract modifications to an existing term arrangement constitute a concession. In making this assessment,
significant analysis is performed to ensure that no concessions are given. Our software license agreements do not include right of return or exchange.

        With the introduction of our new aspenONE licensing model and the changes to the licensing terms of our point product agreements sold on a fixed-term
basis, we cannot assert that the fees in these new arrangements are fixed or determinable because the rights provided to customers and the economics of the
arrangements are not comparable to our historical transactions with other customers under the upfront revenue model. As a result, the amount of revenue
recognized for these new arrangements will be limited by the amount of customer payments currently due. For our new aspenONE licenses this generally results
in the fees being recognized ratably over the term of the contracts. For our point product licenses with bundled SMS, this generally results in the license fee being
recognized as each payment comes due, while the allocated portion of the SMS revenue is recognized ratably over its annual term.

        Collection of fee is probable—We assess the probability of collecting from each customer at the outset of the arrangement based on a number of factors,
including the customer's payment history, its current creditworthiness, economic conditions in the customer's industry and geographic location, and general
economic conditions. If in our judgment collection of a fee is not probable, revenue is recognized as cash is collected, provided all other conditions for revenue
recognition have been met.

        We allocate the arrangement consideration among the elements included in our multi-element arrangements using the residual method. Under the residual
method, the VSOE of the undelivered elements is deferred and the remaining portion of the arrangement fee for perpetual and term licenses is recognized as
revenue upon delivery of the software, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria
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ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

are met. If VSOE does not exist for an undelivered element in an arrangement, revenue is deferred until such evidence does exist for the undelivered elements, or
until all elements are delivered, whichever is earlier.

        We have established vendor-specific objective evidence, or VSOE, of fair value for SMS and professional services, but not for our software products. We
assess VSOE of fair value for SMS based on an analysis of standalone SMS renewals using the bell-shaped curve approach. We use the optional renewals of SMS
on our legacy term license arrangements to support VSOE of fair value for SMS bundled in our new fixed-term point product arrangements. The license product
offerings and the SMS in the legacy term arrangements and the new point product arrangements are the same.

        As we are increasingly transitioning our legacy term license customers to new point product arrangements with bundled SMS for the entire term of the
arrangement, and we no longer market legacy term license arrangements, we expect our population of standalone annual renewals to decrease over time. As a
result, there will come a point in time where we will be unable to support VSOE of fair value of SMS in our new point product arrangements based on our legacy
term license SMS renewals. If this were to occur, we would be required to recognize revenue related to the license component on our point product arrangements
ratably, on a subscription basis in a manner similar to the current recognition of subscription arrangements under our new aspenONE licensing model. We expect
the impact of a loss of VSOE of fair value for SMS to be immaterial to our results of operations, since we currently recognize license revenue on point product
arrangements over the term of the arrangement, as payments become due.

        Under the upfront revenue model, the residual license fee is recognized upfront upon delivery of the software provided all other revenue recognition criteria
were met. For arrangements entered into since July 2009, the arrangement fees are generally recognized over the term of the license agreement since these
arrangements include contractual provisions such as rights to future unspecified software products for no additional fee or because we cannot assert that the fees
are fixed or determinable.

Subscription Revenue

        When a customer elects to license our products under our new aspenONE licensing model, SMS is included for the entire term of the arrangement and the
customer receives, for no additional fee, the right to unspecified future software products and upgrades that may be introduced into the licensed aspenONE suite
during the term of the arrangement. These agreements combine the right to use all software products within a given product suite with SMS for the term of the
arrangement. Due to our obligation to provide unspecified future software products and upgrades, we are required to recognize the revenue ratably (that is, on a
subscription basis) over the term of the license, once the four revenue recognition criteria noted above are met. License and SMS revenue for arrangements sold
under our new licensing model are combined and presented together as subscription revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

Software Revenue

        Software revenue consists of all license transactions that do not contain rights to future unspecified software products for no additional fee. Specifically, it
includes license revenue recognized under the upfront revenue model upon the delivery of the license products (i.e., both perpetual and term license contracts);
license revenue recognized over the term of the license agreements for fixed-term contracts
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

including point product licenses with SMS bundled for the entire license term; and other license revenue derived from transactions that are being recognized over
time as the result of not previously meeting one or more of the requirements for recognition under the upfront revenue model.

        The license fees derived from the sale of fixed-term point product arrangements with SMS included for the contract term are recognized under the residual
method, as payments come due. The related SMS is recognized over the term of the SMS agreement beginning with the due date of the annual payment and is
reported in services and other on the consolidated statement of operations. Occasionally, we expect certain customers to elect upfront payment terms. For these
arrangements with upfront payment, all of the license revenue will be recognized upfront by applying the residual method of accounting when the above four
revenue recognition requirements have been met.

        We use the optional renewals of SMS on our legacy term license arrangements to support VSOE of fair value for SMS bundled in our new fixed-term point
product arrangements. As we are increasingly transitioning our legacy term license customers to new point product arrangements with bundled SMS for the entire
term of the arrangement, and we no longer offer legacy term license arrangements, we expect our population of standalone annual renewals to decrease over time.
As a result, there may come a point in time where we may be unable to support VSOE of fair value of SMS in our new point product arrangements based on our
legacy term license SMS renewals. If this were to occur, we would be required to recognize revenue related to the license component on our point product
arrangements ratably, on a subscription basis. We expect the potential impact of a loss of VSOE of fair value for SMS to be immaterial to our results of
operations, since we currently recognize license revenue on point product arrangements over the term of the arrangement, as payments become due.

        Perpetual license arrangements do not include the same rights as those provided to customers under the new aspenONE licensing model. Accordingly, the
license fees for perpetual license agreements will continue to be recognized upon delivery of the software products using the residual method provided all other
revenue recognition requirements are met. The revenue attributable to perpetual software licenses is recognized in software revenue in the consolidated statement
of operations.

Services and Other

SMS Revenue

        Under the upfront revenue model, SMS is typically included with the license for the initial year of the license term. Under these arrangements, the fair value
of SMS is deferred and subsequently amortized into services and other in the consolidated statement of operations over the contractual term of the SMS
arrangement. SMS renewals are at the option of the customer.

        For arrangements executed under the new aspenONE licensing model or where point product licenses are sold with SMS for the contract term, the customer
commits to SMS for the entire term of the license arrangement. The revenue related to the SMS component of the new aspenONE licensing model is reported in
subscription revenue in the consolidated statements of operations. The revenue related to the SMS component of point product licenses, for which we have
VSOE, is reported in services and other in the consolidated statement of operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Professional Services

        Professional services are provided to customers on a time-and-materials (T&M) or fixed-price basis and are generally recognized as the services are
performed, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met. We recognize professional services fees for our T&M contracts based upon hours
worked and contractually agreed-upon hourly rates. Revenue from fixed-price engagements is recognized using the proportional performance method based on
the ratio of costs incurred, substantially all of which are labor-related, to the total estimated project costs. All revenue amounts are recognized within services and
other in the statement of operations. Project costs are based on standard rates, which vary by the consultant's professional level, plus all direct expenses incurred
to complete the engagement that are not reimbursed by the client. All project costs are expensed as incurred. The use of the proportional performance method is
dependent upon our ability to reliably estimate the direct costs to complete a project. We use historical experience as a basis for future estimates to complete
current projects. Additionally, management believes that costs are the best available measure of performance. Reimbursables received from customers for out-of-
pocket expenses are recorded as revenue. If the costs to complete a project are not estimable or the completion is uncertain, the revenue is recognized upon
completion of the services. In those circumstances in which committed professional services arrangements are sold as a single arrangement with, or in
contemplation of, a new license agreement, revenue is deferred and recognized on a ratable basis over the longer of the period the services are performed or the
license term.

        Occasionally, we provide professional services considered essential to the functionality of the software. We recognize the combined revenue from the sale of
the software and related services using the percentage-of-completion method. However, when these professional services are combined with, and essential to, the
functionality of a new aspenONE license transaction, the amount of combined revenue recognized will be the lesser of the amount determined by either the
subscription method or the percentage-of-completion method.

        In the past, we have occasionally been required to commit unanticipated additional resources to complete projects, which have resulted in lower than
anticipated income or losses on those contracts. We may experience similar situations in the future. Provisions for estimated losses on contracts are made during
the period in which such losses become probable and can be reasonably estimated. To date, such losses have not been significant.

Installments Receivable

        Installments receivable resulting from product sales under the upfront revenue model are discounted to present value at prevailing market rates at the
effective date of the contract. Finance fees are recognized using the effective interest method over the relevant license term and are classified as interest income.
The amount of the net installments receivable is split between current and non-current in the consolidated balance sheets.

        Under the new aspenONE licensing model and for point product arrangements sold with SMS bundled for the entire license term, receivables are recorded
when the payments become due and payable. Payment amounts under extended payment term arrangements are not presented in the consolidated balance sheets
as the related arrangement fees are not fixed or determinable. As a result, all contractual payments will be recorded as revenue on a gross basis in the consolidated
statements of operations either as subscription or software revenue.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred Revenue

        Under the upfront revenue model and point product arrangements, a portion of the arrangement fee is generally recorded as deferred revenue due to the
inclusion of an undelivered element, typically SMS. The amount of revenue allocated to undelivered elements is based on the VSOE of fair value for those
elements using the residual method and is earned and recognized as revenue as each element is delivered. Deferred revenue related to these transactions generally
consists of SMS and represents payments received in advance of services rendered as of the balance sheet dates.

        Under the new aspenONE licensing model, customers receive rights to unspecified future products and SMS for the full contract term. As VSOE does not
exist for both of these undelivered elements, we are required to recognize the arrangement fees ratably (i.e., on a subscription basis) over the term of the license.
Therefore, deferred revenue is recorded as each payment comes due and revenue is recognized ratably over the associated license period.

Other Licensing Matters

        Our standard licensing agreements include a product warranty provision. Such warranties are accounted for in accordance with ASC 460, "Guarantees"
(ASC 460). The likelihood that we will be required to make refunds to customers under such provisions is considered remote. Historically, any such payments
have been de minimis.

        Under the terms of substantially all of our license agreements, we have agreed to indemnify customers for costs and damages arising from claims against
such customers based on, among other things, allegations that our software products infringe the intellectual property rights of a third party. In most cases, in the
event of an infringement claim, we retain the right to (i) procure for the customer the right to continue using the software product; (ii) replace or modify the
software product to eliminate the infringement while providing substantially equivalent functionality; or (iii) if neither (i) nor (ii) can be reasonably achieved, we
may terminate the license agreement and provide a refund to the customer up to the license fees paid by the customer. Such indemnification provisions are
accounted for in accordance with ASC 460. The likelihood that we will be required to make refunds to customers under such provisions is considered remote. In
most cases and where legally enforceable, the indemnification is limited to the amount paid by the customer.

(g)   Computer Software Development Costs

        Certain computer software development costs are capitalized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Capitalization of computer software
development costs begins upon the establishment of technological feasibility. In accordance with ASC 985-20, "Costs of Software to Be Sold, Leased, or
Marketed," we define the establishment of technological feasibility as the completion of a detail program design. Amortization of capitalized computer software
development costs is provided on a product-by-product basis using (a) the greater of the amount computed using the ratio that current gross revenue for a product
bear to total of current and anticipated future gross revenue for that product or (b) the straight-line method, beginning upon commercial release of the product,
and continuing over the remaining estimated economic life of the product, not to exceed three years. Software for internal use is capitalized in accordance with
ASC 350-40, "Intangibles Goodwill and Other—Internal Use Software." At each balance sheet date, we evaluate the unamortized capitalized software costs for
potential impairment by comparing to the net realizable value of the products. Total
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

computer software costs capitalized were $0.7 million, $2.4 million and $0.8 million in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Total amortization expense
charged to operations was approximately $2.2 million, $3.9 million, and $6.5 million in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(h)   Foreign Currency Translation

        The determination of the functional currency of subsidiaries is based on the subsidiaries' financial and operational environment and is normally the local
currency. Gains and losses from foreign currency translation related to entities whose functional currency is their local currency are credited or charged to
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), included in stockholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheets. In all instances, foreign currency transaction
gains or losses are credited or charged to the consolidated statements of operations as incurred as a component of other income (expense), net. Foreign currency
transaction (losses) gains were ($2.6) million, ($1.8) million and $2.5 million in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(i)    Net (Loss) Income Applicable to Common Stockholders

        Basic earnings per share were determined by dividing income attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average common shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share were determined by dividing (loss) income attributable to common stockholders by diluted weighted average shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted weighted average shares reflect the dilutive effect, if any, of potential common shares. To the extent their effect is dilutive,
employee equity awards and warrants, based on the treasury stock method, and other commitments to be settled in common stock are included in the calculation
of diluted earnings per share. For fiscal 2010, all potential common shares were anti-dilutive due to the net loss. The calculations of basic and diluted net (loss)
income per share and basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

        The following potential common shares were excluded from the calculation of dilutive weighted average shares outstanding because the exercise price of the
stock options exceeded the average market price of our common stock and/or their effect would be anti-dilutive at the balance sheet date (in thousands):
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  

  Loss  Shares  
Per Share
Amount  Income  Shares  

Per Share
Amount  Income  Shares  

Per Share
Amount  

Basic (loss) earnings
per share:                             

 Net (loss) income  $ (107,445)  91,247 $ (1.18) $ 52,924  90,053 $ 0.59 $ 24,946  89,640 $ 0.28 
Diluted (loss) earnings

per share:                             

 

Employee equity
awards               2,133        3,897    

 Warrants               392        555    
                    

 

(Loss) income giving
effect to dilutive
adjustments  $ (107,445)  91,247 $ (1.18) $ 52,924  92,578 $ 0.57 $ 24,946  94,092 $ 0.27 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
Employee equity awards and warrants   8,642  2,230  2,205 
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(j)    Concentration of Credit Risk

        Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk are principally cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and
installments and collateralized receivables. We place our cash and cash equivalents in financial institutions management believes to be high credit quality.
Concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables is limited to certain customers to which we make substantial sales. To reduce risk, we assess the financial
strength of our customers. We do not generally require collateral or other security in support of our receivables. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, we had no
customers that represented more than 10% of total receivables.

        Our business and results of operations are affected by international, national and regional economic conditions. Financial markets in the United States,
Europe and Asia have been experiencing extreme disruption in recent months, including, among other things, extreme volatility in security prices, severely
diminished liquidity and credit availability, ratings downgrades of certain investments and declining values of others. We are unable to predict the likely duration
and severity of the current disruptions in financial markets, credit availability, and adverse economic conditions throughout the world. These economic
developments affect businesses such as ours and those of our customers in a number of ways that could result in unfavorable consequences.

(k)   Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Discounts

        We make judgments as to our ability to collect outstanding receivables and provide allowances for the portion of receivables when a loss is reasonably
expected to occur. The allowance for doubtful accounts is established to represent the best estimate of the net realizable value of the outstanding accounts and
installments receivable. The development of the allowance for doubtful accounts in general is based on a review of past due amounts, historical write-off and
recovery experience, as well as aging trends affecting specific accounts and general operational factors affecting all accounts. In addition, factors are developed
utilizing historical trends in bad debts, returns and allowances.

        We consider current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. If circumstances relating to specific customers
change or unanticipated changes occur in the general business environment, our estimates of the recoverability of receivables could be further adjusted.

        The following table summarizes allowance for doubtful accounts activity for accounts and installments receivable in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively (in thousands):

        The following table summarizes our receivable balances, net of the related allowance for doubtful accounts, as of June 30, 2010, and 2009 (in thousands).
Installments and collateralized receivables are presented on the consolidated balance sheet and in the table below net of discounts for future interest established at
inception of the note and carry terms of up to five years.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
Balance, beginning of year  $ 8,487 $ 10,637 $ 10,769 
 Provision (recovery) for bad debts   437  (1,378)  752 
 Write-offs   (1,924)  (772)  (884)
        

Balance, end of year  $ 7,000 $ 8,487 $ 10,637 
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

        The unamortized discount on installments and collateralized receivables is recognized over the term of the note as interest income, using the effective
interest method. The total of such unrecognized discounts as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 was as follows (in thousands):

(l)    Fair Value of Financial Instruments

        Effective July 1, 2008, we adopted the provisions of ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" (ASC 820), for financial assets and financial
liabilities. Effective July 1, 2009, we adopted the provisions of ASC 820 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities. ASC 820 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.

        ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between market
participants. ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

• Level 1 Inputs—Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the
measurement date. 

• Level 2 Inputs—Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These
might include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets
that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (such as interest rates, volatilities, prepayment
speeds, credit risks, etc.) or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by market data by correlation or other means. 

• Level 3 Inputs—Unobservable inputs for determining the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.
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  June 30,  
  2010  2009  
  Gross  Allowance  Net  Gross  Allowance  Net  
Accounts Receivable  $ 36,423 $ 4,685 $ 31,738 $ 55,691 $ 5,809 $ 49,882 
Installments Receivable   130,913  2,315  128,598  180,599  2,678  177,921 
Collateralized Receivable   51,430  —  51,430  96,366  —  96,366 

  June 30,  
  2010  2009  
Current portion of installments receivable  $ 2,775 $ 3,141 
Current portion of collateralized receivables   1,158  1,726 
Long-term installments receivable   15,942  27,142 
Long-term collateralized receivables   3,873  9,658 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

        Cash Equivalents.    Cash equivalents are reported at fair value utilizing Level 1 Inputs. We obtain quoted market prices in identical markets to estimate the
fair value of its cash equivalents.

        Financial instruments not measured or recorded at fair value in the accompanying financial statements consist of accounts receivable, installments
receivable, collateralized receivables, accounts payable and secured borrowings. The estimated fair value of accounts receivable, installments receivable,
collateralized receivables and accounts payable approximates the carrying value. The estimated fair value of secured borrowings exceeds the carrying value by
$4.3 million as of June, 2010. The fair value of secured borrowings was calculated using the market approach, utilizing interest rates that were indirectly
observable in markets for similar liabilities.

        The following table summarizes financial assets and financial liabilities measured and recorded at fair value on a recurring basis in the accompanying
financial statements as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value (in
thousands):

        Certain non-financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. These include reporting units measured at fair value using market
and income approaches in the first step of a goodwill impairment test. Certain non-financial assets, including goodwill, intangible assets and other non-financial
long-lived assets, are measured at fair value using market and income approaches on a non-recurring basis when there is an indication that there may be a
triggering event which could result in impairment. The adoption of ASC 820 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities had no material impact on the
financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010.

(m)  Intangible Assets, Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

        Acquired intangibles are removed from the accounts when fully amortized and no longer in use. Intangible assets subject to amortization consist of the
following at June 30, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands):
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Fair Value Measurement at

Reporting Date Using  

Description  

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical

Assets
(Level 1)  

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)  

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
Level (3)  

June 30, 2010           
Assets:           
Cash equivalents  $ 107,000  —  — 

June 30, 2009           
Assets:           
Cash equivalents  $ 87,918  —  — 

    June 30, 2010  June 30, 2009  

Asset Class  
Estimated
Useful Life  

Gross
Carrying
Amount  

Accumulated
Amortization  Net  

Gross
Carrying
Amount  

Accumulated
Amortization  Net  

Customer Relationships  3 - 12 years  $ 676 $ 676 $ — $ 647 $ 491 $ 156 
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

        Intangible asset amortization expense was $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.3 million for fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Fiscal 2010 was the final
year of amortization on the outstanding intangible asset. Amortization expense is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the intangible
assets.

        The changes in the carrying amount of the goodwill by reporting unit for fiscal 2010 and 2009 were as follows (in thousands):

        We test goodwill for impairment annually at the reporting unit level using a fair value approach in accordance with the provisions of ASC 350, "Intangibles
—Goodwill and Other." We conduct our annual impairment test on December 31, of each year. The initial step requires us to determine the fair value of each
reporting unit and compare it to the carrying value, including goodwill, of such reporting unit. If the fair value exceeds the carrying value, no impairment loss is
to be recognized. However, if the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the goodwill of this unit may be impaired. The amount of impairment,
if any, is then measured based upon the estimated fair value of goodwill at the valuation date. We performed our annual impairment test for each reporting unit as
of December 31, 2009, and determined that the estimated fair values substantially exceeded the carrying values. As such, no impairment losses were recognized
as a result of the analysis. If an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying
value, goodwill will be evaluated for impairment between annual tests.

        Certain negative macroeconomic factors began to impact the global credit markets in late calendar 2008 and we noted significant unfavorable trends in
business conditions in the second quarter of fiscal 2009. In connection with preparing the annual impairment assessment, we identified significant
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  Reporting Unit  

Asset Class  License  
Professional

Services  
Maintenance
and Training  Total  

Balance as of June 30, 2008              
 Goodwill  $ 68,059 $ 5,103 $ 16,007 $ 89,169 
 Accumulated impairment losses   (65,569)  (4,581)  —  (70,150)
          

 $ 2,490 $ 522 $ 16,007 $ 19,019 
          

 Impairment loss   —  (521)  —  (521)

 

Effect of changes in currency
translation   (15)  (1)  (1,796)  (1,812)

          

Balance as of June 30, 2009              
 Goodwill  $ 68,044 $ 5,102 $ 14,211 $ 87,357 
 Accumulated impairment losses   (65,569)  (5,102)  —  (70,671)
          

 $ 2,475 $ — $ 14,211 $ 16,686 
          

 

Effect of changes in currency
translation   15  —  660  675 

          

Balance as of June 30, 2010              
 Goodwill  $ 68,059 $ 5,102 $ 14,871 $ 88,032 
 Accumulated impairment losses   (65,569)  (5,102)  —  (70,671)
          

 $ 2,490 $ — $ 14,871 $ 17,361 
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

deterioration in the expected future financial performance of the professional services segment compared to the expected future financial performance of this
segment at the end of fiscal 2008. As a result, we recognized goodwill and intangible assets impairments of $0.5 million and $0.1 million, respectively, within the
professional services reporting unit during the second fiscal quarter of 2009, which ended December 31, 2008, to write off all of the goodwill and intangible
assets of this reporting unit. The method for determining fair value was based on weighting estimates of future cash flows from the reporting units and estimates
of the market value of the reporting units, based on comparable companies. These impairment losses were recorded as loss on impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets in the consolidated statement of operations.

        We evaluate our long-lived assets, which include property and leasehold improvements and intangible assets, excluding goodwill, for impairment as events
and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If we determine that an impairment review is required, we would review the
expected future undiscounted cash flows to be generated by the assets. If we determine that the carrying value of our long-lived assets may not be recoverable, we
would measure any impairment based on a projected discounted cash flow method using a discount rate determined by us to be commensurate with the risk
inherent in our current business model.

(n)   Comprehensive Income

        Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of a business enterprise during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from
non-owner sources. Comprehensive income is disclosed in the accompanying consolidated statements of stockholders' equity (deficit) and comprehensive
income. The components of accumulated other comprehensive income as of June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 consist of cumulative translation adjustments.

(o)   Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

        We adopted ASC 718, "Compensation—Stock Compensation" (ASC 718). Under the provisions of this statement, stock-based compensation cost is
measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the vesting period.

(p)   Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets

        We derecognize financial assets, specifically accounts receivable and installments receivable, when control has been surrendered in compliance with ASC
860, "Transfers and Servicing" (ASC 860). Transfers of accounts receivable and installments receivable that meet the requirements of (ASC860) for sale
accounting treatment are removed from the balance sheet and gains or losses on the sale are recognized. If the conditions for sale accounting treatment are not
met, or are no longer met, accounts receivable and installments receivable transferred are classified as collateralized receivables in the consolidated balance sheet
and cash received from these transactions is classified as secured borrowings. All transfers of assets are accounted for as secured borrowings. Transaction costs
associated with secured borrowings, if any, are treated as borrowing costs and recognized in interest expense. When we receive cash from a customer, the
collateralized receivable balance is reduced and the related secured borrowing is reclassified to an accrued liability for amounts we must remit to the financial
institution. The accrued liability is reduced when payment is remitted to the financial institution.
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(q)   Income Taxes

        Deferred income taxes are recognized based on temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the statutory tax rates and laws expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are
expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are provided against net deferred tax assets if, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income and the
timing of the temporary differences becoming deductible. Management considers, among other available information, scheduled reversals of deferred tax
liabilities, projected future taxable income, limitations of availability of net operating loss carryforwards, and other matters in making this assessment.

        We do not provide deferred taxes on unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries since we intend to indefinitely reinvest either currently or sometime in the
foreseeable future. Unrecognized provisions for taxes on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries, which are considered indefinitely reinvested, are not
material to our consolidated financial position or results of operations. We are continuously subject to examination by the IRS, as well as various state and foreign
jurisdictions. The IRS and other taxing authorities may challenge certain deductions and credits reported by us on our income tax returns. In July 2006, the FASB
issued FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions, (currently included as provisions of ASC Topic 740), which clarifies the criteria for recognition and
measurement of benefits from uncertain tax positions. Under FIN 48, an entity should recognize a tax benefit when it is more-likely-than-not, based on the
technical merits, that the position would be sustained upon examination by a taxing authority. The amount to be recognized, if the more-likely-than-not threshold
was passed, should be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing
authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. Furthermore, any change in the recognition, de-recognition or measurement of a tax position should
be recorded in the period in which the change occurs. We account for interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as part of the provision for income
taxes.

(r)   Legal Fees and Contingencies

        We accrue estimated liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation and other sources when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and the amount of the claim assessment or damages can be reasonably estimated. We believe that we have sufficient accruals to cover any
obligations resulting from claims, assessments or litigation that have met this criteria.

(s)   Advertising Costs

        We charge advertising costs to expense as the costs are incurred. We incurred advertising expenses of $2.7 million, $2.5 million and $3.3 million during
fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. We had no prepaid advertising costs included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

(t)    Research and Development Expense

        We charge research and development expenditures to expense as the costs are incurred. Research and development expenses include salaries, direct costs
incurred and building and overhead expenses.
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(u)   Accounting for Restructuring Accruals

        We follow ASC 420, "Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations." In addition, we consider the guidance where applicable in ASC 712, "Compensation—
Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits," and ASC 715, "Compensation—Retirement Benefits." In accounting for these obligations, we are required to make
assumptions related to the amounts of employee severance, benefits, and related costs and to the time period over which facilities will remain vacant, sublease
terms, sublease rates and discount rates. Estimates and assumptions are based on the best information available at the time the obligation has arisen. The
restructuring charge for restructuring programs that have future payments that extend beyond one year is recorded at the net present value of the future cash
payments to be made. The discount is then accreted to restructuring expense over the term of the remaining payments. These estimates are reviewed and revised
as facts and circumstances dictate; changes in these estimates could have a material effect on the amount accrued on the consolidated balance sheet.

(v)   Correction of Immaterial Errors

        During the first and second quarters of fiscal 2010, we identified errors related to stock compensation expense, license and professional services revenue,
and income taxes that originated in prior periods and concluded that the errors were not material to any of the previously reported periods or to the periods in
which the errors were corrected. These immaterial errors were corrected in the first and second quarter 2010 Interim Financial Statements. The impact to certain
captions in the unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2010, resulting from the out-of-period component of the
correction of immaterial errors, is as follows (in thousands):

        During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, we identified certain errors related to income taxes, stock-based compensation expense, and foreign transactions that
originated in prior periods and concluded that the errors were not material to any of the previously reported periods or to the periods in which the errors were
corrected. These immaterial errors were corrected in first quarter 2009 Interim Financial Statements and in the information presented in the first quarter and full
fiscal year financial statements and disclosures. The impact to certain captions in the consolidated statement of operations
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  Three Months Ended  

  
September 30,

2009  
December 31,

2009  

  
Increase

(Decrease)  
Increase

(Decrease)  
Total revenue  $ 93 $ (370)
Income (loss) from operations   (722)  (370)
Income (loss) before provision for taxes   (722)  (370)
Net income (loss)   (1,302)  (1,540)
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

for fiscal 2009, resulting from these out-of-period components of the immaterial corrections, is as follows (in thousands):

(w)  Subsequent Events

        We evaluated events occurring between the end of our most recent fiscal year and the date the financial statements were issued. There were no subsequent
events to be disclosed based on this evaluation, other than the warrant exercise on August 13, 2010 described in Note 9.

(x)   Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

        In September 2006, the FASB issued ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" (ASC 820), which enhances existing guidance for measuring
assets and liabilities at fair value. ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about fair value
measurements. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB permitted companies to partially defer
the effective date of ASC 820 for one year for nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
nonrecurring basis. We adopted ASC 820 on July 1, 2008. The adoption of ASC 820 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. In
January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-06, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820): Improving
Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements." This ASU requires new disclosures including significant transfers into and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements and a reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements including purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements on a gross basis. It also clarifies
existing disclosures regarding the level of disaggregation, inputs and valuation techniques. We adopted ASU No. 2010-06 during the third quarter of fiscal 2010
and it did not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In May 2009, the FASB issued ASC 855, "Subsequent Events" (ASC 855). ASC 855 establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events
that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. ASC 855 is effective for interim and annual periods
ending after June 15, 2009. We adopted ASC 855 on April 1, 2009. The adoption of ASC 855 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements. In January 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2010-09, "Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disclosure
Requirements." As a result of ASU No. 2010-09, ASC 855 no longer requires entities to disclose the date through which subsequent events have occurred. We
adopted ASU No. 2010-09 during the third quarter of fiscal 2010. The adoption of ASU No. 2010-09 did not have a material impact on our results of operations,
financial position, or cash flows.
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Three Months
Ended

September 30,
2008  

  
Increase

(Decrease)  
Total revenue  $ — 
Income from operations   887 
Income before provision for taxes   315 
Net income   (3,618)
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        In December 2007, the FASB issued ASC 810, "Consolidation" (ASC 810), which establishes accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in
subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest, changes in a
parent's ownership interest and the valuation of retained noncontrolling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. The authoritative guidance also
establishes reporting requirements that provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of
the noncontrolling owners. ASC 810 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. We adopted the provisions of ASC 810 as of July 1, 2009.
The adoption of ASC 810 did not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows as there were no minority interests reported
as of June 30, 2010 or 2009.

        In April 2008, the FASB issued additional authoritative guidance to ASC 350-30, "Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—General Intangibles Other Than
Goodwill" (ASC 350). The guidance amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful
life of a recognized intangible asset under ASC 350. The updated guidance was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. We adopted the
provisions of the new guidance as of July 1, 2009. The adoption of the new provisions did not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial
position, or cash flows due to the immaterial value of intangibles as of June 30, 2010.

        In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, "The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles—a replacement of FASB Statement No. 162" (SFAS No. 168). SFAS No. 168 stipulates the FASB Accounting Standards Codification is the source of
authoritative U.S. GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities. SFAS No. 168 is effective for financial statements issued for
interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 168 on July 1, 2009. The implementation of this standard
did not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

(y)   Reclassifications

        Certain line items within total operating costs of our prior period consolidated statements of operations and Note 15, "Segment and Geographic Information,"
have been reclassified to conform to currently reported presentations. Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we reclassified expenses primarily relating to
product management from Selling and marketing to Research and development. Other adjustments were made to reclassify certain allocable expenses from
Selling and marketing to General and administrative and immaterial losses and gains on asset disposals to the department where the related assets were held. The
impact of these reclassifications to our previously presented statements of operations for fiscal 2009 and 2008 is represented in the table below (in thousands):
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2009  2008  
  Increase / (Decrease)  
Selling and marketing  $ (5,024) $ (4,717)
Research and development   4,912  4,720 
General and administrative   118  (69)
Loss (gain) on sales and disposals of assets   (6)  66 



Table of Contents

ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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        Additionally, in fiscal 2010, we reclassified cash flows from changes in other non-current assets in our prior period consolidated statements of cash flows
from an investing activity to an operating activity. This immaterial reclassification was made as a result of the underlying assets being operating in nature. The
impact of this change on our cash flows from operating activities totaled ($0.4) million and ($0.6) million for fiscal 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(3) Restructuring Charges

        Restructuring charges consist of the following (in thousands):

        During fiscal 2010, we recorded $1.1 million in restructuring charges. Of this amount, $0.7 million related to changes in the estimates of future operating
costs and sublease assumptions related to our restructuring programs and $0.4 million related to accretion.

        At June 30, 2010, total restructuring liabilities of $8.5 million related to the closure of facilities and contract termination costs. We anticipate that payments
of $9.3 million will be made related to the closure of facilities through fiscal 2017.

        The following activity was recorded for the indicated years (in thousands):
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
Restructuring Charges  $ 1,128 $ 2,446 $ 8,623 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities and
Contract

Termination
Costs  

Employee
Severance,

Benefits, and
Related Costs  Total  

Accrued expenses, June 30, 2007  $ 13,386 $ 828 $ 14,214 
 Restructuring charge   6,276  545  6,821 
 Fiscal 2008 payments   (5,249)  (1,203)  (6,452)
 Restructuring charge—accretion   575  —  575 
 Change in estimate—revised assumption   1,366  (139)  1,227 
        

Accrued expenses, June 30, 2008   16,354  31  16,385 
 Restructuring charge   —  1,700  1,700 
 Fiscal 2009 payments   (5,009)  (1,604)  (6,613)
 Restructuring charge—accretion   629  —  629 
 Change in estimate—revised assumption   (55)  172  117 
        

Accrued expenses, June 30, 2009   11,919  299  12,218 
 Restructuring charge   —  —  — 
 Fiscal 2010 payments   (4,535)  (297)  (4,832)
 Restructuring charge—accretion   420  —  420 
 Change in estimate—revised assumption   710  (2)  708 
        

Accrued expenses, June 30, 2010  $ 8,514 $ — $ 8,514 
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(3) Restructuring Charges (Continued)

(a)   Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended March 31, 2009

        In the three months ended March 31, 2009, we initiated a worldwide plan to reduce operating expenses by reorganizing business units through headcount
reductions. During fiscal 2009, we recorded a charge of $1.7 million associated with headcount reductions. Approximately 70 employees, or 5% of the workforce,
were eliminated under the restructuring plan. The employees were primarily located in North America and Europe. All business units were affected, including
services, sales and marketing, research and development, and general and administrative. During fiscal 2010, payments of $0.3 million were made, which marked
the completion of this restructuring plan.

(b)   Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2007

        In May 2007, we initiated a plan to relocate our corporate headquarters from Cambridge to Burlington, Massachusetts. The relocation resulted in our ceasing
to use our prior corporate headquarters leased space, subleasing the space to a third party, and the relocation to a new facility. During fiscal 2008, we recorded a
charge of $6.0 million associated with the relocation of certain departments to temporary space. The closure and relocation actions were completed in October
2007. These costs did not meet the criteria for accrual as of June 30, 2007. During fiscal 2009, we recorded an additional $0.4 million in restructuring charges,
primarily related to accretion. During fiscal 2010, we made payments of $1.3 million and recorded additional restructuring charges of $0.3 million related to
accretion, offset by a $0.1 million reduction of the accrual due to changes in estimates. As of June 30, 2010, there was $2.8 million remaining in accrued expenses
related to the remaining lease payments, to be paid through fiscal 2013.

(c)   Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2005.

        In May 2005, we initiated a plan to consolidate several corporate functions and to reduce our operating expenses. The plan to reduce operating expenses
primarily resulted in headcount reductions, and also included the termination of a contract and the consolidation of facilities. These actions resulted in an
aggregate restructuring charge of $3.8 million, recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2008 we recorded an additional $0.8 million in
restructuring charges related to headcount reductions, relocation costs and facility consolidations associated with the May 2005 plan that did not qualify for
accrual at June 30, 2005. As of June 30, 2009, there were no remaining accruals associated with the plan.

        Closure/consolidation of facilities:    Approximately $0.3 million of the restructuring charges recorded in fiscal 2008 related to the termination of facility
leases.

        Employee severance, benefits and related costs:    Approximately $0.5 million of the restructuring charges recorded in fiscal 2008 related to the reduction in
headcount. Approximately 130 employees, or 10% of the workforce, were eliminated under the restructuring plan. The employees were primarily located in
North America and Europe. All business units were affected, including services, sales and marketing, research and development, and general and administrative.

(d)   Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2004

        In June 2004, we initiated a plan to reduce our operating expenses in order to better align our operating cost structure with the economic environment and to
improve operating margins. The plan to reduce operating expenses resulted in the consolidation of facilities, headcount reductions, and the
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(3) Restructuring Charges (Continued)

termination of operating contracts. These actions resulted in an aggregate restructuring charge of $23.5 million, recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.
During fiscal 2005, we recorded $14.4 million related to headcount reductions and facility consolidations associated with the June 2004 restructuring plan that did
not qualify for accrual at June 30, 2004. In addition, we recorded $0.4 million in restructuring charges related to the accretion of the discounted restructuring
accrual and a $0.8 million decrease to the accrual related to changes in estimates of severance benefits and sublease terms. During fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, we
recorded a $0.5 million increase, and a less than $0.1 million and $1.2 million decrease, respectively, to the accrual primarily due to changes in the estimate of
future operating costs and sublease assumptions associated with the facilities, as well as accretion of $0.1 million, $0.3 million, and $0.3 million, respectively. As
of June 30, 2010, there was $2.7 million remaining in accrued expenses relating to the remaining lease payments, to be paid through fiscal 2017.

        Closure/consolidation of facilities:    Approximately $9.1 million of the fiscal 2005 restructuring related to the termination of facility leases and other lease
related costs. The facility leases had remaining terms ranging from several months to eight years. The amount accrued is an estimate of the remaining obligation
under the lease or actual costs to buy-out leases, reduced by expected income from the sublease of the underlying properties. The remaining accrual all relates to
future payments related to the closure and consolidation of facilities under the plan.
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        Employee severance, benefits and related costs:    Approximately $4.4 million of the fiscal 2005 restructuring charge, related to a reduction in headcount. In
the aggregate, approximately 147 employees, or 9% of the workforce, were eliminated under the restructuring plan implemented by management. The fiscal 2005
restructuring charge related to employees that had not been notified in a manner that would allow for accrual as of June 30, 2004. Such accrual occurred in the
first quarter of fiscal 2005. A majority of the employees were located in North America, although Europe was affected as well. All business units were affected,
including services, sales and marketing, research and development, and general and administrative.

        Impairment of assets:    Approximately $1.0 million of the fiscal 2005 restructuring charge related to charges associated with the impairment of fixed assets
associated with the closed and consolidated facilities. These assets were considered to be impaired because their carrying values were in excess of their fair
values.

(e)   Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended December 31, 2002

        In October 2002, management initiated a plan to reduce operating expenses in response to first quarter revenue results that were below expectations and to
general economic uncertainties. The plan to reduce operating expenses resulted in headcount reductions, consolidation of facilities, and discontinuation of
development and support for certain non-critical products. These actions resulted in an aggregate restructuring charge of $28.7 million. During fiscal 2010, 2009
and 2008, we recorded a $0.4 million increase, a $0.1 million increase and a $0.1 million decrease, respectively, to the accrual, primarily due to changes in the
estimate of future operating costs associated with the facilities. As of June 30, 2010, there was $3.0 million remaining in accrued expenses primarily relating to
the remaining lease payments to be paid through fiscal 2013.

(f)    Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2002

        In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, management initiated a plan to reduce operating expenses and to restructure operations around our two primary product
lines, engineering software and manufacturing/supply chain software. We reduced worldwide headcount by approximately 10%, or 200 employees, closed and
consolidated facilities, and disposed of certain assets, resulting in an aggregate restructuring charge of $13.2 million. During fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, we
recorded nominal increases to the accrual, due to changes in sublease assumptions. As of June 30, 2010, there was $0.1 million remaining in accrued expenses
relating to lease payments, to be paid through fiscal 2011.

(4) Secured Borrowings and Collateralized Receivables

        We have transferred certain customer installment and trade receivables to financial institutions that are accounted for as secured borrowings. The transferred
receivables serve as collateral under the receivable sales facilities. Since December 2007, we have not sold any receivables for the purpose of raising cash, but we
have sold some large dollar receivables in order to fund the repurchase of several large groups of smaller receivables previously sold to the banks, for the purpose
of simplifying our administration of the programs. Generally, the carrying value of each collateralized receivable approximates the carrying value of the
equivalent secured borrowing. However, there are instances when the financed future committed customer receivable has not yet been recognized as revenue, and
as a result, has not been recorded as a collateralized receivable on our balance sheet. As of June 30,
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(4) Secured Borrowings and Collateralized Receivables (Continued)

2010, the carrying value of our secured borrowings approximated the related future committed customer receivable.

        At June 30, 2010 and 2009, receivables totaling $51.4 million and $96.4 million, respectively, were pledged as collateral for the secured borrowings. The
secured borrowings totaled $76.1 million and $112.1 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The collateralized receivables are presented at their net
present value. The interest rate implicit in the installment receivables was 8% as of June 30, 2010 and 2009. We recorded $6.2 million, $8.7 million and
$15.1 million of interest income associated with the collateralized receivables for fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and recognized $8.0 million,
$10.5 million and $16.1 million of interest expense associated with the secured borrowings. Proceeds from and payments on the secured borrowings are presented
as components of cash flows from financing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. Reductions of secured borrowings are recognized as financing
cash flows upon payment to the financial institution and operating cash flows from collateralized receivables are recognized upon customer payment of amounts
due.

Traditional Programs

        We historically have maintained arrangements which we refer to as our Traditional Programs to transfer certain of our receivables to financial institutions
upon the mutual agreement of us and the financial institution for each such customer receivable. The transfers of customer receivables under these programs have
been accounted for as secured borrowings. Under our arrangements with General Electric Capital Corporation, Bank of America and Silicon Valley Bank (SVB),
both parties must agree to enter into each transaction and negotiate the amount borrowed and interest rate secured by each receivable. We received cash proceeds
of $9.5 million, $30.2 million and $74.1 million for fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, related to these programs.

        The collateralized receivables earn interest income and the secured borrowings accrue borrowing costs at approximately the same interest rate. When cash is
received from a customer by us, the collateralized receivable balance is reduced and the related secured borrowing is reclassified to an accrued liability for
amounts we must remit to the financial institution. The accrued liability is reduced when payment is remitted to the financial institutions. The terms of the
customer receivables range from amounts that are due within 30 days to receivables that are due within four years.

        Under the terms of the Traditional Programs we have transferred the receivables to the financial institutions with limited financial recourse to us. Potential
recourse obligations are primarily related to one program that requires us to pay interest to SVB when the underlying customer has not paid by the receivable due
date. This recourse is limited to a maximum period of 90 days after the due date. The amount of outstanding receivables that have this potential recourse
obligation is $32.2 million at June 30, 2010. This ninety-day recourse obligation is recognized as interest expense as incurred and totaled less than $0.1 million,
$0.1 million and $0.4 million for fiscal 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. Otherwise, recourse generally results from circumstances, if any, in which we failed to
perform requirements related to contracts with the customer. Other than the specific items noted above, the financial institutions bear the credit risk of the
customers associated with the receivables the institution purchased.

        In the ordinary course of us acting as a servicing agent for receivables transferred to SVB, we regularly receive funds from customers that are processed and
remitted onward to SVB. While in our possession, these cash receipts are contractually owned by SVB and are held by us on their behalf until
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(4) Secured Borrowings and Collateralized Receivables (Continued)

remitted to the bank. Cash receipts held for the benefit of SVB recorded in our cash balances and current liabilities totaled $0 as of June 30, 2010 and 2009. Such
amounts are restricted from our use.

        In June 2008, we paid the outstanding amount under the Bank of America program at its carrying value of $2.7 million inclusive of a one percent pre-
payment penalty.

Securitization of Accounts Receivable

        During fiscal 2005 and 2007 we entered into securitization arrangements where we securitized and transferred receivables with a net carrying value of
$71.9 million and $32.1 million, respectively, and received cash proceeds of $43.8 million and $20.0 million, respectively. These borrowings were secured by the
transferred receivables, and the debt and borrowing costs were repaid as the receivables were collected. Neither arrangement met the criteria for a sale and as such
had been accounted for as a secured borrowing. We received and retained collections on these securitized receivables after all borrowing and related costs were
paid to the financial institution. The financial institutions' rights to repayment were limited to the payments received from the receivables. Both securitizations
were paid off during fiscal 2008 at their respective carrying values of $4.2 million and $12.2 million. The payments resulted in a reclassification to accounts
receivable of $9.8 million and to current installments receivable of $17.8 million from the current portion of collateralized receivables, and $23.9 million from
non-current collateralized receivables to non-current installment receivables.

        The secured borrowings consist of the following at June 30, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands):

        The cash payments on the collateralized receivables fund the secured borrowing payments, and we retain payments received on collateralized receivables
that are in excess of the secured borrowings. We have no future cash obligations other than the limited recourse obligations noted above.

(5) Line of Credit

        In January 2003 and through subsequent amendments, we executed a loan arrangement with Silicon Valley Bank. This arrangement provides a line of credit
of up to the lesser of (i) $25.0 million or (ii) 50% to 80% of certain eligible receivables. The line of credit bears interest at the greater of (i) the bank's prime rate
(4.0% at June 30, 2010) plus 0.5%, or (ii) 4.75%. If we maintain a $10.0 million compensating cash balance with the bank the unused line of credit fee will be
0.1875% per annum, otherwise it will be 0.375% per annum. The line of credit is collateralized by substantially all of our assets and we are required to meet
certain financial covenants, including minimum tangible net worth, minimum cash balances and an adjusted quick ratio. The terms of the loan arrangement
restrict our ability to pay dividends, with the exception of common stock dividends or preferred stock dividends paid in cash.
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  June 30,  
  2010  2009  
Traditional Programs—weighted average interest rate of 8.3% and

8.1% at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively  $ 76,135 $ 112,096 
Less current portion   30,424  83,885 
      

Total secured borrowings, less current portion  $ 45,711 $ 28,211 
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(5) Line of Credit (Continued)

        We were in compliance with the terms of the credit facility as of June 30, 2010. As of June 30, 2009, we were not in compliance with certain financial
reporting requirements under the terms of the credit facility. We obtained waivers for that non-compliance and on November 3, 2009, we executed an amendment
to the loan arrangement that adjusted certain terms of covenants, including modifying the date we must provide quarterly unaudited and annual audited financial
statements to the bank. In June 2010, we executed an amendment to the loan arrangement that extended the maturity date of the credit facility to November 15,
2010.

        As of June 30, 2010, there were $4.4 million in letters of credit outstanding under the line of credit and no outstanding debt under the line of credit and
$16.4 million was available for future borrowing. Our total borrowing through SVB is limited to $95 million. In the event that we utilize the full $85 million
available through the Traditional Programs with Silicon Valley Bank, our total credit line could not exceed $10 million.

(6) Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

        Property, equipment and leasehold improvements in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets consist of the following (in thousands):

        We account for asset retirement obligations in accordance with ASC 410, "Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations." Our asset retirement
obligations relate to leasehold improvements for leased properties. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the balance of our asset retirement obligations was $0.7 million.

        Accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets consist of the following (in thousands):
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  June 30,  
  2010  2009  
Property, equipment and leasehold improvements—at cost        
Computer equipment  $ 9,358 $ 9,538 
Purchased software   19,194  17,815 
Furniture & fixtures   5,693  5,881 
Leasehold improvements   3,581  3,808 
Accumulated depreciation   (29,769)  (27,438)
      

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements—net  $ 8,057 $ 9,604 
  

 
 

 
 

  June 30,  
  2010  2009  
Royalties and outside commissions  $ 4,856 $ 8,627 
Payroll and payroll-related   21,862  13,793 
Restructuring accruals   4,266  4,974 
Amounts due to receivable sale facilities for collections   4,216  2,724 
Other   14,690  17,764 
      

 Total accrued expenses  $ 49,890 $ 47,882 
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(6) Supplemental Balance Sheet Information (Continued)

        Other non-current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets consist of the following (in thousands):

(7) Preferred Stock

        Our Board of Directors is authorized, subject to any limitations prescribed by law, without further stockholder approval, to issue, from time to time, up to an
aggregate of 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series. Each such series of preferred stock shall have such number of shares, designations,
preferences, voting powers, qualifications and special or relative rights or privileges, which may include, among others, dividend rights, voting rights, redemption
and sinking fund provisions, liquidation preferences and conversion rights, as shall be determined by the Board of Directors in a resolution or resolutions
providing for the issuance of such series. Any such series of preferred stock, if so determined by the Board of Directors, may have full voting rights with the
common stock or limited voting rights and may be convertible into common stock or another security of the Company.

Series D redeemable convertible preferred stock

        In August 2003, we issued and sold 300,300 shares of Series D-1 redeemable convertible preferred stock (Series D-1 Preferred), along with warrants to
purchase up to 6,006,006 shares of common stock at a price of $3.33 per share, in a private placement to several investment partnerships managed by Advent
International Corporation for an aggregate purchase price of $100.0 million. Concurrently, we paid cash of $30.0 million and issued 63,064 shares of Series D-2
convertible preferred stock (Series D-2 Preferred), along with warrants to purchase up to 1,261,280 shares of common stock at a price of $3.33 per share, to
repurchase all of the outstanding Series B Preferred. In addition, we exchanged existing warrants to purchase 791,044 shares of common stock at an exercise
price ranging from $20.64 to $23.99 held by the holders of the Series B Preferred, for new warrants to purchase 791,044 shares of common stock at an exercise
price of $4.08. These transactions are referred to collectively as the Series D Preferred financing.

        Each share of Series D Preferred was entitled to vote on all matters in which holders of common stock were entitled to vote, receiving a number of votes
equal to the number of shares of common stock into which it was then convertible. In addition, holders of Series D-1 Preferred, as a separate class, were entitled
to elect a certain number of directors, based on a formula as defined in the Series D Preferred Certificate of Designations. The holders of the Series D-1 Preferred
were entitled to elect a number of our directors calculated as a ratio of the Series D-1 Preferred voting power as compared to the total voting power of our
common stock. The Series D-1 Preferred holders were elected as three of the six current directors of the Company.
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  June 30,  
  2010  2009  
Restructuring accruals  $ 4,248 $ 7,244 
Deferred rent   2,193  2,333 
Royalties and outside commissions   3,667  5,852 
Other   21,724  20,430 
      

 Total other non-current liabilities  $ 31,832 $ 35,859 
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(7) Preferred Stock (Continued)

        On May 16, 2006, the Holders of the Series D Preferred converted 30,000 shares into 3,000,000 shares of common stock. In December 2006, the holders of
the Series D-1 Preferred converted their remaining 270,300 shares into 27,030,000 shares of common stock. In December 2006, we announced that we would
redeem any shares of our Series D-2 Preferred that were not converted by our holders into common shares by January 30, 2007. In January 2007, the remaining
63,064 shares of Series D-2 Preferred were converted by our holder into 6,306,400 shares of common stock.

Registration Rights

        In May 2006, we received a demand letter from the Series D-1 Preferred holders, in accordance with the terms of their investor rights agreement with us,
requesting registration of all of the shares of common stock issued or issuable upon the conversion of Series D-1 Preferred and the exercise of their warrants in
connection with an underwritten public offering per the terms defined in the investor rights agreement. We are required to register the underlying shares at our
expense. As of June 30, 2010, the total number of outstanding shares of common stock that would be included by their registration demand letter is 29,512,336.

(8) Stock-Based Compensation

Stock Compensation Plans

        In April 2010, the shareholders approved the establishment of the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2010 Plan), which provides for the reservation of
7,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the 2010 Plan. The 2010 Plan provides for the grant of incentive and nonqualified stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, other stock-related awards, and performance awards that may be settled in cash, stock, or other
property. As of June 30, 2010, there were 7,000,000 shares of common stock available for issuance subject to awards under the 2010 Plan.

        In May 2005, the shareholders approved the establishment of the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 Plan), which provides for the reservation of up to
4,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the 2005 Plan. The 2005 Plan provides for the grant of incentive and nonqualified stock options and other
stock-based awards, including the grant of shares based upon certain conditions, the grant of securities convertible into common stock and the grant of stock
appreciation rights. Restricted stock and other stock-based awards granted under the 2005 Plan may not exceed, in the aggregate, 4,000,000 shares of common
stock. As of June 30, 2010, there were 1,027,378 shares of common stock available for issuance subject to awards under the 2005 Plan.
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        In December 2000, the shareholders approved the establishment of the 2001 Stock Option Plan (the 2001 Plan), which provides for the issuance of incentive
stock options and nonqualified options. Under the 2001 Plan, the Board of Directors could grant stock options to purchase up to an aggregate of 4,000,000 shares
of common stock. At July 1, 2002, July 1, 2003 and July 1, 2004, the 2001 Plan was expanded to cover an additional 5% of the outstanding shares on the
preceding June 30. In no event, however, may the number of shares subject to incentive options under the 2001 Option Plan exceed 8,000,000 unless the 2001
Plan is amended and such amendment is approved by the shareholders. As of June 30, 2010, there were 321,425 shares of common stock available for grant under
the 2001 Plan.

        In December 1996, our shareholders approved the establishment of the 1996 Special Stock Option Plan (the 1996 Plan). This plan provides for the issuance
of incentive stock options and nonqualified options to purchase up to 500,000 shares of common stock. Stock options become exercisable over varying periods
and expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant. We discontinued our employee stock purchase plan as of June 30, 2007.

        In October 1997, our Board of Directors approved the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, under which the Board of Directors may grant stock purchase
rights for a maximum of 1,000,000 shares through September 30, 2007. In December 2000 and 2003, the shareholders voted to increase the number of shares
eligible under the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan by 2,000,000 and 3,000,000 shares, respectively. Employees are granted options to purchase shares of
common stock on the last business day of each semi-annual payment period for 85% of the market price of the common stock on the first or last business day of
such payment period, whichever was less. The purchase price for such shares was paid through payroll deductions, and the June 30, 2008, maximum allowable
payroll deduction was 10% of each eligible employee's compensation. Under the plan, we issued 315,751 shares in 2005, 188,119 shares in 2006, and 107,862
shares in 2007. On July 1, 2007, we issued 51,311 shares under the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. We discontinued the plan as of June 30, 2008.

General Award Terms

        We issue stock options and restricted stock units to our employees and outside directors, pursuant to stockholder approved stock option plans. Option awards
are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of our stock at the date of grant; those options generally vest over four years and have 7 or
10-year contractual terms. Restricted stock units (RSUs) generally vest over four years. Historically, our practice has been to settle stock option exercises and
restricted stock vesting through newly-issued shares.

Stock Compensation Accounting

        We recognize compensation costs on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for time-vested awards. For awards that vest based on performance
conditions, we use the accelerated model for graded vesting awards based on probability.

        Our stock based compensation is principally accounted for as awards of equity instruments. Our policy is to issue new shares upon the exercise of stock
awards. We adopted the simplified method related to accounting for the tax effects of share-based payment awards to employees ASC 718, "Compensation—
Stock Compensation" (ASC 718). We use the "with-and-without" approach for determining if excess tax benefits are realized under ASC 718.
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        During the period from mid-September 2007 until November 9, 2009, and from November 16, 2009 to December 21, 2009, we did not maintain our status as
a timely filer with the SEC and we were unable to issue stock-based compensation to our directors and employees. On October 29, 2009 the Board of Directors
approved the grant as of November 9, 2009 of 2,727,033 RSUs and 264,640 stock options under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2001 Stock Option Plan,
respectively. Since we were not able to grant awards during the period described above, a portion of the awards were vested immediately upon grant. The RSUs
were valued at the stock price on the date of grant. We utilized the Black-Scholes valuation model for estimating the fair value of the stock-based compensation.

        The stock-based compensation expense and its classification (in thousands) in the statement of operations for fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008 was as follows (in
thousands):

        We utilize the Black-Scholes valuation model for estimating the fair value of the stock compensation. We granted 264,640 stock options during fiscal 2010.
There were no stock options granted in fiscal 2009. The weighted-average fair values of the options granted under the stock option plans for fiscal 2010 and fiscal
2008 were calculated using the following assumptions:

        The dividend yield of zero is based on the fact that we have never paid cash dividends on common stock and have no present intention to pay cash dividends.
Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of our common stock over the period commensurate with the expected life of the options. The risk-free
interest rate is the U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bond with a maturity commensurate with the expected life of the option on the date of grant. In fiscal 2010, we
calculated the estimated life based upon historical exercise behavior, as well as anticipated future events that may affect volatility.
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
Recorded as expense:           
 Cost of service and other  $ 1,314 $ 429 $ 1,254 
 Selling and marketing   5,742  928  3,345 
 Research and development   1,880  460  1,411 
 General and administrative   6,324  2,853  4,590 
        

  15,260  4,670  10,600 
Capitalized computer software development costs:   2  26  18 
        

 Total stock-based compensation  $ 15,262 $ 4,696 $ 10,618 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Year Ended June 30,  

  

2010
Stock Option

Plans  

2008
Stock Option

Plans  
Weighted average fair values of options granted  $ 3.96 $ 7.26 
Average risk-free interest rate   1.4%  4.4% 
Expected dividend yield   None  None 
Expected life   3.4  5.0 
Expected volatility range   57%  80% 
Weighted average expected volatility   57%  80% 
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        A summary of stock option and RSU activity under all stock option plans in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

        The weighted average grant-date fair value of RSUs granted during fiscal 2010 was $9.56; there were no RSU grants in fiscal 2009 or 2008. In fiscal 2010,
2009 and 2008, the total fair value of shares vested from RSU grants was $13.1 million, $1.2 million and $3.8 million, respectively.

        At June 30, 2010, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock options and RSUs was $0.8 million and $14.3 million, respectively, and
is expected to be recorded over the next four years as the awards vest.

        The total intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2010 and 2008 was $8.3 million and $2.8 million, respectively. There were no options exercised in
fiscal 2009. We received $7.2 million and $2.8 million in cash proceeds from option exercises during fiscal 2010 and 2008, respectively. We paid $4.0 million,
$0.4 million and $1.2 million for withholding taxes on vested RSUs during fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

        At June 30, 2010, common stock reserved for future issuance or settlement under equity compensation plans was 15.9 million shares.
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  Stock Options  Restricted Stock Units  

  Shares  

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price  

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term  

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in 000's)  Shares  

Weighted
Average
Grant

Date Fair
Value  

Outstanding at June 30, 2007   8,311,565 $ 7.64        663,200 $ 10.42 
 Granted   40,000  10.86        —  — 
 Vested (RSUs)   —  —        (272,965)  10.42 
 Exercised   (362,605)  7.71        —  — 
 Cancelled / Forfeited   (249,025)  9.97        (68,730)  10.42 
                  

Outstanding at June 30, 2008   7,739,935  7.62        321,505  10.42 
 Granted   —  —        —  — 
 Vested (RSUs)   —  —        (134,477)  10.42 
 Exercised   —  —        —  — 
 Cancelled / Forfeited   (170,720)  7.96        (36,415)  10.42 
                  

Outstanding at June 30, 2009   7,569,215  7.61        150,613  10.42 
 Granted   264,640  9.55        2,749,283  9.56 
 Vested (RSUs)   —  —        (1,333,370)  9.63 
 Exercised   (1,416,794)  5.07        —  — 
 Cancelled / Forfeited   (1,021,191)  13.90        (54,263)  9.66 
                  

Outstanding at June 30, 2010   5,395,870 $ 7.19  4.7 $ 23,075  1,512,263 $ 9.58 
  

 
          

 
    

Exercisable at June 30, 2010   5,266,354 $ 7.11  4.6 $ 22,964  —  — 

Vested and expected to vest at June 30, 2010   5,362,165 $ 7.17  4.7 $ 23,046  1,415,057 $ 9.58 
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        In December 2006 and May 2007, we modified awards for an aggregate of 1,184,470 options for our employees to equal the fair market value on the grant
date of our common stock for these awards to avoid certain adverse tax impacts on the individuals. There was no incremental compensation cost resulting from
the modifications. A further modification was made in December 2007 to increase the exercise price of certain awards and to provide for cash payments to
employees to compensate them for the increase in the exercise price of those awards.

(9) Common Stock

Warrants

        We have issued warrants in connection with various financing activities. These warrants provide for net equity settlement and are accounted for in equity.

        In connection with the May 2002 sale of common stock to private investors, we issued warrants to purchase up to 3,208,333 shares of common stock at a
price of $13.20 per share. In August 2003, the warrants were canceled, and new warrants were issued to purchase 1,152,665 shares at an exercise price of $9.76
per share, due to the impact of the Series D Preferred financing on the warrants' anti-dilution provisions. In January 2004, warrants to purchase 129,191 shares of
common stock were exercised in a cashless exercise, resulting in the issuance of 17,922 shares of common stock. During fiscal 2007, the remaining 1,023,474
warrants were exercised in a cashless exercise, resulting in the issuance of 286,204 shares of our common stock.

        In connection with the August 2003 Series D Preferred financing, we issued warrants with seven-year lives to purchase 7,267,286 shares of common stock at
an exercise price of $3.33 per share. In July 2006, 6,006,006 warrants were exercised in a cashless exercise, resulting in the issuance of 4,369,336 shares of our
common stock. In November 2007, warrants to purchase 630,640 shares of common stock were exercised in a cashless exercise, resulting in the issuance of
500,203 shares of common stock. As of June 30, 2010, warrants to purchase 630,640 shares of common stock were outstanding and exercisable at a price of
$3.33. On August 13, 2010, the remaining warrants were exercised in a cashless exercise, resulting in the issuance of 424,753 shares of our common stock.

(10) Income Taxes

        (Loss) income before provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
Domestic  $ (96,937) $ 48,095 $ 10,822 
Foreign   (3,971)  6,197  17,202 
        

Total  $ (100,908) $ 54,292 $ 28,024 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10) Income Taxes (Continued)

        The provision for income taxes shown in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations is composed of the following (in thousands):

        The provision for income taxes differs from that based on the federal statutory rate due to the following (in thousands):
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
Federal—           
 Current  $ 2,586 $ 1,616 $ — 
 Deferred   (2,490)  (1,616)  457 
State—           
 Current   170  1,064  1,419 
 Deferred   —  —  — 
Foreign—           
 Current   5,907  (71)  6,010 
 Deferred   364  375  (4,808)
        

 $ 6,537 $ 1,368 $ 3,078 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
Federal tax at statutory rate  $ (35,318) $ 19,002 $ 9,808 
State income taxes   —  595  299 
Subpart F and dividend income   458  1,467  3,695 
Foreign taxes and rate differences   6,445  (682)  (1,952)
Permanent differences   1,987  (501)  980 
Tax credits   —  (6,092)  (2,988)
Tax contingencies   170  (2,615)  2,755 
Return to provision adjustments   —  1,000  — 
Valuation allowance   32,772  (12,911)  (10,235)
Other   23  2,105  716 
        

Provision for income taxes  $ 6,537 $ 1,368 $ 3,078 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10) Income Taxes (Continued)

        The approximate tax effect of each type of temporary difference and tax carryforward is as follows (in thousands):

        Upon customer payment of certain foreign receivables, withholding taxes are withheld by customers and remitted to local tax authorities as required by
statute. Under current U.S. tax law, these withholding taxes may be creditable against U.S. taxes payable subject to certain limitations. The withholding taxes are
included in the foreign tax provision as they are withheld and remitted. Utilization of such taxes as foreign tax credits is recorded as a reduction of the domestic
tax expense in the period it is more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will be realized. We have recorded a partial valuation allowance against these
credits since their potential utilization cannot be determined to be more likely than not. We will recognize the benefit of these credits only when it is more likely
than not that these deferred tax assets will be realized. We do not provide deferred taxes on unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries since we intend to
indefinitely reinvest either currently or sometime in the foreseeable future. Unrecognized provisions for taxes on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries,
which are considered indefinitely reinvested, are not material to our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

        As of June 30, 2010, we have available U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards of $83.4 million after the carryback discussed in the following
paragraph. Of that amount, $41.5 million is additional paid-in capital NOLs related to stock-based compensation tax deductions in excess of book
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  June 30,  
  2010  2009  
Deferred tax assets:        
Federal and state credits  $ 4,677 $ 2,780 
Foreign tax credits   21,411  — 
Federal and state loss carryforwards   15,029  — 
Foreign loss carryforwards   1,651  2,370 
Revenue   2,892  1,294 
Restructuring accruals   2,974  4,192 
Other reserves and accruals   8,888  12,013 
Intangible assets   2,910  4,172 
Property and leasehold improvements   5,003  4,648 
Other temporary differences   13,908  13,084 
      

  79,343  44,553 

Deferred tax liabilities:        
Revenue   (522)  (558)
Other reserves and accruals   (141)  — 
Intangible assets   (1,328)  (1,675)
Property and leasehold improvements   (905)  (645)
Other temporary differences   (474)  (601)
      

  (3,370)  (3,479)
Valuation allowance   (64,098)  (31,325)
      

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)  $ 11,875 $ 9,749 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10) Income Taxes (Continued)

compensation expense. We record these tax benefits in additional paid-in capital only when such deductions reduce taxes payable as determined on a "with-and-
without" basis. Accordingly, these additional paid-in capital NOLs will reduce federal taxes payable if realized in future periods, but NOLs related to such
benefits are not included in the table above.

        During fiscal 2010, we generated $111 million of U.S. federal net operating losses (NOLs). We elected to carryback these NOLs to fiscal 2008 and fiscal
2009, which resulted in freeing up previously used foreign tax credits, research and development credits, and additional paid-in capital NOLs related to stock-
based compensation. In carrying back these NOLs to fiscal 2008, we freed up $5.2 million of foreign tax credits and $2.9 million of additional paid-in capital
NOLs. In carrying back these NOLs to fiscal 2009, we freed up $12.4 million of foreign tax credits and $6.6 million of additional paid-in capital NOLs. The
foreign tax credits expire at various dates from 2014 through 2020.

        We have foreign loss carryforwards of $6.3 million which expire beginning in 2011 and others with no expiration date. We also have State research and
development credits, and alternative minimum tax (AMT) credit carryforwards. These benefits are subject to a partial valuation allowance and will reduce tax
expense in the period that they are realized or the valuation allowance is removed if realization is considered more likely than not. The tax credits and foreign
NOL carryforwards expire at various dates from 2010 through 2030, while the AMT credit carryforwards have unlimited carryforward periods.

        We have determined that we underwent an ownership change (as defined under section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) during fiscal
2004. As such, the utilization of certain federal NOLs and tax credits are limited. Moreover, an ownership change also occurred under the laws of certain states
and foreign countries in which we have generated NOLs and tax credits. Accordingly, these NOLs and tax credits will also be limited under rules similar to those
of section 382. These limitations impact the amount of additional paid-in capital NOL, if any, that may be utilized in a given year. Currently, there is $16.8 million
of additional paid in capital NOL that is not subject to this limitation. The remaining $24.7 million of additional paid-in capital NOL would be limited to
approximately $7.2 million per year. The federal NOLs as of June 30, 2010 begin to expire in 2021.
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(10) Income Taxes (Continued)

        A reconciliation of the reserve for uncertain tax positions is as follows (in thousands):

        Our policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters as income tax expense and accordingly, we recorded approximately
$0.7 million for interest and penalties during fiscal 2010. At June 30, 2010, we had approximately $4.7 million of accrued interest related to uncertain tax
positions. At June 30, 2010, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits is $17.7 million, and of that amount, $8.5 million, if recognized, would reduce the
effective tax rate. We do not anticipate the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits to change within the next twelve months.

        Fiscal years 2007-2010 are open to audit in the United States and Canada.

        Subsidiaries of Aspen Technology in a number of countries outside of the U.S. and Canada are also subject to tax audits. The Company estimates that the
effects of such tax audits are not material to these consolidated financial statements.

(11) Operating Leases

        We lease our facilities and various office equipment under non-cancellable operating leases with terms in excess of one year. Rent expense, net of sublease
income, charged to operations was approximately $6.7 million, $6.8 million and $7.4 million for fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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Balance as of June 30, 2007  $ 23,684 
 Gross decreases—tax positions in prior period   (5,961)
 Gross increases—tax positions in current period   5,975 
 Currency translation adjustment   1,133 
    

Balance as of June 30, 2008   24,831 
 Gross increases—tax positions in prior period   5,767 
 Gross decreases—tax positions in prior period   (5,107)
 Gross increases—tax positions in current period   698 
 Gross decreases—payments   (1,599)
 Gross decreases—lapse of statutes   (3,764)
 Currency translation adjustment   (1,588)
    

Balance as of June 30, 2009   19,238 
 Gross increases—tax positions in prior period   111 
 Gross decreases—tax positions in prior period   (958)
 Gross increases—tax positions in current period   2,114 
 Gross decreases—payments   (332)
 Gross decreases—lapse of statutes   (2,354)
 Currency translation adjustment   (89)
    

Balance as of June 30, 2010  $ 17,730 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Operating Leases (Continued)

Future minimum lease payments under these leases and scheduled sublease payments as of June 30, 2010 are as follows (in thousands):

        Due to various restructuring activities (See Note 3) we have vacated certain of our leased space and are subleasing a portion of this space. The scheduled
sublease payments are listed above.

        We have issued approximately $3.2 million of standby letters of credit in connection with certain facility leases that expire through 2016.

        In May 2007, we entered into a lease agreement with respect to office space in Burlington, Massachusetts. Commencing September 1, 2007, we moved our
principal corporate offices to this location and occupied 60,177 square feet of space. The initial term of the lease commenced with respect to (a) 31,174 square
feet of leased premises on September 1, 2007, (b) an additional 29,003 square feet on October 1, 2007 and (c) an additional 1,309 square feet of leased space on
October 26, 2007 (d) an additional 1,680 square feet on March 27, 2008 and (e) an additional 11,893 square feet on August 1, 2008. The initial term of the lease
will expire seven years and four months following the term commencement date for the third phase of the leased premises. Subject to the terms and conditions of
the lease, we may extend the term of the lease for two successive terms of five years each at 95% of the then market rate. Under the lease, we will pay additional
rent for its proportionate share of operating expenses and taxes. Future minimum lease payments through January 2015 under this lease of $9.4 million are
included in the table above.

        On September 5, 2007, we entered into an additional sublease agreement related to our former office space in Cambridge, Massachusetts, effective
October 1, 2007 for approximately 50,000 square feet that expires on September 30, 2012. As of June 30, 2010, we had multiple agreements that expire through
2012 to sublease approximately 95,093 square feet of space in our former office space in Cambridge. These sublease agreements represent $5.0 million of
scheduled sublease payments and are included in the above table.
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Gross

Payments  

Scheduled
Sublease
Payments  

Net
Payments  

Year Ended June 30,           
2011  $ 10,832 $ 2,654 $ 8,178 
2012   7,691  2,374  5,317 
2013   4,749  714  4,035 
2014   3,807  159  3,648 
2015   2,930  159  2,771 
Thereafter   1,803  172  1,631 
        

 Total  $ 31,812 $ 6,232 $ 25,580 
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(12) Commitments and Contingencies

(a)   ATME arbitration

        Prior to October 6, 2009, we had an exclusive reseller relationship covering certain countries in the Middle East with AspenTech Middle East W.L.L., a
Kuwaiti corporation (now known as Advanced Technology Middle East W.L.L.) that we refer to below as ATME. Under the reseller agreement, we had the right
to terminate for a material breach in the event of ATME's willful misconduct or fraud. Effective October 6, 2009, we terminated the reseller relationship for
material breach by ATME based on certain actions of ATME. Under the reseller agreement, we had the right to terminate for a material breach in the event of
ATME's willful misconduct or fraud.

        On November 2, 2009, ATME commenced an action in the Queen's Bench Division (Commercial Court) of the High Court of Justice (England & Wales)
captioned In The Matter Of An Intended Arbitration Between AspenTech Middle East W.L.L. and Aspen Technology, Inc., 2009 Folio 1436, seeking preliminary
injunctive relief restraining us from taking any steps to impede ATME from serving as our exclusive reseller in the countries covered by the reseller agreement
with ATME. We filed evidence in opposition to that request for relief on November 12, 2009. At a hearing on November 13, 2009, the court dismissed ATME's
application for preliminary injunctive relief. The court sealed an Order to this effect on November 23, 2009, and further ordered that ATME pay our costs of
claim.

        Relatedly, on November 11, 2009, we filed a request for arbitration against ATME in the International Court of Arbitration of the International Chamber of
Commerce, captioned Aspen Technology, Inc. v. AspenTech Middle East W.L.L., Case No. 16732/VRO. Our request for arbitration asserted claims against
ATME seeking a declaration that ATME committed a material breach of our agreement and that our termination of our agreement was lawful, and seeking
damages for ATME's willful misconduct in connection with the reseller relationship. On November 18, 2009, ATME filed its answer to that request for arbitration
and asserted counterclaims against us seeking a declaratory judgment that we unlawfully terminated our agreement with ATME and seeking damages for breach
of contract by reason of our purported unlawful termination of our agreement. Our reply to those counterclaims was filed on or about December 18, 2009.

        The reseller agreement with ATME contained a provision whereby we could be liable for a termination fee if the agreement were terminated other than for
material breach. This fee is to be calculated based on a formula contained in the reseller agreement that we believe was originally developed based on certain
assumptions about the future financial performance of ATME, as well as ATME's actual financial performance. Based on the formula and the financial
information provided to us by ATME, which we have not had the opportunity to verify independently, a recent calculation based on the formula would result in a
termination fee of between $60 million and $77 million. Under the terminated reseller agreement, no termination fee is owed on termination for material breach.
If we are found to have breached the terms of our agreement with ATME, we could be liable for the full value of the termination fee, which may be greater or less
than the number indicated above. We intend to pursue our claims against ATME, and to defend the counterclaims by ATME, vigorously.

        On March 11, 2010, a Kuwaiti entity (known as ATME Group and affiliated with ATME) filed a lawsuit in a Kuwaiti court naming as defendants ATME, us
and a reseller newly appointed by us in Kuwait. In this lawsuit, ATME Group claims that it was an exclusive reseller for ATME in Kuwait and, as such, is entitled
to damages resulting from purported customer contracts in Kuwait. We intend to defend this action vigorously.
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(12) Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

(b)   Class action and opt-out claims

        In March 2006, we settled class action litigation, including related derivative claims, arising out of our originally filed consolidated financial statements for
fiscal 2000 through 2004, the accounting for which we restated in March 2005. Certain members of the class (representing 1,457,969 shares of common stock (or
less than 1% of the shares putatively purchased during the class action period)) opted out of the settlement and had the right to bring their own state or federal law
claims against us, referred to as "opt-out" claims. Opt-out claims were filed on behalf of the holders of approximately 1.1 million of such shares. One of these
actions was settled and three were dismissed. The claims in the remaining actions (described below) include claims against us and one or more of our former
officers alleging securities and common law fraud, breach of contract, deceptive practices and/or rescissory damages liability, based on the restated results of one
or more fiscal periods included in our restated consolidated financial statements referenced in the class action.

• Herbert G. and Eunice E. Blecker, et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed in June 2006 in the Business Litigation Session of the
Massachusetts Superior Court for Suffolk County and docketed as Civ. A. No. 06-2357-BLS1, was an opt-out claim asserted by persons who
received 248,411 shares of our common stock in an acquisition. Fact discovery in this action closed in July 2008, and a non-jury trial was
conducted in November 2009. In January 2010, the court issued its order granting judgment in our favor and dismissing the case. In February
2010, the plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal of the judgment. We intend to continue to defend this action vigorously. 

• 380544 Canada, Inc., et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., filed on February 15, 2007 in the federal district court for the Southern District of New
York and docketed as Civ. A. No. 1:07-cv-01204-JFK in that court, is a claim asserted by persons who purchased 566,665 shares of our common
stock in a private placement. Certain motions to dismiss filed by other defendants were resolved on May 5, 2009, and discovery is in process. The
claims in the 380544 Canada action are for damages totaling at least $4.0 million, not including claims for attorneys' fees. We plan to defend the
380544 Canada action vigorously.

(c)   Other

        In the ordinary course of business, we are also from time to time involved in lawsuits, claims, investigations, proceedings, and threats of litigation consisting
of intellectual property, commercial and other matters. We are currently defending an April 2004 claim by a customer for approximately $5.0 million that certain
of our software products and implementation services failed to meet its expectations, which we are defending vigorously.

(13) Retirement and Profit Sharing Plans

        We maintain a defined contribution retirement plan under Section 401(k) of the IRC covering all eligible employees, as defined. Under the plan, a participant
may elect to defer receipt of a stated percentage of his or her compensation, subject to limitation under the IRC, which would otherwise be payable to the
participant for any plan year. We may make discretionary contributions to this plan, including making matching contributions of 50%, up to a maximum of 6% of
an employee's pretax contribution. In fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, we made matching contributions of approximately $1.8 million, $1.3 million and $0.8 million,
respectively. Additionally, we participate in certain
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(13) Retirement and Profit Sharing Plans (Continued)

government mandated and defined contribution plans throughout the world for which we comply with all funding requirements.

(14) Other Investments

        In November 2000, we invested $0.6 million in a global chemical business-to-business e-commerce company supporting major chemical companies in Asia.
This investment entitles us to a minority interest in this company and is accounted for using the cost method and, accordingly, is being valued at cost unless an
other-than-temporary impairment in its value occurs. No impairments have been recognized through June 30, 2010. This investment is included in other non-
current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

(15) Segment and Geographic Information

        Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the
chief operating decision maker, or decision making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Our chief operating decision
maker is our Chief Executive Officer.

        The measurement of the controllable margin for all segments was changed in 2010 to include a greater allocation of expenses related to bonuses from
unallocated costs to controllable expenses. This change conformed to management's current approach of cost allocation for internal reporting purposes. All
periods presented have been restated to conform to management's current measurement approach.

        We have three operating segments: license, professional services, and maintenance and training. The chief operating decision maker assesses financial
performance and allocates resources based upon the three lines of business.

        The license line of business is engaged in the development and licensing of software. The professional services line of business offers implementation,
advanced process control, real-time optimization and other professional services in order to provide its customers with complete solutions. The maintenance and
training line of business provides customers with a wide range of support services that include on-site support, telephone support, software updates and various
forms of training on how to use our products.

        The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. We do not track assets
or capital expenditures by operating segments. Consequently, it is not practical to show assets, capital expenditures, depreciation or amortization by operating
segments.
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(15) Segment and Geographic Information (Continued)

        The following table presents a summary of operating segments (in thousands):

Reconciliation to (Loss) Income Before Provision for Taxes

        The following table presents a reconciliation of total segment operating profit to income before provision for income taxes (in thousands):
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  License  
Professional

Services  
Maintenance
and Training  Total  

Year Ended June 30, 2008—              
 Segment revenues  $ 168,404 $ 59,708 $ 83,501 $ 311,613 
 Segment expenses   69,520  44,037  14,947  128,504 
          

 Segment operating profit(1)  $ 98,884 $ 15,671 $ 68,554 $ 183,109 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2009—              
 Segment revenues  $ 179,591 $ 48,352 $ 83,637 $ 311,580 
 Segment expenses   62,794  39,930  14,887  117,611 
          

 Segment operating profit(1)  $ 116,797 $ 8,422 $ 68,750 $ 193,969 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2010—              
 Segment revenues  $ 53,991 $ 37,491 $ 74,862 $ 166,344 
 Segment expenses   70,822  36,081  15,076  121,979 
          

 Segment operating profit(1)  $ (16,831) $ 1,410 $ 59,786 $ 44,365 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(1) The Segment operating profits reported reflect only the direct expenses of the operating segment and do not contain an allocation for selling and marketing, general and
administrative, development, restructuring and other corporate expenses incurred in support of the segments.

  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
Total segment operating profit for reportable segments  $ 44,365 $ 193,969 $ 183,109 
 Cost of license and amortization for technology related costs   (6,437)  (12,409)  (15,916)
 Marketing   (12,897)  (12,662)  (13,581)
 Research and development   (39,124)  (37,625)  (39,850)
 General and administrative and overhead   (78,889)  (79,600)  (75,902)
 Stock-based compensation   (15,260)  (4,670)  (10,600)
 Restructuring charges   (1,128)  (2,446)  (8,623)
 Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets   —  (623)  — 
 Other income (expense)   (2,407)  (1,824)  3,386 
 Interest and other income, net   10,869  12,182  6,001 
        

(Loss) income before provision for income taxes  $ (100,908) $ 54,292 $ 28,024 
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(15) Segment and Geographic Information (Continued)

Geographic Information:

        Revenue to external customers is attributed to individual countries based on the location the product or services are sold. Domestic and international sales as
a percentage of total revenue are as follows:

        During fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008 there were no customers that individually represented greater than 10% of our total revenue.

        We have long-lived assets of approximately $6.8 million that are located domestically and $1.3 million that reside in other geographic locations as of
June 30, 2010.

(16) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

        The following tables present quarterly consolidated statement of operations data for fiscal 2010 and 2009. The below data is unaudited but, in our opinion,
reflects all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of this data in accordance with GAAP (in thousands, except per share data).
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  Year Ended June 30,  
  2010  2009  2008  
United States   38.2%  31.3%  36.4%
Europe   26.6  26.8  33.3 
Other(1)   35.2  41.9  30.3 
        

  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

(1) Other consists primarily of APAC, Canada, Latin America and the Middle East.

  Three Months Ended  

  
June 30,

2010  
March 31,

2010  
December 31,

2009(1)  
September 30,

2009(1)  
Net revenue  $ 38,244 $ 45,618 $ 42,686 $ 39,796 
Gross profit   20,746  30,944  26,217  22,327 
(Loss) income from operations   (35,604)  (19,647)  (29,315)  (24,804)
(Loss) income applicable to common stockholders   (33,972)  (21,754)  (30,657)  (21,062)

(Loss) earnings per common share:              
 Basic  $ (0.37) $ (0.24) $ (0.34) $ (0.23)
 Diluted  $ (0.37) $ (0.24) $ (0.34) $ (0.23)
Weighted average shares outstanding:              
 Basic   92,222  91,835  91,002  90,107 
 Diluted   92,222  91,835  91,002  90,107 
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(16) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) (Continued)

F-47

  Three Months Ended  

  
June 30,

2009  
March 31,

2009  
December 31,

2008  
September 30,

2008(1)  
Net revenue  $ 71,255 $ 71,292 $ 82,627 $ 86,406 
Gross profit   51,161  52,896  64,463  67,240 
Income from operations   2,329  4,463  18,832  18,310 
Income applicable to common stockholders   10,214  8,096  22,961  11,653 

Earnings per common share:              
 Basic  $ 0.11 $ 0.09 $ 0.26 $ 0.13 
 Diluted  $ 0.11 $ 0.09 $ 0.25 $ 0.12 
Weighted average shares outstanding:              
 Basic   90,087  90,065  90,043  90,019 
 Diluted   92,384  91,648  92,030  94,005 

(1) See Note 2(v) regarding correction of immaterial errors.
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 10.6† Purchase and Sale Agreement dated October 6, 2004 among

Aspen Technology, Inc., Hyprotech Company, AspenTech
Canada Ltd. and Hyprotech UK Ltd. and Honeywell
International Inc., Honeywell Control Systems Limited and
Honeywell Limited—Honeywell Limitee

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.1 

             
 10.6a† Amendment No. 1 dated December 23, 2004 to Purchase and

Sale Agreement dated October 6, 2004 among Aspen
Technology, Inc., Hyprotech Company, AspenTech
Canada Ltd., and Hyprotech UK Ltd. and Honeywell
International Inc., Honeywell Control Systems Limited and
Honeywell Limited—Honeywell Limitee

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.2 

             
 10.7† Hyprotech License Agreement dated December 23, 2004

between Aspen Technology, Inc. and Honeywell
International, Inc.

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.3 

             
 10.8† Hyprotech License Agreement dated December 23, 2004

between AspenTech Canada Ltd. and Honeywell Limited—
Honeywell Limitee

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.4 

             
 10.9† Hyprotech License Agreement dated December 23, 2004

between Hyprotech Company and Honeywell Limited—
Honeywell Limitee

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.5 

             
 10.10† Hyprotech License Agreement dated December 23, 2004

between AspenTech Ltd. and Honeywell Control Systems
Limited

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.6 

             
 10.11† Hyprotech License Agreement dated December 23, 2004

between Hyprotech UK Ltd. and Honeywell Control Systems
Limited

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.7 

             
 10.12 Vendor Program Agreement dated March 29, 1990 between

Aspen Technology, Inc. and General Electric Capital
Corporation

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.13 

             
 10.12a Rider No. 1 dated December 14, 1994, to Vendor Program

Agreement dated March 29, 1990 between Aspen
Technology, Inc. and General Electric Capital Corporation

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.13a

             
 10.12b Rider No. 2 dated September 4, 2001 to Vendor Program

Agreement dated March 29, 1990 between Aspen
Technology, Inc. and General Electric Capital Corporation

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.13b

             
 10.12c Waiver and Consent Agreement dated March 31, 2009    10-K  June 30, 2009   10.13c
             
 10.13 Non-Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated

December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  February 17, 2004   10.1 

             
 10.13a First Amendment dated June 30, 2004 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15a
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 10.13b Second Amendment dated September 30, 2004 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.1 

             
 10.13c Third Amendment dated December 31, 2004 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  March 15, 2005   10.8 

             
 10.13d Fourth Amendment dated March 8, 2005 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15d

             
 10.13e Fifth Amendment dated March 31, 2005 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  May 10, 2005   10.1 

             
 10.13f Sixth Amendment dated December 29, 2005 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15f

             
 10.13g Seventh Amendment dated July 17, 2006 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15g

             
 10.13h Eighth Amendment dated September 15, 2006 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15h

             
 10.13i Ninth Amendment dated January 12, 2007 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  May 10, 2007   10.3 

             
 10.13j Tenth Amendment dated April 13, 2007 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15j

             
 10.13k Eleventh Amendment dated June 28, 2007 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15k

             
 10.13l Twelfth Amendment dated October 16, 2007 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15l

             
 10.13m Thirteenth Amendment dated December 12, 2007 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  April 11, 2008   10.15m
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 10.13n Fourteenth Amendment dated December 28, 2007 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   8-K  January 7, 2008   10.2 

             
 10.13o Fifteenth Amendment dated January 24, 2008 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.2 

             
 10.13p Sixteenth Amendment dated May 15, 2008 to Non-Recourse

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 2003
between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.3 

             
 10.13q Seventeenth Amendment dated November 14, 2008 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.4 

             
 10.13r Eighteenth Amendment dated January 30, 2009 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.5 

             
 10.13s Nineteenth Amendment dated May 15, 2009 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  June 30, 2009   10.15s

             
 10.13t Twentieth Amendment dated November 3, 2009 to Non-

Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-K  November 9, 2009   10.15t

             
 10.14 Loan Agreement dated June 15, 2005 among Aspen

Technology, Inc., Aspen Technology Receivables II LLC,
Guggenheim Corporate Funding, LLC and the lenders named
therein.

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.1 

             
 10.15 Security Agreement dated June 15, 2005 between Aspen

Technology Receivables II LLC and Guggenheim Corporate
Funding, LLC

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.2 

             
 10.16 Release Letter dated December 28, 2007 relating to Loan

Agreement dated June 15, 2005 among Aspen
Technology, Inc., Aspen Technology Receivables II LLC,
Guggenheim Corporate Funding, LLC and the Lenders
named therein

   8-K  January 7, 2008   10.1 

             
 10.17 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated June 15, 2005 between

Aspen Technology, Inc. and Aspen Technology Receivables
I LLC

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.3 

             
 10.18 Purchase and Resale Agreement dated June 15, 2005

between Aspen Technology Receivables I LLC and Aspen
Technology Receivables II LLC

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.4 
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 10.19 Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among

Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 14,
2003

  10.1 

             
 10.20a Letter Agreement dated February 14, 2003 amending Loan and

Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley
Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22a

             
 10.20b First Loan Modification Agreement dated June 27, 2003 to Loan

and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon
Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   10-K  September 29,
2003

  10.22 

             
 10.20c Second Loan Modification Agreement dated September 10, 2004

to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  September 13,
2004

  10.70 

             
 10.20d Third Loan Modification Agreement dated January 28, 2005 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22d

             
 10.20e† Fourth Loan Modification Agreement dated April 1, 2005 to Loan

and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon
Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  May 10, 2005   10.2 

             
 10.20f Fifth Loan Modification Agreement dated May 6, 2005 to Loan

and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon
Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22f

             
 10.20g Sixth Loan Modification Agreement dated June 15, 2005 to Loan

and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon
Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.5 

             
 10.20h Seventh Loan Modification Agreement dated September 13, 2005

to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  September 13,
2005

  10.79 

             
 10.20i Eighth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dated

December 30, 2005 to Loan and Security Agreement dated
January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22i



Table of Contents

      Incorporated by Reference  

Exhibit
Number  Description  

Filed
with this

Form 10-K  Form  
Filing Date
with SEC(1)  

Exhibit
Number  

             
 10.20j Ninth Loan Modification Agreement dated July 17, 2006 to Loan

and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon
Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22j

             
 10.20k Tenth Loan Modification Agreement dated September 15, 2006 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  September 28,
2006

  10.84 

             
 10.20l Eleventh Loan Modification Agreement dated September 27,

2006 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003
among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.,
AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  November 14,
2006

  10.3 

             
 10.20m Twelfth Loan Modification Agreement dated January 12, 2007 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  May 10, 2007   10.1 

             
 10.20n Thirteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated April 13, 2007 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22n

             
 10.20o Fourteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated June 28, 2007 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22o

             
 10.20p Fifteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated August 30, 2007 to

Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22p

             
 10.20q Sixteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated October 16, 2007

to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.22q

             
 10.20r Seventeenth Loan Modification Agreement dated December 28,

2007 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003
among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.,
AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   8-K  January 7,
2008

  10.3 

             
 10.20s Eighteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated January 24, 2008

to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 among
Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc.
and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19,
2009

  10.7 
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 10.20t Nineteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated April 11,

2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.8 

             
 10.20u Twentieth Loan Modification Agreement dated May 15,

2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.9 

             
 10.20v Twenty-first Loan Modification Agreement dated June 12,

2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.10 

             
 10.20w Twenty-second Loan Modification Agreement dated July 15,

2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.11 

             
 10.20x Twenty-third Loan Modification Agreement dated

September 30, 2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated
January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.12 

             
 10.20y Twenty-fourth Loan Modification Agreement dated

November 14, 2008 to Loan and Security Agreement dated
January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.13 

             
 10.20z Twenty-fifth Loan Modification Agreement dated

January 15, 2009 to Loan and Security Agreement dated
January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 19, 2009   10.14 

             
 10.20aa Twenty-sixth Loan Modification Agreement dated May 15,

2009 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  June 30, 2009   10.22aa

             
 10.20ab Twenty-seventh Loan Modification Agreement dated

November 3, 2009 to Loan and Security Agreement dated
January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-K  November 9, 2009   10.22ab

             
 10.20ac Twenty-eighth Loan Modification Agreement dated June 11,

2010 to Loan and Security Agreement dated January 30,
2003 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   S-1  July 30, 2010   10.20ac
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 10.21 Form of Negative Pledge Agreement dated January 30, 2003, in

favor of Silicon Valley Bank, executed by Aspen
Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and Hyprotech Company

   10-Q  February 14,
2003

  10.5 

             
 10.22 Security Agreement dated January 30, 2003 between Silicon

Valley Bank and AspenTech Securities Corporation
   10-Q  February 14,

2003
  10.6 

             
 10.23 Unconditional Guaranty dated January 30, 2003, by AspenTech

Securities Corporation in favor of Silicon Valley Bank
   10-Q  February 14,

2003
  10.7 

             
 10.24 Pledge Agreement, effective as of June 27, 2003, by Aspen

Technology, Inc. in favor of Silicon Valley Bank
   10-K  September 29,

2003
  10.23 

             
 10.25 Partial Release and Acknowledgement Agreement dated June 15,

2005 among Aspen Technology, Inc., Aspentech, Inc. and Silicon
Valley Bank

   8-K  June 20, 2005   10.7 

             
 10.26 Partial Release and Acknowledgement Agreement dated

September 27, 2006 among Silicon Valley Bank and Aspen
Technology, Inc.

   10-Q  November 14,
2006

  10.6 

             
 10.27 Investor Rights Agreement dated August 14, 2003 among Aspen

Technology, Inc. and the Stockholders named therein
   8-K  August 22,

2003
  99.1 

             
 10.28 Management Rights Letter dated August 14, 2003 among Aspen

Technology, Inc. and the entities named therein.
   8-K  August 22,

2003
  99.2 

             
 10.29 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated

March 19, 2002 between Aspen Technology, Inc. and the
Purchasers named therein.

   8-K  March 20,
2002

  99.2 

             
 10.30^ Aspen Technology, Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan    S-8  September 9,

1996
  4.5 

             
 10.31^ Aspen Technology, Inc. Amended and Restated 1995 Directors

Stock Option Plan
   10-K  April 11, 2008  10.37 

             
 10.32^ Aspen Technology, Inc. 1996 Special Stock Option Plan    10-K  September 29,

1997
  10.23 

             
 10.33^ PetrolSoft Corporation 1998 Stock Option Plan    S-8  July 28, 2000   4 
             
 10.34^ Aspen Technology, Inc. Restated 2001 Stock Option Plan    10-K  September 28,

2006
  10.54 

             
 10.35^ Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Option Agreement

Granted under Aspen Technology, Inc. 2001 Restated Stock
Option Plan

   10-Q  November 14,
2006

  10.7 

             
 10.36^ Aspen Technology, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (as amended)    10-K  November 9,

2009
  10.39 

             
 10.37^ Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Option Agreement

Granted under Aspen Technology, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
   10-Q  November 14,

2006
  10.8 

             
 10.38^ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Granted under Aspen

Technology, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
   10-Q  November 14,

2006
  10.9 
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 10.39^ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-G Granted under Aspen

Technology, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
   10-Q  November 14,

2006
  10.10 

             
 10.40^ Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement

Granted under 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
   10-K  November 9,

2009
  10.43 

 10.41^ Aspen Technology, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan    8-K  April 21,
2010

  10.1 

             
 10.42^ Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Option Agreement

Granted under Aspen Technology, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan
 X  10-K       

             
 10.43^ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Granted under Aspen

Technology, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan
 X  10-K       

             
 10.44^ Form of Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement of

Aspen Technology, Inc.
   10-K  April 11,

2008
  10.45 

             
 10.45^ Aspen Technology, Inc. Director Compensation Policy    S-1  July 30, 2010   10.43 
             
 10.46^ Form of Aspen Technology, Inc. Executive Annual Incentive

Bonus Plan for Fiscal 2009
   8-K  June 30, 2008   99.1 

             
 10.47^ Form of Aspen Technology, Inc. Operations Executives Plan

Fiscal 2009
   8-K  June 30, 2008   99.2 

             
 10.48^ Aspen Technology, Inc. Executive Annual Incentive Bonus Plan

for Fiscal 2010
   8-K  September 11,

2009
  99.1 

             
 10.49^ From of Aspen Technology, Inc. Executive Annual Incentive

Bonus Plan for Fiscal 2011
   8-K  August 4,

2010
  10.1 

             
 10.50^ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effective

October 3, 2007, between Aspen Technology, Inc. and Mark
Fusco

   10-K  April 11,
2008

  10.50 

             
 10.51^ Form of Executive Retention Agreement entered into by Aspen

Technology, Inc. and each executive officer of Aspen
Technology, Inc. (other than Mark E. Fusco)

   10-Q  February 9,
2010

  10.1 

             
 10.52^ Amendment Number 1 dated December 29, 2006 to Stock Option

Agreement granted to Manolis E. Kotzabasakis on or about
August 18, 2003 under Aspen Technology, Inc. 1995 Stock Option
Plan, as amended (Award Identification No. P040380)

   8-K  January 5,
2007

  10.1 

             
 10.53^ Amendment Number 1 dated December 29, 2006 to Stock Option

Agreement granted to Manolis E. Kotzabasakis on or about
August 18, 2003 under Aspen Technology, Inc. 2001 Stock Option
Plan, as amended (Award Identification No. P040002)

   8-K  January 5,
2007

  10.2 

             
 10.54^ Amendment Number 1 dated December 29, 2006 to the Stock

Option Agreement granted to Manolis E. Kotzabasakis on or about
August 18, 2003 under Aspen Technology, Inc. 2001 Stock Option
Plan, as amended (Award Identification No. P0405621)

   8-K  January 5,
2007

  10.3 
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 10.55^ Offer letter dated June 24, 2009 by and between Aspen

Technology, Inc. and Mark P. Sullivan
   S-1  July 30, 2010   10.52 

             
 21.1 Subsidiaries of Aspen Technology, Inc.    S-1  July 30, 2010   21.1 
             
 23.2 Consent of KPMG LLP  X         
             
 31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
          

             
 31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
          

             
 32.1* Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As

Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

          

(1) The SEC File No. is 000-24786, other than Exhibit 10.30 (SEC File No. 333-11651), Exhibit 10.33 (SEC File No. 333-42536) and
Exhibit 10.41 (001-34630). 

† Confidential treatment requested as to certain portions 

^ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement 

* The certification attached as Exhibit 32.1 that accompanies this Form 10-K is not deemed filed with the SEC and is not to be incorporated
by reference into any filing of Aspen Technology, Inc. under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, whether
made before or after the date of this Form 10-K, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.
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Exhibit 10.42 

ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. 

Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement
Granted Under 2010 Equity Incentive Plan 

        1.    Grant of Award.    

        These terms and conditions, together with the notice of grant attached hereto ("Notice"), evidence the grant by Aspen Technology, a Delaware corporation
(the "Company"), on the grant date set forth in the Notice (the "Grant Date") to the individual named in the Notice (the "Participant") of restricted stock units of
the Company (individually, an "RSU" and collectively, the "RSUs") on the terms provided herein and in the Company's 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the "Plan").
Each RSU represents the right to receive one share of the common stock, $0.10 par value per share, of the Company ("Common Stock") as provided in this
Agreement. The shares of Common Stock that are issuable upon vesting of the RSUs are referred to in this Agreement as "Shares."

        2.    Vesting; Forfeiture.    

        (a)   The RSUs shall vest according to the schedule set forth on the Notice.

        (b)   Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, by the Board of Directors or pursuant to agreement between the Company and the Participant, if the
Participant's employment with the Company terminates for any reason, any portion of this award that is not vested as of the date of such termination shall
be forfeited. For purposes of this Agreement, employment with the Company shall include employment with a parent or subsidiary of the Company.

        3.    Distribution of Shares.    

        (a)   The Company will distribute to the Participant (or to the Participant's estate in the event that his or her death occurs after a vesting date but
before distribution of the corresponding Shares), as soon as administratively practicable after each vesting date (each such date of distribution hereinafter
referred to as a "Settlement Date"), all of the vested Shares of Common Stock represented by RSUs that vested before the Settlement Date. If a Settlement
Date occurs during a period during which the Participant may not trade in securities of the Company because the Company's insider trading policy
imposes a trading blackout on the Participant, then the Settlement Date shall be delayed until such trading blackout has ended, unless Company deducts
and retains from the Shares to be distributed upon the Settlement Date, such number of Shares as is equal in value to the Company's statutory withholding
obligations with respect to the income recognized by Participant upon the lapse of the forfeiture provisions set forth in the Agreement (based on statutory
withholding rates for Federal and state tax purposes, including payroll taxes, that are applicable to such income), and to pay the required amounts to the
relevant taxing authorities.

        (b)   The Company shall not be obligated to issue to the Participant the Shares upon the vesting of any RSU (or otherwise) unless the issuance and
delivery of such Shares shall comply with all relevant provisions of law and other legal requirements including, without limitation, any applicable federal
or state securities laws and the requirements of any stock exchange upon which shares of Common Stock may then be listed.

        4.    Restrictions on Transfer.    

        The Participant shall not sell, assign, transfer, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of, by operation of law or otherwise (collectively "transfer") any
RSUs, or any interest therein, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

        5.    Dividend and Other Shareholder Rights.    

        Except as set forth in the Plan, neither the Participant nor any person claiming under or through the Participant shall be, or have any rights or privileges of, a
stockholder of the Company in respect of



the Shares issuable pursuant to the RSUs granted hereunder until the Shares have been delivered to the Participant.

        6.    Provisions of the Plan; Reorganization Event; Change in Control Event.    

        This Agreement is subject to the provisions of the Plan, a copy of which is furnished to the Participant with this Agreement.

        7.    Withholding Taxes; Section 83(b) Election.    

        (a)   No Shares will be delivered pursuant to the vesting of an RSU unless and until the Participant pays to the Company, or makes provision
satisfactory to the Company for payment of, any federal, state or local withholding taxes required by law to be withheld in respect of the vesting of the
RSU. To satisfy any such tax obligation, the Company may deduct and retain from the Shares to be distributed upon the Settlement Date such number of
Shares as is equal in value to the Company's minimum statutory withholding obligations with respect to the income recognized by the Participant upon the
lapse of the forfeiture provisions (based on minimum statutory withholding rates for federal and state tax purposes, including payroll taxes, that are
applicable to such income), and pay the required amounts to the relevant taxing authorities.

        (b)   The Participant acknowledges that no election under Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 may be filed with respect to this
award.

        8.    Miscellaneous.    

        (a)    No Rights to Employment.    The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the vesting of the RSUs shall be in accordance with the vesting
schedule set forth in the Notice, and is contingent upon status as an employee at the time of vesting at the will of the Company (not through the act of
being hired). The Participant further acknowledges and agrees that the transactions contemplated hereunder and the vesting schedule set forth in the
Notice do not constitute an express or implied promise of continued engagement as an employee or consultant for the vesting period, for any period, or at
all.

        (b)    Severability.    The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other
provision of this Agreement, and each other provision of this Agreement shall be severable and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

        (c)    Waiver.    Any provision for the benefit of the Company contained in this Agreement may be waived, either generally or in any particular
instance, by the Board of Directors of the Company.

        (d)    Binding Effect.    This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and the Participant and their respective heirs,
executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns, subject to the restrictions on transfer set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement.

        (e)    Notice.    All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and deemed effectively given upon personal delivery or five days after
deposit in the United States Post Office, by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the other party hereto at the address shown beneath
his or its respective signature to this Agreement, or at such other address or addresses as either party shall designate to the other in accordance with this
Section 8(e).

        (f)    Pronouns.    Whenever the context may require, any pronouns used in this Agreement shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine or
neuter forms, and the singular form of nouns and pronouns shall include the plural, and vice versa.

        (g)    Entire Agreement.    This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and this Agreement supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.



        (h)    Amendment.    This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by both the Company and the Participant.

        (i)    Governing Law.    This Agreement shall be construed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Delaware,
USA without regard to any applicable conflicts of laws principles.

        (j)    Participant's Acknowledgments.    The Participant acknowledges that he or she: (i) has read this Agreement; (ii) understands the terms and
consequences of this Agreement; and (iii) is fully aware of the legal and binding effect of this Agreement.

        (k)    Unfunded Rights.    The right of the Participant to receive Common Stock pursuant to this Agreement is an unfunded and unsecured obligation
of the Company. The Participant shall have no rights under this Agreement other than those of an unsecured general creditor of the Company.

        (l)    Section 409A.    Payments under this Agreement are intended to be exempt from, or comply with, the provisions of Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 ("Section 409A") and this Agreement shall be administered and construed accordingly. If any payment, compensation or other
benefit provided to the Participant in connection with a termination of his employment is determined, in whole or in part, to constitute "nonqualified
deferred compensation" within the meaning of Section 409A and the Participant is a specified employee as defined in Section 409A(2)(B)(i), no part of
such payments shall be paid before the day that is six (6) months plus one (1) day after the date of termination (the "New Payment Date"). The aggregate
of any payments that otherwise would have been paid to the Participant during the period between the date of termination and the New Payment Date
shall be paid to the Participant in a lump sum on such New Payment Date.

By accepting this grant online, I hereby acknowledge that I have read these Terms and Conditions, the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and related
prospectus, and agree to all terms and conditions set forth therein.

 ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC.
 

By:
 

 

Mark E. Fusco
President and CEO
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Aspen Technology, Inc. 

Terms and Conditions of Stock Option Agreement
Granted Under 2010 Equity Incentive Plan 

        1.    Grant of Option.    

        These terms and conditions together with the notice of grant of stock option (the "Notice") set forth on the cover page to which they are attached constitute
an Agreement evidencing the grant by Aspen Technology, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), on the grant date set forth in the Notice (the "Grant
Date") to the employee named in the Notice (the "Participant"), of an option to purchase, in whole or in part, on the terms provided herein and in the Company's
2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the "Plan"), the number of shares (the "Shares") of common stock, $0.10 par value per share, of the Company ("Common Stock") set
forth on the Notice, at a strike price set forth per Share set forth in the Notice. Unless earlier terminated, this Agreement shall expire at 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time,
on the Expiration Date set forth in the Notice (the "Final Exercise Date").

        To the extent permitted by the Code (as defined below) and designated in the Notice, it is intended that the option evidenced by this Agreement shall be an
incentive stock option as defined in Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Code") or a
nonqualified stock option, to the extent designated in this Notice.

        2.    Vesting Schedule.    

        The options granted hereunder will vest according to the schedule set forth on the Notice. The right of exercise shall be cumulative so that to the extent the
option is not exercised in any period to the maximum extent permissible it shall continue to be exercisable, in whole or in part, with respect to all Shares for
which it is vested until the earlier of the Final Exercise Date or the termination of this Agreement under Section 3 hereof or the Plan.

        3.    Exercise of Option.    

        (a)   Form of Exercise.    Each election to exercise this Agreement shall be in the manner permitted by the Company's third party stock incentive plan
administrator. If no such third party administrator is administering the Plan at such time, such election shall be in writing, signed by the Participant and received
by the Company at its principal office, accompanied by this Agreement and payment in full in the manner provided in the Plan, or as otherwise provided in the
Plan. The Participant may purchase less than the number of shares covered hereby, provided that no partial exercise of this Agreement may be for any fractional
share.

        (b)   Continuous Relationship with the Company Required.    Except as otherwise provided in this Section 3, this Agreement may not be exercised unless the
Participant, at the time he or she exercises this Agreement, is, and has been at all times since the Grant Date, an employee or officer of, or consultant or advisor
to, the Company or any parent or subsidiary of the Company as defined in Section 424(e) or (f) of the Code (an "Eligible Participant").

        (c)   Termination of Relationship with the Company.    If the Participant ceases to be an Eligible Participant for any reason, then, except as provided in
paragraphs (d) and (e) below, the right to exercise this Agreement shall terminate three months after such cessation (but in no event after the Final Exercise Date),
provided that this Agreement shall be exercisable only to the extent that the Participant was entitled to exercise this Agreement on the date of such cessation.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant, prior to the Final Exercise Date, violates the non-competition or confidentiality provisions of any employment
contract, confidentiality and nondisclosure agreement or other agreement between the Participant and the Company, the right to exercise this Agreement shall
terminate immediately upon such violation.

        (d)   Exercise Period Upon Death or Disability.    Unless otherwise agreed by the Company and the Participant, if the Participant dies or becomes disabled
(within the meaning of Section 22(e)(3) of the



Code) prior to the Final Exercise Date while he or she is an Eligible Participant and the Company has not terminated such relationship for "cause" as specified in
paragraph (e) below, this Agreement shall be exercisable, within the period of eighteen months following the date of death, or one year following the date of
disability, of the Participant, by the Participant (or in the case of death by an authorized transferee), provided that this Agreement shall be exercisable only to the
extent that this Agreement was exercisable by the Participant on the date of his or her death or disability, and further provided that this Agreement shall not be
exercisable after the Final Exercise Date.

        (e)   Termination for Cause.    If, prior to the Final Exercise Date, the Participant's employment is terminated by the Company for Cause (as defined below),
the right to exercise this Agreement shall terminate immediately upon the effective date of such termination of employment, unless otherwise agreed by the
Company and the Participant. If the Participant is party to an employment or severance agreement with the Company that contains a definition of "cause" for
termination of employment, "Cause" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in such agreement. Otherwise, "Cause" shall mean (i) any willful failure by the
Participant, which failure is not cured within 30 days of written notice to the Participant from the Company, to perform his or her material responsibilities to the
Company, or (ii) willful misconduct by the Participant that affects the business reputation of the Company, in either case as determined by the Company, which
determination shall be conclusive.

        4.    Tax Matters.    

        (a)   Withholding.    No Shares will be issued pursuant to the exercise of this Agreement unless and until the Participant pays to the Company, or makes
provision satisfactory to the Company for payment of, any federal, state or local withholding taxes required to be withheld in respect of this Agreement.

        (b)   Disqualifying Disposition.    To the extent the option is an incentive stock option, if the Participant disposes of Shares acquired upon exercise of this
Agreement within two years from the Grant Date or one year after such Shares were acquired pursuant to exercise of this Agreement, the Participant shall notify
the Company in writing of such disposition.

        5.    Nontransferability of Option.    

        This Agreement may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise encumbered by the Participant, either voluntarily or by operation of law, except
by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and, during the lifetime of the Participant, this Agreement shall be exercisable only by the Participant.

        6.    Provisions of the Plan.    

        This Agreement is subject to the provisions of the Plan.
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Aspen Technology, Inc.

        We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-11651, 333-21593, 333-42536, 333-42538, 333-42540, 333-71872, 333-
80225, 333-117637, 333-117638, 333-118952 and 333-128423 on Form S-8 of Aspen Technology, Inc. (the "Company") of our reports dated September 1, 2010,
with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders'
equity (deficit) and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2010, and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2010, which reports appear in the June 30, 2010 annual report on Form 10-K of the Company.

        Our report dated September 1, 2010 on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2010 expresses our opinion that the
Company did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2010 because of the effects of material weaknesses on the achievement
of the objectives of the control criteria and contains an explanatory paragraph that states that management has identified and included in its assessment the
following categories of material weaknesses as of June 30, 2010: income tax accounting and disclosure, and recognition of professional services revenue.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
September 1, 2010
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CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark E. Fusco, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Aspen Technology, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have: 

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: September 1, 2010  /s/ MARK E. FUSCO

Mark E. Fusco
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
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CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I, Mark P. Sullivan, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Aspen Technology, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have: 

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: September 1, 2010  /s/ MARK P. SULLIVAN

Mark P. Sullivan
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



QuickLinks

Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002



QuickLinks -- Click here to rapidly navigate through this document

Exhibit 32.1 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

        In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Aspen Technology, Inc. (the "Company") for the year ended June 30, 2010, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), the undersigned President and Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer, certify, to the best knowledge and belief of the signatory, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: September 1, 2010  /s/ MARK E. FUSCO

Mark E. Fusco
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: September 1, 2010  /s/ MARK P. SULLIVAN

Mark P. Sullivan
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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